
MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

BOARD OF DIREaORS

REGULAR MEETING

THURSDAY, JANUARY 2,2020

4:30 p.m. Closed Session
6:00 p.m. Open Session

MENDOCINO COAST DISTRICT HOSPITAL

Patient Registration

700 River Drive

Fort Bragg, California 95437

Mendocino Coast District Hospital Mission Statement
MISSION

To make a positive difference in the health of our rural community.

VISION

MCDH v/ill play a vital role in the overall health and well-being of the community, and will be the key element in
the healthcare system serving the needs of our community. We will provide leadership to enhance the efficiency,
coordination, quality and range of services provided within our rural healthcare system.

MCDH will be the healthcare provider and employer of choice within our community. We will continually address
and keep up with technology and superior clinical skills

We will have a positive impact on health by encouraging personal and community responsibility for health and
wellness. Our efforts will playa decisive role in people choosing to stay in our community or to locate here.

VALUES

MCDH is committed to providing excellent quality, patient centered, cost effective health care in a caring, safe
and professional environment, and servingthe community's healthcare needs with current technology and
superior clinical skills. We believe in the right to local access to a wide range of excellent quality healthcare
services in our ruralcommunity. We promote patient safety and satisfaction,and consistentlywork toward a high
levelof care with results inour patients recommendingus to others and in their returning to us for needed health
care.

Every member of our healthcare team will playan active, participative role that effectivelyutilizes the skills and
talents of each. People are our most valuable resource.Weencourage professional development that will
achievea level of competence and moralethat will attract and maintain the highestquality staff. Westriveto
build partnership with our employees emphasizing mutual respect and mutual success.

I. ROLL CALL

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board of Directors on any matter
over which the District has jurisdiction. Vou may state your name and address for the record. Time is limited
to 3 minutes with a 20-minute total time limit for all comments. The Board of Directors can take no action on
your presentation, but can seek clarification to points made inyour presentation or comments.



BROWN ACT REQUIREMENTS: Pursuant to the Brawn Act, the Board of Directors cannot discuss issues or take
action on any requests during this comment period.

III. CLOSED SESSION

1. lnfi)rmation/Action: Hardin v. Mendocino Coast District Hospital, U.S. District Court for the
Northern District of California, et al.. Case No. 3:17-C\/-05554, conference with legal counsel.
Government Code §54956.9.

2. Information/Action: Consideration of Termination of Legal Services Contract with Best, Best & Krieger,

Attorneys at Law, dated 9/25/18. Government Code §§54954.5(e), 54957; Evidence Code §952, et seq.

3. Information/Action: Pursuant to CaliforniaGovernment Code §54954.5 and §32155 of the Health and Safety

Code Medical Staff Credentials and Privileges Review and Medical Staff Report

4. Information/Action: Pursuant to §32155 of the Health and Safety Code December Quality
Management and Improvement Council Reports

IV. 6:00 P.M. OPEN SESSION CALL TO ORDER- KAREN ARNOLD, CHAIR

V. ROLL CALL

VI. REPORT ON ANY ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION; GOVERNMENT CODE 94957.1

VII. PUBLIC COMMENTS

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board of Directors on any matter
over which the District has jurisdiction. You may state your name and address for the record. Time is limited
to 3 minutes with a 20-minute total time limit for ail comments. The Board of Directors can take no action on

your presentation, but can seek clarification to points made in your presentation or comments.

BROWNACTREQUIREMENTS: Pursuant to the Brown Act, the Board of Directors cannot discuss issues or take
action on any requests during this comment period.

VIII. REVIEW OF THE AGENDA Action

IX. BOARD COMMENTS information

X. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR Action

The following items are considered routine and non-controversial by Hospital Staff. Consent items may be
approved by one motion if no member of the Board or audience wishes to comment or ask questions, if
comment or discussion is desired, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered
under new business

1. Approval of Board of Directors meeting minutes of December 11,2019 Tab 1
2. Approval of Special Board of Directors meeting minutes of November 22,2019 Tab 2
3. Approval of Aiysoun Huntley Ford Fund Draw (there were rio requests)
4. Policies: Abuse Reporting, On-Caii Services, Eventand Complaint, Hoursof Operation, Tab 3

Flu Vaccination for Healthcare Workers: second read

XI. NEW BUSINESS

1. Partnership Health Plan of California Annual Quality Incentive Award: Action/oiscussion
Mr.Jason Wells, President Wiilits Memorial Hospital and Ukiah Valley Hospital

2. November Financiais November2019: Mr.John Redding Tab4 AcUon
3. Financial Improvement Plan: Mr. Wayne Allen, Interim CEO Tab 5 Action



4. Status of Obstetrical Services: Ms. Jessica Grinberg/Dr. Zee Berna
5. Bylaws Revisions: First Read: Ms. Amy McColley
6. Election of Board Officers, Committee assignments and JPAappointment:

Ms. Karen Arnold, Chair

XIII. REPORTS

> CEO Report: Mr. Wayne Allen, Interim CEO

> Medical Staff Report: Dr. Zoe Berna, Vice Chief of Staff
A. Appointments to Medical Staff-Provisional Status

1. Gary Cecchi, MD -Department of Medicine-Oncology-Hematology
2. Stewart Kerr, MD -Department of Surgery-Orthopedics
3. Madison McKenney, MD-Department of Medicine-Radiology

B. Temporary Privileges (As we await Board Meeting)
1. Stewart Kerr, MD-Department of Surgery-Orthopedics (Dec. 30,20i9-Jan. 2,2020)
2. Madison McKenney -Department of Medicine-Radiology (Dec. 30,2019-Jan. 2,2020)

> Planning Committee Report: Ms. Jessica Grinberg

> Chief Nursing Officer Report: Ms. Lynn Finley

XIV. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: MS. KAREN ARNOLD. CHAIR

XV. ASSOCIATION AND COMMUNITY SERVICE REPORTS

Tab 6

Discussion

Actlon/Dlscusslon

Action

Information

Tab 7 Action

Action

Information

Information

Information

XVI. Public Comments

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board of Directors on any matter
over which the District has jurisdiction. You may state your name and address for the record. Time is limited
to 3 minutes with a 20-minute total time limit for all comments. The Board of Directors can take no action on

your presentation, but can seek clarification to points made in your presentation or comments.

BROWN ACT REQUIREMENTS: Pursuant to the Brown Act, the council cannot discuss issues or take action on
any requests during this comment period.

XVII. ADJOURNMENT

♦ THIS DOCUMENT WILLBE PROVIDED AT THE MEETING.

All disabled persons requestingdisability related modifications or accommodations, including auxiliary aids or
service may make such request in order to participate in a public meeting to Gayl Moon, Secretary to the
Board of Directors, 700 River Drive, Fort Bragg, CA 95437, no later than 72 hours prior to the meeting that
such matter be included on that month's agenda.
*PerDistrict Resolution, each member of the Public who wishesto speak shallbe limited to three minutes
each per agenda item. Pleaseidentify yourselfpriorto speaking. Thank you.



1



BOARD OF DIREaORS MEETING

REDWOODS ROOM

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 11,2019

MINUTES

The Board of Directors of the Mendocino Coast Health Care District met in CLOSEDsession at 4:30 pm in

the Redwoods Room, Karen Arnold, Chair presiding

PRESENT: Ms. Arnold, Mr. Lund, Mr. Redding, Ms. McColley, Ms. Grinberg
Mr. Wayne Allen, Interim CEO
Mr. Doran Hammett, Interim CFO

I. CALL TO ORDER;

OPEN Session of the Board of Directors of the Mendocino Coast Health Care District convened at

6:00 p.m. in the Redwoods Room, Ms. Karen Arnold Chair presiding

II. ROLL CALL;

PRESENT: Mr. Steve Lund, Mr. John Redding, Ms. Karen Arnold, Ms. Jessica Grinberg, Ms. Amy McColley
Board Members

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: None

ALSO PRESENT:

Mr. Wayne Allen, Interim CEO
Mr. Doran Hammett, Interim CFO

Ms. Gayl Moon, Executive Assistant

Mr. John Allison made a PublicComments Statement prior to the Board convening into Closed
Session. A copy of his statement is attached as part of these minutes.

III. REPORT ON ANY ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION: GOVERNMENT CODE 94957.1

1. Information/Action: Pursuant to CaliforniaGovernment Code §54954.5 and §32155
of the Health and SafetyCode Medical StaffCredentials and Privileges Review and
Medical Staff Report

2. Informtxtion/Action: Pursuantto §32155 of the Health and SafetyCode November Quality
Management and improvement Council Reports

3. Information/Action: Consideration of Termination of Legal Services Contractwith
Best Best & Krieger, Attorneys at Law, dated 9/25/18. Government Code
§§54954.5{e), 54957; Evidence Code §952, et seq.

IV. REPORT ON ANY ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION; GOVERNMENT CODE 94957.1

• The Board received a Medical Staff report from Dr. Miller.
• The Board received a November Quality Management and Improvement Council Report.
• The Board decided to keep BB&K on as legal counsel on limited terms.

V. PUBLIC COMMENTS

• Community members made comments regarding Hospital issues. Following are topics that were
discussed:

> Mr. Allison discussed the purpose and responsibilities of Board leadership andthe possible
misuse of that position.



> Ms. Paula Cohen, a commissioner for the Partnership Health Plan of Californiaas well as the Medical
Managed Care Provider for fourteen (14) northern counties. At their final meeting for the year there
were some awards handed out for Quality Performance & Quality Improvement Programs, and
Mendocino Coast District Hospital scored 100% on this year's Quality Improvement Measure. Ms.
Cohen presented the MCDH Plaque to Heather Brown-Douglas and NancySchmid who accepted on
behalf of MCDH.

> Mr. LarryWagner asked Ms. McColleywhy she voted against affiliation with Adventist
Health.

VI. REVIEW OF THE AGENDA

" To add approval of a contract for fire alarms to the agenda under New Business.

MOTION: Jo add consideration for a contract with James Gollner for replacing the fire alarm panel,
smoke detectors, etc. with the cost being $8,744.53.
• Lund moved

• Redding second
• Roll call

> Ayes: Grinberg, Lund, McColley, Redding, Arnold
> Noes: None

> Absent: None

> Abstain: None

• Motion carried

• Conflict of Interest Resolution 2019-15 under Old Business will be tabled.

VII. BOARD COMMENTS

• Mr. Redding stated that he wanted to address some of the criticisms stated here:

o It is easy to say that we have no negotiating power/no leverage, and the implication is we
should just accept whatever they offered us, but that's not true. I and Ms. McColley were
skeptical of affiliation until we could work out a financial deal that we could support. For
example, when I evaluated the Term Sheet, Iwent home one week-end and created a
spread sheet, cash in cash out. Idiscovered there wasn't enough cash for us to meet the
obligations in the Term Sheet as it existed. ABoard member can't normallyvote a deal that
they know they can't meet. Iexhibited some leadership skillsand Igot on the phone with
Wayne Allen, Doran Hammett, Bob Beehler &Jason Wells and Iexplained that there wasn't
enough cash to meet the Term Sheet, so we negotiated for a higher rate. It went from l.S
million a year over the term of the lease agreement, to a 1.75 million the first three (3)years
and almost 3 million thereafter. We did have some leverage, ifyou're smart enough to do it.
Asa result, the Term Sheet now and the LeaseAgreement means that in ten (10)years we
can retire allof our debt and have $25 million in the bank which corresponds to the amount
of money we need to pay for the upgrades. There isvalue in holdingout and beingskeptical,
because if the other side just sees a bunch of people just accepting what they have offered,
then they are not goingto move. Iwant to commend Amy for voting her conscience on it
because she was not satisfied that we could fulfill our obligation. Iam and that's just a
difference of opinion, but to say just because she holds a different opinion means she wants
to shut down the Hospital, I think that is not fair.

o At the time that we approved the budget, Mr.Allison, it was balanced. There was actually a
net operating revenue profit. You can question whether that is a good budget or not, and
we are experiencing some difficulties, but at the time it was fair to say it was balanced.



o The Conflict of Interest was on the agenda and it is not now. Iam going to ask some
questions and would liketo get some answers during the course of the meeting. When the
issue of conflict of interest with respect to affiliation first arose, it was deemed that BB&K,
our legalcounsel, was insufficient and that the final arbiter should be the FPPC. The FPPC's
guidance, in fact, was followed for several months. Now Ijust want to be clear. It appears
that now legal advice is indeed sufficient to rule on a matter of conflict of interest and not
the FPPC, because the FPPC was not consulted this time. So IJust want to know what is our
policy, what is our process, what is our standards, and if legal advice is sufficient, and not
the FPPC, then Iwould like to see a policywhere Board members should be given a copy of
that letter so we can judge the contents for ourselves and deliberate on that. Ifwe are going
to create such a policy, I think our Board should agree on the expert being consulted, not
the person who has the conflict of interest. I hope we can discuss these and come to some
resolution, if not tonight, then very soon.

• Ms. McCoiiey stated "i couldn't confidently vote on the Term Sheet for affiliation because I did
not think that we could meet the needs of the terms. We did not even include the operation
costs to run our healthcare district, not the Hospital, but our district moving forward, i also said I
loved the idea of affiliation, and i thought we could get it done within five (5) business days. We
also said, oh that's a side note, that's a side note. When the motion came through for affiliation
they did not acknowledge the side note that did not meet the terms of the lease that we had
concerns on. Like oh ya ya, we talked about it. Those were important things that should have
been in the Term Sheet; that they said they would do a side note. No motion was made to add
those comments in, so I probably did not think we could meet the terms. I want affiliation, I
want a hospital here. I want healthcare where I call home. I live here and I appreciate everybody
who works here. Iworked here for fifteen (15) years. We can agree to disagree. Obviously you
read that Ellen Hardin Case deposition, they challenged me why I left. You're interpreting. This is
my home, I know why I left. I left here on values and morals; Icouldn't work here anymore, and,
thank you.

VIII. ACTION: APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR; MS. KAREN ARNOLD. CHAIR

1. Minutes: Regular Session, November 7,2019
2. Policy: Form Development and Maintenance: Second Read
3. Policy: Policy Development and Maintenance: Second Read
4. Policies: Abuse Reporting, On-Call Services, Event and Complaint, Hours of Operation Flu

Vaccination for Healthcare Workers: First Read

5. Alysoun Huntley Ford Fund Draw (there were no requests)

MOTION: lo approve the Consent Calendar
• Lund moved

• Grinberg second

Ms. McColley asked to pull and assess items # 2 (Form Development and Maintenance) and #3
(Policy Developmentand Maintenance). Ms. McColley stated that the Policy Form Development,
when it says maintenance, you referenced maintenance annuallywhileyou reviewthe policy, but
then your Policy Development and Maintenance is bi-annually every two (2)years, and you want
them to compliment. You just want them to match.
Mr. Lund amended his motion and Ms.Grinbergamended her second to includethe two policy
recommended changes to be implemented
• Lund moved

• Grinberg second



• Roll call

> Ayes: McColley, Arnold, Grinberg, Lund, Redding
> Noes: None

> Absent: None

> Abstain: None

• Motion carried

IX. ACTION/INFORMATION: EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS GRANT; MS. JESSICA GRINBERG

" Ms. Grinberg presented for Dr. Jennifer Kreger who was unable to attend the meeting.
" Board approval is needed for a grant Dr. Kreger is applying to the Community Foundation of

Mendocino County Resiliency and Preparedness.
" Dr. Kreger put together a comprehensive plan for emergency preparedness. This is being done

for the Health Care District and will continue even if the affiliation takes place.

MOTION: To approve Dr. Kreger's grant request to the Community Foundation to fund to pursue her
emergency preparedness plan
• Grinberg moved
• Redding second

Mr. Lund stated that this is a grant to develop a plan. He thanked Dr. Kreger and everyone involved
in making this happen.

• Roll call

> Ayes: Redding, McColley, Lund, Arnold, Grinberg
> Noes: None

> Absent: None

> Abstain: None

• Motion carried

X. INFORMATION: MEASURE C AFFILIATION; MR. WAYNE ALLEN. INTERIM CEO

• Mr. Allen stated he has heard from Adventist Healthstating that they are unable, staffing wise,
to implement a Management Services Agreement by January B***. They proposed a newstrategy,
which is to fast forward the least agreement. The least agreement will become effective April 1,
2020 contingent upon voter approval.

• The notificationthat will go out per the WARN Actcan occur either late January or the l" day of
February to meet the 60 day requirement. A WARN Act notification wouid be sent to all MCDH
employees stating that they are being laid off contingent upon the fact that there is a lavorable
vote onMarch 3"*. The Board has final signing authority sometime in late March.

• Adventist willalso notify the employees on April 1 that they will be transferred to the payrollof
Stone Point Health.

• This ballot item is again going to be Measure Cwhich is selected by the county. Mr. Allen did try
to get it changed but was unable to.

XI. ACTION/INFORMATION: MCDH OSHPD UPDATE AND CONTRACTFOR A NEW FIREALARM PANEL;
NANCY SCHMID

• The Hospital currently has three (3) OSHPD projects in the works:
o The HVAC System is unable to connect to the existingfire panel. The only option to move

this project forward is to replace the fire panel. OSHPD has agreed to do "in field review".
Thiswill be done within the HVAC Project, and it will be a change order. The State Fire
Marshall will be at MCDH tomorrow.



MOTION: Toapprove a contract with James Goilner Services in the amount of $80,744.53,this will
provide for obtaining the permits and havingthe inspections necessary to replace the existingfire
alarm panel
" Lund moved

• McColley second
" Roll call

> Ayes: Redding, McColley, Lund, Arnold, Grinberg
> Noes: None

> Absent: None

> Abstain: None

• Motion carried

• Ms. Schmid reported:
ATS-

a. Added strengthening of the structure will occur through the month of December.

b. Seismic bracing and ceiling resurfacing will occur through the month of January.

c. Conduit and Wire installation will occur through the months of February and March.

a. Startup of Equipment will occur in the months of April and May. This project should be

complete by the end of June.

O.R. HVAC-

Getting Room One open is dependent on the new fire panel. Hope to open Room One in early

January 2020.

a. Demolition of (East) HVAC for O.R. #2 willoccur through the month of December.

b. Blocking and Installation of (North) HVAC and ducting will occur through the month of January.

c. Startup and testing of (North) HVAC equipment for O.R. #2 willoccur in February.

d. Opening of both O.R.s should be possible in March.

Water Heater-

a. Continuation of Plumbing and electrical will commence in December.

b. Completion and startup should be possible in January.

XII. ACTION/INFORMATION: RESOLUTION 2019-20 OSHPD SEISMIC COMPLIANCE: MS. NANCY SCHMID

MOTION: To approve Resolution 2019-20 notify OSHPD that we are aware of the statutory
guidelines related to necessary seismic upgrades of the facility by2030
• Lund moved

• McColley second
• Ms. Grinbergsuggested adding a letter stating this presents a devastating hardship to our

facility and we are opposed to it. Mr. Lund suggested the letter say although we approved the
resolution; we want to notify you that to comply given the costs will be a hardship. We want to
notify you that given our ability to comply with the costs, etc. Ms. Schmid willwrite a cover
letter to be sent with the Resolution.She will send a copy of the letter to the Board.

• Roll call

> Ayes: Lund, McColley, Arnold, Grinberg, Redding
> Noes: None

> Abstain: None



> Absent: None

• Motion carried

XIII. INFORMATION: QUEST LABS; MR. EMMET O'CONNELL DIREaOR OF ANCILLARY SERVICES

• Mr.O'Connellstated we have a system that is not supported in terms of the connection between
the reference lab and our Hospital information lab. Without that connection, the Hospital will not
be able to provide timely service to our providers with respect to reference labs.

" Operationally the Hospital is looking at the short term commitment of staff (for about one month)
who can update the system from the lab report side working with the Hospital's Information
Systems team to update the electronics. Also looking at the way the laboratory services are built.

XIV. INFORMATION: MEASURE C PARCEL TAX UPDATE; MR. WAYNE ALLEN. INTERIM CEO

" Afew land owners in the Hospital District filed an application with LAFCO to be removed from the

Mendocino Coast Health Care District. LAFCO has some tax and legal issues that they need

information on from the County Board of Supervisors. The next LAFCO meeting will not take place

until March 2,2020.

XV. INFORMATION: CONFLICT OF INTEREST RESOLUTION 2019-15; MS. KAREN ARNOLD. CHAIR

" This item was tabled.

XVI. INFORMATION: CEO REPORT: MR. WAYNE ALLEN. INTERIM CEO

" The Hospital received a check from the Hospital Foundation for $183,050.70 for anesthesia
equipment.

• Mr. Allen met with the Department Managers and discussed performance and labor costs. Two
thirds of costs are going into labor and benefits. MCDH staff has grown by50 people from 2016 to
the present.

• Mr. Allen stated that there will be a draft plan byDecember31", and it will be presented to the
Board onJanuary 9'^

XVII. ACTION: MEDICAL STAFF REPORT; DR. WILUAM MILLER

• Dr. Miller stated that Dr.Rochathas turned in his letter of resignation effective December 31,2019,
and the MedicalStaff has accepted his resignation.

• Dr. Millerthanked Dr.Rochat for his years of service and dedication to the community and the
patients he has served.

" There will not be a lapse in patient care.

A. Appointments to Medical Staff or Advance Practice-Provisional Status

1. Sloane Blair, MD -Department of Surgery-Orthopedics
2. Leslie Brooks, PC-C -Department of Medicine-Family Practice NCFHC
3. Patrick Legaghan, MD -Department of Medicine-Emergency Department
4. Nina Yaftali, MD -Department of Mendocino-Hospitalist Service

B. Re-Appointments to Medical Staff Active Status

1. Sandra Fleming, MD -Department of Mendocino-Family Practice NCFHC

C. Temporary Privileges

1. Leslie Brooks, PA-C -Department of Mendocino-Family Practice NCFHC (Dec 3- Dec ii, 2019)

MOTION: Toapprove the recommendations as presented for Appointmentsto Medical Staffor
Advanced Practice-Provisional Status, Re-appointments to Medical Staff Active Status, Temporary
Privilegesas listed on the agenda



• Lund moved

• Grinberg second
• Roll call

> Ayes: Lund, Redding, Arnold, Grinberg, McColley
> Noes: None

> Absent: None

> Abstain: None

• Motion carried

The Board thanked Dr. Rochat for his many years of service to the Hospital and the community.

XVIII. INFORMATION: PLANNING COMMITTEE REPORT; MS. JESSICA GRINBERG

• The Planning Committee did not meet due to lack of a quorum.

XiX. INFORMATION: CHIEF NURSING OFFICER REPORT; MS. LYNN FINLEY

• There was no report.

XX. ACTION/INFORMATION: FINANCE REPORT: MR. JOHN REDDING

• Mr. Redding stated that the ffnancials are not good. There will be a corrective action plan to deal
with these losses.

• Mr. Hammett presented the financials.
• The next item on the agenda is to borrow $1 millionfrom the LAIF Fund. With these funds and what

is currently in the bank, the Hospital would be able to pay off all invoices in excess of 60 days. The
goal is to get localvendors down to 30 days. There are approximately $1.5 million in invoices over 60
days.

• Mr. Lee stated that as of December l" Hospital now has full time Orthopedic coverage for the
Emergency Room and for the clinic, with four (4) rotating physicians. All the physicians have
agreed to cover each other's patients.

MOTION: To approve the October 2019 Financial Statements
• Lund moved

" Redding second
• Roll call

> Ayes: Lund, McColley, Redding, Arnold
> Noes: Grinberg
> Absent: None

> Abstain: None

• Motion carried

XXI. ACTION/INFORMATION: RESOLUTION 2019-19 LAIFFUND WITHDRAWAL

MOTION: To approve Resolution 2019-19 authorizing the withdrawal of funds from the LAIF Fund in the
amount stipulated in the resolution as $1 million
• Lund moved

• Redding
With these fundsand what iscurrentlyinthe bank,the Hospital would be able to payoff all invoices in
excessof 60 days. Local vendors will be paidfirst.Thegoal is to get local vendors down to 30 days.There
are approximately $1.5 million in invoices over 60 days.

Ms. Grinbergstated she is not comfortable taking $1 million from the LAIF Account. She has not seen
change in the last few months eventhough itwaspromised. She wants to see the solution presented to



the Board prior to taking money from the LAIF Account.She stated that she is not in favor of this.

The IGT reimbursement has been received in the amount of $675,000. The Hospital is expecting
approximately $1.5 million in February for the Cost Report. The Hospital will present a plan of how to
reduce the labor costs by theJanuary 9"^ Board Meeting.

Mr. Lund stated that the budget was balanced, but not in a sustainable way.

• Roll call

> Ayes: Redding, McColley, Lund, Arnold
> Noes: None

> Absent: None

> Abstain: Grinberg
• Motion carried

XXII. INFORMATION: FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: MS. KAREN ARNOLD. CHAIR

" The December Board meeting will takeplace onJanuary s"*.
• Conflictof Interest, process & standards in writing.

Acommunity meeting will be heldafter January l" regarding the OB Department. Dr. Miller stated that
this meeting will be a 2 way conversation. A moderator will be present at the meeting.

Ms. Grinberg stated that the Hospital needs to make decisions now that we are not relying or assuming
we are going to affiliate. Decisions need to be made based on MCDH being independent.

XXIII. INFORMATION: ASSOCIATION AND COMMUNITY SERVICE REPORTS

• There were no Association and CommunityServiceReports.

XXIV. PUBLIC COMMENTS:

> Topics discussed were:
• A plan for this Hospital going forward. Address the OBsituation.
• The Board has fiscal responsibility and should not shirk their duties.
• There was concern about the preservation of localjobs.
• Dr. Rochat was thanked for his years of service.
• Dr. Rochatwished the Hospital welland hopes that affiliation passes.

XXV. ADJOURN:

The meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m.

Steve Lund, Secretary Gayl Moon,Secretary to the
Board of Directors Board of Directors



December 11,2019 MCDH Board Meeting

lohn Allison's Comments Re: Best. Best & Krieger

1. I want to comment on Closed Session agenda item 3, and urge the Board to
terminate the legal services contract with Best, Best & Krieger at toda/s meeting.

2. I believe this is the third or fourth time termination of the BBK law firm has been on

the Board's closed session agenda. It is clear there has been ongoing dissatisfaction
with the legal representation provided by BBK.

3. Regarding my own experience, I was a litigation attorney and trial lawyer in private
practice for more than two decades, and then joined the legal department of a
Fortune 100 company where 1was the head of litigation. In that role I hired, and
sometimes fired, lawyers and law firms all across the country. 1also wrote the
compan/s criteria for selecting and evaluating lawyers and law firms.

4. Good lawyers take a creative approach to their legal analysis that is focused on
finding ways to help their clients solve problems. From my experience, I could see
that the District was not receiving good legal representation from BBK.

5. For that reason, from time to time during the past few months I urged Wa3me Allen
to replace BBK as the District's lawyers. 1gave Wayne a copy of my book about how
to find a really good lawyer.

6. 1also becameaware ofhow Michael Maurer, a BBK lawyer, was mishandlingthe
conflict of interest issues under the Political Reform Act with the Fair Political

Practices Commission.

• His request for an advice letter was made before it was known who the
affiliation partner mightbe. This invitedthe FPPC to speculateabout
theoretical conflicts that mayor maynot arise.

• Mr. Maurermade a serious misstatement of fact to the FPPC lawyerwho was
writing the advice letter.

• Probably as a resultof that misstatement, the FPPC was unwilling to revisit
its advice letter after it was known that Adventist was the affiliation partner.

• Recently, I understand that Michael Maurer ofBBK issued a writtenopinion
that Karen Arnold does nothave a conflict, butJessica Grinberg does, undera
new FPPC regulation. I read that regulation and Mr. Maurer's conclusion
makes no sense.



7. Karen Arnold, as Board Chair, asked me to find law firms that could potentially
replace BBK. As part of that process 1found and interviewed Steve Churchwell, a
very good lawyer who actually knows how the FPPC works because he was the
FPPC's General Counsel. Karen Arnold then authorized Wa)me Allen to hire Mr.
Churchwell.

8. In preparing these remarks I reflected back on Michael Maurer's handling of the
conflict of interest issues with the FPPC and wondered why he seemed so

amateurish. That led me to visit the BBK website. It turns out that Mr. Maurer's

main area of practice involves advising public agencies on issues dealing with land
use and infrastructure projects. He's a land use lawyer, not an FPPClawyer.

9. Having competent legal counsel with strong problem-solving and advocacy skills is
critical for the challenges facing the District, including the process of affiliation. The
District cannot afford to continue to be represented by BBK



December 11,2019 MCDH Board Meeting

iohn Allison's Comments Re: Upcoming Elections

1. In about a month the Board will be electing new officers, and committee chairs will
be appointed. Now is the time to start thinking about the leadership qualities that
are needed for each position.

2. A Board of Directors needs to function as a team. While respectful disagreement

and debate is an important aspect of Board service, once a vote is taken all the
members of the Board need to fully support the Board's decision. During the past
year John Redding and Amy McColleyhave repeatedly demonstrated their inability
to do that.

3. Also, John Redding has been in a leadership position this year as District Treasurer
and Chair of the Finance Committee. His performance in those leadership roles
indicates that he lacks the skills that are needed to be an effective leader.

• He has personally attacked and shamed fellow Board members, both in

public meetings and in the media.

• At a recent Finance Committee meeting he lashed out at Lynn Finley when
she pointed out the flaws in his idea of housing a mental health crisis
stabilization unit inside the hospital.

• He used his leadership position to give our community a false sense of
financial security about the hospital. He has repeatedly claimed we have a
balanced budget when, in fact, the budget is far from balanced. The District is
withdrawing a million dollars from its reserve funds to pay current bills.
That is not what happens when a budget is balanced.

4. Amy McColleyseems unable to keep closed session matters in closed session. A
striking example took place at the Special Board meeting on November 22 when the
Board voted 4 to 1 to put affiliation on the March 2020 ballot

• As background, legal advice from the District's lawyers is discussed in closed
session in order to preserve the confidentiality of those discussions under
the attorney-client privilege.

• At the November 22 meeting the District's lawyer who was working on
affiliation was present to explain the ballot language and the resolutions the
Board was being asked to approve.



• AmyMcColley insisted on repeatedly questioning the lawyer, in the public
meeting, about the legal advice the lawyer had given regarding the affiliation
term sheet.

• Ms. McColley's conduct probably waived the District's attorney-client
privilege and destroyed confidentiality, at least with respect to legal advice
about afniiation.

5. Amy McColleyalso seems unable to know when she should recuse herself. For
example, there is nothing in the minutes of Board meetings to indicate that Ms.
McColley recused herself from closed session discussions with the District's lawyers
about litigation and settlement strategy in the Hardin case, even though she is a key
witness in support of Ellen Hardin's claims against the District in that case.

6. Finally, Amy McColley lives and works in San Francisco, and her two children attend
public school in San Francisco. She is an absentee Board member, participating in
most meetings by video conference. If she or one of her children were to need
medical care, they can get that care in San Francisco. We, her constituents, need to

be able to get quality medical care here. With her primary residence, her domicile,
her "home base" in San Francisco, Amy McColleyshould not even be on the Board.



2



1. CALL TO ORDER:

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SPECIAL SESSION

FORT BRAGG, CA
FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 22, 2019

2. ROLL CALL: Redding, McColley, Lund, Arnold, Grinberg
ABSENT; None

ALSO PRESENT:

Mr. Wayne Allen, Interim CEO

3. COMMENTS FROM THE COMMUNITY

• Community members made comments regarding Hospital Issues. Following are topics that were
discussed:

> Several community members urged the Board to approve putting affiliation with Adventlst Health
on the March 2020 ballot.

> Several community members encouraged the Board and the Adventist not to close the OB
Department.

> One community member was concerned with the Term Sheet and that it mightviolatesome laws.
Hefeels that Boardshould have the details of the Term Sheet worked out prior to passing it.

❖ Ms. Arnold stated that it wasannounced in the last meeting that she could vote for affiliation and she
wanted to clear up any confusion that may exist. Over the past few months MCDH has been working
with their legal firm of BB&K on the political reform act issues regarding Conflicts of Interest. The
counsel has been inconsistent and did not inspire confidence. To safeguardthe integrity of the process,
Mr. Allen determined the Hospital should seek other counsel. Mr. Steve Churchwell was contacted. Mr.
Churchwell is the Sr. Partner in the Churchwell White LawFirm,and he was the former General Counsel
of the California Fair Political Practices Act. He has interviewed bothJessica Grinberg and Karen Arnold,
and has done exhaustive research into both of their cases. He interviewed Karen Arnold, and cited the
new regulations that talk about where a conflict could be; he said that Karen Arnold did not have a
conflict, and infact Lucresha Renteria, the ED of the Mendocino Coast Clinics, read the regulations, and
wrote a letter to Mr. Allen stating that she did not see anything the Board would do tonight at this
meeting that would affect the clinic. Mr. Churchwell investigated both Jessica Grinberg and Karen
Arnold's cases very thoroughly and determined that neither one of them had a conflict. Ms. Arnold
thanked the three (3) Board members on the Ad Hoc Committee whoworked on affiliation during this
confusing time, and she stated that she isveryglad to be participating inaffiliation activities nowand in
the future.

❖ Ms. Arnold stated that the Management Agreement will not be discussed at this meeting as there are
legal opinions that need to be resolved.

❖ Ms. McColley stated "I take this very seriously tonight, because I worked at Mendocino Coast District
Hospital for fifteen (15) years, and Iloved being employed for a District Hospital. I learned so much and
have developed my career, that Ipoint this foundation, and when I look forward to maybe affiliating or
having a longterm lease with Adventist, we bringall those skills because it's the staff and the



Mendocino Coast Health Care District

Special Session Board of Directors Meeting, November 22,2019
Page 2 of 5

community here, but the challenge Is the devil is in the details. Tonight I want to understand what this
Term Sheet means, and exactlywhat is goingto happen for our Healthcare District. The community and
the District made this Hospital; the unified School Districts that are in it, the Ambulance Services, the
volunteer departments, the small businesses, the youth sports. If s our District that made this Hospital.
We should look at the Long Term Lease, but let's make sure we understand the terms so we have a
solvent District so we can do other things in this community for our District, like a free standing birthing
center, like a critical mental health unit. If we don't have a solvent District, then all we have is a long
term third thirty (30) bed lease for our Hospital. Tonight is my first time ever speaking to a lawyer for
affiliation. My questions do not mean I'm adverse to the idea; my questions are I understand, because
the devils are in the details, and I want to know what I'm supporting and putting on the ballot. In five
years I don't want to be the one who dissolved the District because I didn't ask the right questions
because I don't know the Term Sheet. Thank you for being here, thank you for supporting Mendocino
Coast Healthcare District and I'm excited to learn about the long term lease and all the details that go
along with it.

*1* Ms. Arnold introduced Alison Bassett. Ms. Bassett is the attorney who helped to develop the Term
Sheet and the Resolutions. She will be talking about the legal aspects of the Resolutions. She will only
answer questions about the language of the Resolutions.

*«* Mr. Allen stated that Jason Wells, the President of Howard Memorial Hospital and Uklah Valley Medical
Center wishes he could have attended tonight's meeting. Unfortunately he had a previously scheduled
appointment, but he is on call if we need to phone him.

4. ACTION: Approval of November 8, 2019 Minutes

MOTION: To approve the November 8, 2019 Minutes

• McColley moved

• Lund second

Ms. Arnold requested a change to the minutes: they should read that legal counsel determined that she
does not have a conflict of interest not the Fair Political Practices Act

• Roll call

> Ayes: Redding, Lund, Arnold
> Noes: McColley
> Absent: None

> Abstain: Grinberg
• Motion carried

MOTION: To approve the agenda as amended; which is the removal of the Management Services
Agreement Item #7

• Grinberg moved
• McColley second
• Roll call

> Ayes: Redding, McColley, Lund, Arnold, Grinberg
> Noes: None

> Absent: None

> Abstain: None

• Motion carried



Mendocino Coast Health Care District

Special Session Board of Directors Meeting, November 22,2019
Page 3 of 5

5. INFORMATION/ACTION: Approval of Resolution 2019-17 -Resolution of the Mendocino Coast Health Care
District Board of Directors to Approve Terms of a New Lease with an Affiliate of Adventist Health
System/West: Mr. Wayne Allen, Interim CEO

MOTION: To approve Resolution 2019-17 which approves the Terms of a New Lease with the Affiliation of
Adventist Health System/West
❖ Lund moved

❖ Arnold second

Ms. McColley stated that she did not receive this and had not spoken to legal counsel so dated Nov. 15, so
once again tonight I do have questions, and it is misguided to think that the Ad Hoc Affiliation committee
has been working with legal counsel we have not. This is the first time we are speaking to them. In prior
Board meetings it was agreed to go through the chair to speak to legal, and I never got the support to speak
to legal. This is the first time tonight, and I think it is misrepresentation to think that the Ad Hoc Affiliation
was involved at all with legal counsel.

Ms. Bassett reviewed the Resolution. Mr. Allen reviewed the Term Sheet. The Term Sheet was approved on
November 8th at a Special Board Meeting. Mr. Allen stated that some changes have been made to the
Term Sheet:

❖ Lease Terms, Section #2:
^ The amount of money involved in the rent calculation is now up significantly; the rent will rise

from $1.5 million annually in the first three years of the thirty year lease to $1.75 million. Starting
in the fourth year and continuing thereafter it will increase to $2,950,000. Ms. McColley and Mr.
Lund commended John Redding for encouraging Adventist Health to increase the rental amount.
The new appraisal will hopefully be done within the next few days. This transaction cannot go
through if the appraisal it is not deemed at fair market value.

^ MCDH commits to makeavailable up to $2,000,000 per year in repairs, upgradesand equipment in
Hospital as prioritized by Adventist Health unspent balances can be carried forward.

❖ Scope of Services, Section #3:
^ Adventist Health will continue to provide existing services at the current level for at least 2 years.

The following has been added: Parties may mutually agree at any time to change the service
commitments.

❖ Termination Rights,Section #4:
^ Adventist Health will have the right to terminate at three years with 270 days' notice.
Liquidated Damages: Section #6:
v' This is a new section which states "Adventist Health will be entitled to liquidated damages in the

event the District does not achieve seismic compliance by 2030 or fails to set aside the funds
required for Future Development and Adventist Health terminates the lease. Liquidated damages
will be set at $10,000,000.

❖ Seismic Compliance, Section #7
v' MCDH agrees to "fund into a Board Designated nontransferable (escrow) account funds in excess

of operations to be used for:
1 Seismic retrofit

2 New hospital investment
3 Other outpatient construction investments
As mutually agreed upon by Adventist Health and the District.

❖ Employee Transition, Section #9
^ The District shall provide a WARN Act notice to affected employees upon receiving voter approval

of the proposed transaction. Adventist Health shall make offers of employment to coincide with
the conclusion of the WARN Act notice and commencement date of lease.



Mendocino Coast Health Care District

Special Session Board of Directors Meeting, November 22, 2019
Page 4 of 5

^ Acollective bargaining agreement is going to be negotiated, Cal Mortgage will need to be notified,
the license will need to be changed/switched, and the Medicare Cost Report will need to be done.
Even though the election is March 3rd, there will be 3 or 4 months to complete all the necessary
notices. The commencement date of a new lease would be July 1 of 2020.

Will do a side letter stating that the District will get the reimbursed by Adventist Health for Election
Related Fees.

Details will be stipulated in the lease agreement. The lease agreement will be around 100 pages. The
lease agreement will include the District having access to space within the facility.

Ms. McColley asked questions about the Term Sheet. She stated that she is concerned that the District
can stay solvent under the agreement while paying existing expenses. Mr. Redding stated that this is a
standard contract.

Mr. Redding presented a post-affiliation analysis of the District's finances once Adventist Health
assumes operational control of the District's asset. This covered what costs the District would have,
what revenues the District would have. Accrued Personal Time Off (PTO) is $1.10M according to our
CFO. This amount will be paid using Board Designated funds once we have closed our Accounts Payable

and Accounts Receivable. We project that after the PTO is paid off there will be $3.5M left in Board
Designated Funds (down from $4.4M currently.) This will be our starting balance, post affiliation. A
copy of the analysis is available in the Administration Office.

Mr. Allen stated that in October the Hospital was a million dollars short in revenue compared to the
same month a year ago. The Hospital's finances are currently in a "Zone of Bankruptcy".

• Roll call

> Ayes: Redding, Lund, Arnold,Grinberg
> Noes: McColley
> Absent: None

> Abstain: None

• Motion carried

6. INFORMATION/ACTION: Approval of Resolution 2019-18 -Resolution of the Mendocino Coast Health Care
District Board of Directors Requesting Consolidation of Election and Ordering of Election: Mr. Wayne Allen,
Interim CEO

MOTION: To approve Resolution 2019-18 which approves the Board of Directors Requesting Consolidation
of Election and Ordering of Election
• Lund moved

• Arnold second

Ms. Bassett stated that this resolution is about the election. This resolution will be given to the Board of
Supervisors and the County Clerk requesting that this measure be consolidated with the next election on
March 3,2020.

The ballot measure shall read and appear on the ballot as follows:
With no additional taxes to the taxpayers and to assure continuing emergency medical services acute
hospital impatientservices and outpatient services, withsubstantial investments bynon-profit Stone Point
Health to meet the needs of Mendocino Coast residents, shall the Mendocino Coast Health Care District
enter in a lease agreement of Mendocino Coast District Hospital for up to thirty (30) years at fair market
value to Stone Point Health, per terms approved by Resolution 2019-17 adopted November 22, 2019?
YES NO



Mendocino Coast Health Care District

Special Session Board of Directors Meeting, November 22,2019
Page 5 of S

Ms. Grinberg thanked the Board members who have worked so hard on affiliation. She stated that we are
just the providers of a template of what the future would look like with this lease, but the real power rests
with the community.

• Roli call

> Ayes: Redding, Lund, Arnold, Grinberg
> Noes: McCoiley
> Absent: None

> Abstain: None

• Motion carried

7. INFORMATION/ACTION: Discussion and Approvai of the Terms of the MCDH Interim Management Service
Agreement: Mr. Wayne Allen, Interim CEO
• This item was tabled.

8. COMMENTS FROM THE COMMUNITY

• Community members made comments regarding Hospital issues. Following are topics that were
discussed:

> Acommunity member had questions regarding the Term Sheet.
> Mr. Ailison thanked the members of the Board, Mr. Allen, Dr. Miller & Mr. Hammett for a lot of

hard work regarding the affiliation.
> Keep OB and delivery available.

9. COMMENTS FROM BOARD OF DIRECTORS

• Mr. Lund thanked his colleagues, and stated that this is an important step that was taken tonight. He
thanked Mr. Redding for doing the financial deep dive.

10. ADJOURN:

The meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m.

Ms. Karen Arnold, Chair

Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Mr. Steve Lund

Board Secretary

These minutes constitute a portion of the official record of the Board and are the written record of the
proceedings. Documents distributed to the Board of Directors at the meeting are available for public review
except legally privileged or confidential documents.





c

''̂ ^ '̂'̂ NDOCINO COAST
DISTRICT HOSPITAL

TITLE: AbuseReporting

POLICY#: 802

uepanment(s}; Administration

Approvers: Board of Directors and CEO
Date Created: No Date Set
Last PoficyTech Review Date: No pateSet
19^^ f7otflcIAn • 1 ^ /A A/*lA

appropriately report abuse and neglect, Including mental suffering,physical abuse, sexual abuse, child abuse, elder abuse, dependent adult abuse, and domestic violence.
knowledge of asuspicious Injury or reasonable suspicion ofabuse,

rpnnrtir.?^ proper authorities. The hospital Is required to provide education on Identifying andreporting abuse and suspected abuse to all new employees upon orientation and annually,
reporters employed at Mendocino Coast Dlstrlct^spltal (MCDH) Include, but are notlimited to, health care providers, clergy members, and social workip^

DEFINITIONS: . '
I. •Adult (ages 18-64)/Elder (65 and over)/Dependent Ad^llr

A. Deoendent AHmH- ie _

B.

IV.

V.

A. Dependent Adult is considered aperson betw^tffe ages oAnd64 who has physical or
mental limitations that restrict his or her carry out nomactlvltles or to protect his
or her rights, including (but not limited tfcfsons who have ph^cili: developmental
disabilities or whose physical or mental S|fy^ave diminished. ^IJk
Abuse may be physical, neglect, financial, ab%0nmenMf||atlon, abduMllk. treatment with^ting physical l^rm or parental suffel^Apnvadon by â ustodlanT
goods or services that are nec*%o avoid physl*m or mental suffering.

Child Abuse:

willful harming ormjuringofac||||rend«rlng °f clfd.
Mental Sufferlng:'̂ ^!^ W

depression or other forms of serious
Intimidating behavior, threats,

misleading statements made with

Stress Of'lhe
NeA % •

u, to exercise that degree ofcare that-a|||sonable pli^n In alike position would exercise. Includes, but not limited to
taiiure to aSs|̂ n perso^ygiene or In the provision of food, clothing or shelter, medical care
or S"Pen/ision.<&rfe« from health and safety hazards. Failure s prevent
malnutrition ord^piglHon.

" u ® d"e to poor cognitive functions, mentallimitation, substance abuse or chronic poor health, this also constitutes neglect.
Physical Abuse:

W'th adeadly weapon or force likely to produce great bodily injury,
unreasonable physical constraint, sexual assault, use ofaphysical or chemical restraint or
psychotropic medication for punishment or any purpose not authorized by the physician.

Page 1 of 3



c

''̂ ^ '̂'̂ NDOCINO COAST
DISTRICT HOSPITAL

TITLE: Abuse Reporting

POLICY#: 802

Department(s): Administration PolicyTech Version ft:
Policy Owner: CEO
Approvers: Board of Directors and CEO

Date Created: No Date Set

Last PolicyTech Review Date; No Date Set
Last PolicyTech Revision Date: 12/04/19

Vl. Sexual Abuse:

A. Sexual battery, rape, spousal rape, rape inconcert,statutory rape, Incestand child molestation.
Lude or lascivious acts,oralcopulation or sexual penetration inflicted on, shownto or
intentionally practiced inthe presenceof a child or dependent adult.

PROTOCOL FOR REPORTING:

I. Telephone: Reporting must be donevia telephone orthrougha confidential internetreporting tool
immediately or as soon as practically possible after receiving t^iMPormation concerning the
incident.

IV.

V.

incident.

Written: Ifthe Initial report ismade bytelephone, a writt_,.
sent to the appropriate agencywithin 2 days.

Content: Report contents should include the follp!^^. but re
of this information is not known or is uncertaip^^j^osure should be^lif
amount of information necessary to fuifili th^^^rting requirement.
A. ••

B.

C.

D.

E.

F.

G.

Your name

Name and age of victim
Address and present locationvO^^
Names and address of adults rej
School,grade and class (for child
Nature and extent of abuse

Conditionof victiirt^^;;.

Report to the foll^^g'agencT6s|
A. Physical abu^^^al law en ^

Sexual abuse: Lo'c^ilaw enfol

art or an internet report must be

^uld not be delayed If some
ed to the minimum

^n^^forcare (foi^^Hd, elder or dependent adult abuse)

B.

C. ChMafeusq,: Child?i^ert

D^^mestic vioieric^^ocal laM^nforcen^
E

F

Lcement

sment

iLcal law enforcement (dependent on the type

ter or Dependen^jMult aB^Adult Prot^ive Services
. riuictuvc JCiviwaLong Termti^te Facilr^^punty Ombudsman

Informing i^^tient of Rep^tgg:
A. Except in (^e^of child a^be or neglect, the health care provider must inform the patient that

areport has^^.n or wilf^^nade, unless:
1. The proviS^^beli^^informing the patient would place him or her at risk of serious harm
2. The providen^^p^ informing apersonal representative and they believe that person is

responsible for t1^ abuse or that informing the personal representative would not be in
the patient's best interest

B. Areportmustbe made even ifthe patientobjects

Additional Information Regarding Reporting Abuse orSuspected Abuse:
A. Failure ofthe healthcare provider to report is a misdemeanor punishable by afine
B. Theidentities of those filing reports are confidential

Page 2 of 3



'̂ ^^ '̂'̂ NDOCINO COAST
DISTRICT HOSPITAL

TITLE: Abuse Reporting

POLICY#: 802

Depaitment(s); Administration PolicyTech Version #:
Policy Owner: CEO
Approvers: Board of Directors and CEO

Date Created; No Date Set

Last PolicyTech Review Date; No Date Set
Last PolicyTech Revision Date: 12/04/19

AGENCY CONTACT INFORMATION:

Fort Bragg Police Department (if abuse isknown to occur within city limits):
250 Cypress St.
Fort Bragg, OA 95437
Phone: (707)964-0200 (dispatch)
Fax: (707) 961-2806

Mendocino County SheriffsOffice, Fort Bragg Office
700 S. Franklin St., Ste. #110

Fort Bragg, CA95437
Phone: (707) 964-6308

Mendocino County Adult Protective Services
PC Box 839

Ukiah, CA 95482
Phone: 1-877-327-1799 or (707)463-7900
Fax:(707)467-5886 A

Mendocino County Child Protective Sei^^
Phone: (707)-962-1100 - FortBragg
Phone: (866)-263-0368 - Tollfree

Long Term Care OmbujIs^iW
PO Box 9000

Lower Lake, CA 95457%|.
Phone:(707)262-4525 ^
Fax: (707).£^~'

FORMSii

vS&t

.^ndMen

Ife
..#:§r

13.

Report ofSusp|ped Dependen |̂||ult/Elde»use Form:
https://www.cls^Ga.eov/PortalsWFMUFor^/n-T/snr^/n

^ST W
pdf?ver=2018-ll-15-13273fi-097

Report ofSuspected D^^dent i^M/Elder Financial Abuse:
https://www.cdss.ca.goMssw#M'ntres/forms/Eng||sh/soc347.nHf

Suspected Child Abuse Repoi^r
https://oag.ca.gov/sites/all/files/aeweb/pdfs/childabuse/ss 8577.nflf

References:

California Hospital Association. (2019). California HospitalAssociation Consent Manual. California
HospitalAssociation Consent Manual (46th ed., pp. 17.1-17.32). Sacramento, CA.

Page 3 of 3



c

''̂ ^^^^NDOCINO COAST
DISTRICT HOSPITAL

TITLE: On-Cali Services

POLICY#: 1256

Department(s): Administration PolicyTech Version #: 2

Policyowner: CEO
Approvers: Board of Directors and CEO

Date Created: No Date Set

LastPolicyTech ReviewDate: NoReview Date
Last PolicyTech RevisionDate; 11/26/2019

PURPOSE: Toensure personnel are available on-call, at alltimes, to provide care at Mendocino Coast
District Hospital (MCDH) and a list ofthe on-call staffiscommunicated to all applicable departments.

POLICY:

I. MCDH will maintain services necessary to diagnose andtreat patients 24-hours a day. These
services will include:

A. Providers, as defined by the Medical Staff On Call Policy
B. Ancillary services including: administration, chaplain, labot;a|ory, plant maintenance, pharmacy,

ultrasound, respiratory therapy and surgical services ....
Alist of physicians and ancillary staff who are on-call for;(g|fch;i2;4^our period will be maintained and
communicated throughout the facility.

PROTOCOL: r

I.

II.

III.

On-call list creation:

A. The hospital departments or services liste^g^ve must designate an employee to be on-call
outside of hours-of-operation.
Department managers will provide acalendar dfbtuc |̂paff to the Emergehcy Department
(ED) registration staffor uploi |̂h^ji,Qst current i^aten'dar on the intranet, as applicable.
The daily on-call list of available^i^e^^^ers will b^^ated by the ED registration staff.
The list will be distributed before'd^OO eacmcla|̂ to the f^^wing departments: ED, Critical Care

B.

C.

D.

Changes\
A. If changes to.tf||ton-call pr^ders occurvTt^y|§|i:|)e commul^iuted, in writing whenever

possible, to th^^^egistral^ staff who^/jPnotify all applkable departments and instruct
staff to update tl^irlon-caiy]^^

On-call^l^p^
A. JTi'0iure1ng5SU|e.msor wj^^ntactl:h^^^ Maff whenever possible.
B.f|̂ Rall personhe^e reqiilrj^o be acces |̂le by phone or pager.

'C)n;call personnel rndsy}e ableitpjeturn to the hospital within thirty minutes of being called.
Upd|̂ rrival, the on-^l|personni^^ill report to the nursing supervisor.
Prior%^eparture, the personnel will notify the nursing supervisor to verify that there is
nofurthef^heed for theirletyices.

W

c.

D.

E.

Page 1 of 1



TITLE: Event and Complaint Reporting

MENDOCINO COAST
DISTRICT HOSPITAL POUCY#: 841

Department(s): Administration PollcyTech Version #: 2

Policy Owner: CEO
Approvers: Board of Directors and CEO

Date Created: 11/2001

Last PollcyTechReview Date: No Review Date
Last PollcyTech Revision Date: 10/22/2019

PURPOSE: To define the mechanisms for event reporting, including actual events, near-misses,
recognition of circumstances that may lead to potential safety events as wellas complaints and
corporate conipliance issues.

POLICY:

I. All reports and follow-up regarding an event will be handled in a consistent, professional manner.
II. All health care practitioners and hospital employees must report safety and non-safety events.

IV.

V.

VI.

diligence in regards to safety and reporting w^^iit fear of reprimand of punishment
VII. External reporting will be completed in accordaric&.with current regulations^ '

DEFINITIONS

Patients will be provided information about their right to repoj|̂ 6ncerns toMCDH. They can voice
their concerns in person, through the Confidential Hotline (#^0^961-4788) or MCDH website.
Patients andfamilies have the right to have unexpected,o^t^mes explained to them in an

''is
appropriate, timely fashion.
Ernployees, as welt as patients and visitors, have ^e^Kt to report'a|ramplaint and/or grievance.
Mendocino Coast District Hospital (MCDH) willo^mote aculture of saf%y that encourages

B.

E.

/CTv,

I. Safety Event:Asafety event is any eyent,!incident, or envirpnm condition that could have
resulted or did result in harm to

are not limited to

A

pati^s/bthpioyees, visitdrSor^others. Safety events include but

"No-harm" and "goodxatch" Eventssjeither an eyentthat occurred but did not cause'
recognition ofaipossibl^vent beforeliioccurredsi^^^^^^^^^ %:*•

harm or

Non-Patient ||en%: hos^^ystem or'̂ d0s|ipfbblerr^^^ have an adverse or potential
adverse effecf^nlthe provis^pj^of quality'ipHlent care. This also is for documentation of events
involving products^ijdevice§|g|;ou^ seciijity, physician behavior, or other non-patient
related'eyents.

. .Patient%ven^?all occuTO invdivlngtaipatieipthat vary from desired hospital operations,
• such as falls, rnediration eni^fs, rapid res^lrtse, HIPPA concerns, patient Leaving ^^inst

Medical Advice

Adverse'Eybnts: a patieri^fety event that resulted in.harm to a patient. This includes surgical
events, prbductpr devic^p^nts, patient protection events, care management events,
environmental e^nts,jj||̂ riminal events. For current list of reportable adverse events:
California DeDartmeh1i?fepublic Health. Reoortable Adverse Events

F. Sentinel Events: an Unexpected occurrence involving death or serious physical or psychological
injury or the risk thereof. For current list ofsentinel events: The Joint Commjssion. Sentinel
Events

Non-Safety Events:
G. Complaint: an issue that can be resolved promptly or within 24 hours and involvestaff who are

present

Employee Events: allemployee related events including work related injury, workplace violence
and harassment reports;

m,

Page 1 of 5



^^^^^^NDOCINO COAST
DISTRICT HOSPITAL

TITLE: Event and Complaint Reporting

POUCY#: 841

Oepartment(s): Administration PollcyTech Version tf: 2

Policy Owner: CEO
Approvers: Board of Directors and CEO

Date Created: 11/2001

Last PolicyTech Review Date: No Review Date
Last PoiicyTech Revision Date: 10/22/2019

H. Grievance: formal or informal written or verbal complaint that is made to the hospital by a
patient, or the patient's representative, regarding the patient's care or a complaint from any
formal source that requests a resolution

I. Corporate Compliance Events: occurrences involving regulations and ethical practices.

PROTOCOL FOR ALL EVENTS:

I. The following protocol should be followed for all event types. For additional instructions for
individual event types, please see next section.

IL

IV.

Employee Responsibility:
A. If event has caused harm orhasimmediate potentiai^Jgrause harm:

1. All staff involved will take care of the Imme^^^eed^^^he patient, visitor and/or stiaff,

B

3. The supervisor will immediately co^l
Director ofQuality &Risk Manageme1i|f

4. Written event reporting will be done usiq^he elert|onic reporting^latform on the day
the event occurred as pei|mldellnes

fcircumstances are non-eme^^^r^have potehi^p^affect the quality of patient care:
1. Assist with any action that^^e^^de to ensu^^fety.
2. Written event reporting wilr^done^i|̂ |jg^the ele^^^i^ reporting platform on the day

the discovery vyas made. ^
C. if the event involVesiiaideV|ce or productfaiiure;

1. Immediafeiprake th^evice ou
2. Place the^^cearid alf^sociated sujij^jes in abag

''pursing supervisor who williretrieve the deviceContact the'ifrursjng

the house nursing supervisor during ofgh^s.
icate the event to tKifadministrator oncall and

.department leacfe^hiportpMuman Resources
. ys

Eventi5fe|i,ort Guideiines'Sfilj.
A. The^lliirrt report mus^^iicomplet^^y the employee, not the patient or visitor.

All pe'fti|ijnt fields in th^ectronic e^ent reporting platform must be completed.
Descriptiomof occurrenc^hould be brief and include facts only.

2. Verbally report the event to the manag^Mtfte depatl^^Jhwhere the event occurred or

Wk

Reports shouldmot be s^l^d with apatient orvisitor.
Do not make reference^blt^e event report submission in the medical record.
Donot copyor duplicpe'reports for the chart or personal reference.

B.

C.

D.

E.

F.

G.

H.

Do notopenly displaftheeventreport in a way that may violate confidentiality.
Do not make reference to the event report submission inthe employee's personnel record.

Leadership Responsibility: ^
A. The Quality& Risk Management (Q&RM) department will receive the submitted electronic

report and will forward it to the appropriate managerto investigate.
B. Investigation of the event should include:

Page 2 of 5



^^^X^ndocino coast
DISTRICT HOSPITAL

TITLE: Event and Complaint Reporting

POLICY#: 841

Departinent(s): Administration PolicyTech Version #: 2

Policy Owner: CEO
Approvers: Board of Directors and CEO

Date Created: 11/2001
Last PolicyTech Review Date: No Review Date
Last PolicyTech Revision Date: 10/22/2019

I.

D.

E.

F.

G.

H.

B.

E.

F.

1. Interviewing the involved parties and those with potential knowledgeof the situation
2. Reviewing relevant medical records
3. Researching applicable laws, regulations, policies, and procedures
4. Identifying measures, including those already taken, to resolve the problem

After conducting the appropriate investigation, the manager willdocument any actions,
conclusions and/or recommendations within 3 working days of receipt.
Leadershipwill encourage employee participation in follow-jip action plans for educational
purposes and prevention of further occurrences.
Leadership will have timely communication with staff alBi^safety issues.
Q&RM will oversee all appropriate follow-up activjti^^lnci^ding everit analysis in accordance
to the performance improvement plan, patient di^psur^^^referrat to the appropriate
medical staffor departmental committee for^eview andfolldv^up.
Q&RM will serve as aliaison between i\/IC( |̂apd the agencies th^yent is reported to.
Q&RM will refer allmedical staff and medical careassociatedevehilSeports for medical staff
peer review. ^

Q.&RM will forward event reports to CHPSO foi?.VQluntajivyparticipation in analysis ofpatient
events. This also offers addecLprotected from disravjei;abirity should litigatibh;bccur.
Event reports requiring the ni^^pus consideratfp^^r legal counsel will be forwarded to
our insurance carrier. ProgramIfl^^l^ljceportable incident, and the medical record will be
placed in protected status. This re^t fsiil^ded to b^pf^gcted by attorney-client privilege
and should not be,disclosed to anyobeilincluoli^the Medicfl^taff) outside the administration
and risk managemohfe-chanpels.

"'".A A?;.;.
ADDITIONAL PR0T0C0i|̂ EVENTt|rE:

Complaints and Grievances; A
- 'SKv-'If a,|}at|ent's.complairi|iS:ad^^ ah'd^^informally, thefacility should document the

complaintanqithe actibns.t^en toresqlveJl andimaintain the records for quality improvement
:,apvities. ^
Managers orQ&RM-are expected^to attempt resolution ofpatient complaint at thetime of
complaint, whenever'jrassible and|if.not already involved, managers are to notify Q&RM of any
seriouslconcerns.

When staff members are unable to resolvea complaint during the initialcontact, the
investigative process should commence.
Ifa complaint is not received in person, it is therefore a grievance, and the patient or family
member will receive notification within 7days thatthegrievance has bee| received, that itwill
be investigated, and that he or she will receive follow-up communication once the issue has
been resolved.

When the party who filed the grievance is satisfied with the response, it isconsidered resolved.
Patients (or their familymember or representatives) who feel that their complaints have not
been resolved or who have a more in-depth concern mayfilea formal grievance.
Ifan investigation cannot be completed or a grievancecannot be resolved, the patient or the
patient's representative should be informed that the process is ongoing and that he or she will

Page 3 of 5



c

^^^^^TlENDOClNO COAST
DISTRICT HOSPITAL

TITLE: Event and Complaint Reporting

POUa#: 841

Departinent(s): Administration PolicyTech Version #: 2

Policy Owner: CEO
Approvers: Board of Directors and CEO

Date Created: 11/2001
LastPolicyTech ReviewDate: NoReview Date
Last PolicyTech RevisionDate: 10/22/2019

IV.

receive a written response within 30 days.
Documentation shouldincludethe complaintor grievance, any related communication or
investigation and the resolution.
When the grievance isresolved, CMS regulations requirethat a written responseissent to the
patientthat includes a description of the actions taken to investigate the grievance, the results
of those actions, the date of completion of the grievance process, and the name ofa contact
person.Written responsesshouldbe sent even ifappropriatestaff membersmeet with the
patient and family members and resolve the grievanceduring the discussion.
If the individual is not satisfied with the resolution of t^^^mplaint, they may appeal the
response directly to the CEO or designee. . •

' -.'i-

Corporate Compliance Events:
A In addition to utilizing the on-line reporting^p^prm, employeesirpay:

1. Contact the Compliance Officer in M^ftjjlence to ask questio^i^r to voice concerns.
2. Anonymously report utilizing the dbnWential hotline: 707-961^7,88

Device or Product Failure

A. Thele nursing supervisor will dejiyer thedevise tO'th^designated area in the BioMed department
1. The device will be tagged|̂ [t '̂̂ an "Out of slfyif&^tag and logged in the tracking system

B. Themanager from the departmeht'biptoduct origin (pharmacy, materials management.
biomed) will coordinate with Q8iRN|ari^Cssjmre reportih'ab^^ defective
to the manufacturer. wa

devices and products

F.
• /"US"}

Adverse and Sentinel-Eventstjifeif
A. Disclosure to Patieht$||Patient's Representative:

1 "

.SJt'to';",.Areport to the F7DiAiirhu^,be filed whep:,
1. Adeviceiibiiiproductthas caused dii^coritnbQtedproduct^l^as.caused di^coijttlb|ity^B^^a^^ serious injury or serious illness.

Device opproduct failure, would caus&iSrcontribute'ti^a death, serious injury or illness, if
m ^
i&'eSitwere tof^pccur,

„Q.&RM will fiielhe aLw.,. as sooi^^s is practical but no later than 10 working days
' after becoming avVare ofthrIh^jriii^a^ report may beelectronically filed here:

FDA MediclTDevicWife'port Form'̂ ^^l^av, '
Annual summariestp|̂ lpdividu|||̂ ep mu^be made to the FDA by January 1 '̂ of each year. If
no¥e|iorts were submrt(ed the hi |̂tal need not submit an annual report.
Any ae^ice or product'tn|\contriblit|̂ d to an adverse or sentinel event will be kept fortwo-
years." '̂||g^^ "
Medical deiillce^reporting^^nt files must be retained for two-years following an adverse event.

2.

3.

Consultation with'Q&RM or administrator on-call willoccur before informing the patient,
or the party responsible for the patient.
The physician and/or Risk Management willdisclose the adverse event in a timely manner
but no later than when report to CDPH is made. "Timely" may be anything from
"immediately" to as soon as appropriate information can be obtained for the patient
concerning the event.
Such disclosure shall be reflected in the patient's record.

Page 4 of 5



f^

•'̂ '̂TiENDOClNO COAST
DISTRICT HOSPITAL

TITLE: Eventand Complaint Reporting

POLia#:841

Department(s): Administration PolicyTech Version #: 2

Policy Owner: CEO
Approvers: Board of Directors and CEO

Date Created: 11/2001
Last PolicyTech Review Date: No ReviewDate
Last PolicyTechRevisionDate: 10/22/2019

B. Investigation and Planning:
1. Q&RM will coordinate the root cause analysis and resulting action plan in accordance with

the MCDH performance improvement plan.
2. Documents prepared pursuant to the investigation should be retained by Q&RM but

should not be placed in the patient's medical records.
C. Reporting to California Department of Public Health (CDPH):

1. Q&RMwill submit the initial report to CDPH.
2. Disclosure of individually identifiable patient inforn\atipn>is permitted for reporting

purposes.

3. The report to CDHP should be retained by Q&§l^lB^hould not be placed in the patient's
medical record.

D. Sentinel Events Reporting: Jth,
1. Voluntary reporting ofa sentinel evM^tKme Joint Commission will only occur following

consultation with legal counsel, adi^^^ation, Chief ofStaff |̂|&RM.
a. If areport is to occur, Q&RM vviil^^mit asystematic analy^fs|̂ ree of patient

identifiers, and action plan to The11||):iComri\i^R>n within 45 ^a|si,
2. The MCDH Board of Directors will receive r^brti^^jfi the Q&RM on the^nalysis ofthe

/Ill''

The MCDH Board of Direi^b^ will receive r^
event and progress of th^fcl^.iplan.

Wit

CV -

Page 5 of 5



"^^^^NDOCINO COAST
DISTRICT HOSPITAL

TITLE: Hours of Operation

POLICYff: 324

Department(s): Administration PolicyTech Version #: 2

Policy Owner: CEO
Approvers: Board of Directors and CEO

Date Created: 12/04/19
Last PolicyTech Review Date:
Last PolicyTech Revision Date:

PURPOSE: To define hours of operation for services provided at Mendocino CoastDistrict Hospital
(MCDH) and define methods of communication when changes occur.

POLICY:

I. Departments at MCDH will have consistent hoursof operation defined and communicated
II. When temporary changes occur to hours or services available: .

A. The department is responsible for communication to otheraffected departments. This will
occur by:
1'. Email notification to all staff of affected departments
2. Notice posted in the designated area in a^ffected depg^r^ents

B. When service is resumed, communication ^J^(sb occur through^email notification and
removal of any notices in the affected depa^ftients. ' '•'Y ^

III. Permanent changes in office hours will be com0junicated to MCDH staff Fhrpugh revision of this
policy and tothe public via thehospital website'^Y. <•;. YjY.

IV. Changes to available staff during times oflow censusimust.be:bp^ tothe nursing
supervisor

DEPARTMENT HOURS: . -

I. Bio-med Y

A. Monday-Thursda^gDZPP^SOO
B. Friday 08004630:' Y :. .
C. Closed on hbiiBays /Y v/
D. After hours servio^provideiyby on-call sta^.

II. Business office

A. Mdndap^rsday, 080^630^^^^
B Frid1Co8O0€%, ' '
C Closed on holidays|̂ >..

III. Cardiolp^, Yfe
A. Mblhclay^Friday, 0730-1630
B. Closed on holidays ^4#;

IV. Case managenieht^^
A. Monday-Fri '̂̂ 800-17pj||
B. Saturday, Sunda^%d Hpliliays, 0800-1400. Early closure may occur during times of low

census.

V. Central sterile supply
A. Monday- Friday, 0800 -1700.
B. Closed holidays.
C. After hours services provided by on-call staff

VI. Diagnostic imaging
A. For outpatient testing:

1. Monday-Friday, 0800-1700

Page 1 of 3



''̂ ^ '̂IklENDOCINO COAST
DISTRICT HOSPITAL

TITLE: Hours of Operation

POLICY#: 324

Department(s): Administration PolicyTech Version #: 2

Policy Owner. CEO
Approvers: Boardof Directorsand CEO

Date Created: 12/04/19
Last PolicyTechReview Date:
Last PolicyTech Revision Date:

2. Closed holidays
B. For inpatient

1. X-ray and CT: tech on-site at all times
2. Ultrasound: After hours services provided by on-call staff
3. MRI: Monday-Friday, 0800-1700. Closed holidays.

VII. Employee health
A. Monday, Tuesday, Thursday, 0800-1700
B. Wednesday, Friday, 0800-1300
C. Closed holidays ,. V '

VIII. Home health , '
A. Monday-Friday, 0800-1700 ' - i
B. Closed holidays
C. After hours services provided by on-call staff ? •

IX. Housekeeping
A. Daily, 0530-0130.
B. After hours services provided by on-call staff\ ^

X. Human resources

A. Monday-Friday, 0800-1630
B. Closed holidays

XI. Information systems
A. Help Desk: Monday|F.riday. 0800-1630,
B. Closed holidays^^^
C. After hours seM^s provided^by on-call'staff

XII. Infusion/hematology|topcology '
A.

B.

XIII.

XIV.

XV.

B.

Monday through Fdday from^^QO -1700 ''i.V.
Closed hoWays

LabpcaJary '
A.v.,For outpatientte|̂ iii|g:

Monday-Frid^^po-^^
2;'̂ aturday, Sundaiy^d Holi^l^50800-1200

For inpa^nt testing:
1. Moii|y^Frlday, 060^00
2. SaturdaVMunday an&Holidays, 0630-2130

C. Clinical Laborat^^^Sct|̂ i|t^nours:
1. Monday-Frid^?^(3-0330
2. Saturday, Sunda^^nd Holidays, 0630- 0330
3. A Clinical Laboratory Scientist is on-call from 0330-0600

D. After hours services provided by on-cal| staff
Materials management
A. Monday-Friday, 0730-1600
B. Closed holidays

Medical records

Page 2 of 3



^^^T^ndocino coast
DISTRICT HOSPITAL

TITLE: Hours of Operation

POUCy#:324

Department(s): Administration PolicyTech Version #: 2

Policy Owner: CEO
Approvers: Boardof Directors and CEO

Date Created: 12/04/19
Last PolicyTech Review Date:
Last PolicyTech Revision Date:

XVI.

XVII.

XVIII.

XIX.

XX.

XXIII.

A. Monday-Friday, 0800 -1600
B. Closed holidays

North Coast Family Health Center
A. Suite A: Monday-Friday, 0800-1700 (ImmediateCare)
B. Suite B; Monday-Friday, 0900-1700
C. Suite C: Monday-Friday, 0800-1700
D. Closed holidays

Nutrition services: Daily,0600-1930
Pharmacy
A. Monday-Friday, 0730-1800
B. Saturday, Sunday and Holidays, 0730-1600

Plant maintenance

A. Daily,0600-1800
B. After hours services provided by on-call-^aff

Quality and risk management
A. Monday-Friday, 0900-1700
B. Closed holidays

XXI. Registration (South Lobby)
A. Monday-Friday, 0600-1700
B. Closed holidays

XXII. Rehabilitation services^

Monda^^ay, 0830^700
Closed hoi[|.ays •If

B. Inpatient: /Mlt-.-.

JSVAvailabl^Sujidays'alidSolidayf^^^^

Outpatient:
1,

2

its:.

Res^rafery therapy *'
0830-1700 .

B. Anecthoursservices provided by'o'h^call staff
»5m.„

:,a.

•'•V '

C. The fesipptory theraplstt^ill notify the nursing supervisor \when leaving the hospital at any
time duri'hg^nprmal hour^pioperation and at the end of the'ir shift.

ii
AfM;

Page 3 of 3



c

^^^^^NDOCINO COAST
DISTRICT HOSPITAL

TITLE: Flu Vaccination for Healthcare Workers

POUCYff: 793

Department(s): Employee Health PolicyTech Version ff: 2

Policyowner: CHRP
Approvers: Board of Directors, CHRO

Date Created: 08/01/2015
Last PolicyTech Review Date: NoReview Date
Last PolicyTech RevisionDate: 11/20/2019

PURPOSE: To help protect staff, non-employees, patients and their families of Mendocino Coast District
Hospital (MCDH) from acquiringseasonal influenza, to help prevent the spread of the influenza virus and
to meet the requirements of public health agencies.

POLICY: All healthcare workers will receive an influenza vaccine or wear a mask for the duration of the

flu season. Influenza season isdefined as November 1'* through April 30"' ofeach year, butcan be
subject to change based on the Centers for Disease Control recommendations. All health care workers,
regardless of whether they have had the vaccineor not, will be expected to remain home from work
with any signs and symptoms of influenza like illness.

DEFINITIONS:

I.

IV.

Health care workers include, but are not limited ^:|cl[pical and noii^ijnical employees, licensed
independent practitioners, temporary workers^;^t|lents, volunteersV^^ontracted staff.
Influenzaincubation: The typical incubation period for influenzais one tb'ifpurdays, with an average
of two days. Adults can be infectious from the^i^j^efore symj^toms begin'ltlirQugh approximately

. ill — ... — £ J.five days after illness onset. Children can beinfecUq '̂s|or tefjtll^^s or more after:;tl;\e onset of
symptoms, and young children canjfc^the virus befei^l^nset of their illnessi|Severely
immunocompromised person can's^^ij|e,yirusforweel |̂9|months.
Influenza transmission: Influenza viru^spfea^from pers^^o^person, primarily through
respiratory droplet transmission.
Influenza signs and sym^tp^^ Uncomplicated influep^^^yness iFi^p|acterized by the abrupt onset
of the following syrpj^jp^f^fe^or feven |̂hills,j^s^epr,body aches, headache, fatigue,
nonproductive cougH|sore thfoa't,tand rhinifis.^.cHl!jfen ma|%isp,have otitis media, nausea, and
vomiting.

•> Ki 'X',

PROTOCOL:

I. Staftif^ii^dlrig'ne^htres, mu^pceivetniii^u^nz^^accination, provide written proof of having
rec|̂ ea the vaccinefi:;pgipnottii^ource or signfa^declination form by November l"of each year.
The vacpine will be provicled free o1^i{p/Be to a" healthcare workers, including new hires.
ThosetKagaredeclining the vaccine must wear a hospital-supplied surgical maskfor the durationof
the fluseason anytime they are withjnsixfeet of a patient.

IV. In thecase ofvaccine shortage,^rnployee Health will determine an appropriate distribution plan for
the available vaccipe.. Vaccina||pn priority will be offered to personnel based on risk to patient
population cared for and risKtofexposure to influenza.

REFERENCES: '
• Pace, Gary, MD, MPH, Mendocino County Public Health Officer (2018). Mandatory Influenza

Vaccination of Healthcare Workers at Acute Care Hospitals. Letter to Mendocino County
Healthcare Facilities.

• Immunization Schedules.Centers for DiseaseControland Prevention (2014, November19).
Retrieved November 20, 2019, from

https://www2a.cdc.gov/vaccines/statevaccsApp/Admini5tration.asD7statetmpsCAff505.

II.

III.

Page 1 of 1



4



MCDH

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, OA

Unaudited Financial Statements

For the month ended November 30, 2019



Table of Contents

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA

For the month ended November 30, 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXECUT VE SUMMARY

BALANCE SHEET - ASSETS

BALANCE SHEET - LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS - CURRENT MONTH

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS - YEAR-TO-DATE

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS -13 MONTH TREND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

KEY OPERATING STATISTICS

FINANCIAL RATIOS AND BENCHMARKS

PAGE1

PAGE 2

PAGE 3

PAGE 4

PAGES

PAGES

PAGE 7

PAGE 9

PAGE 10

PAGE 11



MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
EXECUTIVE FINANCIAL SUMMARY

For the month ended November 30,2019

BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS

Current Assets

Assets Whose Use is Limited

Property, Plant and Equipment (Net)

Total Unrestricted Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities

Long-Term Debt

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

11/30/2019 6/30/2019

$11,520,237 $11,343,940
5,532,941 5,608,305

14,415,484 14,601,347

31.468,662 31,553,592

$31,468,662 $31,553,592

$11,972,594 $10,299,417
12,569,926 12,979,083

24,542,520

6,926,142

$31.468.662

23,278,500
8,275,099

$31,553,592

STATEMENT-QF REVENUE AND EXPENSES • YTD

Revenue:

Gross Patient Revenues

Deductions From Revenue

Net Patient Revenues

Other Operating Revenue
Total Operating Revenues

Expenses:
Salaries, Benefits & Contract Labor
Purchased Services S Physician Fees
Supply Expenses
Interest Expense
Depreciation Expense
Other Operating Expenses

Total Expenses

NET OPERATING SURPLUS

Non-Operating Revenue/(Expenses)

TOTAL NET SURPLUS

ACTUAL I BUDGET

$47,431,648

(25,620,364)

21,811,284

991,030
22.802,314

$48,980,059

(26.712,328)

22,267,731

1,103,744

23,371.475

14,392,457 14,075,245
4,519,789 3,859,824
3,723,584 3,970,646

0 0

555,342 623,994
2,044,223 1,987,070

25,235,391 24.516.779

(2,433,077) (1.145,304)
1,084,133 1,096,896

($1,348,944) (S48.408)

NET DAYS IN ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

HOSPITAL MARGINS

iBEjal

Operating Margin Total ProfitMargin

DAYS CASH ON HAND

Casti - StiorlTerm Cash-All Ssurcea

SALARY AND BENEFIT EXPENSE AS A
PERCENTAGE OF NET PATIENT REVENUE

I

BOND COVENANTS

DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO

CURRENT RATIO

DAYS CASH ON HAND

REQUIREMENT \ ACTUAL

BI!71

I
• MENDOCINO COASTHEALTHCARE DISTF 11/30/2019

• Budget \ 11/30/2019
• PriorFist:al Year End 6/30/2019



Balance Sheet - Assets

WIENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA

For the month ended November 30, 2019

Current

Month

11/30/2019

CURRENT ASSETS

CASH $ 974,523

PARCEL TAX REVENUE ACCT 905,068

PATIENT RECEIVABLES 15.757,908

LESS: RESERVES FOR ALLOWANCES FOR RECEIVABLES (11,420,084)

NET PATIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES 4,337,824

ESTIMATED THIRD-PARTY PAYOR SETTLEMENTS 1,518,481

OTHER RECEIVABLES 2,360,848

INVENTORIES 782,479

PREPAID EXPENSES 641,014

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS $ 11,520,237

ASSETS WHOSE USE IS LIMITED

BOARD DESIGNATED FUNDS

PLAN FUND

SPECIFIC PURPOSE FUND

BONDS

BOND COSTS

TOTAL LIMITED USE ASSETS

PROPERTY, PLANT, & EQUIPMENT

LAND

LAND IMPROVEMENTS

BUILDINGS & IMPROVEMENTS

LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS

EQUIPMENT

CONSTRUCTION-IN-PROGRESS

GROSS PROPERTY, PLANT, & EQUIPMENT

LESS: ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

$ 4,077,031

13,774

0

991,198

450,938

$ 5,532,941

$ 117,490

805,398

24,604,464

546,439

20,681,478

1,767,617

$ 48,522,886

(34,107,402)

NET PROPERTY, PLANT. & EQUIPMENT $ 14,415,484

TOTALASSETS $ 31,468,662

Prior

Year End

6/30/2019

$ 31,553,592



Balance Sheet - Liabilities and Net Assets

WIENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA
For the month ended November 30, 2019

Current

Month

11/30/2019

CURRENT LIABILITIES

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ 6,260,844

ACCRUED PAYROLL $ 780,578

ACCRUED VACATION/HOLIDAY/SICK PAY $ 1,063,963

PAYROLL TAXES PAYABLE $ 51,667

ESTIMATED THIRD-PARTY PAYOR SETTLEMENTS $ 807,543

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES $ 769,344
INTEREST PAYABLE $ 957,346

PREVIOUS FY PENSION PAYABLE $ 877,969

CURRENT PORTION OF LTD (BONDS/MORTGAGES) $ 116,667
CURRENT PORTION OF LTD (OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES) $ 286.673

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES $ 11,972,594

LONG TERM LIABILITIES

BONDS PAYABLE $ 9,730,743
OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES $ 2,434,718
CURRENT FY PENSION PAYABLE (NON-CURRENT LIABILITY) $ 404,465

TOTAL LONG TERM LIABILITIES $ 12,569,926

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 24,542,520

FUND BALANCE

UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANACE

TEMPORARY RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE

Net Revenue/(Expenses) (YTD)

$ 8,275,091

$ (1.348,949)

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 6,926,142

TOTAL LIABILITIES

AND NET ASSETS $ 31,468,662

Prior

Year End

6/30/2019

$ 9,810,624

$ 3,168,459

$
$ 12,979,083

$ 23,278,500

$ 7,591,999

$

$ 683,100

$ 8,275,099

$ 31,553,592



statement of Revenue and Expense
MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA
For the month ended November 30, 2019

PAGES

CURRENT MONTH

Positive Prior

Actual Budget (Negative) Percentage Year

11/30/19 11/30/19 Variance Variance 11/30/18

GROSS PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES

INPATIENT $ 1.495.026 S 1,783,013 $ (287,987) -16% S 2,069.493

SWING BED S 591,134 $ 373,725 S 217,409 58% S 367.023

OUTPATIENT $ 5.866.234 $ 6,891,425 s (1,025,191) -15% S 6.048,538

NORTH COAST FAMILY HEALTH CENTER $ 375,950 S 436,572 $ (60,622) -14% S 401,435

HOME HEALTH S 96.294 $ 119,200 s (22,906) -19% S 128,944

TOTAL PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES $ 8.424.638 $ 9.603,935 s (1,179,297) -12% S 9.015,433

DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUE

CONTRACTUAL ALLOWANCES $ (4.465,213) S (5,258,682) s 793,469 15% S (4.930.977)
POLICY DISCOUNTS $ (6.346) S (8,328) s 1,982 24% S (7.568)
STATE PROGRAMS S 220.500 S 157,138 $ 63,362 40% S 324,790
BAD DEBT $ (100.000) s (102,516) s 2,516 2% S (83,000)
CHARITY S (32.255) s (28.186) 5 (4,069) -14% S (20,860)

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUES 5 (4.383.314) S (5,240,574) $ 857.260 16% S (4.717.615)

NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES S 4.041.324 S 4.363.361 $ (322.037) -7% S 4.297.818

OTHER OPERATING REVENUES S 253.239 s 231.618 S 21.621 9% S 180.391

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES $ 4,294,563 $ 4,594,979 $ (300,416) -7% $ 4,478,209

OPERATING EXPENSES

SALARIES & WAGES - STAFF $ 1.472.969 $ 1,495,499 s 22,530 2% S 1,570.346
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS $ 704,251 $ 724,123 s 19,872 3% s 715,009
PROFESSIONAL FEES - PHYSICIAN s 573.785 s 521,673 $ (52,112) -10% $ 557,119
OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES - REGISTRY s 660,928 $ 538,419 s (122,509) -23% $ 462,034
OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES - OTHER s 113,632 $ 122,463 s 8,831 7% s 116,661
SUPPLIES - DRUGS s 405,834 $ 463,167 $ 57,333 12% $ 454,386
SUPPLIES - MEDICAL S 136,118 $ 237,335 $ 101,217 43% s 234,165
SUPPLIES-OTHER s 61,708 s 85,572 $ 23,864 28% s 83,452
PURCHASED SERVICES $ 159,312 $ 114,014 $ (45,298) -40% $ 124,308
REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE s 54,411 s 67,789 $ 13,378 20% $ 65,445
UTILITIES s 62,264 s 72,220 s 9,956 14% $ 73,234
INSURANCE $ 44,384 s 51,653 s 7,269 14% s 37,257
DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION $ 111,214 s 123,633 $ 12,419 10% s 131,797
RENTAULEASE s 57,064 $ 53,357 5 (3,707) -7% $ 50,463
OTHER EXPENSE s 157,305 s 121.847 S (35.458) -29% s 122,936

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $ 4,775,179 $ 4,792,764 $ 17,585 0% $ 4,798,612

INET OPERATINGSURPLUS (LOSS) $ (480,616) $ (197,786) $ (282,831) -143% $ (320,403)1

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
OPERATING TAX REVENUES $ 70,000 $ 64.574 $ 5.426 8% $ 65,000
INVESTMENT INCOME 5 17,053 s 6.392 $ 10,661 167% $ 4,000
DONATIONS $ 83,794 $ 26,571 $ 57,223 215% $ 6,583
INTEREST EXPENSE (ALL) S (39,681) $ (41,845) $ 2,164 -5% $ (42,862)
EXTRAORDINARY GAINS/(LOSS) $ . s 209 $ (209) -100% s _

BONDEXPENSE (ALL) $ 1,112 s 1,094 $ 18 2% $ 1,112
TAX SUBSIDIES FOR GO BONDS $ 27,716 s 27,262 $ 454 2% s 27,716
PARCEL TAX REVENUES s 133,000 s 130.820 s 2.180 2% s 133,000

TOTAL NON OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) $ 292,994 $ 215,077 $ 77,917 36% $ 194,549

ITOTAL NETINCOME (LOSS) $ (187,622) $ 17,292 $ (204,914) $ (125,854)1

Operating Margin •11.2% -4.3% •7.2%
Total Profit Margin •4.4% 0.4% -2.8%
EBIDA -8.6% -1.6% -4.2%
Cash Flow Margin -2.4% 2.5% -0.5%



statement of Revenue and Expense
MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA
For the month ended November 30,2019

PAGE 6

YEAR-TO-DATE

Positive Prior

Actual Budget (Negative) Percentage Year

11/30/19 11/30/19 Variance Variance 11/30/18

GROSS PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES

INPATIENT S 7,708,809 $ 9,093,355 S (1,384,546) -15% S 9,019,723
SWING BED s 2.903,340 S 1,905,981 S 997,359 52% s 1,406,119

OUTPATIENT s 34,197,009 $ 35,146,288 S (949,279) -3% $ 33,882,812
NORTH COAST FAMILY HEALTH CENTER s 1,984,773 S 2,226,516 $ (241,743) -11% 5 2,314,466
HOME HEALTH S 637,717 S 607,919 S 29,798 5% S 605,648
TOTAL PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES $ 47,431,648 $ 48,980,059 s (1,548,411) -3% $ 47,228,768

DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUE

CONTRACTUAL ALLOWANCES S (26.019.750) S (26,804,688) S 784,938 3% $ (25,604,520)
POLICY DISCOUNTS $ (38,540) $ (42,468) S 3,928 9% $ (39,921)
STATE PROGRAMS 3 1,102,500 S 801,410 s 301,090 38% S 543,829
BAD DEBT 3 (525,285) $ (522,833) s (2,452) 0% s (612,460)
CHARITY 3 (139,289) S (143,749) s 4,460 3% s (65,206)

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUES 3 (25.620,364) S (26,712,328) $ 1,091,964 4% 5 (25,778,278)

NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES 3 21.811.284 S 22,267,731 8 (456,447) -2% S 21,450,490

OTHER OPERATING REVENUES 3 991,030 S 1,103,744 $ (112,714) -10% $ 658,844

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES $ 22,802,314 5 23,371,475 5 (569,161) -2% $ 22,109,334

OPERATING EXPENSES

SALARIES & WAGES - STAFF 3 7,646,283 s 7,636,180 $ (10,103) 0% $ 7,437,492
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 3 3,662,056 $ 3,693,132 $ 31,076 1% $ 3,586,017
PROFESSIONAL FEES - PHYSICIAN 3 2,913,804 s 2,661,025 $ (252,779) -9% $ 2,638,596
OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES - REGISTRY 3 3,084,118 5 2,745,933 $ (338,185) -12% S 2,580,057
OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES - OTHER 3 987,547 S 623,064 5 (364,483) -58% $ 476,673
SUPPLIES - DRUGS 3 2,372,642 $ 2,323,773 S (48,869) -2% 5 2,112,991
SUPPLIES - MEDICAL 3 969,099 $ 1,210.396 $ 241,297 20% S 1,157,539
SUPPLIES-OTHER 3 381.843 s 436.477 $ 54,634 13% 5 373,525
PURCHASED SERVICES 3 618,438 s 575.735 $ (42,703) -7% S 558,239
REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 3 341,294 s 345,734 $ 4,440 1% 5 365,381
UTILITIES 3 372,117 s 368,321 S (3.796) -1% S 378,211
INSURANCE 3 279,416 s 263,438 $ (15.978) -6% S 265,090
DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 3 555,342 s 623,994 S 68,652 11% $ 640,454
RENTAULEASE 3 292,914 s 272,124 S (20,790) -8% $ 260,887
OTHER EXPENSE 3 758,482 s 737,453 S (21.029) -3% s 567.126

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 3 25,235,395 5 24,516,779 $ (718,616) -3% 5 23,398,278

INETOPERATING SURPLUS(LOSS) 3 (2,433,077) $ (1,145,304) $ (1,287,773) 112% 5

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
OPERATING TAX REVENUES 3 350,000 5 329,327 $ 20,673 6% S 325,000
INVESTMENT INCOME 3 37,053 5 32,596 s 4.457 14% s 31,318
DONATIONS 3 96,014 $ 135,513 $ (39,499) -29% s 6,583
INTERESTEXPENSE (ALL) 3 (201,886) $ (213.409) $ 11,523 -5% 5 (216,235)
EXTRAORDINARY GAINS/(LOSS) 3 - S 1,073 $ (1,073) -100% $ 2,118
BONDEXPENSE (ALL) 3 5,560 S 5,580 $ 20 0% s 5,560
TAX SUBSIDIES FOR GO BONDS 3 138,580 s 139,035 $ (455) 0% s 138,580
PARCEL TAX REVENUES 3 658,808 s 667,181 s (8.373) -1% $ 665,000

TOTAL NON OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 3 1,084,129 $ 1,096,896 $ (12,727) -1% 5 957,924

Itotal net income (lossT

Operating Margin
Total Profit Margin
EBIDA

Cash Flow Margin

$ (1,348,944) $ (48,408) S (1.300,536)

-10.7%

-5.9%

-8.2%

-4.1%

-4.9%

-0.2%

-2.2%

1.9%

2687% (331,020)1

-5.8%

-1.6%

-2.9%

0.8%



Statement of Revenue and Expense - is Month Trend
MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual

11/30/2019 10/31/2019 9/30/2019 8/31/2019 7/31/2019 6/30/2019 5/31/2019 4/30/2019

GROSS PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES
INPATIENT 1.495.026 1.153.050 1.604.446 1.417.030 2.041.840 1.793.781 1.296.892 1,449,258

SWING BED 591,134 534.825 563.816 578.121 635.444 620.020 608.924 740.806

OUTPATIENT 5.866,234 6.533.241 6.928.288 6.941.079 7,925.584 6.606.140 7.648,177 7,489.072

NORTH COAST FAMILY HEALTH CEN" 375.950 393.997 398,500 358.273 458.053 362,717 355,621 413.678

HOME HEALTH 96.294 130.250 117.874 129.099 164.200 128.396 119.334 129.461

iTAL PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES 8.424,638 8.745,363 9.612,924 9.423,602 11,225,121 9,511,054 10,028,948 10.222.275

DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUE

CONTRACTUAL ALLOWANCES (4.465.213) (4,864.781) (5.269,096) (5.360,482) (6.060,178) (4,889,557) (5.810,269) (5,634.202)
POLICY DISCOUNTS (6,346) (8.837) (3,393) (11.141) (8.823) (211.250) (41,405) (9.735)
STATE PROGRAMS 220.500 220,500 220,500 220.500 220.500 459,275 552,945 556.246
BAD DEBT (100.000) (99,408) (150,000) (25.877) (150.000) (663,314) (254,225) (147.787)
CHARITY (32.255) (15.108) (19.266) (30.342) (42.318) (167.430) (33,772) (36.612)

M DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUES (4.383,314) (4,767,634) (5,221.255) (6,207,342) (6,040,819) (5.472,276) (5,586.726) (5.272,090)

NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES 4,041.324 3,977,729 4,391,669 4,216,260 5,184,302 4,038,778 4,442,222 4,950,185

OPERATING TAX REVENUES 0 0 0 0
OTHER OPERATING REVENUES 253,239 145,834 211,134 148,991 231,832 222,760 235,212 181,589

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 4,294,563 4,123,563 4,602,803 4,365,251 5,416,134 4,261,538 4,677,434 5,131,774

OPERATING EXPENSES

SALARIES & WAGES - STAFF 1.472.969 1,531,442 1,508.063 1.549,641 1,584,168 1,665,449 1,472.457 1.556.058
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 704.251 720.704 716.731 732.314 788,056 863.009 742.661 728.459
PROFESSIONAL FEES - PHYSICIAN 573.785 579.785 586.416 592.615 581.203 486.140 485.547 727,967
OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES - REGIS 660,928 593,362 524.969 656.648 648.211 463.441 605.856 580,617
OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES - OTHE 113,632 130,892 355,562 193.370 194.091 321.237 336.996 329.581
SUPPLIES - DRUGS 405.834 534.462 485,018 450.697 496,631 348.636 500.098 424.393
SUPPLIES-MEDICAL 136.118 169.312 187,480 181.727 294,462 257,159 169.002 251.183
SUPPLIES-OTHER 61.708 70,672 72,760 85.819 90.884 50,854 85.876 99.137
PURCHASED SERVICES 159.312 122,389 81,707 150.888 104.142 110.385 113.222 121.611
REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 54.411 101,429 71,220 60.715 53.519 77,556 56.884 51.088
UTILITIES 62.264 87,158 73,180 72.714 76.801 60,767 80.245 68.408
INSURANCE 44.384 62,105 35,745 69.394 67.788 42,547 36.013 37,864
INTEREST 0 0 0 0 0 0

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 111,214 111,949 110,664 111,015 110,500 112,559 135,663 113,204
RENTAIAEASE 57,064 63,474 62,348 57,509 205,716 54.321 56,991 53,005
OTHER EXPENSE 157.305 135.374 181.670 130.936 0 122.358 141,698 201.696

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 4,776,179 5,014,509 5,053,533 5,096,002 5,296,172 5,036,418 5,019,209 6,344,271

•NET OPERATING SURPLUS (LOSS) (480,616) (890,946) (450,730) (730,751) 119,962 (774,880) (341,775) (212,497)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
OPERATING TAX REVENUES 70.000 70,000 70.000 70.000 70.000 65.000 65.000 65,000
INVESTMENT INCOME 17,053 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 17.304 18.572 4,000
DONATIONS 83,794 0 0 12.220 0 0 37,547
INTEREST EXPENSE (ALL) (39.681) (40.213) (40.645) (40.199) (41.148) (41.191) (41,464) (41.841)
EXTRAORDINARY GAINS/(LOSS) 0 0 0 0 0 (22.193) (34,262)
BONDEXPENSE (ALL) 1.112 1.112 1.112 1.112 1.112 1.112 1.112 1.112
TAX SUBSIDIES FOR GO BONDS 27.716 27.716 27.716 27.716 27.716 27.716 27.716 27.716
PARCEL TAX REVENUE 133.000 133.000 133.000 131.704 128.104 133.000 133.000 133.000

. NON OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 292,994 196,615 196,183 207,553 190,784 180,748 207,221 188,987

•TOTAL NET INCOME (LOSS) (187,622) (694,331) (254,547) (523,198) 310,746 (594,132) (134,554) (23,510)

Operating Margin -11% -22% -10% -17% 2% -18% -7% •4%
Total Profit Margin -4% -17% -6% -12% 6% -14% -3% 0%
EBIDA -9% -19% -7% -14% 4% -16% •4% -2%
Cash Flow Margin -5% -17% •6% -12% 6% -14% -3% -1%



statement of Revenue and Ex|

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DIS PAGE 7 PAGES

FORT BRAGG, OA 9 10 11 12 13

Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual

3131/2019 2/28/2019 1/31/2019 12/31/2018 11/30/2018

GROSS PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES
INPATIENT 2.323,912 1,827,740 1,946,223 1,568,434 2,069,493

SWING BED 732,395 510,398 271,778 138,319 367,023

OUTPATIENT 6,991,396 6,799,218 7,884,721 7,007,476 6,048,538

NORTH COAST FAMILY HEALTH CEN" 440,820 397,755 463,344 408,422 401,435

HOME HEALTH 124,983 118,117 123.260 110,380 128,944

iTAL PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES 10,613,506 9,653,228 10,689,326 9,233,031 9,015,433

DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUE
CONTRACTUAL ALLOWANCES (5,526,455) (5,409,176) (6,074,385) (5,164,683) (4,930,977)

POLICY DISCOUNTS (13,406) (8,089) (6,458) (7,056) (7,568)
STATE PROGRAMS 157,500 148,000 96,000 96,000 324,790

BAD DEBT 0 (86,000) (109,000) (87,000) (83,000)
CHARITY (39,882) (43,521) (46,276) (55,062) (20,860)

M DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUES (5.422,242) (5,398,786) (6,140,119) (5,217,801) (4,717,615)

NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES 5,191,264 4,254,442 4,549,207 4,015,230 4,297,818

OPERATING TAX REVENUES 0 0 0 0 0

OTHER OPERATING REVENUES 179,877 251,431 206,803 203,221 180,391

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 5,371,141 4,505,873 4,756,010 4,218,451 4,478,209

OPERATING EXPENSES

SALARIES & WAGES - STAFF 2,004,021 1,419,826 1,577,412 1,397,120 1,570,346
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 762,127 755,588 795,016 753,734 715,009
PROFESSIONAL FEES - PHYSICIAN 456,645 521,380 458,183 448,795 557,119
OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES - REGK 579,522 447,930 567,028 507,800 462,034
OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES - OTHE 232,597 324,380 206,653 71,067 116,661
SUPPLIES - DRUGS 431,693 446,867 496,553 430,828 454,386

SUPPLIES - MEDICAL 225,148 259,509 273,077 244,499 234,165
SUPPLIES - OTHER 91,307 110,688 63,509 94,774 83,452
PURCHASED SERVICES 117,892 96,041 94,425 104,262 124,308
REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 71,321 57,350 66,037 71,189 65,445
UTILITIES 66,061 72,901 72,356 69,039 73,234

INSURANCE 42.782 37,864 36,453 36,597 37,257
INTEREST 0 0 0 0 0

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 100,746 125,253 125,735 128,316 131,797
RENTAL/LEASE 59,316 52,775 55,751 55,359 50,463
OTHER EXPENSE 127,813 140,770 142,968 106,320 122,936

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 5,368,991 4,869,122 5,031,156 4,519,699 4,798,612

INET OPERATING SURPLUS (LOSS) 2,150 (363,249) (275,146) (301,248) (320,403)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES(EXPENSE
OPERATING TAX REVENUES 65,000 65,000 65,000 65,000 65,000
INVESTMENT INCOME 4,000 4,000 17,020 4,000 4,000
DONATIONS 0 13,558 0 0 6,583
INTEREST EXPENSE (ALL) (41,028) (40,826) (42,674) (42,820) (42,862)
EXTRAORDINARY GAINS/(LOSS) 0 0 0 0 0
BOND EXPENSE (ALL) 1,112 1,112 1,112 1,112 1,112
TAX SUBSIDIES FOR GO BONDS 27,716 27,716 27,716 27,716 27,716
PARCEL TAX REVENUE 133,000 133,000 133.000 133.000 133,000

. NON OPERATINGINCOME(LOSS) 189,800 203,560 201,174 188,008 194,549

•TOTAL NET INCOME (LOSS) 191,950 (159,689) (73,972) (113,240) (125,854)

Operating Margin 0% -8% •6% •7% -7%
Total Profit Margin 4% •4% •2% -3% -3%
EBIDA 2% -5% -3% •4% -4%
Cash Flow Margin 3% -3% -1% -2% •2%



statement of Cash Flows

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA
for the 5 months ended 11/30/19

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net Income (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
(lncrease)/Decrease in Net Patient Accounts Receivable
(lncrease)/Decrease in Other Receivables
(lncrease)/Decrease in Inventories
(lncrease)/Decrease in Pre-Paid Expenses
(lncrease)/Decrease in Third Party Receivables
lncrease/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable
lncrease/(Decrease) in Notes and Loans Payable
lncrease/(Decrease) in Accrued Payroll and Benefits
lncrease/(Decrease) in Previous Year Pension Payable
lncrease/(Decrease) in Third Party Liabilities
lncrease/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
(lncrease)/Decrease in Limited Use Cash and Investments
(lncrease)/Decrease in Other Limited Use Assets

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

lncrease/(Decrease) in Bond/Mortgage Debt
lncrease/(Decrease) in Capital Lease Debt
lncrease/(Decrease) in Other Long Term Liabilities

Net Cash Used for Financing Activities

(INCREASE)/DECREASE IN RESTRICTED ASSETS

Net lncrease/(Decrease) in Cash

Cash, Beginning of Period

Cash, End of Period

PAGES

11/30/2019

($1,348,944)

555,342
(262,044)

(1.349,313)
56,597

(170,691)
1,409,767
1,891,612

346,956
(172,910)

0

(250,337)
(142,144)

563,891

(369,479)
299,948

(224,584)

(294,115)

'79,887)
0

(329,276)

(409,163)

(139,388)

2,018,978

$1,879,590



Patient Statistics

MENDOCiNO COAST HEALTHCARE DiSTRiCT

FORT BRAGG, CA
For the month ended November 30, 2019

Current Month

PAGE 10

Year-To-Oate

Actual

11/30/19

Budget
11/30/19

Positive/

(Negative)
Variance

Prior

Year

11/30/18 STATISTICS

Actual

11/30/19

Budget
11/30/19

Positive/

(Negative)
Variance

Prior

Year

11/30/18

Admissions
9

42

12

49

(25%)
(14%)

8

47

Critical Care Services
General

56

209

60

248

(7%)
(16%)

64

233
51

2

61

8

(16%)
(75%)

55

13

Subtotal Medical &Surgical Admissions
08

265

23

308

40

(14%)
(43%)

297

50
53 69 (23%) 68 Total Admissions 288 348 (17%) 347

14 11 27% 8 Swing Bed 68 55 24% 60

2 6 (75%) 11 Total Deliveries 23 40 (43%) 44

Inpatlent Days
24

175

42

172

(43%)
2%

39

173

Critical Care Services

General
147

762

210

869

(30%)
(12%)

187

839
199

5

214

18

(7%)
(72%)

212

31

SubtotalMedical &Surgical Inpatient Days
OB

909

61

1079

90

(16%)
(32%)

1026

115
204 232 (12%) 243 Total Inpatient Days 970 1169 (17%) 1141

160 99 62% 112 Swing Bed 768 495 55% 516

4 16 (75%) 25 Total Newborn Days 49 80 (39%) 98

Average Length of Stay
2.7

4.2

3.5

3.5

(24%)
19%

4.9

3.7

Critical Care Services

General
2.63

3.65

3.50

3.50

(25%)
4%

2.92

3.60
3.9

2.5

3.5

2.3

11%

11%

3.9

2.4

Subtotal Medical& Surgical
08

3.43

2.65

3.50

2.25

(2%)
18%

3.45

2.30
3.8 3.4 14% 3.6 Total Inpatient (CAH) 3.37 3.36 0% 3.29

11.4 9.0 27% 14.0 Swing Bed 11.29 9.00 25% 8.60

0.8

5.8

Avg Dally Census - Hospital
1.4

5.7

(43%)
2%

1.3

5.6

CriticalCare Services (4 Beds)
General (8 Beds)

1.0

5.0

1.4

5.7

(30%)
(12%)

1.2

5.5
6.6

0.2

7.1

0.6

(7%)
(72%)

6.8

1.0

SubtotalMedical &Surgical (12Beds)
OB (3 Beds)

5.9

0.4

7.1

0.6

(16%)
(32%)

6.7

0.8
6.8 7.7 (12%) 7.8 Subtotal Acute (15 Beds) 6.3 7.6 (17%) 7.5

5.3 3.3 62% 3.6 Swing Care (10 Beds) 5.0 3.2 55% 3.4
12.1 11.0 10% 11.5 Total Hospital (25 Beds Available) 11.4 10.9 4% 10.8

704

43

777

48
(9%)

(10%)

Emergency Department
745

42

Outpatients TreatedInED- Emergent
Patients Admitted from EO

3911

219

3957

243

(1%)
(10%)

4.091
230

747 825 (9%) 787 Total Patients treated In ED 4.130 4200 (2%) 4,321

122

1

164

1

Ambulance Service
(26%)

0%

152

2

911 - Transports
Transfer - Transports

711

8

835

5

(15%)
60%

785

4
123 165 ^25%) 154 Total Ambulance Transports 719 840 (14%) 769

15

0

131

146

18

6

192

216

(17%)
(100%)

(32%)
(32%)

Surgery - Cases
15

3

159

177

Inpatient Cases
Total Implant Cases
Outpatient Cases
Total Surgery Cases

61

14

781

90

29

980

(32%)
(52%)
(20%)

84

20

953

2,216
North Coast Family Health Center

(22%) 1057

2,656 (17%) 2,379 Visits 12,029 13,533 (11%) 12,966

468 523 (11%)
Home Health

513 Vislbi 2,722 2,665 2% 2,699

4,140 5,146 (20%) 4,916
Outpatient

Encounters 22,819 26,220 (13%) 24,833



Key Financial Ratios
MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA

Profitability:
Operating Margin
Total Profit Margin
EBIDA

Contractual Allowance % To Gross Charges
Inpatient Gross Revenue Percentage (Hospital)
Outpatient Gross Revenue Percentage (Hospital)

Liquidity:
Days of Cash on Hand, Short Term
Days Cash, All Sources
Net Days in Accounts Receivable
Hospital Gross Days in AR
Cash Flow Margin
Days in Accounts Payable
Current Ratio

Capital Structure:
Average Age of Plant (Annualized)
Capital Costs as a % of Total Exp.
Capital Spend as a % of Annual Depreciation
Long Term Debt to Net Position
Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Productivity and Efficiency:

Net Patient Service Revenue per PTE
Salary & Benefits Expense per Paid PTE
Salary &Benefits as a % of Total Expenses
Salary and Benefits as a % of Net Pat Rev.
Employee Benefits as a % of Salaries

Other Ratios:

FTE - PRODUCTIVE

FTE - NON-PRODUCTIVE

FTE - REGISTRY/CONTRACT

FTE-TOTAL PAID

Cost To Charge Ratio

Medicare Revenue as a % of Total Revenue
Medi-cal Revenue as a % of Total Revenue
BC/BS Ins Revenue as a % of Total Revenue
Other Ins Revenue as a % of Total Revenue
Self-Pay Revenue as a % of Total Revenue

Year to Date

11/30/2019

-10.7%

-5.9%

-8.2%

58.2%

23.7%

76.3%

5.6

34.4

29.8

53.4

-4.09%

73

0.96

25.6

1.5%

66.5%

64.5%

0.02

$161,068
($83,508)

44.8%

51.8%

47.9%

240.8

37.8

40.4

319.1

53.2%

61%

18%

12%

6%

3%

BUDGET

-4.3%

0.4%

-1.7%

58.2%

23.8%

76.2%

$177,583
($112,151)

46.2%

50.8%

48.4%

300.0

50.0%

60%

20%

13%

5%

2%

PAGE 11

Prior Fiscal

Year End

06/30/19

-6.5%

-2.2%

-4.0%

58.3%

23.7%

76.3%

7.3

41.0

25.4

55.5

-0.2%

47

0.90

22.6

2.6%

102.0%

66.5%

0.40

$171,055
($88,990)

47.0%

52.0%

48.5%

241.1

35.7

32.4

309.2

50.0%

61%

21%

13%

4%

1%



5



This document

will be

provided at

the meeting



6



C Approval of expenditures in excess of $25,000.00.

Section 5. Virtual Meeting. Unless otherwise restricted by the Certificate of Formation, subject to the
provisions required or permitted by law or these bylaws for notice of meetings, a Director may
participate in and/or hold a meeting of the Board by means of conference telephone or similar
communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each
other. Participation in a meeting by such means shall constitute presence in person at the meeting,
except where a person participates in the meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the
transaction of any business on the ground that the meeting is not lawfully called or convened,

SECTION 6: ADJOURNMENT

A quorum of the Board of Directors may adjourn any Directors' meeting to meet again at a stated day
and hour, provided, however, that in the absence of a quorum, a majority of the Directors present at
any Directors' meeting, either regular or special, may adjourn from time to time until the time fixed
for the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors.

SECTION 7: PUBLIC MEETINGS

All meetings of the Board of Directors, whether regular, special, or adjourned, shall be open to the
public, provided, however, that the foregoing shall not be construed to prevent the Board of Directors
from holding clo,scd sessions to consider the evaluation, appointment, employment, or dismissal of
an employee or public officer, as that term is defined by law. or to hear complaints or charges brought
against such officer, or employee, or to consider appointment, removal, or change of status of a
member of the Medical Staff, or to consult with legal counsel concerning litigation to which the
District is a parly. Further clo.sed sessions may be held as authorised by statute and case law.

To ensure that the public is fully informed on matters coming before the Board, no action will be
taken on any item which docs not appear on the published and posted agenda. The only exceptions
are as set forth in Section 54954.2 of the Government Code of the Stale of California. Those

exceptions are:

A. For an "emergency situation" as defined in Section 54956.5 of the Government Code:
B. If the item has been posted for a prior meeting of the Board, which occurred less than five (5)

calendar days prior to the date action is taken and ifat the prior meeting the item was continued
to the meeting at which the action is being taken;

C. If a majority of the members present vote affirmatively that a finding that the need to take
action arose subsequent to the posting of the agenda.

Under noothersituations will matters which are notpartof the published and posted agenda be taken
up at any general or special meeting.

SECTION 8: MINUTES

The Secretary of the Board of Directors shall cause to be kept at the principal office of the District,
a book of minutes of all open meetings on the Board of Directors, showing the time and place,
whether regular or special, and ifspecial, how authorized, the notice given, the names of theDirectors
pre.scnt. and a statement of the vote of the Directors present.

SECTION 9: PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURE



1. GENERAL RULES GOVERNING STANDING COMMITTEES

Standing Committees wiil beaffirmed annually by resolution, dulyadopted bythe Board of
Directors.

The President shall recommend appointment of the members of these committees and the
Chair thereof, subject to the approval of the Board by majority of Directors present.
Committee appointments shall be for a period of two (2) years and will be made at the
December Board meeting, following the election of Board Officers.

a. Oiioaim

A majorityof the Members of a standingcommittee of the Boardappointed as of
the day of a scheduled meeting shall constitute a quorum and shall be necessary to
conduct the business of the Committee.

A majority of the Members of a standing committee present at the lime and place
of a scheduled meeting, although less than a quorum, may adjourn the same from
time to time without notice, whether or not a quorum exists.

If any Member of the Board who is not a member of the standing committee
attends a meeting of a standing committee, that member shall not be counted
towards the quorum.

b. Actions ofa Standing Committee

Any action approved by a majority of all of the Members of a standing committee
at any meeting of the standing committee at which a quorum is present shall be
the act of the standing committee.

Any action required or permitted to be taken by a standing committee may be
taken without a meeting if all of the members of the standing committee consent
in writing to the adoption of a resolution authorizing such action.

c. Rules ofOrder

Each committee shall comply with the rules and regulations applicable to meetings
and rules of order adopted by the Board.



d. Ex oflido Members of Standing Commiuces

The CEO ofthe Hospital shall serve on all standing committees, ex qfficio
and without vote.

e. Other Members of Standinu Committees

The Board, by majority vole, may appoint individuals from the Hospital's
management, the Medical Staff, Foundation Representative and other
community stake-holders to the .standing committees where they shall serve
without vole.

3. PLANNING COMMITTEE

a. Committee Composition
The Planning Committee, will meet at least bi-monthly, the time will be at the
discretion of the Planning Committee Chair, on fuesday of the week immediately
preceding the last Thursday of the month. This committee will consist of up to
nine (9) members: two (2) members of the Board of Directors, one which will
serve as Chairperson and one will serve as Vice Chairperson: the Chief E.xccutive
Officer: the President of the Board of Governors of the Mendocino Coast District

Hospital Foundation: one (1) member of the Medical Staff: and up to four (4)
community members that have relevant experience.

b. Purnose

The purpose of the Planning Committee is to assi.st the Board with responsibilities
for the 1lospital's mission, vision, strategic initiatives, major programs, and services
in establishing and deploying the Hospitals strategic planning process and
overseeing the development and implementation of programmatic initiatives at the
Hospital and ensuring theirconsi.stency with the mission of the 1lospital.

c. Duties and Powers

The duties and powers of the Planning Committee shall be to assist the
Board with the following:

i. Making recommendations to the Board related to the Hospital's mission,
vision, strategic initiatives, major programs, and scrv'ices;

ii. Helping management identify critical strategic issues facing the Hospital and
assisting in analysis of alternative strategicoptions:

iii. Understanding the needs of both the Hospital and the community with respect
to health care needs, co.st effectiveness, and quality of services provided by the
Hospital: and



tv. Periodically reviewing the mission, vision, andstrategic plansand making
recommendations to the Board to address changes with respect to the
needs of the community and/or the Hospital



7



MENDOCINO COAST DISTRICT HOSPITAL

DATE: December 30, 2019

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: WILLIAM MILLER, MD

CHIEF OF STAFF

SUBJECT: MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

The Medical Executive Committee considered and approved the following medical staff
privileges and appointments and recommends these to the Board of Directors for approval:

Appointments to Medical Staff -Provisional Status
> Garv Cecchi. MD- Department of Medicine-Oncology-Hematology
> Stewart Kerr. MD- Department of SurQerv-Orthopedtcs

> Madison McKennev. MD- Department of Medicine-Radiology

Temporary Privileges (As we await Board Meeting)
> Stewart Kerr. MD- Department of Surgery-Orthopedics (December 30.20i9-January

2. 2020)

> Madison McKennev. MD- Department of Medicine-Radiology (December24.2019-
January2, 2020)

Page 1 of l

Department of Medical Staff Services
WiHiani Lee, CPCS, CPMSM- Director
700 River Drive • Fort Bragg, California 95437

Ptione: (707 961-4740 • Fax: (707) 961-4786



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

MONDAY, JANUARY 6, 2020 
AGENDA 

6:00 p.m. Closed Session 
6:15 p.m. Open Session 
 REDWOODS ROOM 

 700 RIVER DR. FORT BRAGG, CA 95437  
 

2058 45th AVENUE 
SAN FRANCISCO, CA  

 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN in accordance with Section 54956 of the Government Code that a Special Session of the 
Board of Directors of the Mendocino Coast Health Care District is called to be held on January 6, 2020 at 6:15 p.m. 
at Mendocino Coast District Hospital, 700 River Drive, Fort Bragg, California  
 

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS: 
 

1.  Call to Order 
2.  Roll Call 
3.  Comments from the Community 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 
1. Information/Action: Proposed Engagement Letter regarding Adventist Health Affiliation from, Hooper, 
Lundy & Bookman, PC, Professional Law Corporation. Government Code §54957 

 
RECONVENTION OF OPEN SESSION: CALL TO ORDER‐MS. JESSICA GRINBERG, PRESIDENT 
  Roll call 
 
REPORT OUT ON ANY ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION: GOVERNMENT CODE 94957.1 
 
OPEN SESSION ITEMS:  
1. Information: Committee Assignments and JPA Appointment: Ms. Jessica Grinberg, President     
2. Comments from Community 
3. Comments from Board of Directors 
4. Adjourn 
 

Dated: January 3, 2020   
 
 
______________________________________ 

Gayl Moon 
Secretary to the Board of Directors 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA) 
COUNTY OF MENDOCINO)  § 
 

I  declare  under  penalty  of  perjury  that  I  am  employed  by  the Mendocino  Coast Health  Care District  Board  of 
Directors;  and  that  I  posted  this  notice  at  the  North  and  Patient  Services  Building  Lobby  entrances  to  the 
Mendocino Coast District Hospital on January 3, 2020   
 
 
_______________________                _______________ 
Gayl Moon          Date 
Secretary to the Board of Directors 
 

All  disabled  persons  requesting  disability  related modifications  or  accommodations,  including  auxiliary  aids  or 
service may make such request in order to participate in a public meeting to Gayl Moon, Secretary to the Board of 



Directors, 700 River Drive,  Fort Bragg, CA   95437 no  later  than 1 working days prior  to  the meeting  that  such 
matter be included on that month’s agenda. 

*Per District Resolution, each member of the public who wishes to speak shall be limited to three minutes each per 
agenda item.  Please identify yourself prior to speaking.  Thank you.    
 



BOARD	OF	DIRECTORS	
	

THURSDAY,	JANUARY	23,	2020	
AGENDA	

6:00	PM	OPEN	SESSION	
PATIENT	REGISTRATION	LOBBY	

700	RIVER	DRIVE,	FORT	BRAGG,	CA	95437	
	

NOTICE	OF	SPECIAL	MEETING	
OF	THE	BOARD	OF	DIRECTORS	

MENDOCINO	COAST	HEALTH	CARE	DISTRICT	
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN in accordance with Section 54956 of the Government Code that a Special Session of 
the Board of Directors of the Mendocino Coast Health Care District is called to be held on January 23, 2020 at 6:00 
p.m. at Mendocino Coast District Hospital, 700 River Drive, Fort Bragg, CA 95437 
 
CONDUCT OF BUSINESS: 
1.  Call to Order 
2.  Roll Call 
 
OPEN SESSION: MS. JESSICA GRINBERG, PRESIDENT 
1.  Comments from Community 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board of Directors on any matter 
which the District has jurisdiction. You must state your name and address for the record. Time is limited to 3 
minutes per speaker. The Board of Directors can take no action on your presentation, but can seek clarification 
to points made in your presentation or comments. 

2.  Information: Study Session regarding the Future of OB Services on the Mendocino Coast: Ms. Jessica 
Grinberg, President 

3.  Adjourn 
 
Dated: January 17, 2020 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Gayl Moon 
Secretary to the Board of Directors 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA) 
COUNTY OF MENDOCINO) § 
 
I declare under penalty of perjury that I am employed by the Mendocino Coast Health Care District Board of 
Directors; and that I posted this notice at the North and Patient Services Building Lobby entrances to the Mendocino 
Coast District Hospital on January 17, 2020 
 
 
_______________________             _______________ 
Gayl Moon Date 
Secretary to the Board of Directors 
 
All disabled persons requesting disability related modifications or accommodations, including auxiliary aids or 
service may make such request in order to participate in a public meeting to Gayl Moon, Secretary to the Board of 
Directors, 700 River Drive, Fort Bragg, CA  95437 no later than 1 working days prior to the meeting that such 
matter be included on that month’s agenda. 

*Per District Resolution, each member of the public who wishes to speak shall be limited to three minutes each per 
agenda item.  Please identify yourself prior to speaking.  Thank you 



MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

REGULAR MEETING

THURSDAY, JANUARY 30,2020
5:00 p.m. Closed Session
6:00 p.m. Open Session

MENDOCINO COAST DISTRICT HOSPITAL

Patient Registration
700 River Drive

Fort Bragg, California 95437

Mendocino Coast District Hospital Mission Statement
MISSION

To make a positivedifference in the health of our rural community.

VISION

MCDH w/ill play a vital role in the overall health and well-being ofthe community, and will be the key element in
the healthcare system serving the needs ofourcommunity. We will provide leadership to enhance the efficiency,
coordination, quality and range of services provided within our rural healthcare system.

MCDH will be the healthcare providerand employerof choice within our community. We will continually address
and keep up with technology and superior clinical skills

We will have a positive impact on health by encouraging personal and community responsibility for health and
wellness. Ourefforts will play a decisive role in peoplechoosing to stay inour community or to locate here.

VALUES

MCDH iscommittedto providing excellent quality, patient centered, cost effective health care ina caring, safe
and professional environment, and serving the community's healthcare needs with current technology and
superior clinical skills. We believe in the right to localaccess to a wide range of excellent quality healthcare
services in our rural community. We promote patient safety and satisfaction,and consistentlyworktoward a high
levelof care with results in our patients recommending us to others and in their returning to us for needed health
care.

Every member of our healthcare team will play an active, participative role that effectively utilizes the skills and
talents of each. People are our most valuable resource. We encourage professional development that will
achieve a level of competence and morale that willattract and maintain the highest quality staff. We strive to
build partnership with our employees emphasizing mutual respect and mutual success.

I. ROLL CALL

II. PUBUC COMMENTS

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board of Directors on any matter
over which the District has jurisdiction. You may state your name and address for the record. Time is limited
to 3 minutes with a 20-minute total time limit for all comments. The Board of Directors can take no action on

your presentation, but can seek clarification to points made in your presentation or comments.



BROWN ACT REQUIREMENTS: Pursuant to the Brown Act, the Board of Directors cannotdiscuss issues or take
action on any requests during this comment period.

III. CLOSED SESSION

1. Information/Action: Pursuant to California Government Code §54954.5 and§32155 of the Health
andSafety Code Medical Staff Credentials and Privileges Review and Medical Staff Report

2. Information/Action: Pursuant to §32155 of the Health and Safety Code December Quality
Management and Improvement Council Reports

IV. 6:00 P.M. OPEN SESSION CALL TO ORDER- JESSICA GRINBERG, PRESIDENT

V. ROLL CALL

VI. REPORT ON ANY ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION; GOVERNMENT CODE 94957.1

VII. PUBUC COMMENTS

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board of Directors on any matter
over which the District has jurisdiction. You maystate your name and address for the record. Time is limited
to 3 minutes with a 20-minute total time limit for all comments. The Board of Directors can take no action on

your presentation, but can seek clarification to points made in your presentation or comments.

BROWN ACT REQUIREMENTS: Pursuant to the Brown Act, the Board of Directors cannot discuss issues or take
action on any requests during this comment period.

VIII. REVIEW OF THE AGENDA Acttan

IX. BOARD COMMENTS Information

XI.

XII.

APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR Action

The following items are considered routine and non-controversial by Hospital Staff. Consent items may be
approved by one motion if no member of the Board or audience wishes to comment or ask questions. If
comment or discussion is desired, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered
under new business

1. Approval of Board of Directors meeting minutes of January 2,2020 Tab 1
2. Approval of Special Board of Directors meeting minutes of January 6,2020 Tab 2
3. Approval of Alysoun Huntley Ford Fund Draw (there were no requests)

NEW BUSINESS

1. Bylaws Revision/Planning Committee Date and Time Change: Mr. Steve Lund
2. Annual Affiliation Oversight Committee Report: Mr. Wayne Allen, Interim CEO
3. Census Update: Ms. Paula Cohen
4. The Future of OB Services on the Mendocino Coast: Ms. Jessica Grinberg, President

Tab 3 Action

Tab 4 Action/Information

Infarmatlon

Action/Information

5. Professional Services Agreement for Akbar Khan, D.O.: Mr. Wayne Allen, Interim CEO Tab 5 Action

REPORTS

> CEO Report: Mr. Wayne Alien, Interim CEO

> Medical Staff Report: Dr. William Miller Chief of Staff
a. Appointments to Medical Staff/Allied Health Professional-Provisional Status

1. John Oelgado, MD- Department of Medicine-Immediate Care-North Coast
2. Mayer Horensten, DO- Department of Medicine-Internal Medicine

Information

Tab 6 Action



3. Nichols Kusnezov, MD- Departmentof Surgery-Orthopedics
4. Caria Stange, NP, CNM- Department of Medicine-Women's Health- North Coast
b. Temporary Privileges (as we await Board Meeting)
1. Donald Lombard!, MD -Department of Medicine-Oncology-Hematology (Jan. iwan. so, 2020)

> Planning Committee Report: Mr.Steve Lund

> Chief Nursing Officer Report: Ms. Lynn Finley information
> Finance Committee Report: Mr. John Redding Tab 7 Action

XIII. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: MS. JESSICA GRINBERG. PRESIDENT information
• Action Item List

XIV. ASSOCIATION ANDCOMMUNITY SERVICE REPORTS information

XV. Public Comments

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board of Directors on any matter
over which the District has jurisdiction. You may state your name and address for the record. Time is limited
to 3 minutes with a 20-minute total time limit for all comments. The Board of Directorscan take no action on
your presentation, but can seek clarification to pointsmade inyour presentation or comments.

BROWN ACT REQUIREMENTS: Pursuant to the Brown Act, the council cannot discuss issues or take action on
any requests during this comment period.

XVI. ADJOURNMENT

* THIS DOCUMENT WILL BE PROVIDED AT THE MEETING.

All disabled persons requesting disability related modifications or accommodations, including auxiliary aids or
service may make such request in order to participate in a public meeting to Gayl Moon, Secretary to the
Board of Directors, 700 River Drive, Fort Bragg, CA 95437, no later than 72 hours prior to the meeting that
such matter be included on that month's agenda.
*Per District Resolution, each member of the Publicwho wishes to speak shall be limited to three minutes
each per agenda item. Please identify yourself prior to speaking. Thank you.



A

1



BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

REDWOODS ROOM

THURSDAY, JANUARY 2,2010

MINUTES

The Board of Directors of the Mendocino Coast Health Care District met in CLOSED session at 4:30 pm in
the Redwoods Room, Karen Arnold, Chair presiding

PRESENT: Mr. Lund, Ms. Arnold, Ms. Grinberg, Mr. Redding, Ms. McColley
Mr. Wayne Allen, Interim CEO
Mr. Doran Hammett, Interim CFO

I. CALL TO ORDER;

OPEN Session of the Board of Directors of the Mendocino Coast Health Care District convened at

6:00 p.m. in the Redwoods Room, Ms. Karen Arnold President presiding

II. ROLL CALL;

PRESENT: Mr. Steve Lund, Mr. John Redding, Ms. Karen Arnold, Ms. Jessica Grinberg, Ms. Amy McColley
Board Members

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: None

ALSO PRESENT:

Mr. Wayne Allen, Interim CEO
Mr. Doran Hammett, Interim CFO

Ms. Gayl Moon, Executive Assistant

III. REPORT ON ANY ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION; GOVERNMENT CODE 94957.1

1. Information/Action: Hardin v. Mendocino Coast District Hospital, U.S. District Court
for the Northern District of California, et al.. Case No. 3:17-CV-05554, conference with
legal counsel. Government Code §54956.9.

2. Information/Action: Consideration of Termination of Legal Services Contract with Best, Best &

Krieger, Attorneys at Law, dated 9/25/18. Government Code §§54954.5(e), 54957; Evidence

Code §952, et seq.

3. Information/Action: Pursuant to California Government Code §54954.5 and §32155
of the Health and Safety Code Medical Staff Credentials and Privileges Reviewand
Medical Staff Report

4. Information/Action: Pursuant to §32155 of the Health and Safety Code December Quality
Management and Improvement Council Reports

IV. REPORT ON ANY ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION; GOVERNMENT CODE 94957.1

• The Board received an update on the Hardin Case from legal counsel. Ms. McColley recused
herself.

• Discussed terminating the law firm of BBStK. No action was taken.
• The Board received a Medical Staff Credentials and Privileges Report.
• The Board received a December QualityManagement and Improvement Council Report.

V. PUBLIC COMMENTS

• Community members made comments regarding Hospital issues. Following are topics that were
discussed:



> Mr. Allison read a prepared statement where he urgedthe Board to focus on the overriding
goal of saving the hospital.

> Several community members urged the Board not to close the OB Department.
> Several community members stated that the community needs this hospital.
> Acommunity member would like to see human trafficking added to the Abuse Policy.

Vi. REVIEW OF THE AGENDA

• There were no changes to the agenda.

VII. BOARD COMMENTS

" Mr. Redding stated that he would like the Board Members who get nominated for Board
President be able to make a statement prior to the Board voting. Ms. Grinberg stated that she
had not heard of this prior to the meeting and had not prepared a statement.

• The Board discussed the voting process which would include either ballot vote or verbal vote.
Ms. McColley wanted to clarify that if they vote by ballot, their individual votes need to be
reported to the public with their names being stated. She asked that legal counsel be contacted
to clarify.

VIII. ACTION: APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR; MS. KAREN ARNOLD. CHAIR

1. Minutes: Regular Session, December 11,2019
2. Approval of Special Board of Directors meeting minutes of November 22,2019
3. Alysoun Huntley Ford Fund Draw (there were no requests)
4. Policies: Abuse Reporting, On-Call Services, Event and Complaint, Hours of Operation, Flu

Vaccination for Healthcare Workers: second read

Ms. McColley requested pulling the Abuse Reporting Policyas it does not specificaily address Human
Trafficking. The policydoes state that everyone is a mandated reporter for any suspected abuse
which would include Human Trafficking. Ms. Schmid wiil do additionai research into this issue and
report back to the Board.

MOTION: To approve the Consent Calendar pulling the Abuse Reporting policy for further anaiysis
• Lund moved

• Grinberg second
• Roll call

> Ayes:Grinberg, Lund, McColley, Redding, Arnold
> Noes: None

> Absent: None

> Abstain: None

• Motion carried

IX. ACTION/DISCUSSION: PARTNERSHIP HEALTH PLAN OF CALIFORNIA ANNUAL QUALITY INCENTIVE
AWARD; MR. JASON WELLS. PRESIDENT WILLITS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL AND UKIAH VALLEY

HOSPITAL

• Mr. Wells presented a check for to the Hospital for $605,182.46. This is an incentive award
payment from Medi-Cal for successfully meeting performance criteria. Ayear ago MCDH earned
about $100,000 of the $600,000 opportunity.

• This year MCDH was one of onlyfour (4) infourteen (14) counties that got 100%.

X. ACTION: NOVEMBER FINANCIALS 2019: MR. JOHN REDDING

• The Hospital is$1.3 million over budget.



• Mr. Redding presented a document entitled, the "Trends for the LastSixMonths".
• Mr. Redding presented the November Financials.

MOTION:Jo approve the November 2019 Financial Statements
• Lund moved

• Redding second
• Roll call

> Ayes: McColley, Arnold, Grinberg, Lund, Redding
> Noes: None

> Absent: None

> Abstain: None

• Motion carried

XI. ACTION: FINANCIAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN: MR. WAYNE ALLEN. INTERIM CEO

• Mr. Allen reported:
^ Forthe five months ended November 30,2019, the Hospital had a Net Income (Loss) of

$(1,348,944). The annualized (Loss) would be $(3,237,468). The financial goal going forward
will be to achieve a bottom line that will produce a break-even annual Net Income (Loss).

^ About 13 Registry FTEs will be eliminated as well as 4 exempt management positions. There
will be no effect on union employees. Mr. Allen feels 08 Services should be closed to
eliminate a $2.1M annual loss. With these changes, the annual operating expenses for the
Hospital will be reduced about $4.2M.

^ Mr. Lee stated the Hospital is focusing on lost revenue where allcharges are not being
captured. Working to stabilize orthopedics program.
NCFHC has recruited a Nurse Practitioner. Continue to recruit physicians.

MOTION: Jo approve the Financial Improvement Plan, pulling Obstetrical Services will be closed
until there is further discussion and see the outcome of the meeting tomorrow night regarding the
08 Department

• McColley moved
• Redding second (only for discussion)
Ms. McColley stated that it is difficultto accept this plan as it isvery generic. She would liketo know
what personnel this willaffect. Mr. Allenstated it is not appropriate to discuss the personnel as of
yet. Excluding Labor & Delivery, this produces about $2.1M of cost reductions. December will
probably get very close to break-even.

MOTION: Jo accept the Financial Improvement Plan as described by this document from Wayne
Allen

• Grinberg moved
• Redding second

> Ayes: Redding, Lund, Arnold, Grinberg
> Noes: McColley
> Absent: None

> Abstain: None

• Motion carried

XII. ACTION/INFORMATION: STATUS OF OBSTETRICAL SERVICES; MS. JESSICA GRINBERG/DR. ZOE
BERNA

• Dr. 8erna read a letter signed by six (6) members of the Medical Executive Committee.
The letter states that the Medical Executive Committee has made a careful review of the



question of keeping Labor and DeliveryServices versus closing the service. Ifclosed, MCDH
would follow a protocol of stabilization and transfer of patients who present to the
Hospital in labor. Ifthey cannot be transferred, then they should be delivered in the ER by
the existing ED physician and staff.

^ Due to the financial losses associated with this service and the steadily declining number of
births at MCDH, the Medical Executive Committee supports the Board In a decision to close
Labor & Delivery Services if the Board makes such a decision,

v' Prenatal care would continue on the Coast.

The letter was signed by:
o William Miller, MD, FCAP, Chief of Staff
o Zoe Berna, MD, Vice-Chief of Staff
o John Kermen, DO, Past Chief of Staff
o Robin Serrahn, MD, Chair of Medicine

o Barbara Kilian, MD, Member At Large
o Christopher Ryan, MD, Member At Large

Dr. Brent Wright voted against this opinion and did not sign the letter.
• Ms. McColley wants to see a plan, wants to see the data/facts.
• Discussion ensued.

• A meeting regarding the OBDepartment will take place tomorrow night. Dr. Serrahn will make a
presentation, and Dr. Berna will be the facilitator.

XIII. ACTION/DISCUSSION: BYLAWS REVISIONS; FIRST READ; MS. AMY MCCOLLEY

• Ms. McColleywould like a section added to the Bylawsentitled "Virtual Meeting". The language
came from the California Hospital Association.

• Ms. McColley requested a wording change for Standing Committees. This would include a
timeframe for Committee appointments for a period of two (2)years.

• Ms. McColley requested an addition to the Bylaws that states the CEO shall serve on allstanding
committees, exofficio and without vote.

• Ms. McColley would like "Other Members of StandingCommittees". The Boardmay appoint
individualsfrom the Hospital's management, the MedicalStaff, Foundation and other community
stake holders where they shall serve without vote. Need to pay attention to the number of people
voting so it is an odd number, not an even number.

• Change the Planning Committee meets on Tuesdayto Monday.
• Needto redefine the Foundationsinvolvement since they have changed their charter.

XIV. INFORMATION: ELECTIONOF BOARD OFFICERS. COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS AND JPA

APPOINTMENT; MS. KAREN ARNOLD. CHAIR

• Mr. Allen stated that some Hospital Districts conductthe voting verbally, while some do it by
ballot with the Board member's name on the ballot.

> Nominations for Board President

✓

✓

✓

Ms. Arnold nominated Ms. Grinberg

Ms. McColley nominated Mr. Redding

Following are the ballot results:

o Mr. Reddingvoted for Mr. Redding

o Ms. McColleyvoted for Mr. Redding

o Mr. Lund voted for Jessica Grinberg

o Ms. Grinberg voted for Ms. Grinberg



o Ms. Arnold voted for Ms. Grinberg

Ms. Grinberg is the 2020 Board President

> Nominations for Board Vice President

^ Ms. Arnold nominated Mr. Lund

^ There were no other nominations. Ms. Grinberg called for the verbal vote:

o Mr. Amold voted no

o Ms. McColley voted yes

o Mr. Lund voted yes

o Ms. Amold voted yes

o Ms. Grinberg voted yes

Mr. Lund is the 2020 Board Vice President

> Nominations for Board Treasurer

Mr. Lund nominated Mr. Redding

Ms. Grinbei^ nominated Ms. Arnold

^ Following are the ballot results:

o Ms. Arnold voted for Ms. Arnold

o Ms. Grinberg voted for Ms. Arnold

o Mr. Redding voted for Mr. Redding

o Mr. Lund voted for Mr. Redding

o Ms. McColleyvoted for Mr. Redding

Mr. Redding is the 2020 Board Treasurer

> Nominations for Board Secretary

Mr. Lund nominated Ms. Arnold

^ Ms.McColley nominated Ms. McColley
^ Following are the ballot results:

o Ms. McColleyvoted for Ms. McColley

o Ms. Amold voted for Ms. Amold

o Mr. Reddingvoted for Ms. McColley

o Ms. Grinberg voted for Ms. Arnold

o Mr. Lund voted for Ms. Arnold

Ms.Amold is the 2020 BoardSecretary

" Ms. Grinberg will select committee chairs &vice chairs at the next Board Meeting.

XV. INFORMATION: CEO REPORT; MR. WAYNE ALLEN. INTERIM CEO

• There was no report.

XVIi. ACTION: MEDICAL STAFF REPORT: DR. ZOE BERNA

A. Appointments to Medical Staff-Provisional Status

1. GaryCecchi, MD -Department of Medicine-Oncology-Hematology
2. Stewart Kerr, MD -Department of Surgery-Orthopedics
3. MadisonMcKenney, MD -Department of Medicine-Radiology

MOTION: Toapprove the recommendations as presented for Appointments to Medical Staffas listed on



the agenda
" Lund moved

• McColley second
• Roll call

> Ayes: Lund, McColley,Arnold, Grinberg, Redding
> Noes: None

> Absent: None

> Abstain: None

• Motion carried

B. Temporary Privileges (As we await Board Meeting!

1. Stewart Kerr, MD-Department of Sui^ery-Orthopedlcs (Dec. so,2019-Jan. 2,2020)
2. Madison McKenney -Department of Medicine-Radiology (Dec. so,2019-jan. 2,2020)

MOTION: To approve the recommendations as presented for Temporary Privilegesas listed on the
agenda

• Lund moved

• Arnold second

• Roll call

> Ayes: Lund, Redding, Arnold, Grinberg, McColley
> Noes: None

> Absent: None

> Abstain: None

• Motion carried

XVIII. ACTION: PLANNING COMMITTEE REPORT; MS. JESSICA GRINBERG

• Ms. Grinberg reported:
^ The Planning Committee wasapproached bybothcounty and city to participate inthe Extreme

Weather Shelter.

The goal is for the Healthcare District to oversee the service.
Funds would be held by the Cityof FB and be distributed to the District. Acontract would be
needed regardingthe fundingto ensure the District does not lose any money.

^ This would bea collaborative effort with the Hospitality House.
^ Ms. Grinberg asked the Board to approve entering into conversation andnegotiation as the

Heaithcare District to participate in this service.

MOTION: To enter into discussion to consider participating in the Extreme Weather Sheiter
• Ms. Arnold moved

• Mr. Lund second (for the purpose of a discussion)
Ms. McColley stated that thiswas an information onlyitem on the Planning Committee agenda.The
Planning Committeeinadvertently voted on this issue, even though it was not an action item. Ms.
Grinberg stated that it is still in the purview of the Board to make the decision.

Mr. Redding asked forfurtherclarification for the purpose of the vote. Ms. Grinberg stated that ishas
not yet beendecided whatthe District's specific responsibility would be. Ms. Grinberg wantsto know if
the Board is interested in participating.

Mr. Lund will waituntil the groupgets together and decideshowthis task will be organized interms of
who has responsibility. As of right now he isnot ready to takeany responsibility as a Board ofDirector
forthe Hospital, other than agreeing that it isa good idea to participate in partnership with other
agencies to figure out the best past forward for the community.



Ms. Arnold amended her motion and Mr. Lund amended his second to reflect the following motion:

MOTION: Jo enter into conversation to participate with the Extreme Weather Shelter
• Roll call

> Ayes: Grinberg, Lund, McColley, Redding, Arnold
> Noes: None

> Absent: None

> Abstain: None

" Motion carried

• The Planning Committee discussed Mental Health Services on the coast. Mark Myrtle who is a
Measure BBoard member spoke to the Planning Committee. There is hope there will be a unit on
the coast. This is a provision that Adventist willpossibly bring to the area. There is a very short
window of time when Measure Bfunds will be available; April1 is the deadline. Four (4) community
members volunteered to put a plan together that can be presented to the Measure Bgroup; putting
this plan together will be expedited. This plan would be for potentially three (3) residential units on
the coast.

XIX. INFORMATION: CHIEF NURSING OFFICER REPORT; MS. LYNN FINLEY

• Family Advisory Council informational meetings will takeonJanuary lA*** and 23"*.

XX. INFORMATION: FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: MS. KAREN ARNOLD. CHAIR

• Conflict of Interest

" Action Item list. Karen Arnold, Board Secretary will maintain this list.

XXI. INFORMATION: ASSOCIATION AND COMMUNITY SERVICE REPORTS

• ASpecial Board meeting will take place on Monday, January 6"^ at 6:00 pm.

XXIV. PUBLIC COMMENTS:

> Topics discussed were:
• Acommunity member stated that per their data, over the last 25 years 10% of the babies born

in the county were delivered at MCDH.
• Discussed the need to keep the OB Department open.
• Acommunity member would like to see facts presented regarding the OB Department.

XXV. ADJOURN:

The meeting adjourned at 8:25 p.m.

Karen Arnold, Secretary Gayl Moon, Secretary to the
Board of Directors Board of Directors



2



MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SPECIAL SESSION

FORT BRAGG, CA

MONDAY, JANUARY 6,2020

1. CALL TO ORDER:

CLOSED Session of the Board of Directors of the Mendocino Coast Health Care District convened at 6:00 p.m. at 700
River Drive, Fort Bragg, CA95437; President Jessica Grinberg presiding

2. ROLL CALL: McColley (telephonlcally), Arnold, Grinberg, Lund, Redding
ABSENT: None

3. COMMENTS FROM THE COMMUNITY

• Community members discussed not closing the OB Department.

4. CLOSED SESSION:

1. INFORMATION/ACTION: Proposed Engagement Letter regarding Adventlst Health Affiliation from. Hooper, Lundy &
Bookman, PC, Professional Law Corporation. Government Code §54957

5. REC0NVENT10N OF OPEN SESSION:

6. ROLL CALL Redding, McColley (telephonlcally), Lund, Arnold, Grinberg
ABSENT: None

REPORT OUT ON ANY ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION: GOVERNMENT CODE 94957.1

1. INFORMATION/ACnON: Proposed Engagement Letter regarding Adventlst Health Affiliation from Hooper, Lundy
& Bookman, PC, Professional LawCorporation. Government Code §54957
• The Board approved a contract for Hooper, Lundy& Bookman for the negotiations of the lease with Adventlst.

2. INFORMATION: Committee Assignments and JPAAppointment: Ms. Jessica Grinberg, President

• The JPA seems to possibly be disbanding, so Ms. Grinberg did not appoint anyone as a representative.

• John Reddingwill chair the Finance Committee with Amy McColley acting as ViceChair.

• Steve Lundwillchair the Planning Committee with Karen Arnold acting as ViceChair.

7. COMMENTS FROM THE COMMUNITY

• Comments Included not closing the OBDepartment.

8. COMMENTS FROM THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

• There were no comments.

9. ADJOURN:

The meeting adjourned at 6:20 p.m.

Ms. Jessica Grinberg, President
Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Mr. Steve Lund, VIce-Presldent

Board of Directors



Mendocino Coast Health Care District

Special Session Board of Directors Meeting, January 6,2020
Page 2 of 2

These minutes constitute a portion of the official record of the Board and are the written record of the proceedings.
Documents distributed to the Board of Directors at the meeting are available for public review except iegaliy
privileged or confidential documents.



3



The Planning Committee will meet at least bi-monthly: the time will be at the
discretion of the Planning Committee Chair, on Tuesday of the week immediately
preceding the Thursday of the regular monthly of the Board of Directors. This
committee will consist of up to nine (9) members: two (2) members of the Board of
Directors, one which will serve as Chairperson and one will senre as Vice
Chairperson; the Chief Executive Officer; the President of the Board of Governors of
the Mendocino Coast District Hospital Foundation; one (1) member of the Medical
Staff; and up to four (4) community members that have relevant experience.



4



Mendocino Coast District Hospital

Parcel Tax (Measure C) Annual Report

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2019

Parcel tax revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 was $1,719,113 and expenditures from these
funds were as follows:

1) $27,072 - Parcel tax refunds
2) $700,000 - Information Technology - MediTech EHR upgrade
3) $38,600 - Surgery Department - Flooring
4) $24,650 - Surgery Department - Nitrous manifold
5) $17,488 - Emergency Department - Flooring
6) $258,245 - North Coast Family Health Center - Offset operational losses
7) $258,245 - Emergency Department - Offset operational losses
8) $258,245 - Labor& Delivery - Offset operational losses
9) $136,568 - Radiology - LOGIQ ElO Ultrasound

Year to date parcel tax revenue for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020 was $886,840 at December 31,
2019 and expenditures from these funds were as follows:

1) $7,200 - Parcel tax refunds
2) $56,319 - North CoastFamily Health Center- Offset operational losses
3) $56,319 - EmergencyDepartment - Offset operational losses
4) $56,316 - Labor & Delivery - Offset operational losses

Balanceof parcel tax funds at December 31,2019, $710,683. Asecond payment will be received in April
and the final true up in August.

Respectfully submitted.

Doran Hammett

Interim, Chief Financial Officer

January 30,2019



Mendocino Coast District Hospital

Measure C Funding Request

1/24/2020

Fiscal Year 2019 Measure C Funding $ 1,719,113

Approved Measure Cexpenditures:

Parcel Tax Refunds

Meditech Electronic Health Record IT software

Surgical area flooring

Nitros manifold for surgery department

Emergency department flooring

Total Approved Expenditures

(27,072)

(700,000)

(38,600)

(24,650)

(17,488)

(807,810)

Fiscal Year 2019 Measure C Funds 911,303

Expenditures- Pending Approval:

North Coast Family Health Center

Emergency Department

Labor & Delivery

LOGIQ ElO Ultrasound

(258,245)

(258,245)

(258,245)

(136,568)

Measure C Funds Balance fiscal year 6/30/19 -

Fiscal Year 2020 Measure C Funding 886,840

Approved Measure Cexpenditures:

Parcel Tax Refunds (7,200)

Expenditures- Pending Approval:

North Coast Family Health Center (56,319)

Emergency Department (56,319)

Labor & Delivery (56,319)

Cash Balance 12/31/19 $ 710,683



5



MENDOCINO COAST DISTRICT HOSPITAL
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

[AKBAR KHAN, D.O.]

This Agreement ("Agreement") is entered Into as of 2/01/2020 fthe "Effective
Date"), by and between MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT, a political
subdivision of the State of California f"District"L which owns and operates Mendocino
Coast District Hospital, 700 River Drive, Fort Bragg, County of Mendocino, State of
Califomia (the "Hosoitai"^ maintains and operates the North Coast Family Health Center, a
provider-based rural health clinic (the "Clinic"), located at 721 River Drive, Suites A, B & C,
Fort Bragg, Califomia, and REVIVE Pain & Spine Center, INC., a California corporation
("the Medical GrouD"V District and Medical Group are sometimes referred to in this
Agreement as a "Party" or collectively, as the "Parties."

I. RECITALS

A. Districtowns and operates the Hospital and maintains and operates the Clinicas an
outpatient entity of the Hospital to provide multi-specialty care services to the
population residing in the District, and District desires to assure physician services
for the Clinic and Hospital.

B. Medical Group is owned by /\kbar Khan, D.O. rPhvsician") who is a physidan
licensed to practice medicine in the State of Califomia and practicing in the
specialty of intenrentional pain specialist ("Sgecjajty"). Medical Group also employs
and/or contracts with an advanced practitioner who will provide services in the
Clinic within the scope of their licensed practice /"Advanced Practitioner"^ under the
medical supervision of Physician. Physician(s) and Advanced Practitioner are
herein referred to as "Providers."

C. Physician has been working at the Clinic and Hospital since November 2018
pursuant to a locum tenens arrangement The District has been pleased with the
professional medical services provided by the Physician and has decided to
eliminate the locum tenens arrangement regarding Physician and to enter into a
professional services agreement directly with Physician's Medical Group for the
senrices set forth herein.

D. District wishes to contract with Medical Group to provide professional and
administrative services related to the delivery of the services described herein at
the Clinic and Hospital." The professional services are collectively referred to herein
as the "Services", which Medical Group wishes to provide to the District on the
terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

II. AGREEMENT

Inconsideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants herein contained,

1

4824-I749-I37I v.4



District and Medical Group agree to the following:

1. Medical Group's Obligations.

a. Services. Medical Group shall provide the Services within the scope
of the applicable Provider's license as hirther described in Attachment

a. Standards of Performance. Neither the District nor the Hospital or any
of its representatives (including the Medical Director of the Clinic)
shall have any control over the manner or methods by which
Providers perform Services; provided that Providers shall comply with
the Hospitars and Clinic's written policies and procedures, as
applicable, including, but not limited to, policies and procedures
pertaining to documentation, use of electronic systems, billing, and
scheduling; the Hospital's corporate compliance policy and program;
the Hospital's Bylaws and Medical Staff Bylaws and rules and
regulations; policies and guidelines of the Hospital's accrediting body
(such as The Joint Commission); the rules and regulations of
regulatory agencies having jurisdiction over the Hospital and the
Clinic; and community standards of practice. Providers shall at all
times treat Hospital and Clinic medical and administrative staff in a
courteous and respectful manner.

b. Provider Qualifications.

(1) Physician Qualifications. Medical Group represents and
covenants that, upon entering into and during the term of this
Agreement, Physician: (i) shall hold an unrestricted license to
practice medicine in the State of California; (ii) be Board-
certified in his Specialty; (iii) be a member in good standing of
the Hospital's Medical Staff who holds such privileges as are
necessary or appropriate to perform the Services; (iv) be
certified under the Medicare and Medi-Cal programs and not
be suspended, excluded, or othenMse ineligible to participate in
any federal or state health care program; (v) maintain current
and valid DEA registration; and (vi) maintain professional
liability coverage as set forth in Section 3 (Insurance). Further,
Medical Group represents and warrants that Physician has
never (i) suffered suspension, revocation or restriction of his
medical license in any state; (ii) been reprimanded, sanctioned,
or disdplined by any licensing board or specialty board; (iii)
been excluded or suspended from participation in, or
sanctioned by, any state or federal health care program,
including Medicare and Medicaid/Medi-Cal; (iv) been denied
membership on or reappointment to the medical staff of any



hospital; (v) suffered suspension, restriction, or revocation of
his medical staff membership or clinical privileges at any
hospital for a medical disciplinary cause or reason. IfPhysician
fails to maintain any of the qualifications set forth in this
Subsection, regardless of cause. District may immediately
terminate this agreement

(2) Advanced Practitioner Qualifications: Medical Group
represents and covenants that, upon entering into and during
the term of this Agreement, Advanced Practitioner: (i) shall hold
an unrestricted license to provide advanced practitioner
services in the State of Califomia; (ii) be certified under the
Medicare and Medi-Cal programs and not be suspended,
excluded, or othenvise ineligible to participate in any federal or
state health care program; (iii) shall provide services in tiie
Clinic under the medical supervision of a physician; (iv)
maintain current and valid DEA registration; (v) be a member in
good standing of the Hospital's Medical Staff who holds such
privileges as necessary or appropriate to perform the Services
described in Attachment A: and (vi) maintain professional
liability coverage as set forth in Section 6 (Insurance). Further,
Medical Group represents and warrants that Advanced
Practitioner has never (i) suffered suspension, revocation or
restriction of his medical license in any state; (ii) been
reprimanded, sanctioned, or disciplined by any licensing board
or specialty board; or (iii) been excluded or suspended from
participation in, or sanctioned by, any state or federal health
care program, including Medicare and Medicaid/Medi-Cal. If
Advanced Practitioner foils to maintain any of the qualifications
set forth in this Subsection, regardless of cause. District may
immediately terminate this agreement.

c. Notification of Certain Events and Noncomoliance

(1) Medical Group shall notify District in writing within twenty four
(24) hours after Medical Group becomes aware of any of the
following events or circumstances: (i) Medical Group or a
Provider becomes the subject of, or materially involved in, any
investigation, proceeding, or disciplinary action by any state or
federal health care program; any state's medical board or
professional board; any agency responsible for professional
licensing, standards, or behavior; or any hospital's medical
staff; (ii) Medical Group or a Provider becomes the subject of
any legal action or legal proceeding arising out of the provision
of medical services; (iii) any other event which materially alters
the status of Medical Group's compliance with Section 1



(Medical Group's Obligations); or (iv) any change in Insurance
coverage or any cancellation of any policy as required In
Section 6 (insurance).

(2) Medical Group shall immediately report to the Hospital any
conflict or potential conflict of Interest of Medical Group or a
Provider and give full disclosure of the fects pertaining to any
transaction or related actixnty that may be reasonably construed
to be a conflict of interest with District, Hospital or Clinic or that
would have an adverse effect on Medical Group's satisfactory
performance of this Agreement.

g. Records and Reports. Medical Group shall provide or cause to be
provided to District or the Clinic all records and reports requested by
District or the Clinic. Medical Group shall also ensure the prompt
submittal to the Clinic's medical records administrator andtor the
patient's private physician written reports of all examinations,
treatments, and procedures performed pursuant to this Agreement.
Medical Group shall ensure Providers use the medical records and
report forms, including, but not limited to, an electronic medical
records system, provided by the Clinic. Medical Group agrees that all
records and reports required by this Subsection shall be the exclusive
property of the Clinic.

h. Use of Premises. Medical Group shall not use or knowingly permit any
other person who is under his direction to use any part of ^e Clinic's
premises for any purpose other than the performance of Services for
the Clinic and its patients pursuant to this Agreement or pursuant to
other agreements between Medical Group and the District.

i. Health Information Privacv and Securitv. Medical Group, Providers
and Clinic shall each comply with all applicable lav^ and regulations
concerning the privacy and security of health information, including,
but not limited to, the Federal Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996 fHIPAA"^ and Subtitle D of the Federal
HITECH Act, as amended from time to time, and the regulations
promulgated there under, as well as the Hospital's policies and
procedures regarding health information confidentiality and security.

j. No Discrimination. Medical Group shall ensure Providers do not
discriminate against any patient because of race, ethnicity, national
origin, citizenship, preexisting medical condition, age, sex, marital
status, religion, sexual orientation, physical or mental handicap,
insurance status, economic status, or ability to pay.



k. Participation in Outside Activities. During the term of this Agreement,
Physician may engage in independent medicai practice, withthe
exception of any additionai professionai services that wouid be
deemed detrimental to the District, as long as such services do not
interfere with Physician's performance of Professional Medical
Services under this Agreement, as described in Attachment A. or
result In a lack of adequate staffing of the Clinic and/or Hospitai, as
applicable, in the Physician's Specialty.

2. independent Contractor

a. The Parties acknowledge that Medical Group and Providers are and
shall remain at all times under this Agreement as independent
contractors and nothing herein shall be construed to create the
relationship of employer/employee between Providers and District.
The Parties agree that District shall not have and shall not exercise
any control or direction over the manner or method by which
Providers fumish Services; provided, however, that Providers shall be
subject to and shall at all times comply with the protocols and bylaws,
guidelines, policies, and rules applicable to other members of the
Medical Staff of the Hospital, as applicable, and that Providers shall
perform the Services in accordance with currently approved methods
and standards of practice for such services in the community.

b. Medical Group shall be responsible for ail federal and state income
taxes and all other payments or deductions required to be made by
persons performing services In the capacity of an independent
contractor, in addition. Medical Group and Providers shall not have
any claims under this Agreement or othenvise against District for
employee benefits of any kind, including but not limited to Social
Security benefits, workers' compensation benefits, disability benefits,
unemployment benefits, vacation pay, or sick leave.

3. District's Duties and Resoonsibilities

District shall provide such facilities and sen/ices at the Clinic as may be reasonably
necessary, in the determination of the District, to enable the Medical Group to provide the
Services Inaccordance with this Agreement, including the following:

a. Equipment. Facilities. Supplies. Utilities and Services. Except as may
be otherwise agreed to in writing, District shall, at its sole cost, provide
all equipment, facilities, supplies, utilities, including telephone service,
information technology, and other services, including laundry, linen
and janitoriai services, as District shall determine from time to time to
be necessary for the performance of the Services and the proper
operation of the Clinic. The parties expressly agree that all items



supplied by District pursuant to this Subsection 3.a. shall remain the
exclusive property of District.

b. Personnei. District shail employ such non-physician personnel as
Districtdeems necessary for the proper operation of the Ciinic and the
performance of the Services. Ail such personnel shall be subject to
the direction and controi of Physician, as appropriate within their
authorized scope of practice, in the performance of Professional
Services to patients. Medical Group shall not augment the
compensation paid by District to any of District's employees.

Compensation and Benefits

a. Compensation for Services. In retum for the provision of Services
hereunder. District shall compensate Medical Group as set forth on
Attachment B. Medical Group agrees to accept such amounts as
payment in full for ail Services rendered under or in connection with
this Agreement.

b. Billing and Assionment of Professional Fees to District

(1) In compliance with ail applicable federal and state laws,
including the rules and regulations of the Medicare Program
and Medi-Cal Program, the District shail bill and collect all fees
for all of the services rendered by Providers pursuant to this
Agreement, and Providers and/or Medical Group shall assign
to District all amounts directly or indirectly payable as a result
of the Professional Services provided by Providers under the
terms of this Agreement, including, by way of example and not
by way of limitation, amounts paid by patients, by any
insurance company, pursuant to any workers' compensation
program, by employers or employer plans and amounts paid by
any other third party payor. Medical Group agrees that neither
it nor Providers will take any actions whatsoever to bill (or
cause to be billed) any patient or other individual or entity for
any Professional Services. Medical Group shall and shall
require Providers to cooperate with District to ensure the
prompt and accurate billing of ail patients for all Professional
Services rendered under this Agreement.

(2) District shail bill for Professional Services provided pursuant to
this Agreement in compliance with applicable laws, customary
professional practices, and the standards of Medicare and
Medi-Cal programs. All billings shall identify the site of services
as a unit or department of the Hospital. District shaii provide
quarterly reports on charges by Work RVU, payor. Physician

6



and Advanced Practitioner.

(3) Neither Medical Group nor the Providers shall bill and collect
for any Clinic or Hospital charges (Including technical fees for
ancillary services) or for the services rendered by any staff
employed by District, all of which shall be the exclusive
responsibility of District

(4) With specific regard to Medicare billing, Physician and, If
applicable, NP, shall complete and execute the applicable
sections of form CMS 855R (Medicare Enrollment Application -
Reassignment of Medicare Benefits) and forward the
completed and signed CMS 855R as directed by the District
The Medical Group, Providers and District are jointly and
severally responsible for any Medicare overpayments related to
the claims submitted for Professional Services rendered by
Medical Group and billed by District Medical Group and
Physician may have access to claims submitted by District for
the Professional Services rendered.

c. Pavment Proorams. Medical Group shall ensure that Providers shall
participate In all third-party payment, managed care programs, or
other private and govemment payment programs In which the District
or Clinic participate for Professional Services, render Professional
Services to patients covered by such programs, and accept the
payment amounts provided for under this Agreement as payment In
full for Professional Services.

d. Referrals. Generally, nothing in this Agreement Is intended, or shall be
construed, to require either Party to violate the Callfomia or federal
laws, and, specifically, this Agreement shall not be Interpreted to:

(1) Require any Party to make referrals to the other or othenwlse
generate business for each other;

(2) Restrict Physician from establishing staff privileges at, referring
any patient to, or from othenwise generating any business for
any other entity of Physician's choosing; or

(3) Provide for payments In excess of the fair market value or
comparable compensation paid to physicians for professional
services in comparable locations and circumstances.

5. Term and Termination

a. Term. Subject to earlier termination as provided in Subsection 5.b.
(Termination), this Agreement shall be effective as of the Effective

7



Date and shall remain In full force for a period of twenty-four (24)
months.

Termination. This Agreement may be terminated sooner on the first to
occur of the following;

(1) In the event District and Medical Group shall mutually agree, in
writing, this Agreement may be terminated on the terms and
date stipulated therein.

(2) Either Party may terminate this Agreement at any time without
cause upon sixty (60) days' written notice to the other party; in
which event this Agreement shall terminate at the end of the
6Q-day notice period.

(3) In the event a Party is in breach of this Agreement (other than
the provisions relating to Standards of Performance, Provider
Qualifications and Non-Compliance Notifications), the non-
breaching Party may terminate this Agreement effective thirty
(30) days after the non-breaching Party gives written notice to
the breaching Party, provided that the breaching Party does not
cure nor commence diligent efforts to cure tiie breach to the
reasonable satisfaction of the non-breaching Party prior to the
effective date of termination.

(4) The District may terminate this Agreement immediately on
written notice to Medical Group if Medical Group and/or
Providers fail to comply with the requirements relating to
Standards of Performance, Provider Qualifications and Non-
Compliance Notifications, and the District determines in its sole
discretion that such failure is beneath its standards of
professionalism and has resulted or wnll result in disruption of
patient care or Clinicoperations.

(6) In the event of the closureof the Clinic, cessation of the patient
care operations, or sale of Clinic or of substantially all of
Clinic's assets, this Agreement shall be immediately
terminated.

(6) In the event that Providers fail to meet any of the qualitications
set forth in Section 1(Provider Qualifications), the District may
terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice to
the Medical Group.

Effect of Termination. Upon termination or expiration of this
Agreement:

8



(1) All rights and obligations of the Parties shall cease except (a)
those rights and obligations that have accrued and remain
unsatisfied prior to the termination or expiration; and (b) those
rights and obligations which expressly survive termination or
expiration of this Agreement;

(2) Providers shall immediately vacate the Clinic premises,
removing any and allof theirpersonal property and District may
remove and store, at Medical Group's expense, any personal
property that Providers have not so removed;

(3) Providers shall immediately return to District or Hospital all of
District's or Hospital's property, including equipment, keys,
supplies, fumiture, fumlshings and patient records, in their
possession or under their control; and

(4) Neither Medical Group nor Providers shall do anything or
cause any other person to do anything that interferes with
District's efforts to engage any other person or entity for the
provision of Professional Services, or interferes in anyway with
any relationship between the District and any other person or
entitywho may be engaged to provide Professional Services to
District.

(5) In the event this Agreement is terminated prior to the one-year
anniversary of the Effective Date, the Parties shall not enter
into a contract with each other for similar services hereunder
until such date that is at least one year from the Effective Date
of this Agreement.

d. No Hearing Rights. Expiration ortermination of this Agreement for any
reason shall not provide Physician with the right to a hearing or any
other similar rights or procedures more particularly set forth in the
Medical Staff Bylaws, unless the termination affects Physician's
medical staff membership or clinical privileges in a manner that
entitles him to a hearing under the terms ofthe Bylaws.

6. Insurance and Indemnification.

Insurance Requirements. Medical Group shall keep continuously in
force during the entire term ofthis Agreement a medical professional
liability policy with minimum limits of liability of one million dollars
($1,000,000) per occurrence and three million dollars ($3,000,000) in
the aggregate covering Providers for the Services provided under this
Agreement. Medical Group shall obtain this insurance from a carrier
and in a form satisfactory to District Medical Group will provide



District advance written notice of any coverage changes or
cancellation of the policy.

b. Upon expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement Medical
Group may either (i) continue ite current professional liability
insurance policy in force and effect for at least the next succeeding
five (5) years; or (ii) obtain an alternative comparable professional
liabilitypolicy with no lapse in coverage and a nose covering at least
five (5) years, which would cover any claims made against any of its
Providers for Services provided pursuant to this Agreement In the
event Medical Group obtains altemate professional insurance
coverage pursuant to this subparagraph (ii), it shall provide the District
with written proof of such coverage and a copy of the policy. In the
event Medical Group does not opt for either alternative set forth in
subparagraphs (i) or (ii) of this Paragraph 6(b). it shall obtain an
extended reporting endorsement to his/her current professional
liability policy (also known as a "tail policy") that provides coverage for
a period of at least five (5) years after the expiration or termination of
this Agreement, for any claims made against its Providers for services
provided pursuant to this Agreement, with liability limits of $1 million
per occurrence and $3 million in the annual aggregate and shall
provide District with written evidence of such insurance. Ifsuch tail
coverage is obtained within twelve (12) months following the
termination or expiration of this Agreement, the Districtshall directly
pay or reimburse Medical Group for the premiums paid by Medical
Group for such extended or tail coverage, but not otherwise.

c. The District shall pay insurance premiums or reimburse Medical
Group for insurance premium payments paid by it to maintain such
insurance that specifically covers the activities of its Providers
providing Services under this Agreement ("Covered Activities") and
not insurance for other services or activities. Upon Clinicor Hospital's
request, Medical Group shall provide to Districtthird-party
documentation confirming that the premiums for which Medical Group
requests reimbursement apply only to Covered Activities. Further,
prior to commencing practice at Clinicor Hospital. Medical Group will
provide MCDH with a proper and correct Certificate of Insurance
(COI) verifying it has the proper insurance coverage in the amount
specified in this Agreement for its Providers.

d. The obligations set forth in this Section 6 shall survive the termination
of this Agreement.

7. Records and Information

10



a- Access to Books and Records. The Parties agree that the Comptroiier
General of the United States, the federal Department of Health and
Human Sen/Ices ("HHS"), and their duly authorized representatives
shall have access to Medical Group's contracts, books, documents
and records regarding Medical Group's services under this Agreement
for which Medicare reimburses the Hospital. Such access shall be to
the extent necessary to certify the nature and extent of those services
and such access shall be permitted until four (4) years after services
are fumished under this Agreement. Access shall be provided in
accordance with Section 1861(v)(1)(l) of the Social Security Act (42
use § 1395X (v)(1)(l)), as amended, and 42 CFR § 420.301 through
42 CFR §420.304. In the event that the requirements of those
provisioris are reduced or eliminated, the obligations of the Parties
under this Subsection 4.a. shall likewise be reduced or eliminated.

If Medical Group carries out any ofthe duties ofthe contract through a
subcontract, with a value or cost ofTen Thousand Dollars ($10,000)
or more over a 12-month period, with a related organization, and such
subcontract issubject toSection 1861(v)(1)(l)(il) ofthe Social Security
Act (42 use § 1395x (v)(1)(l)(ii)), then such subcontract shall contain
a clause to the effect that until the expiration of four (4) years after
furnishing of such services pursuant to such subcontract, the related
organization shall make available, upon request by the Secretary of
HHS, or upon request by the eomptroller General or any oftheir duly
authorized representatives, the subcontract and the books,
documents, and records of such organization that are necessary to
verify the nature and extend ofsuch costs. Access shall be provided
in accordance with Section 1861(v)(1)(l)(ii) of the Social Security Act
(42 use § 1395X (v)(1)(l)(ii)), as amended, and 42 CFR § 420.301
through 42 CFR § 420.304.

Medical Group shall cooperate fully with the District and Clinic by
maintaining and making available all necessary records, or by
executing any agreements, in order to assure that the District and
Clinic will be able to meet all requirements for participation and
payment associated with public or private third-party payment
programs Including, but not limited to, the Medicare and Medi-Cal
program.

If Medical Group is requested to disclose any books, documents, or
records relevant to this Agreement for the purpose of an audit or
investigation, Medical Group shall notify District and the Hospital
immediately ofthe nature and scopeofthe request.

h. Proprietarv Information. Medical Group acknowledges that it may
obtain or have access to certain information of District Hospital and

II



Clinic that is (x>nfidentiai, inclucling, but not limited to, patient
information, medical records, confidential financial, operational,
business and planning information, the Hospital or Clinic procedures
and manuals, know-how, and trade secrets (the "Proprietary
Information"^ whether such information is disclosed orally, visually, or
in writing, and whether or not bearing any legend or marking
indicating that such information or data is confidential or proprietary.
Medical Group shall keep such Proprietary Information confidential.
Neither Medical Group nor Providers shall directly or indirectly
disclose such Proprietary Information to a third party, except as
required to perform Physician's obligations hereunder, or as required
by law, or with the prior written consent of District. The foregoing
sentence shall not apply to information; (i) reasonably required by
other health care providers involved in a particular patient's case; or
(ii) which is or becomes public knowledge through no fault of Medical
Group. Medical Group further agrees not to use any Proprietary
Information in a manner adverse to the interests of District, Hospital or
Clinic and recognizes District's, Hospital's and Clinic's right to obtain
judicial relief. Including Injunctive relief and damages, for any violation
of this provision.

Medical Group will return to District all Proprietary Information and all
copies thereof in Medical Group's possession or control promptly
upon the written request of District, or the termination or expiration of
this Agreement. Medical Group shall not copy, duplicate or reproduce
any Proprietary Information without the prior written consent of the
District.

c. Medical Records and Claims. Any and all patient records and charts
produced as a result of any Party's performance under this
Agreement shall be and remain the property of District, both during
and after the term of this Agreement Consistent with applicable state
and federal law and patient privacy. Medical Group shall be permitted
to inspect and/or duplicate, at Medical Group's expense, patient
charts or records to the extent necessary to meet professional
responsibilities to such patients and/or to assist in the defense of any
malpractice or similar daim to which such chart or record may be
pertinent, provided that such inspection or duplication is permitted and
conducted in accordance with the applicable legal requirements and
pursuant to commonly accepted standards of patient confidentiality.
All Parties shall be responsible for maintaining patient confidentiality
with respect to any information obtained by any Party or any Party's
agents pursuant to this Agreement or in connection with ^e
performance of the Parties' duties hereunder.

d. Survival. The obligations created by this Section 7 shall survive the

12



termination of this Agreement.

8. Miscellaneous

Jurisdiction and Venue. This Agreement has been executed and
delivered and shall be interpreted, construed and enforced pursuant
to and in accordance with the laws of the State of California. Ail duties
and obligations of the parties created hereunder are to be performed
In Mendocino County, State of California, and Mendocino County,
State of Caltfomia, shall be the sole and exclusive venue for any
litigation, special proceeding or other proceeding, not including
appellate proceedings, as between the parties that may be brought or
ariseout of, in connection with or byreason ofthis Agreement.

b. Attomevs* Fees. The prevailing party shall be entitled to recover
reasonable attomeys' fees and costs, including attomeys' fees and
costs incurred in connection with appellate proceedings, in connection
with any litigation arising outofthe Agreement.

c. Notices. All notices to be given under the terms of this Agreement
shall be in writing, signed bythe person serving the same and shall be
sent by personal delivery or registered or certified mail, return receipt
requested, and postage prepaid to the address of the parties below
specified:

District

Chief Executive Officer
Mendocino Coast District Hospital
700 River Drive
Fort Bragg, CA 95437

Medical Group

REVIVE Pain &Spine Center, INC.
Attn: Akbar Khan, D.O.
1321 College St., Suite D
Woodland, CA. 95695

Notices given personally shall be effective upon delivery and notices
sent by mail as provided for above shall be effective upon the date
shown on the delivery receipt.

Paraoraoh Headings. The titles of the paragraphs contained herein
are for convenience only and do not define, limit, or construe the
contents of such paragraphs and are in no way to be construed as

13



part of this Agreement.

e. No Assignment. Neither Party shall assign or delegate any of its
respective obligations or rights hereunder without the prior written
consent of the other Party. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall
be construed to permit the assignment or delegation by District or
Medical Group of any obligations or rights hereunder, without the prior
written consent of the other Party.

f- Entire Aoreement. This Agreement supersedes any and ail other
agreements, either oral or in writing, between the Parties hereto
concerning the provision of Services by Providers at the Clinic, and
contains ail the promises and arrangements between the Parties with
respect to such Agreement. Each Party acknowledges that no
representations, promises, or agreements orally or othenivlse, have
been made that are not embodied herein.

g. ResDonsibilitv. Each party shall be solely responsible for its own acts
or omissions in connection with the performance of its obligations
under this Agreement.

h. Acc^s to Patient Records. Upon termination of this Agreement,
Medical Group shall not keep or copy any lists, charts, files, or other
documents in any form, including electronic, that include patient-
identifiable information. Pursuant to a lawful request from a patient.
Medical Group shall be entitled to a copy of the patient's records as
specified in the request. In the event of civil litigation on behalf of a
patient against Medical Group or a Provider, or an audit by a third-
party payor, Medical Group shall, subject to any restrictions imposed
by applicable laws or regulations, be entitled to access the patient
recoixls that relate to the charges at Issue or the matters under
investigation.

i. Referrals. Nothing in this Agreement is intended or shall be construed
to require either Party to violate the Califomia or federal laws, and this
Agreement shall not be interpreted to:

(1) Require any Party to make referrals to the other or otherwise
generate business for each other;

(2) Restrict a Provider from establishing medical staff privileges at,
refem'ng any patient to, or from otherwise generating any
business for any other entityof Provider's choosing; or

(3) Provide for payments in excess of the fair market value or
comparable compensation paid to physicians for Services in
comparable locations and circumstances.

14



j. Independent Representation. Each Party has had the opportunity to
be represented by and to have this Agreement reviewed by Its own
separate legal, aca)untlng, and tax counsel. The Parties to this
Agreement have been represented by separate Independent legal,
accounting, and tax counsel. Each Party has looked to such
Independent counsel representing that Party for advice regarding this
Agreement No Party makes or represents to the other any
representation of law or fact except as specifically provided In this
Agreement.

k. Ambiguities. This Agreement has been negotiated at arm's length and
between persons sophisticated and knowledgeable in the matters
dealt with in this Agreement. Accordingly, any rule of law (Including
Section 1654 of the Callfomia Civil Code or any other similar federal
or state statute) or legal decision that would require interpretation of
any ambiguities in this Agreement against the party that has drafted it
is not applicable and Is waived. The provisions of this Agreement shall
be interpreted in a reasonable manner to effect the purpose of the
parties.

I. Amendment. No amendment or change to the terms of this
Agreement is valid unless made in writing and signed by a duly
authorized representative of each of Medical Group and District.

m. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed In counterparts, and
counterpart signatures pages. Including photocopied, faxed, or
scanned copies, may be assembled to form a single, fully-executed
document.

n. Unanticipated Events. In the event that the Clinic's operations are
substantially Interrupted by an act of war, fire, insurrection, riot,
earthquake, strikes or other labor Issues, or other acts or causes that
are not the fault of Clinic, or are beyond the reasonable control of
Clinic, District and Hospital shall be relieved of their obligations
pursuant to this Agreement for the duration of any such interruptions.

o. Cross-Reference to Other Agreements. As of the Effective Date, the
personal service arrangements listed in Attachment B are in force
between the District and the Medical Group or Physician or any
Immediatefamily member of the Physician.

p. Severabilttv: The Invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this
Agreement shall not affect the validity of any other provision.

[Signature page follows]
15



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, District and Physicianhave executed this Agreement on the date
set forth below, to be effective as of the Effective Date.

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

By:

Wayne Allen

Its: Chief Executive Officer

Date:

MEDICAL GROUP

By: Akbar Khan, D.O.

Its:

Date:

16



ATTACHMENT A

DESCRIPTION OF PROFESSIONAL MEDICAL SERVICES

Medical Group agrees that Physician will provide "Services" on an exclusive and full-time
basis for the District in both the Hospital and Clinic. As part of providing the Services, the
Physician agrees as follows;

L Clinic Sen/ices. With respect to Services provided in the Clinic, Physician is expected to
provide such services during the Clinic's regular business hours, excluding holidays
recognized by the District, maintain a practice at the Clinic and shall be available to see
patients, as scheduled by the Clinician, average of 8 days/month, minimum 96 days/24
weeks per year.

IL Suoervision. As part of the Professional Services, Physician shall supervise those mid-
level practitioners assigned to the Physician by the District and working within the Clinic
within the scope of the Physician's licensed practice up to the maximum number of
supervised mid-level practitioners allowed In the State of Califomia.

ilL Scheduled Absences. Medical Group/Physician shall coordinate Physician's practice
schedule and leaves of absence ("Scheduled /\bsences") in accordance with Clinic and/or
Hospital policy and procedures which shall include working with the Clinic's and/or
Hospital's Medical Director, the Clinic PracticeAdministrator (or his or her designee), and
the other physicians providing services at the Clinic and/or Hospital. Physician shall
coordinate such Scheduled Absences with the Clinic, and to the extent applicable, with the
appropriate Hospital personnel, to ensure the Clinic and Hospital, as applicable, are
adequately covered within the Specialty.

Medical Group/Physician shall notify Clinic's Practice Administrator, or designee, and/or the
Hospital as applicable, as soon as possible of any unscheduled absences. If the
unscheduled absence is for vacation or other non-emergency elective days off, then
physician shall be responsible for arranging and paying for the services of any substitute
provider necessitated by physician's unscheduled absences greater than 5 consecutive
working days; provided that any such substitute shall meet the requirements of subsection
l.d. of the Agreement (Physician Qualifications) and shall be approved by the District
Physician shall not be responsible for arranging or pa^ng for the services of a substitute
provider ifthe unscheduled absence is caused bypersonal orfamily illness or injury, or other
tragedy.

1^ AP Clinic Services. APwill work under the supervision ofPhysician and see the following
types of patients: Stable Medication Refills (Physician will see these patients personally
every 3rdvisit) and Non-Complicated Established Patient Follow-ups.

17



ATTACHMENT B

COMPENSATION FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

FEE SCHEDULE

Inconsiderationfor providing the Services, District shall pay Medical Group as follows:

1. A one-time sign-on bonus in the amount of Ten Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents
($10,000.00). The bonus shall be paid to Medical Group witiiin 30 days from the
Effective Date;

2. One-Hundred-Ten Dollars and Zero Cents ($110.00) per personally performed face
to face Clinic encounter of Physician. Such encounters include pre-operative and
post-operative services render^ in theClinic;

3. The sum of two hundred and fifty dollars ($250.00) per month for each midlevel
practitionersupervised by Physician in the Clinic; and

4. With respect to professional surgical services rendered within the Hospital,
Physician shall personally bill and collect for such services. No compensation
shall be owed to Physician or due from District in relation to those services. For
the sake of clarity. Physician shall not bill for any pre-operative or post-operative
services rendered in the Clinic, Physician shall not bill any global services for
these services rendered. All such services shall be billed by the Clinic.

In consideration for the provision of the advanced practitioner services set forth in
Attachment A, District shall pay Medical Group Ninety-Three Dollars and 50 Cents ($93.50)
(85% of the rate paid for Physician's sen/ices) per personally performed face to face Clinic
encounter as described to be performed by Advanced Practitioner on Attachment A.

District shall pay Medical Group within fifteen (15) days at the end of each month for
services rendered in the immediately preceding month.

District and Medical Group agree that the total compensation paid to him for all services
he provides to the Hospital and Clinic is consistent with the fair market value of those
sen/ices provided.

18



6



MENDOCINO COAST DISTRICT HOSPITAL

DATE: January 22, 2020

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: WILLIAM MILLER, MD

CHIEF OF STAFF

SUBJECT: MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

The Medical Executive Committee considered and approved the following medical staff
privileges and appointments and recommends these to the Board of Directors for approval:

Appointments to Medical Staff/Allied Health Professional -Provisional Status
> John Delaado. MD- Department of Medicine-Immediate Care-North Coast

> Mayer Horensten. DO- Department of Medicine-Internal Medicine
> Nichols Kusnezov. MD- Department of Surgery-Orthopedics
> Caria Stange. NP. CNM-Department of Medicine-Women's Health- North Coast

Temporary Privileges (As weawait Board Meeting)
> Donatd Lombardi. MD- Department of Medicine-Oncology-Hematology_i'Jant/ao'

i6-January 30,2020)

Page 1 ofl

Department of Medical Staff Services
William Lee, CPCS, CPMSM- Director
700 River Drive • Forl Bragg. California 95437

Phone: (707 961-4740 • Fax: (707) 961-4786



7



Mendocino Coast District Hospital

December 31, 2019

Financial Statement Narrative

> Operating cash was $2.5 million at 12/31/19 or 15,6 days. A check run for
$1.5 million (10 days' cash) was processed on January 3, 2020.

> With the receipt of $886,840 in parcel tax revenue in December the parcel
tax cash account balance is $1,790,987. Consistent with the purposes of
Measure C, there is a request in this month's board packet to transfer

$1,080,260 to the operating account to maintain local emergency room
services and to make critical upgrades to medical equipment

> Current liabilities are up from the 6/30/19 year end driven primarily by
accounts payable which is at 74.3 days as of 12/31/19. The check run on
1/3/20 of $1.5 million reduced the days in accounts payable to 55.5, below
the benchmark of 60 days.

> Based on the following factors I have adjusted the contractual reserve
allowances on the income statement by $1,092,000 to more accurately
reflect actual dollars due from Medicare in the current year.
• On 6/26/19 the Medicare interim rate review for the fiscal year ending

6/30/19 resulted in a balance due the facility of $1,238,000, received
July 2019.

• The Medicare Cost report filed 11/30/19 for the year ended 6/30/19
resulted in an additional amount due the facility of $1,494,394. This
amount is currently receivable from Medicare.

• The 6/30/19 audit currently reflects a 51.6% contractual reserve
percentage and the 12/31/19 interim financial statements had a 53.1%

reserve prior to this adjustment.



MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
FORT BRAGG, OA

Unaudited Financial Statements

for

For the month ended December 31, 2019



Table of Contents

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA

For the month ended December 31, 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

BALANCE SHEET - ASSETS

BAU\NCE SHEET - LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS - CURRENT MONTH

STATEMENT OF OPERAT ONS - VEAR-TO-DATE

STATEMENT OF OPERAT ONS -13 MONTH TREND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

KEY OPERAT NG STAT ST CS

FINANCIAL RATIOS AND BENCHMARKS

PAGE 1

PAGE 2

PAGE 3

PAGE 4

PAGES

PAGES

PAGE 7

PAGE 9

PAGE 10

PAGE 11



[VIENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
RxrxuTivc: financial summary

For the monlli cii<le<J December 31, 2019

BALANCESHEEir

12/31/2019

$13,796,436

4,938,483

14,528,260

33,263,179

$33,283,179

$11,984,251

12,631,154

24,615,405

8,647,774

$33.263,179

AND EXPENSE^

ACTUAL

$57,025,859
(29,197,392)

27,828,467

1,170.023
! 28,998,490

17,184,438

5,371,403

4,470,117

0

668,015

2,395,194
30,089,163

(1,090,673)
1,463,356

$372,683

6/30/2019

$11,343,940

5,608,305

14,601,347

31,553,592

NET DAYS IN ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

ASSETS

Current Assets

Assets Whose Use is Limited

Property, Plant and Equipment (Net)

Total Unrestricted Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities

Long-Term Debt

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

STATEMENT OF REVENUE"

Revenue:

Gross Patient Revenues

Deductions From Revenue

Net Patient Revenues
Other Operating Revenue

Total Operating Revenues
•

Expenses:
Salaries, Benefits & Contract Labor
Purchased Services &Physician Fees
Supply Expenses
Interest Expense
Depreciation Expense
Other Operating Expenses

Total Expenses

NET OPERATING SURPLUS
Non-Operating Revenue/(Expenses)

TOTAL NET SURPLUS

kMKwKljuyB

DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO
CURRENT RATIO

DAYS CASH ON HAND

$10,299,417
12,979,083

23,278,500

8,275,099

$31,553,592

YTD ~

BUDGET

$58,904,122
(32,122,723)

26,781,399

1,342,247

28.123.646

16,925,222

4,642,644

4,782,512

0

749,570

2,364,846

29,464,794

(1.341.148)
1,319.141

($22.007)

REQUIREMENT \ ACTUAL

HOSPITAL MARGINS

Operabng Margin Total Profit Margin

DAYS CASH ON HAND

SALARY AND BENEFIT EXPENSE AS A
PERCENTAGE OF NET PATIENT REVENUE

• MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTF 12/31/2019

D Budget 12A31/2019
Prior Fiscal Year End I 6/30/2019



Balance Sheet - Assets

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA
For the month ended December 31, 2019

CURRENT ASSETS

CASH

PARCEL TAX REVENUE ACCT

PATIENT RECEIVABLES

LESS: RESERVES FOR ALLOWANCES FOR RECEIVABLES

NET PATIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES

ESTIMATED THIRD-PARTY PAYOR SETTLEMENTS

OTHER RECEIVABLES

INVENTORIES

PREPAID EXPENSES

ASSETS WHOSE USE IS LIMITED

BOARD DESIGNATED FUNDS

PLAN FUND

SPECIFIC PURPOSE FUND

BONDS

BOND COSTS

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL LIMITED USE ASSETS

PROPERTY. PLANT, & EQUIPMENT

LAND

LAND IMPROVEMENTS

BUILDINGS & IMPROVEMENTS

LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS

EQUIPMENT

CONSTRUCTION-IN-PROGRESS
GROSS PROPERTY, PLANT, & EQUIPMENT

LESS: ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

NET PROPERTY, PLANT. & EQUIPMENT

Current

Month

12/31/2019

$ 2,512,744

1,790.987

16.224,702

(10,369,607)

5,855,095

1,669.611

605.616

781,254

581,129

$ 13,796,436

$ 3,419,031

13,774

0

1,058,802

446,876

$ 4,938,483

117,490

805,398

1,604,464

546,439

),859,364

1,815,181

1,748,336

1,220,076)

1,528,260

TOTAL ASSETS $ 33,263,179

Year End

6/30/2019

$ 31,553,592



Balance Sheet - Liabilities and Net Assets

IVIENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA

For the month ended December 31, 2019

CURRENT LIABILITIES

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

ACCRUED PAYROLL

ACCRUED VACATION/HOLIDAY/SICK PAY

PAYROLL TAXES PAYABLE

ESTIMATED THIRD-PARTY PAYOR SETTLEMENTS

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

INTEREST PAYABLE

PREVIOUS FY PENSION PAYABLE

CURRENT PORTION OF LTD (BONDS/MORTGAGES)
CURRENT PORTION OF LTD (OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES)

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

LONG TERM LIABILITIES

BONDS PAYABLE

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

CURRENT FY PENSION PAYABLE (NON-CURRENT LIABILITY)
TOTAL LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Current

Month

12/31/2019

$ 6,183,626

$ 958,739

$ 1,000,521

$ 70,342

$ 807,543

$ 744,025

$ 966,422

$ 877,969

$ 100,000

$ 275,064

$ 11,984,251

$ 9,714,743

$ 2,434,718

$ 481,693
$ 12,631,154

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 24,615,405

$ 8,275,091

FUND BALANCE

UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANACE

TEMPORARY RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE
Net Revenue/(Expenses) (YTD) $ 372,683

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 8,647,774

TOTAL LIABILITIES

AND NET ASSETS $ 33,263,179

Prior

Year End

6/30/2019

$ 23,278,500

$ 7,591,999

$

$ 683,100

$ 8,275,099

$ 31,553,592



statement of Revenue and Expense

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG. CA

For the month ended December 31. 2019

PAGE 5

GROSS PATIE^^r SERVICE REVENUES

Actual

12/31/19

CURRENT MONTH
Positive Prior

Budget (Negative) Percentage Year
12/31/19 Variance Variance 12/31/18

INPATIENT $ 1.782,284 $ 1,842,443 $ (60,159) -3% S 1,568,434
SWING BED S 452,101 $ 386,177 $ 66,924 17% $ 138,319
OUTPATIENT s 6,885,146 $ 7,121,146 $ (236,000) -3% 5 7,007,476
NORTH COAST FAMILY HEALTH CENTER $ 360,566 $ 451,124 S (90,558) -20% S 408,422
HOME HEALTTH s 114.114 S 123,173 s (9.059) -7% S 110,330
TOTAL PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES s 9,594,211 $ 9,924.063 s (329.652) •3% s 9,233,031

DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUE

CONTRACTUAL ALLOWANCES
POLICY DISCOUNTS

STATE PROGRAMS

BAD DEBT

CHARITY

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUES

NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES

OTHER OPERATING REVENUES

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
SALARIES & WAGES - STAFF

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

PROFESSIONAL FEES - PHYSICIAN
OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES - REGISTRY

OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES - OTHER

SUPPLIES • DRUGS

SUPPLIES - MEDICAL

SUPPLIES-OTHER

PURCHASED SERVICES
REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE

UTILITIES

INSURANCE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
RENTAULEASE
OTHER EXPENSE

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPERATING SURPLUS (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
OPERATING TAX REVENUES

INVESTMENT INCOME
DONATIONS

INTEREST EXPENSE (ALL)
EXTRAORDINARY GAINS/(LOSS)
BOND EXPENSE (ALL)
TAX SUBSIDIES FOR GO BONDS
PARCEL TAX REVENUES

TOTAL NGN OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

TOTAL NETINCOME (LOSS)

Operating Margin
Total Profit Margin
EBIDA

Cash Flow Margin

(3,680,823) $ (5.429,107) S 1,748,284
(5,254) 5 (8,605) S 3,351

220,500 S 162,376 $ 58,124
(100,000) $ (105,933) $ 5,933

(11,451) $ (29,126) S 17,675
(3.577,028) S (5,410,395) S 1,833,367

6,017,183 S 4,513.668 S 1,503.515

$ 178,993 238,503

S 6,196.176 $ 4,752.171 S 1.444,006

s 1,486,764 S 1,545,352 $ 56.568
s 733,036 s 748,260 S 15,224
s 604,496 s 539,061 s (65,437)
s 572,176 s 556,365 6 (15,811)
s 163,515 s 126.046 $ (37,469)
s 464,993 s 478,191 S 13,198
s 215,027 $ 245,246 s 30,219
6 66,513 s 88,429 s 21,916
$ 83,601 s 117,713 s 34,112
$ 47,148 s 70,047 s 22,901
S 80,366 s 74,630 s (5,736)
S 49,965 s 53,376 s 3,411
$ 112,673 s 125,576 s 12,903
s 64,964 s 55,135 s (9,829)
s 108.530 s 124,588 s 16,058
s 4,853.767 $ 4,948,016 s 94,248

$ 1,342,409 $ (195.844) $ 1,638,253

32% S (5,164.683)
39% $ (7.056)
36% S 96,000

6% S (87,000)
61% S (55,062)
34% S (5,217,801)

33% S 4,015,230

203.221

30% $ 4,218,451

4% S 1,397,120
2% $ 753,734

-12% S 448.795

•3% s 507,800

-30% s 71,067

3% s 430,828

12% s 244,499

25% s 94,774

29% s 104,262
33% s 71,189

-8% s 69,039

6% s 36,597
10% s 128,316

•18% s 55,359
13% s 106,319

2% $ 4,619,698

$ (301,247).

S 70,000 S 66,726 S 3,274 5% $ 65,000
s 5,000 s 6,605 S (1.605) -24% 6 4,000
$ 163,050 s 27,457 $ 155,593 567% $ -

s (39,734) s (43.240) $ 3,506 •8% S (42.820)
s • s 216 s (216) -100% 6 .

s 1,112 s 1,131 s (19) -2% S 1,112
s 27,716 s 28,170 $ (454) -2% S 27,716
s 132,079 s 135,180 $ (3.101) -2% $ 133,000
$ 379,223 6 222,246 s 166,978 71% $ 188,008

1,721,632 1.696.231 (113,239).



statement of Revenue and Expense

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG. CA

For the month ended December 31, 2019

GROSS PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES

IMPATIENT

SWING BED

OUTPATIENT

NORTH COAST FAMILY HEALTH CENTER

HOME HEALTH

TOTAL PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES

DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUE
CONTRACTUAL ALLOWANCES
POLICY DISCOUNTS

STATE PROGRAMS

BAD DEBT

CHARITY
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUES

NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES

OTHER OPERATING REVENUES

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
SALARIES & WAGES - STAFF
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

PROFESSIONAL FEES - PHYSICIAN
OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES - REGISTRY
OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES - OTHER

SUPPLIES-DRUGS

SUPPLIES - MEDICAL

SUPPLIES • OTHER

PURCHASED SERVICES
REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE

UTILITIES

INSURANCE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION

RENTAL/LEASE

OTHER EXPENSE
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

[NET OPERATING SURPLUS (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
OPERATING TAX REVENUES
INVESTMENT INCOME
DONATIONS

INTERESTEXPENSE (ALL)
EXTRAORDINARY GAINS/(LOSS)
BONDEXPENSE (ALL)
TAX SUBSIDIES FOR GO BONDS
PARCEL TAX REVENUES

TOTAL NON OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

TOTAL NET INCOME (LOSS

Operating Margin
Total Profit Margin
EBIDA

Cash Flow Margin

Actual

12/31/19

$ 9,486,233

$ 3,355.441
$ 41,087,015

S 2,345,339
$ 751,831

S 57,025,859

$ (29,700,673)
$ (43,794)
S 1,323,000
S (625,285)
$ (150,740)
S (29.197,392)

Budget
12/31/19

S 10,935.798
S 2,292,158

S 42,267.434
S 2,677,640

8 731,092

S 58,904,122

S (32,233,795)
$ (51,073)
S 963,786
S (628,766)
S (172,875)

S (32,122.723)

S 27,828,467 S 26,781,399

YEAR-TO-OATE

Positive

(Negative)
Variance

$ (1,449,565)
$ 1,063,283

S (1,180,419)

S (332,301)
$ 20,739

S (1,878,263)

2,533,222
7,279

359,214
3,481

22,135
2.925,331

1,047,068

S 1,170,023 S 1.342,247 S (172,224)

S 28.998.490 $ 28.123.646 S 874.844

s 9,133,052 S 9,181,532 S 48,480
5 4.395,092 S 4.441,392 s 46,300

S 3,518,302 s 3.200.086 s (318,216)
S 3.656,294 s 3.302,298 s (353,996)
s 1.151,062 s 749,110 s (401.952)
s 2,837,635 $ 2,801,964 s (35,671)
s 1,184,126 $ 1,456,642 s 271,516

$ 446.356 s 524,906 s 76,550

s 702.039 s 693,448 s (8,591)
s 388,440 s 415,781 s 27.341

s 452,483 s 442,951 s (9,532)
$ 329,381 s 316,814 s (12,567)
s 668,015 s 749,570 s 81,555
s 357,878 s 327,259 s (30,619)
$ 867,012 s 862,041 s (4,971)
$ 30,089,167 s 29,464,794 s (624,373)

8 (1,090.673) (1,341.148) 250,475

$ 420,002 S 396,053 $ 23,949
S 42,050 s 30,201 S 2,849
s 279,065 $ 162,970 S 118,095
s (241,620) $ (256,649) s 15,029
s - s 1,269 s (1,289)
s 6,672 s 6,711 s 39

s 166,296 s 167,205 $ (909)
$ 790,887 $ 802,361 s (11,4741
$ 1.463,352 s 1,319.141 $ 144,289

372,663 (22,007) 394.690

Percentage
Variance

PAGE 6

Prior

Year

12/31/18

S 10,588,157

S 1,544,438

S 40,890,288

S 2,722,888

S 716,028

S 56,461,799

S (30,769,203)
S (46,977)
S 639,829

S (699,460)
$ (120,268)
S (30.996.079)

S 25,465,720

862,065

S 26.327.786

1% S 6,834,612
1% S 4,339,751

-10% $ 3,087,391

-11% s 3.087,857

-54% s 547.740
-1% s 2,543,819

19% s 1,402,038

15% s 468,299

-1% s 662,501
7% s 436,670

-2% s 447,250
-4% s 301,687

11% $ 768,770
-9% s 316,246

-1% s 673.445
-2% s 27,917,976

•19% s (1.590,191)1

6% 3

7% S
71% s
-6% s

-100% s
1% s

•1% s

-1% s

11% s

3 390,000
S 35,318
S 6,583
S (259,055)
S 2,118

$ 6,672
$ 166,296
S 798,000
S 1,145,932

$ (444,259).



Sfatemeiit of Revenue and Expense -13 Moniti Trend

WiENOOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

i-ORT RRAGG, CA / 2

Actual

12/31/2019

'If';;, 101

:i(SO,b!iO

I1-I.I I'l

9,594.211

(5,:;54)

(lon.tino)
(11,431)

(3,577,028)

6,017,183

Actual

11/30/2019

i,4!if;,(i;;6
filll, 134

6,366,234

.3/5,Olid

96.294

8,424,638

(4,465,213)
(6,346)

220,600

(ino.noo)
(:i2,255)

(4,3e3!314)

4,041,324

0

253,;-l3U

Actual

10/31/2019

1,153,050

534,625

0,533,241

393,097
1,30,25(1

8.745,363

(4,664,781)
(3,637)

220,500

(99,403)
n5!'HI3)

(4,767,634)

3,977,729

GROSS PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES

IMPATIENT

SWING BED

OUTPATIENT

NORTH COAST FAMILY HEALTH OEM"
HOME HEALTH

TAL PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES

DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUE

CONTRACTUAL ALLOWANCES
POLICY DISCOUNTS
STATE PROGRAMS
BAD DEBT

CHARITY
\L DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUES

NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES

OPERATING TAX REVENUES
OTHER OPERATING REVENUES

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES

SALARIES & WAGES - STAFF
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

PROFESSIONAL FEES - PHYSICIAN
OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES - REGII
OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES - OTHE
SUPPLIES-DRUGS

SUPPLIES-MEDICAL
SUPPLIES-OTHER
PURCHASED SERVICES
REPAIRS a MAINTENANCE
UTILITIES

INSURANCE

INTEREST

DEPRECIATION 8 AMORTIZATION
RENTAULEASE
OTHER EXPENSE

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

6,196,176 4,294,563 4,123,563

NET OPERATING SURPLUS (LOSS)

l,'i;«3,7(j4

7,33,030

604,4911

r.72,170

103,515
4R.|,<)n3
215,1)27

Wi.SIS

'13,6111

47,146
80,366

40,966
0

112.673

64.964

•fii'i.fi'.in

4,853,767

1,342,409

1,472,969
704,251

573,785

660,926

113,632

406,834
136,118
61,708

150,312
54,411
62,264

•t4,384
0

111,214

57,064
157,305

4,775,179

(480,616)

1,531,442
720,704

579,785
.593,362
130,892

634,402

169,312
70,(572

122,389

101.429
87,158

62,105
0

111,949
63,474

1,36,3/4
5,014,509

(890,946)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
OPERATING TAX REVENUES
INVESTMENT INCOME
DONATIONS

INTEREST EXPENSE (ALL)
EXTRAORDINARY GAiNS/(LOSS)
BOND EXPENSE (ALL)
TAXSUBSIDIES FOR GO BONDS
PARCEL TAX REVENUE

. NGN OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

70,000 70,000 70,000
5,000 17,0.53 5,000

183,050 .33,794 0

(39,734) (39,681) (40,213)
0 0 0

1,112 1,112 1,112
:r7,7i6 27,716 27,716

132,07'J 133,000 133,110(1
379.223 292,994 196,615

l»»WJ«;i=kiiJw.iT,i=CT.

Actual

9/30/2019

1,604,446

563,816

6,928,288

390,590

117,874
9,612,924

(5,269,996)
(.3,393)

220,500

(150,090)
(1LL266)

(5,221.255)

4,391,669

0

;?ii,i34

4,602,803

1.508,063

716,731

586,416
524,969

355.562

485,016
187,489
72,760
81,707
71,220

73,180
35,745

0

110,664

62.348

181.670

5,053,533

(450,730)

70,000
5,000

0

(40,645)
0

1,112
27,716

133,(Hill

196.183

Actual

8/31/2019

1,417,031)
6/8,121

6,941,079
358,273
I2!l,0i)9

9,423,602

(5,30(1,482)
(11,141)

220,000

(3,877)
(3(i!342)

(5,207,342)

Actual

7/31/2019

;',(Mi,i;4()

63,'i,444

7,0:'!',584
41.8,OliO
!("l,2.0()

11,225,121

(6,06(1,178)
(8,823)

:;;'(),500

(150,01)0)
(4;',;ilii)

(6,040,619)

4,216.260 5,184,302

0

148,991
0

2:3l,fl32

PAGE 7

Actual

6/31/2019

Actual

6/30/2019

l,7o;i,/(l1

620,();'()

6,6(16, 140

:ig;>,7I7
l2/i.:!9(i

I,892

Ii0li,9;'4

/,i;4ii,t/7
2!i5,l':'1

I 19.334
9,511,054 10,028,948

(4,889,55 7)
(211,:>50)
459,275

(663,314)
(1(17,43(1)

(5,472,276)

4,038,778

(5,;i1(),:'6())
(41,405)
(i5:',o-i(i

(254,;';'5)
i33.772)

(5,586,7261

4,442,222

4,365,251 5,416,134 4.261.538 4,677,434

1,549,641
732,314
592,615

656,64/1

193,370

450,697
181,727
8,5,819

150,888
60,715
72,714

69,394
0

111,015

57,509
I30,!)3(l

5.096,002

(730,751)

70,090
.5,000

12,220

(40,199)
0

1,112

27,716

131,704
207,553

1,fifM,108
788,050

58 1.203

648,211
194,0111

496,631
294,462

90,834

104,142
.53,519
76,.80l
67,788

0

110,500
205,716

ll_
5,296,172

119,962

70,000

l>,()0()
0

(41,148)
0

1.112

27,716

128,104

190,784

1,66,5,445
863,009

486,140
463,44 I
:1;:1,237

.•Vl/LOIJO

;'(./,150
111),854

11(1,38.5

7/,5,'-6
60,76/

42.547

0

I 12,559
54,3:>1

122.358

5.036.418

I,••1/2,457

/')2.66|

485,.54/

605,056
2.36,996

.50(1,11911

169,002
85,8/6

113,922

56,8114
80,.''45

36.013

l;i5,663

56,991
141.6! 18

5,019,209

(774,880)

6.5,006 65,606
17.304 18,.572

0 37.54?

(41,1-91) (41,464)
(22,193) {;i4,;62)

1,112 1.112
:'/,yi6 27,716

i:i:i,iui(i !:i:!,666
180,748 207,221

(341,775)



statement of Revenue and Ex(

VieKOOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DIS'

l ORT RRAGG, CA

GROSS PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES
IMPATIENT

SWING BED

OUTPATIENT

NORTH COAST FAMILY HEALTH CEN'
HOME HEALTH

TAL PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES

DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUE
CONTRACTUAL ALLOWANCES
POLICY DISCOUNTS

STATE PROGRAMS
BAD DEBT

CHARITY

XLDEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUES

NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES

OPERATING TAX REVENUES
OTHER OPERATING REVENUES

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES
B

OPERATING EXPENSES

SALARIES & WAGES - STAFF
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
PROFESSIONAL FEES - PHYSICIAN
OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES - REGIJ
OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES - OTHE
SUPPLIES-DRUGS
SUPPLIES - MEDICAL

SUPPLIES-OTHER
PURCHASED SERVICES
REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE
UTILITIES

INSURANCE
INTEREST
DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
RENTAL/LEASE
OTHER EXPENSE

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NETOPERATING SURPLUS (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSi
OPERATING TAX REVENUES
INVESTMENT INCOME
DONATIONS
INTEREST EXPENSE (ALL)
EXTRAORDINARY GAiNS/(LOSS)
BOND EXPENSE (ALL)
TAX SUBSIDIES FOR GO BONDS
PARCEL TAX REVENUE

. NGN OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

TOTAL NET INCOME (LOSS!

Operating Margin
Total Profit Margin
EBIDA

Cash Flow Margin

Actual

4/30/2019

/.iiHi.d/;;

'ii;),c,7S

i:"l.4'i-|

10,222,275

(d,i;:M,;tin)

iif.ii.r'.jii

(i4/,7n/)

(5,272,090)

Actual

3/31/2019

o.aaa.ui::

732,:ll)0

0,!li)l,:i!l'i
44i),:i;xi

I2-I,9K3

10.613.506

(,5,r>2G.4r.;i)
(13,405)
157,OOO

II

(3!!,)in:>)

(5,422^242)

Actual

2/28/2019

•LliC'/.'Ml!
MO.JOIl

(i./Sili.lHH
Oil?,755

1111.117

9.653.228

(5,400.176)
(0,(100)

140,000

(00,000)
(4:i.5;?'i)

(5,398,786)

Actual Actual

1/31/2019 12/31/2018

|.'M6,:>;'3 l,560,4:v

;.:7i,7/;i I3n,;ii:
7,!5;t4,72l /,(I0/,4/l

41i:!,:M4 408.42:
i:.'3,:'60 I ni.:i'!i

10,689,326 9,233,031

(6.074,:i».5)
(6,451!)

90,000
(IO(!,000)

(4IV:!76)

(6,140,119)

4.950,185 5,191,264 4,254,442 4.549.207

0
101,580 i/!I.H7y

5.131,774 5,371,141

L-MKLOOH
7.?H,-169
/:;•/,!ir37

'itl(l,(i17
3211,5ni
•vj'Latio
•.•lii.uid

'>il,137
IL'LHIl

!i1,0H»

r.n,40ft

II 3.2114

fia.doli

.'lll.li'KI

5,344.271

(212,497)

(41,041)

1,112
2/,71(i

188,987

(23,510)

2,004,(121

to;!, 127
450,045
fi79,5;;2

2:12,.597

•lai.G'JJ

225,148

91.307

117,892
71,321
<ir;,061

42,/82
II

100,746

59,310
127.01:1

5,368.991

05.000

4,000
II

(41,020)
0

1,112
27,716

1:1:10110

189.800

191,950

0

1151.4:11

0

:;06,.iu3

4,605,873 4,756,010

1,4111,820
/5l),;iU(l
521,300
447,930
324,3(10

446,067
259,509

110,088
9l>,041
57,360
72,9111
37,864

0

125,253
52,775

I40./70

4,869,122

(363,249) (275,146)

•1,577,412
795,010

45(1,183
567,020
206,6.53
496,553

273,077
63,509
94,425

66,(137
72,356

36,45.3

0

120,7:15

55,751
|.i.''.!ii':it

5,031,156

65,000 65,(Xl(l
4,000 17,020

13,550 0

(40,026) (42,074)
0 (1

1,112 1,112
:!7./l6 27,7 16

i:i:i,ono 133.000

203.560 201,174

(159,689) (73,972)



statement of Cash Flows

ft/IENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA
for the 6 months ended 12/31/19

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net Income (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
(lncrease)/Decrease in Net Patient Accounts Receivable
(lncrease)/Decrease in Other Receivables
(lncrease)/Decrease in Inventories
(lncrease)/Decrease in Pre-Paid Expenses
(lncrease)/Decrease in Third Party Receivables
lncrease/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable
lncrease/(Decrease) in Notes and Loans Payable
lncrease/(Decrease) InAccrued Payroll and Benefits
lncrease/(Decrease) in Previous Year Pension Payable
lncrease/(Decrease) in Third Party Liabilities
lncrease/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
(lncrease)/Decrease in Limited Use Cash and Investments
(lncrease)/Decrease In Other Limited Use Assets

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCINGACTIVITIES:
lncrease/(Decrease) In Bond/Mortgage Debt
lncrease/(Decrease) In Capital Lease Debt
lncrease/(Decrease) in Other LongTerm Liabilities

Net Cash Used for Financing Activities

(INCREASE)/DECREASE IN RESTRICTED ASSETS

Net lncrease/(Decrease) in Cash

Cash, Beginning of Period

Cash, End of Period

12/31/2019



Patient Statistics

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA
For the month ended December 31, 2019

PAGE 10

Current Month

3.7

Year-To-Oate

Actual

12/31/19

Budget
12/31/19

Positive/

(Negative)
Variance

Prior

Year

12/31/18 STATISTICS

Actual

12/31/19

Budget
12/31/19

Positive/

(Negative)

Variance

Prior

Year

12^1/18

Admissions

6

52

12

50

(50%)
4%

11

54

Critical Care Senrices

General

62

261

72

298

(14%)
(12%)

75

287

58

5

62

8

(6%)
(38%)

65

8

Subtotal Medical & Surgical Admissions
OB

323

28

370

48

(13%)
(42%)

362

58
63 70 (10%) 73 Total Admissions 351 418 (16%) 420

12 11 9% 12 Swing Bed 80 66 21% 72

3 8 (63%) 9 Total Deliveries 26 48 (46%) 53

23

198

42

175

(45%)
13%

48

169

Inpatient Days

Critical Care Services
General

170

960

252

1044

(33%)
(8%)

235

1008
221

14

217

18

2%

(22%)
217

24

Subtotal Medical& Surgical Inpatient Days
OB

1130

75

1296

108

(13%)
(31%)

1243

139
235 235 0% 241 Total Inpatient Days 1205 1404 (14%) 1382

124 99 25% 101 Swing Bed 892 594 50% 617

6 16 (63%) 23 Total Newborn Days 55 96 (43%) 121

3.8

3.8

3.5

3.5

10%
9%

4.4

3.1

Average Length of Stay
Critical Care Services
General

2.74

3.68

3.50

3.50
(22%)

5%

3.13

3.51
3.8

2.8

3.5

2.3

9%
24%

3.3

3.0

Subtotal Medical & Surgical
OB

3.50

2.68

3.50

2.25

(0%)
19%

3.43
2.40

3.4 11% 3.43 3.36 2% 3.29

10.3 9.0 15% 8.4 Swing Bed 11.15 9.00 24% 8.57

Avg Daily Census - Hospital
0.7

6.4

1.4

5.6

(45%)
13%

1.5

5.5

CriticalCare Services (4 Beds)
General (8 Beds)

0.9

5.2

1.4

5.7

(33%)
(8%)

1.3

5.5
7.0 Subtotal Medical&Surgical (12 Beds)

_0:5 0.6 (22%> 0.8 OB(3Bedsl
7.6

4.0

11.6

739

46

785

151

3

154

15

1

157

173

2,445

435

4,410

7.6

3.2

10.8

803

49

852

169

1

170

17

6

183
206

2,530

498

4,901

0%

25%

7%

(8%)
j65a_

m.

(11%)
200%

(9^

(12%)
(83%)
(14%)

(3W

(13%)

(10%)

7.6 Subtotal Acute (IS Beds)

3.3 Swing Care (10 Beds)
11.0 Total Hospital (25 Beds Available)

Emergency Department
800 Outpatients Treated in EO • Emergent
60 Patients Admitted ftom ED

860 Total Patients treated in EO

Ambulance Service

141 911-Transports
2 Transfer-Transports

143 Total Ambulance Transports

6.1

0.4

6.S

4.8

11.4

4650

265
4,915

862

11

873

7.0

0.6

7.6

3.2

10.9

4760

292

5052

1004

6

1010

(13%)
(31%)

_£14%L

50%

5%

(2%)

J92a_
(3%)

(14%)
83%

(14%)

6.8

0.8

7.5

3.4

10.9

4,891
290

5.181

926

6

932

Surgery - Cases

14 Inpatient Cases 76 107 (29%) 98
3 Total Implant Cases 15 35 (57%) 23

171 Outpatient Cases 938 1163 (19%) 1124
188 Total Surgery Cases 1029 1305 (21%) 1245

2,448

452

4,724

North Coast Family Health Center
Visits

Home Health

Visits

Outpatient
Encounters

14,474

3,157

27,229

16,063 (10%) 15,414

3,163 j«y_ 3,151

31,121 (13%) 29,557



Key Financial Ratios
MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA

Profitability:

Operating Margin
Total Profit Margin
EBIDA

Contractual Allowance % To Gross Charges
Inpatlent Gross Revenue Percentage (Hospital)
Outpatient Gross Revenue Percentage (Hospital)

Liquidity:
Days of Cash on Hand, Short Term
Days Cash, All Sources
Net Days In Accounts Receivable
Hospital Gross Days InAR
Cash Row Margin
Days in Accounts Payable
Current Ratio

Capital Structure:
Average Age of Plant (Annualized)
Capital Costs as a % of Total Exp.
Capital Spend as a % of Annual Depreciation
Long Term Debt to Net Position
Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Productivity and Efficiency;

Net Patient Service Revenue per PTE
Salary & Benefits Expense per Paid PTE
Salary &Benefits as a % ofTotal Expenses
Salary and Benefits as a % of Net Pat Rev,
Employee Benefits as a % of Salaries

Other Ratios:

PTE - PRODUCTIVE

PTE-NON-PRODUCTIVE
PTE - REGISTRY/CONTRACT
PTE - TOTAL PAID

Cost To Charge Ratio

Medicare Revenue as a % of Total Revenue

Medl-cal Revenue as a % of Total Revenue
BC/BS Ins Revenue as a % of Total Revenue
Other Ins Revenue as a % of Total Revenue
Self-Pay Revenue as a % of Total Revenue

Year to Date

12/31/2019

-3.8%

1.3%

-1.5%

55.2%

23.8%

76.2%

15.6

47.9

35.0

52.8

3.02%

74

1.15

25.3

2.0%

89.1%

59.4%

0.83

$171,252
($83,250)

45.0%

48.6%

48.1%

238.5

38.7

40.0

317.2

52.8%

-4.3%

0.4%

-1.7%

58.2%

23.8%

76.2%

$177,583
($112,151)

46.2%

50.8%

48.4%

300.0

50.0%

PAGE 11

Prior Fiscal

Year End

06/30/19

-6,5%

-2.2%

^.0%

58.3%

23.7%

76.3%

7.3

41.0

25.4

55.5

-0.2%

47

0.90

22.6

2.6%

102.0%

66.5%

0.40

$171,055
($88,990)

47.0%

52.0%

48.5%

241.1

35.7

32.4

309.2

50.0%



MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

REGULAR MEETING

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY27,2020

4:30 p.m. Closed Session
6:00 p.m. Open Session

MENDOCINO COAST DISTRICT HOSPITAL

Redwoods Room

700 River Drive

Fort Bragg, California 95437

Mendocino Coast District Hospital Mission Statement
MISSION

To make a positive difference in the health of our rural community.

VISION

MCDH will play a vital role in the overall health and well-being of the community, and will be the key element in
the healthcare system serving the needs of our community. We will provide leadership to enhance the efficiency,
coordination, quality and range of services provided within our rural healthcare system.

MCDH will be the healthcare provider and employer of choice within our community. We will continually address
and keep up with technology and superior clinical skills

We will have a positive impact on health by encouraging personal and community responsibility for health and
wellness. Our efforts will play a decisive role in people choosing to stay in our community or to locate here.

VALUES

MCDH is committed to providing excellent quality, patient centered, cost effective health care in a caring, safe
and professional environment, and serving the community's healthcare needs with current technology and
superior clinicalskills.We believe Inthe right to local access to a wide range of excellent quality healthcare
services in our rural community. We promote patient safety and satisfaction, and consistently work toward a high
levelof care with results in our patients recommending us to others and in their returning to us for needed health
care.

Everymember of our healthcare team will playan active, participative role that effectively utilizes the skills and
talents of each. People are our most valuable resource. We encourage professional development that will
achieve a levelof competence and morale that will attract and maintain the highest quality staff. We strive to
build partnership with our employees emphasizing mutual respect and mutual success.

I. ROLL CALL

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board of Directors on any matter
over which the District has jurisdiction. You may state your name and address for the record. Time is limited
to 3 minutes with a 20-minute total time limit for all comments. The Board of Directors can take no action on
your presentation, but can seek clarification to points made inyour presentation or comments.



BROWN ACT REQUIREMENTS: Pursuant to the Brown Act, the Board of Directors cannot discuss issues or take
action on any requests during this comment period.

III. CLOSED SESSION

1. Information/Action: Hardin v. Mendocino Coast District Hospital, U.S. District Court for the Northern
District of California, et al.. Case No. 3:17-CV-0SS54, conference with legal counsel.
Government Code §54956.9.

2. Information/Action: Pursuant to California Government Code §54954.5 and §32155 of the Health
and Safety Code Medical Staff Credentials and Privileges Review and Medical Staff Report

3. Information/Action: Pursuant to §32155 of the Health and Safety Code December Quality
Management and Improvement Council Reports

IV. 6:00 P.M. OPEN SESSION CALL TO ORDER-JESSICA GRINBERG, PRESIDENT

V. ROLL CALL

VI. REPORT ON ANY ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION; GOVERNMENT CODE 94957.1

VII. PUBLIC COMMENTS

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board of Directors on any matter
over which the District has jurisdiction. You may state your name and address for the record. Time is limited
to 3 minutes with a 20-minute total time limit for all comments. The Board of Directors can take no action on

your presentation, but can seek clarification to points made In your presentation or comments.

BROWNACTREQUIREMENTS: Pursuant to the Brown Act, the Board of Directors cannot discuss issues or take
action on any requests during this comment period.

VIII. REVIEW OF THE AGENDA Action

IX. BOARD COMMENTS Information

XI.

XII.

APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR Action

The following items are considered routine and non-controversial by Hospital Staff. Consent items may be
approved by one motion if no member of the Board or audience wishes to comment or ask questions. If
comment or discussion is desired, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered
under new business

1. Approval of Board of Directors meeting minutes ofJanuary 30,2020 Tabl
2. Approval of Special Board of Directors meeting minutes ofJanuary 23,2020 Tab 2
3. Patient Visitation Policy #829 Tab 3
4. Authorization for Release of Verbal Information to Others Tab 4

5. Approval of Alysoun Huntley Ford Fund Draw (there were norequests)

NEW BUSINESS

> Transition Plan of Stabilize and Transport: Dr. William Miller and Ms. Lynn Finley
> Resignation of Interim CFO: Ms. Jesica Grinberg, President

REPORTS

> CEO Report: Mr. Wayne Allen, Interim CEO

> Medical Staff Report: Dr. William Miller Chief of Staff
a. Appointments to Medical Staff/Allied Health Professional-Provisional Status

Tab 5 Action

Action

InformaUon

Tab 6 Action



1. I-Wen Tseng, DO -Department of Medicine-Emergency Medicine
2. Donaid Lombardi, MD-Department of Medicine-Oncoiogy-Hematology
3. Sandra Mendel, MD-Department of Medicine-Internal Medicine-NCFHC

b. Temporary Priviieees (as we await Board Meeting)

1. Donald Lombardi, MD-Department of Medicine-Oncoiogy-Hematology (Feb. lo-Feb n, 2020}

c. Re-Appointments to Medical Staff/Allied Health Professional Staff

1. Kevin Miller, MD-Department of Surgery-Ophtfialmoiogy
2. Ramesh Natfian, MD -Department of Medicine-Infectious Disease
3. Brent Wrigfit, MD-Department of Surgery-Obstetrics-Gynecology

d. Resignations from Medical Staff

1. Meyer Horensten, DO-Department of Medicine-NCFHC (Effective February i, 2020)
2. Robert Pollard, MD-Department of Medicine-Emergency Medicine (Effective February 1,2020)
3. John Rochat, MD-Department of Medicine-Oncoiogy-Hematology (Effective January 1,2020)

e. Appointments to V-Rad Tele-Radioloev Staff

1. Christopher Lawton, MD-Department of Medicine-Tele Radiology
2. Richard Mitchell, MD-Department of Medicine-Tele Radiology

> Planning Committee Report: Mr. Steve Lund /tct/on

> Chief Nursing Officer Report: Ms. Lynn Finley information
> Finance Committee Report: Mr. John Redding Tab 7 Action

Xill. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS; MS. JESSICA GRINBERG. PRESIDENT information

• Action Item List

XIV. ASSOCIATION AND COMMUNITY SERVICE REPORTS information

XV. Public Comments

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board of Directors on any matter
over which the District has jurisdiction. You may state your name and address for the record. Time is limited
to 3 minutes with a 20-minute total time limit for all comments. The Board of Directors can take no action on

your presentation, but can seek clarification to points made in your presentation or comments.

BROWN ACT REQUIREMENTS: Pursuant to the Brown Act, the council cannot discuss issues or take action on

any requests during this comment period.

XVI. ADJOURNMENT

THIS DOCUMENT WILL BE PROVIDED AT THE MEETING.

Ail disabled persons requesting disability related modifications or accommodations, including auxiliary aids or
service may make such request in order to participate in a public meeting to Gayl Moon, Secretary to the
Board of Directors, 700 River Drive, Fort Bragg, CA 95437, no later than 72 hours prior to the meeting that
such matter be included on that month's agenda.
*Per District Resolution, each member of the Public who wishes to speak shall be limited to three minutes
each per agenda item. Please identify yourself prior to speaking. Thank you.



B

1



BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

REDWOODS ROOM

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 30, 2020

MINUTES

The Board of Directors of the Mendocino Coast Health Care District met in CLOSED session at 5:00 pm in
the Redwoods Room, Jessica Grinberg, Chair presiding

PRESENT: Mr. Lund, Ms. McColley, Ms. Grinberg, Mr. Redding, Ms. Arnold
Mr. Wayne Allen, Interim CEO
Mr. Doran Hammett, Interim CFO

I. CALL TO ORDER;

OPEN Session of the Board of Directors of the Mendocino Coast Health Care District convened at

6:00 p.m. in the Redwoods Room, Ms. Karen Arnold Chair presiding

II. ROLL CALL:

PRESENT: Mr. Steve Lund, Mr. John Redding, Ms. Karen Arnold, Ms. Jessica Grinberg, Ms. Amy McColiey
Board Members

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: None

ALSO PRESENT:

Mr. Wayne Allen, Interim CEO
Mr. Doran Hammett, Interim CFO

Ms. Gayl Moon, Executive Assistant

III. REPORT ON ANY ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION: GOVERNMENT CODE 94957.1

1. Information/Action: Conference with Real Property Negotiator: Property, 700 River
Drive, Fort Bragg, CA 95437: Agency Negotiator, Wayne Allen: Negotiating Parties:
Mendocino Coast District Hospital, Stone Point Health (an affiliate of Adventist
Health):Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment: Gov. Code §5956.8

2. Information/Action: Pursuant to California Government Code §54954.5 and §32155
of the Health and Safety Code Medical Staff Credentials and Privileges Review and
Medical Staff Report

3. Information/Action: Pursuant to §32155 of the Health and Safety Code December Quality
Management and Improvement Council Reports

IV. REPORT ON ANY ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION: GOVERNMENT CODE 94957.1

• The Board gave instructions to the attorney regarding real property negotiations. The
negotiation is specifically for the proposed lease of the Hospital, and the attorney will be dealing
with the terms of such lease.

• The Board received a Medical Staff report from Dr. Miller.
• The Board received a November Quality Management and Improvement Council Report.

V. PUBLIC COMMENTS

• Community members made comments regarding Hospital issues. Following are topics that were
discussed:

> Mr.Allison discussed the need to save the Hospital.
> Manycommunitymembers urged the Board not to close Labor and Delivery.

VI. ACTION: REVIEW OF THE AGENDA



• To replace the word Affiliation with Measure C in Item #2 under New Business.

MOTION:To change the word Affiliation in the Oversight Committee report to the Measure C
Oversight Committee report; otherwise to accept the agenda
• McColley moved
• Redding second
• Roil call

> Ayes: Redding, McCoiiey, Lund, Arnold, Grinberg
> Noes: None

> Absent: None

> Abstain: None

• Motion carried

VII. BOARD COMMENTS

• Ms. McCoiiey stated the World Health Organization has recognized the year 2020 is the year of
nurse. She thanked all the nurses for their services.

VIII. ACTION: APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR: MS. KAREN ARNOLD. CHAIR

1. Minutes: Regular Session, January 2, 2020
2. Minutes: Special Session, January 6,2020
3. Alysoun Huntley Ford Fund Draw (there were no requests)

MOTION: To approve the Consent Calendar as presented
• Lund moved

• Arnold second

> Ayes: Redding, McColley, Lund, Arnold, Grinberg
> Noes: None

> Absent: None

> Abstain: None

• Motion carried

IX. ACTION: BYLAWS REVISION/PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE AND TIME CHANGE; MR. STEVE LUND

• Mr. Lundwould like the Planning Committee to meet on Tuesday of the week immediately
preceding the Thursday of the regular monthly Board of Directors meeting at 4:30 pm

• Change the in the bylaws to the Hospital Foundation's current name. The bylaws should also
state that a member from the Board of Governors of the Foundation be a member of the

Planning Committee.
• Change bi-monthly to every other month.

MOTION:Jo approve the revision of the bylaws with the above stated changes
• Lund moved

• McColley second

• Roll call

> Ayes:Grinberg, Lund, McColley, Redding, Arnold
> Noes: None

> Absent: None

> Abstain: None

• Motion carried

X. ACTION/INFORMATION: ANNUAL MEASURE C OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE REPORT; MR. WAYNE
ALLEN. INTERIM CEO



" Mr. Allen stated the Measure C Oversight Committee approved the report at a meeting held last
week. The Finance Committee approved the report and recommended it go to the Board of
Directors for approval. Following is the report:
• Parcel tax revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30,2019 was $1,719,114 and expenditures

from these funds were as follows:

1) $27,072 -Parcel tax refunds
2) $700,000 - IT-MediTech HER upgrade
3) $38,600 -Surgery Department-Flooring
4) $24,650 -Surgery Department-Nitrous manifold
5) $17,488 -Emergency Department-Flooring
6) $258,245 -NCFHC-Offset operational losses
7) $258,245 -Emergency Department -Offset operational losses
8) $258,245 -Labor & Delivery-Offset Operational losses
9) $136,568 -Radiology-LOGIOElO Ultrasound

• Year to date parcel tax revenue for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020 was $886,840 at
December 31,2019 and expenditures from these funds were as follows:
1) $7,200 -Parcel tax refunds
2) $56,319 -NCFHC -Offset operational losses
3) $56,319 -Emergency Department-operational losses
4) $56,316 -Labor & Delivery-Offsetoperational losses

• Balance of parcel tax funds at December 31, 2019, $710,683. A second payment will be
received In April and the final true up in August.

• Mr. Allen asked for approval of the fiscal 2019 amount of $911,303 and also the fiscal 2020
amount of $176,157.

MOTION: Jo approve the annual Measure C Oversight Committee Report
• Redding moved
• Lund second

• Roll call

> Ayes: Arnold, Grinberg, Redding, McColley, Lund
> Noes: None

> Absent: None

> Abstain: None

• Motion carried

XI. INFORMATION: CENSUS UPDATE; MS. PAULA COHEN

• Ms. Cohen from the Community Foundation Board of Directors. The Community Foundation, the
Public Health Department and the League of Women Voters together are working to outreach
and increasethe response rate for Mendocino County for the 2020Census. April 1'̂ is the count
day.

• In the 2010 Census, Mendocino County had a response rate of about 71.8%. The Federal
Government has the target at 85%. The threshold is below 80% anything below that is
considered "hard-to-count". The impact being Mendocino County lost approximately $900,000
in funding per year for the last 10 years.

• The 2020 Census will be primarily conducted electronically. For people who do not have
computers or broadband access will be able to complete the census by telephone (800 number).
There will be designated locations in Mendocino County where people will be able to access
computers to complete the census.



XII. ACriON/iNFORMATION: THE FUTURE OF OB SERVICES ON THE MENDOCINO COAST; MS. JESSICA

GRINBERG. PRESIDENT

" Mr. Redding stated that in his estimation, the cost of keeping 08 open is $3.1 million per year.
This is basically a fixed cost as the staff needs to be on call 24 7. Almost all the deliveries at
MCDH are on Medi-Cal which only pays $17,000 per delivery. He feels the root causes are low
volumes and insufficient reimbursement from Medi-Cal, and these are factors over which MCDH
has no control. A very detailed transition plan is needed. The medical staff needs to be trained
to handle emergencies and complications during labor and delivery. Mr. Redding stated that
until he sees a plan with the costs and timeline, he will be unable to make a decision.

" Dr. Miller stated that what is needed is a transition plan which would be a Stabilization Transfer
model. The transition plan from the current L&D model to the Stabilization Transfer model
would include a timeline for implementation as well as all of the steps that need to happen in
order to put the new model in place. The model itself will be a set of policies that the Hospital
will follow.

MOTION:To direct staff to prepare a transition plan and report back to the Board at the earliest
possible time
" Redding moved
" Motion died for lack of a second

MOTION: To transition from existing Labor and Delivery model at MCDH to a redesigned "stabilize
and transfer" model no later than June 30, 2020. The transition plan shall include all necessary
policies and strategies needed to ensure patient safety; essential staffing required to handle
emergency C-section requirements, and a robust support system to meet the needs of all OB
patients in our care to the best of our ability.

Staff is hereby directed by the Board to work internally to develop such strategies and systems
necessary to support this change as soon as practical. We ask that regular monthly updates be
provided to the Board to ensure that all requirements and resources needed to complete this
transition by the designated deadline or sooner are in place. Nurses will get their STABLE
Certification.

• Lund moved

• Arnold second

Ms. McColleystated that she feels putting a date on closing OBto June 30 is imprudent for safety of
gestational ageon the Coast. She feels that on June30**^ a decision needs to be madetied to
gestational age and not a hard stop date. She wants to see a proforma of the costs and risk benefits
of closing it, competencies of staffing up training. She feels that MCDH should challenge Medi-Cal
and put them on notice. She wants a healthy transition that is coming from quality and safety for
everyone involved.

Ms. Grinberg stated that MCDH is a free-standing facility until the affiliation Isvoted for and passed
by the community. Her feeling is that if the District does not affiliate, what needs to be done? She
doesn't feel that this is a one solution situation. She feels a target date is necessary.

Mr. Lund stated there needs to be a cost analysis. This is a 2 step process. What the next step will be
is a presentation of this plan that will either be sufficient or won't; this wiil include costs associated
with what is happening now, and estimating what those costs would be moving forward. The Board
to be given a status update monthly, as well as the Finance & Planning Committees. The plan will be
done in conjunction with Adventist Health.

• Roll call



> Ayes: Lund, Arnold, Grinberg
> Noes; McColley
> Abstain: Redding
> Absent: None

• Motion carried

XIII. ACTION: PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR AKBAR KHAN. DO: MR. WAYNE ALLEN. INTERIM

CEO

• Mr. Lee stated that Dr. Kahn has been on staff for over one year. Like all physicians at MCDH, Dr.
Kahn was proctored at the beginning of his appointment with MCDH. He is subject to ongoing
professional performance evaluations as required by the Joint Commission.

MOTION:To accept the proposed Professional Services Agreement with Dr. Akbar Khan
• Lund moved

• Arnold second

• Roll call

> Ayes: Redding, McColley, Lund, Arnold, Grinberg
> Noes: None

> Abstain: None

> Absent: None

• Motion carried

XIV. INFORMATION: CEO REPORT: MR. WAYNE ALLEN. INTERIM CEO

• Mr. Allen stated that the Fort Bragg City Council passed a resolution supporting Measure Cfor

Affiliation with Stone Point Health.

XV. INFORMATION: MEDICAL STAFF REPORT: DR. WILLIAM MILLER

• Dr. Miller gave an update on the State Survey that is currently taking place at MCDH:
This is a routine survey that happens every three (3) years.

^ Thissurvey is a combined CMS, which is Medicare, and State Survey.
^ Theirfocus iscurrently infection control, especiallyin the surgery areas.

The surveyors found that MCDH was followinga set of guidelines for surgical processing
instruments as well as how the rooms were cleaned at the end of the day. The set of
guidelines that MCDH was using were from 2011, and the current guidelines are from 2017
& 2018. MCDH was unaware of the new guidelines. This triggered immediate Jeopardy
which means that these issues have to be fixed immediately in order to maintain the
Medicare Certification. The OR has been shut down until the surveyors approve that MCDH
now meet the current standards.

^ There were problems in the work-flow processes due to the recent construction in the OR.
The policies weren't changed to reflect those work-flow Issues.

^ Ateam has been established to address all the deficiencies, and all the deficiencies have
been addressed. The team consists of:

o Lynn Finley, CNO
o Emmet O'Connell, Infection Control Officer

o Heather Brown-Douglas, Quality Manager
o Dr. William Miller, Chief of Staff

^ The surveyorsare now assessing the implementation of the action plan.
• Mr. Allen stated that MCDH will receive a report from the surveyors tomorrow. Mr. Allen will notify

the public when the ORwill reopen via press release.



A. Appointments to Medical Staff/Allied Health Professional-Provisional Status

1. John Delgado, MD -Department of Medicine-Immediate Care-NCFHC
2. Mayer Horensten, DO-Department of Medicine-Internal Medicine
3. Nichols Kusnezov, MD-Department of Surgery-Orthopedics
4. Caria Stange, NP,CNM -Department of Medicine-Women's Health NCFHC

B. Temporary Privileges

1. Donald Lombardi, MD-Department of Medicine-Oncology-Hematology pan le-jan so,2020)

MOTION:To approve the recommendations as presented and codified on the agenda
• Lund moved

• McColleysecond
• Roll call

> Ayes: Grinberg, Lund, McColley, Redding, Arnold
> Noes: None

> Absent: None

> Abstain: None

• Motion carried

XVI. INFORMATION: PLANNING COMMITTEE REPORT; MS. JESSICA GRINBERG

• The next Planning Committee meeting will be Tuesday, February 18 at 4:30.

MOTION:To approve accept the Planning Committee Report
• Redding moved
• Arnold second

• Roll call

> Ayes: McColley, Arnold, Grinberg, Lund, Redding
> Noes: None

> Absent: None

> Abstain: None

• Motion carried

XVII. INFORMATION: CHIEF NURSING OFFICER REPORT; MS. LYNN FINLEY

• There was no report.

XVIII. ACTION/INFORMATION: FINANCE REPORT; MR. JOHN REDDING

• Mr. Redding stated that a team put together a corrective action plan to help balance the budget,
and the Hospital is beginning to see the effects of that now. Revenues were up in December. The
cost reductions are new reflected in the run rate which is now reduced by $300,000 per month.

> Operating cash was $2.5 million at 12/31/19 or 15.6 days. A check run for $1.5 million (10
days' cash) was processed on January 3,2020.

> With the receipt of $886,840 in parcel tax revenue in December the parcel tax cash account
balance is $1,790,987. Consistent with the purposes of Measure C, there is a request in this
month's board packet to transfer $1,080,260 to the operating account to maintain local
emergency room services and to make critical upgrades to medical equipment.

> Current liabilities are up from the 6/30/19 year end driven primarily by accounts payable
which is at 74.3 days as of 12/31/19. The check run on 1/3/20 of $1.5 million reduced the

days in accounts payable to 55.5, below the benchmark of 60 days.



> Based on the following factors Mr. Hammett have adjusted the contractual reserve allowances

on the income statement by $1,092,000 to more accurately reflect actual dollars due from
Medicare in the current year.

• On 6/26/19 the Medicare interim rate review for the fiscal year ending 6/30/19 resulted in a
balance due the facilityof $1,238,000, received July 2019.

• The Medicare Cost report filed 11/30/19 for the year ended 6/30/19 resulted in an
additional amount due the facility of $1,494,394. Thisamount is currently receivable from
Medicare.

• The 6/30/19 audit currently reflects a 51.6% contractual reserve percentage and the
12/31/19 interim financial statements had a 53.1% reserve prior to this adjustment.

• The audit is almost complete, except for accounts receivable for NCFHC.
• NCFHC is on a different system than the Hospital, therefore some manual processes need to

take place. A consultant who is an expert in NextGen is helping with this process.
• This will hopefully be resolved within the next couple of weeks.
• The audit is 99% complete and should be ready very soon.

MOTION:To approve the December 2019 Financial Statements
• Lund moved

" Redding second
• Roli call

> Ayes: Lund, McColley,Arnold, Grinberg, Redding
> Noes: None

> Absent: None

> Abstain: None

• Motion carried

XIX. INFORMATION: FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: MS. JESSICA GRINBERG. PRESIDENT

" Plan for restructure of District post affiliation.

XX. INFORMATION: ASSOCIATION AND COMMUNITY SERVICE REPORTS

• There were no Association and Community Service Reports.

XXI. PUBLIC COMMENTS;

> Acouple of community members commended the Board for dealing with the Labor and Delivery
issue tonight in a very thoughtful and compassionate manner.

> Acommunity spoke about a Patient Family& Advisory council meeting recently. This group has the
potential to help MCDH.

XXII. ADJOURN:

The meeting adjourned at 8:15 p.m.

Ka re n Arnold, Secretary GaylMoon, Secretarytothe
Board of Directors Board of Directors



T

A

2



Mendocino Coast Health Care District

Special Session Board of Directors Meeting, January 23,2020
Page 2 of 2

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

BOARD OF DIRECTOR

SPECIAL SESSION

FORT BRAGG, CA

THURSDAY,JANUARY 23, 2020

1. CALL TO ORDER:

The Board of Directors of the Mendocino Coast Health Care District convened at 6:00 p.m. at 700
River Drive, Fort Bragg, CA 95437: President Jessica Grinberg presiding

Ms. Grinberg stated there are no action items on tonight's agenda; therefore during the Study
Session time the Board will not be communicating with the community. She invited the community
to stay for the meeting and observe the process.

2. ROLL CALL: Arnold, Grinberg, Redding, McColley, Lund
ABSENT: None

3. COMMENTS FROM THE COMMUNITY

Community members discussed the possible closure of the OBDepartment; some wanted to keep it
open and some wanted to close it.

4. Information: Study Session regarding the Future of OB Services on the Mendocino Coast: Ms. Jessica
Grinberg, President

Severai staff members/nurses from Wiilits Memorial Hospital and Ukiah Valley Hospital attended the
meeting and spoke.
^ Howard Hospital closed their OB Department in 1987. Since that time they:

*> They work closely with the local doulas
•> The nurses have special training; they are NRP certified, and they carry pediatric resuscitation
*> The doctors are well versed in delivering babies
❖ They now stabilize and transfer
•> They are in constant conversation with Ukiah Valley Hospital
<* Have telehealth services with UC Davis

<• They up staff in order to be able to cover the ER in case the physician or an RN need to
accompany the mother in the ambulance

^ Ukiah Valley Hospital has 1 to 2 patients from Fort Braggcome to their hospital to deliver their babies
weekly.

V Lucresha Renteria, CEO Mendocino Coast Clinics stated:
V The clinic is currently a pre-natal care provider for women currently delivering at MCDH, as well as

early pre-natal for women who are transferring to other hospitals to deliver.
^ High risk patients are transferred to UCSF.
V Ultra sounds are referred to MCDH.

^ MCC is preparing a transfer agreement with Mendocino Community Health Center who runs Care for
Her in both Ukiah and Wiilits to transfer their prenatal patients.
MCC provides half of the pediatric & OB on-cali coverage each month.
If the OB Department closes, MCC will lose a significant amount of business.

^ Dr. William Miller, Chief of Staff stated that;
^ A task force has been formed in order to identify what the issues are from a medical perspective. The

task force consists of Dr. John Deigado, Task Force Chair; Dr. Robin Serrahn, ER Physician; Dr. Brent
Wright, OBGYN; Dr. Lynette Chevalier, Pediatrician; Dr. Chris Robshaw, Pediatrician; Dr. Zoe Berna,
Family Practice; Dr. Barbara Kilian, ER Physician, Dr. Kenneth Susman, General Surgeon. Lynn Finiey,
CNO& Davey Beak, Ambulance Manger were invited to participate as well.
<• The task force will create an outline of what a Stabilization & Transfer plan would look like.



Mendocino Coast Health Care District

Special Session Board of Directors Meeting, January 23,2020
Page 2 of 2

*> Create a transition plan/model.
❖ To test the plan/model.

^ The Medical Staff is looking to the Board to make a decision, then they will come up with a set policy that
follow this outline, and they will ensure that all concerns/challenges are addressed in the policy.

^ Training will be the key. Theambulance crew will need to be trained not only in terms of transport, but
also if they are called to someone's home to be able to do initial assessments and communicate that to
the ER.

^ Or. Miller estimated the timeline of gettingeveryonetrained and readywould be 30 to 45 days.

^ Ms. Grinberg asked Ms. McColley to look Into alternative solutions to keep maternal child health
on the coast and what things could be offered. Ms. McColley talked about women's health and
birth centers. Ms. McColley stated that her decision will be driven by high quality and safety of
care.

^ Ms. McColley gave a power point presentation regarding birth centers.
*1* California works with American Association of Birth Centers. Being on the coast,

everyone In the area would need to collaborate. These are also known as alternative
birth centers.

^ Dr. BuzGraham would like to apply for a grant for a women's health center.

5. Adiourn:

The meeting adjourned at 8:30

Ms. Jessica Grinberg, President
Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Mr. Steve Lund, Vice President

Board of Directors

These minutes constitute a portion of the official record of the Board and are the written record of the
proceedings. Documents distributed to the Board of Directors at the meeting are available for public
review except legally privileged or confidential documents.



A



MENDOCINO COAST

TITLE: Patient Visitation

DISTRICT HOSPITAL
POUCY#: 829

Department(s): Administration PollcyTech Version #: 2
Policy Owner: Wayne Allen
Approvers: BODand CEO

Date Created: No Date Set

Last PolicyTech Review Date: No Review Date
Last PolicyTech Revision Date: 12/03/2019

PURPOSE: To set expectations for family and friends visiting patients in the hospital.

POLICY:

I. Mendocino Coast District Hospital promotes a patient and family centered approach to care and will
maintain a therapeutic environment, patient safety and personal privacy for our patients.

II. Visitors are any guests of the patient, including but not limited to, family, friends, domestic partners
or support persons.

III. The healthcare team should be flexible in response to patient needs and preferences.
IV. Visitors will only be denied visitation for a legitimate reason which must be validated by leadership.
V. There may be exceptions to these guidelines. The health care team, using professional judgment,

will consider a patient's unique circumstances when applying these guidelines.
VI. Although all hours are visitation hours, after 8:00 p.m. visitors must go through the emergency

department to gain access to the inpatient units.
VII. All employees are to observe patient-visiting and privacy regulations when such visiting is for

reasons that are personal or not job-related.

PROTOCOL:

I. Considerations for visitation in all departments
A. Clinical and emotional needs ofthe patient
B. Limits set by the patient
C. The length and frequency of visits
D. Space limitations In patient rooms
E. Shift change and the need for minimal interruptions
F. Visitors may be asked to leave during procedures
G. Visitors must not put the patient at risk or contribute negatively to the health of the patient
H. Anadult may spend the night with the patient Ifthere is adequate space and it contributes to

the well-being of the patient
1. The visitor must be able to safety stay alone and take care of his/her own needs
2. Visitor may not sleep on the hospital bed unless they are the parent of a pediatric patient

II. Visitor behavior in all departments
A. Visitors are expected to adhere to conduct supportive of a healing environment
B. Visitors must follow environmental safety rules set by the facility (i.e. smoking, firearms, etc.)
C. Be as quiet as possible in the corridors and while in patient rooms
D. Visiting children under the age of 13 should be accompanied by an adult other than the patient
E. Visitors are to wash their hands before and after entering patients room and follow ail infection

control policies
F. Visitors may not tamper with medical equipment or give treatments without prior notification

to the primary nurse
G. Visitors may be asked to leave if they become disruptive or interfere with the general comfort,

healing, privacy or care of patients, visitors, or staff
H. Visitors may not consume alcohol or illegal drugs while on the hospital campus

Page 1 of 2



TITLE: Patient Visitation

.mendocino coast

DISTRICT HOSPITAl. POUCY#: 829

DepartmentCs): Administration PolicyTech Version #: 2

Policy Owner: Wayne Alien
Approvers: BODand CEO

Date Created: No Date Set

Last PolicyTech Review Date: No Review Date
Last PolicyTech Revision Date: 12/03/2019

III. Patient and visitor education in all departments
A. The patient should be instructed on their rights regarding visitation
B. The balance between providing support to the patient and allowing the patient sufficient rest

and privacy should be discussed
C. Clear expectations should be provided about what visitors can do to assist in supporting the

patient's care, where they can be on the unit, and limitations on their participation
IV. Emergency department specific

A. There are no pre-set visiting hours
8. Patient will be allowed one support person at the bedside
C. Visitors, when not at the bedside, must wait in the lobby

V. Critical care unit specific
A. Visitors should be limited to two at a time

B. Visitors, when not at the bedside, must wait in the hallway
C. Children visiting shall be at the discretion of the healthcare team and the patient

VI. Peri-anesthesia services specific
A. Visitors are not routinely allowed in the acute recovery areas with the following exceptions:

1. Children 18 and younger are permitted to have parents/guardians with them
2. Patients with special needs may have family/guardians at their bedside
3. Children visiting shall be at the discretion of the healthcare team and patient

VII. Obstetrics specific
A. Visitors must check in when they first arrive
B. Must be free of illness or recent exposure to communicable diseases (e.g. Chicken pox)
C. Required to wash their hands thoroughly before holding an infant
D. Visitors to the nursery should be limited to two persons

Page 2 of 2



4



MENDOCINO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

Authorization for Release of Verbal Information to Others

*To obtain written records an authorization to release medical records must be obtained

Many of our patients allow family members (spouse, significant other, parents or children) or other
specified persons to call and request the result of tests, procedures and financial information. Under
the requirements for HIPAA, we are not allowed to give this information to anyone without the patient's
consent.

If you wish to have your medical information, any diagnostic test results and/or financial information
released to any family member or other specified persons, you must complete and sign this form.

This authorization will remain in effect for one year. You have the right to revoke this consent, in
writing, at any time, except where we have already made disclosures in reliance to your prior consent.

I authorize Mendocino Coast District Hospital, Home Health and/or North Coast Family Health Center
to release the following information to the individuals listed below;

• Ail health information pertaining to my medical history, mental or physical condition and treatment

• Only information related to:

Names of persons I authorize release to:

1.

2.

3.

4.

Relation to Patient:,

Relation to Patient:

Relation to Patient:.

Relation to Patient:

Authorization Regarding Telephone Messages (Please initial all that apply)

Primary phone number:

, I authorize you to leave a detailed message on my home or cell number regarding appointments

. I authorize you to leave a detailed message on my home or ceil number regarding medical
treatment, care, test results or financial information

. Iauthorize you to leave a message with anyone who answers the phone

. Messages may only be left with

Patient/Patient Representative Signature Patient/Rep Printed Name Date/Time

Witness Signature Witness Printed Name Date/Time

AUTHORIZATION TO RELEASE INFORMATION

MCDH-806 (01/2020)

PATIENT IDENTIFICATION LABEL



B

5



Mendocino Coast District Hospital plans on eliminating its obstetrics Department March 31,2020 due to

decreasing births and increasing costs of providing this service.

The Obstetrics Department consists of 2 labor & delivery rooms, three post-partum rooms and a

nursery. We have one fulltime employee that this will affect. This employee has been cross training to

another position and will be retained unless they chose otherwise.

The 3 nearest facilities that offer obstetric services are as follows:

Ukiah Valley Medical Center
275 Hospital Dr, Ukiah, OA 95482
57 miles

Santa Rosa Memorial Hospital
1165 Montgomery Dr, Santa Rosa, CA 95405 • (707) 525-5300
118 miles

Sutler Santa Rosa Regional Hospital
30 Mark West Springs Rd Santa Rosa CA9S403
113 miles

Interested parties may offer comments at Mendocino Coast District Hospital located at 700 River Drive
Fort Bragg CA. Phone number at which comments can be left at is (707) 961-4610.

Our Chief Executiveofficer is Wayne Allen. He can be reached at the same address (707) 961-4610



Labor and Delivery Transition to Stabilize and Transfer

Mendociru Coast District Hospitai

February 21,2020

Background

a. Birth rates have been deciining. Fiscal year 17 saw 106 births, fiscalyear 19 saw 81.

That is a 24% decrease. Caiendar year 2019 we saw 57 births

b. Unable to find permanent staff and the department is run by Traveiiing RN's. Not able

to staff the department fully. Requires 8.5 FTE's, only have 4 FTE's. it is variable and

can get up to 6 FTE's at times but not consistently.

c. Lack of adequate MOcoverage causing high Locums cost for 14 days OBcoverage and

14 days of Pediatric coverage.

Community Notification Board Meeting open to the pubiic 1/2/20

a. Been in discussion with community since 2016 about the viabilityof OB

b. January 3,2020. Town Hall Community Presentation Alternative OB solutions ifwe do

not have a L8iD Department. Question and answer session included.

c. January Board of Directors Workshop in public regarding Labor and Delivery.

Transport

a. We own our own Ambulance i ervice that Is licensed as a CCT

b. Local EMS Ischanging their guidelines to allow transport of well infants younger than 28

days

c. Per discussion with Beta, skin to skin transport between infant and mother is the best,

second In wrapped in saran wrap

d. Develop Protocolsfor Critical CareTransport RN that would Include high risk OB
i. Discussionoccurred 2/5/2020 that included our liability Maternal Health

representative and our account representative.

1. Safe to transport without a provider or second personnel for stable

labor

2. Emergency C-Sections are rare and would be based on Maternal

stability

3. Consent to Transfer - there needs to be documentation of explicit

conversation regarding delivery at MCDH ED versus transport to nearest
facility that has the services needed.

4. Best to transport infant skin to skin with Mom. Next best is wrapped in

saran wrap. Not in isolette or seat belted

5. Recommends $.T.A.B.L.E training for staff

6. Supportive of CCT- protocols and training in place

7. Does not recommend FHM In the ED, if we can not do the intervention

8. Provided ENA Position Statement and Emtala

e. Partnership's Transportation Benefit

i. Available to Partnership patients for transportation for planned appointments

Page I 1



IV. staff Education

I- RequiredAdditionalCertificationsfor ED RN's an^* Paramedics: NRP (Neonatal
Resuscitation Program) conveys an evidence-based approach to care of the newborn at
birthand facilitates effective team-based care for healthcare professionals who care for
newboms at the time of delivery.

i. Asof February10,2020 all RN's in the Emergency Department are NRP certified
with the exception of 2 Per diem RN's,one of which is getting this certification

through her full time employers. 10/12 Paramedics NRP Certified

ii. OB emergency Classes occurred February 16'" and 18'" covering postpartum
hemorrhage. Shoulder Dystocia, 08 Code and precipitous delivery.

b. S.T.A.B.LE. Neonatal education program to focus exclusively on the post-
resuscitation/pre-transport stabilization care of sick infants. Based on a mnemonic to
optimize learning, retention and recall of information, S.T.A.B.L.E. stands for the in the
program: Sugar, Temperature, Airway, Bloodpressure. Lab work, and Emotional
support.A seventh module. Quality Improvement stresses the professional responsibility
of improvingand evaluatingcare providedto sick infants.

1. scheduled March 14'".

1. UCSF scheduling a stable course with UVMC that we may be able to

participate in.

c. R.E.A.C.H High RiskOB Emergencies and Neonatal Stabilization March 312020

(tentative)

d. A.L.S.0

i. Working with Darlene Harris to schedule for ED Providers

e. UCSF 2 birthing scenarios with our high-fidelity simulators: a mom with an eclamptic

seizure who has a normal birth and thenthe 2"*' delivery would bea breech
delivery. Forthe baby we could do a normal newborn resuscitation for the eclamptic
mom, and then for the breech delivery the baby cnuid require a fullcode and have HIE

and need UCSF called for cooling transport. Two sessions, one in the AM and one in the

PM. Performed in the ED

f. EBSCO courseswith CEU's identified as an annual competencyfor ED RN's
g. Working with Mendocino Community College to accesstheir Sim Lab OB mannequin for

ED Staff training

h. UVMC willing to have ED staffto come to theirOB departmentfortraining.
i. Anita is working with Staff and UVMC to schedule.

Ii. ED RN's participating in births at MCDH.
V. Current OB Staff

a. 10.8 FIE NOC RN: Cross trainingto an open NOC House Supervisor Position
b. 1 Per diemStaffconvertedfromTemporary Staff
c. The rest of the staff is currently temporary staff with 13week contracts

VI. Timeline Close service March 31,2020

VII. Partnerships with Community Providers

Page I 2



a. Prenatal and postpartum care Mendocino Coast Clinics will continue to provide

Prenatal, post-natal and pediatric services

b. Caringfor Her - Mendocino Coast Clinic isworking with Caringfor Her to create a MOU

to transfer care at 28 weeks, possibly co-manage between 28 to 34 weeks

c. Facilities to provide L&O

i. UVMC

1. UVMC has Pediatric Hospitalist.

ii. SRMH

iii. Sutter Santa Rosa

iv. UCSF-high risk

VIII. Equipment (Eric is constructing full list of equipment we have)

a. Hemorrhage Cart: will move from L&D to ED

b. Infant Resuscitator (PANDA)

c. Yellow Cart- L&D supplies

i. Darlene will assist In creating this modeled after St Helena

IX. Policies (in development to be completed by 3/31/2020)

a. Emergency or Precipitous Delivery in the Emergency Department

b. Pregnant Patient Medical Screeningin the ED (EMTALA)
c. Critical Care Transport for Registered Nurses (MCDH employees)

d. Infant iecurity

e. Hemorrhage

f. Assessing the Pregnant Woman

g. Others as identified by the working team of 08 and ED RN's
X. C-Sections- General Surgeonsare on callfor allsurgical emergencies including C-Sections

XI. Pediatrics

a. UVMC has a pediatric Hospitals

b. Telemedlclne In the ED with UC Davis.

c. UCSF MOU for Infants under 28 days.

XII. How do other hospitals do this?

a. Lucresha spoke with Bear Mtn Clinic that Islocated In a similargeographicarea near Fall
River Mills Hospital.

I. OBClosed approximately 2 years ago

II. No births have occurred In the ED

III. Increase In "roadside" births"

b. Anitaspoke with Healdsburg

I. Staff are required to have NRP certification

II. Have infant warmer

Iii. Onlypolicy related to OB in the ED Isa policy regardingInfant warmer and the
supplies to maintain,

iv. There is no plan for emergency c-sections

V. They have not had a birth In their ED.

c. Anita has reached out to Sonoma several times but has not heard back.

Page I 3



d. St Helena Recently closed their services

Emails out:

notifying of plans to close L&D. Requestinginfo regardingeducational resources

Leanoa (S) Stanford

Erin @ CMQCC

Megan Cyrus - Stanford_ Newborn Screening

Kimberley Johnston UCSF - Kimberley responded and is workingwith us to provide education

Page I 4



Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

of
L

&
D

T
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
to

S
ta

b
il

iz
e

a
n

d
T

ra
n

sf
er

C
o

m
p

an
y

N
am

e

Pr
oj

ec
tL

ea
d

irn
n

FIn
le*

CN
O

Mn
n

5
M

en
,

2
/9

/2
0

2
0

P
rc

c
e
it

tr
s
n

e
d

In
2

D
1

6

P
lu

M
1

E
D

S
U

N
C

d
u

o
ti

o
A

A
rt

tv
lT

r

.
T

O

C
O

R
N

'S
N

R
P

C
ar

U
fi

ai
)

D
is

pl
ay

W
e«

k:

2
/5

/2
0

2
/1

5
/2

0

Pa
pa

m
ed

lc
iN

R
FC

er
tif

ie
d

i'
i.

B
S

*
"'

2/
5/

20
2/

15
/2

0

O
S

E
rr

ar
g

en
ck

es

H
ig

h
R

is
k0

0
E

m
er

ga
na

ai
an

d
N

eo
n

at
al

S
ab

il
lu

U
on

/R
E

A
C

N

U
C

S
F

O
B

S
im

u
la

tl
o

n
i

T
as

ks
A

.L
.S

.O
.rT

ob
as

ch
ad

L
le

d)

P
h

as
es

Su
bm

itt
in

g
N

ol
if

lc
aO

an
to

C
O

PH
.M

an
do

cl
no

6
0

5
,P

ub
lic

P
h

a
s
t

4
It

ta
d

ln
e
si

B
oa

rd
A

pp
ro

va
l

N
o

U
fl

c
a
ti

o
iu

P
u

b
li

sh
e
d

Po
lic

yd
ev

al
op

m
am

Pr
ot

oc
ol

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

D
o

cu
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
P

av
el

o
p

m
en

t

E
Q

uf
pm

an
t

Id
an

tl
fi

ca
oo

n/
te

it
ln

g/
lo

ca
il

on

Jn
sa

rt
n

e
w

rC
M

ta
e
o

V
T

A
d

a
n

a

9
/1

4
/2

0
3

/1
4

/2
0

2
/1

6
/2

0
2

/1
0

/2
0

9
/9

1
/2

0
9

/9
1

/2
0

S
/1

2
/2

0
S

/1
2

/2
0

2/
19

/2
0

8
/1

2
/2

0

2/
27

/2
0

2/
2B

/2
0

2/
29

/2
0

9
/1

/2
0

2
/9

/2
0

9
/2

1
/2

0

2
/5

/2
0

9
/2

1
/2

0

2
/5

/2
0

9
/2

1
/2

0

2
/6

/2
0

9
/2

2
/2

0

2/
10

/2
0

'9
/2

6/
20

F
e
b

a
.2

0
2

0
Fa

b
1

0
,2

0
2

0
Fa

b
1

7
.2

0
2

0
Fa

b
24

,2
02

0

1
1

a
s

a
1

<
a
l
i
o

i
i
u

i
i
u

i
s

I
2

4
2

S
2

4
2

7
2

1
2

9





MENDOCINO COAST DISTRICT HOSPITAL

DATE: February 18,2020

TO; BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: WILLIAM MILLER. MD

CHIEF OF STAFF

SUBJECT: MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

The Medical Executive Committee considered and approved the following medical staff
privileges and appointments and recommends these to the Board of Directors forapproval:

Appointments to MedicalStafT/Allied Health Professional -ProvisionalStatus
> l-Wen Tseng. DO- Department of Medicine-Emergency Medicine
> Donatd Lombardi. MD- Department of Medicine-Oncology-Hematology
> Sandra Mendel. MD- Department of Medicine-internal Medicine-North Coast

Family Health Center
>

Temporary Privileges (As weawait Board Meeting)
> Donald Lombard!. MD- Department of Medicine-Oncology-Hematology

(FebmarylO, 2020-Febnjary 27,2020)

Re-Appointments to Medical Staff/Allied Health Professional Staff
> Kevin Miller. MD- Department of Surgery-Ophthalmology
> Ramesh Nathan MD-Deoartment of Medicine-Infectious Disease

> Brent Wright. MD- Department of Surgery-Obstetrics-Gynecology

Resignations from MedicalStaff
> Maver Horensten. DO- Department of Medicine-North Coast Family Health

Center (Effective February 1,2020)
> Robert Pollard. MD- Department of Medicine-Emergency Medicine (Effective

February 1. 2020)
> John Rochat. MD-Department of Medicine-Oncology-Hematology (Effective

January 1. 2020)

Appointments to V-Rad Tele-Radiology Staff
> Christopher Lawton. MD- Department of Medicine-Tele radiology
> Richard Mitchell. MD- Department of Medicine-Tele radiology

Page 1 of 1

Department of Medical Staff Services
William Lee, CPCS, CPMSM- Director
700 River Drive • Fort Bragg. California 95437

Phone: (707 961-4740 • Fax: (707) 961-4786



7



MCDH

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
FORT BRAGG, OA

Unaudited Financial Statements

For the month ended January 31, 2020



Table of Contents

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA

For the month ended January 31, 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

BALANCE SHEET - ASSETS

BALANCE SHEET - LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS - CURRENT MONTH

STATEMENT OF OPERAT ONS - YEAR-TO-DATE

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS - 13 MONTH TREND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

KEY OPERATING STATIST CS

FINANC AL RAT OS AND BENCHMARKS

PAGE 1

PAGE 2

PAGE 3

PAGE 4

PAGES

PAGE 6

PAGE 7

PAGE 9

PAGE 10

PAGE 11



MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
EXECUTIVE FINANCIAL SUMMARY

For the month ended .lanuary 31,2020

;»SSETS

Current Assets

Assets Whose Use is Limited

Property, Plant and Equipment (Net)

Total Unrestricted Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities

Long-Term Debt

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

Revenue:

Gross Patient Revenues

Deductions From Revenue

Net Patient Revenues

Other Operating Revenue
Totai Operating Revenues

Expenses:

Salaries, Benefits & Contract Labor
Purchased Services & Physician Fees
Supply Expenses
Interest Expense

Depreciation Expense
Other Operating Expenses

Total Expenses

NET OPERATING SURPLUS

Non-Operating Revenue/(Expenses)

TOTAL NET SURPLUsf

DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO

ICURRENT RATIO

DAYS CASH ON HAND

1/31/2020

514,087.523

5,007,024

14,406,702

33,501,249

6/30/2019
uo

312,731,701 '00

5,608,305
300

14,554,636

300

32,894,642

$33,501,249 I 532,894,642 I oo

511.440.029

12.698,162

24,138,191
9,363,058

533.501,249

510,963.059

12,979,083

23,942,142

8.952.507

532.894,642

jp/BCBENSESAYTQ- .
ACTUAL ~] BUDGET

567.407,708

(34,707.052)

32,700,656

1,357,908

34,058,564

20.105.351

6,422,035

5,212,597

0

779,270

2,789,020

35,308,369

(1,249,805)

1,660.356

$410,551

$68,628,185

(37,533,119)

31,295,066

1,605,750

32,900,816

19,775,200

5,425,463

5.607,003

0

875,147

2,742,622

34,425,435

(1,524,619)

1,541,386

$16,767

REQUIREMENT \ ACTUAL

NET DAYS IN ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

HOSPITAL MARGINS

Operating Margin Total Profit Margin

DAYS CASH ON HAND

SALARY AND BENEFIT EXPENSE AS A
PERCENTAGE OF NET PATIENT REVENUE

• MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DiSTF 1/31/2020
• Budtiet 1/31/2020

• PriorFiscalYearEnd 1 6/30/2019



Balance Sheet - Assets

WIENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA

For the month ended January 31, 2020

Current

Month

1/31/2020

CURRENT ASSETS

CASH S 1.904,795

PARCEL TAX REVENUE AGCT 710,727

PATIENT RECEIVABLES 17,616,005

LESS: RESERVES FOR ALLOWANCES FOR RECEIVABLES (10,436,859)

NET PATIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES 7,179.146

ESTIMATED THIRD-PARTY PAYOR SETTLEMENTS 1.797,419

OTHER RECEIVABLES 1,125,691

INVENTORIES 789,427

PREPAID EXPENSES 580,318

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS $ 14,087,523

ASSETS WHOSE USE IS LIMITED

BOARD DESIGNATED FUNDS

PLAN FUND

SPECIFIC PURPOSE FUND

BONDS

BOND COSTS

TOTAL LIMITED USE ASSETS

$ 3.424,031

13,774

0

1,126,406

442.813

$ 5,007.024

PROPERTY. PLANT. & EQUIPMENT

LAND

LAND IMPROVEMENTS

BUILDINGS & IMPROVEMENTS

LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS

EQUIPMENT

CONSTRUCTION-IN-PROGRESS

GROSS PROPERTY. PLANT, & EQUIPMENT

LESS: ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

S 117,490

805.398

24,604.464

546,439

20.875,168

1,789,074

$ 48,738,033

(34,331.331)
NET PROPERTY. PLANT, & EQUIPMENT S 14,406,702

TOTAL ASSETS $ 33,501,249

PAGES

Prior

Year End

6/30/2019

S 1,145,996

872,982

17.107,938

(12.458.158)

4,649,780

3,612,009

1,141,535

839,076

470,323

$ 12,731,701

4.376,979

13.774

0

746.302

471,250

$ 5,608,305

5 117,490

805.398

24,604.464

545,439

20.430,219

1,602,686

S 48,106,696

(33,552.060)

S 14,554,636

$ 32,894,642



Balance Sheet - Liabilities and Net Assets

WIENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA

For the month ended January 31, 2020

Current

Month

1/31/2020

CURRENT LIABILITIES

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE S 6.086.170

ACCRUED PAYROLL S 332.982

ACCRUED VACATION/HOLIDAY/SICK PAY S 1,016.039

PAYROLL TAXES PAYABLE $ 24.056

ESTIMATED THIRD-PARTY PAYOR SETTLEMENTS $ 1,081,614

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES $ 701,796

INTEREST PAYABLE $ 972,635

PREVIOUS FY PENSION PAYABLE $ 877,969

CURRENT PORTION OF LTD (BONDS/MORTGAGES) S 83.333

CURRENT PORTION OF LTD (OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES) $ 263.435
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES $ 11,440,029

LONG TERM LIABILITIES

BONDS PAYABLE $ 9,698.742

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES $ 2,434,718

CURRENT FY PENSION PAYABLE (NON-CURRENT LIABILITY) $ 564,702
TOTAL LONG TERM LIABILITIES $ 12,698,162

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 24,138,191

FUND BALANCE

UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANACE

TEMPORARY RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE

Net Revenue/(Expenses) (YTD)

S 8,952,507

S 410,551

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 9,363,058

TOTAL LIABILITIES

AND NET ASSETS $ 33,501,249

Prior

Year End

6/30/2019

5 4,369,232

S 859.231

S 1,149.245

S 60.642

S 1,721,522

S 911,488

S 1,013.730

S 877.969

$ 10,963,059

S 9,810,624

S 3,168,459

S

$ 12,979,083

$ 23,942,142

S 7,591,999

S

S 1,360,508

$ 8,952,507

S 32,894,642



statement of Revenue and Expense

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA
For the month ended January 31,2020

CURRENT MONTH

Positive

PAGES

Prior

Actual Budget (Negative) Percentage Year

01/31/20 01/31/20 Variance Variance 01/31/19

GROSS PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES

INPATIENT S 2.259.685 S 1.842.443 S 417.242 23% S 1.946.223

SWING BED s 398.059 s 386.177 S 11.882 3% S 271.778

OUTPATIENT s 7.075.776 s 7.121.146 s (45.370) -1% S 7.884.721

NORTH COAST FAMILY HEALTH CENTER s 530.514 s 451.124 s 79.390 18% S 463.344

HOME HEALTH s 117.815 s 123.173 s (5.358) -4% 3 123.260

TOTAL PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES S 10.381.849 s 9.924.063 s 457.786 5% S 10.689.326

DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUE

CONTRACTUAL ALLOWANCES S (5.256.163) s (5.429.108) s 172.945 3% S (6.074.385)

POLICY DISCOUNTS s (8.696) s (8.605) s (91) -1% s (6.458)

STATE PROGRAMS s 41.823 s 162.376 s (120.553) -74% s 96.000

SAO DEBT s (285.523) s (105.933) s (179.590) -170% s (109.000)

CHARITY s (1.101) 3 (29.126) s 28.025 96% s (46.276)

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUES s (5.509.660) 3 (5.410.396) s (99.264) -2% s (6.140.119)

NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES s 4.872.189 3 4.513.667 s 358.522 8% 3 4.549.207

OTHER OPERATING REVENUES s 187.885 3 263.503 s (75.618) -29% 3 206.803

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES $ 5,060,074 3 4,777,170 s 282,904 6% 3 4,756,010

OPERATING EXPENSES
SALARIES & WAGES - STAFF s 1.558.203 3 1.545.353 s (12.850) -1% 3 1.577.412

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS s 758.773 3 748.260 s (10.513) -1% 3 795.016

PROFESSIONAL FEES - PHYSICIAN s 768.463 3 539.061 s (229.402) -43% 3 458.183

OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES - REGISTRY s 603.931 3 556.365 s (47.566) -9% 3 567.028

OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES - OTHER s 152.996 S 126.045 s (26.951) -21% 3 206.653

SUPPLIES - DRUGS s 397.969 3 490.816 s 92.847 19% 3 496.553

SUPPLIES - MEDICAL s 271.314 3 245.246 s (26.068) -11% 3 273.077

SUPPLIES-OTHER s 73.297 3 88.429 s 15.132 17% 3 63.509

PURCHASED SERVICES s 129.173 3 117.713 s (11.460) -10% 3 94.425

REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE s 72.873 3 70.047 s (2.826) -4% 3 66.037

UTIUTIES s 78.301 3 74.630 s (3.671) -5% S 72.356

INSURANCE s 47.355 3 53.376 s 6.021 11% 3 36.453

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION s 111.255 3 125.577 s 14.322 11% 3 125.735

RENTAL/LEASE s 55.698 3 55.135 s (553) -1% 3 55.751

OTHER EXPENSE s 139.599 3 124.588 s (15.011) -12% 3 142.970

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES J. Sj219j200^ 3 4,960,641 5 (258,559) -5% 3 5,031,158

1NETOPERATING SURPLUS (LOSS) $ (159,126) 3 (183,471) $ 24,345 13% 3 (275,148)1

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
OPERATING TAX REVENUES s 70.000 3 66.726 s 3.274 5% 3 65.000

INVESTMENT INCOME s 5.COO 3 6.605 s (1.605) -24% 3 17.020

DONATIONS s - 3 27.457 s (27.457) -100% 3 •

INTEREST EXPENSE (ALL) s (39.828) 3 (43.240) s 3.412 •8% 3 (42.674)

EXTRAORDINARY GAINS/(LOSS) s - 3 216 s (216) •100% 3 -

BOND EXPENSE (ALL) s 1.112 3 1.131 s (19) -2% 3 1.112

TAX SUBSIDIES FOR GO BONDS s 27.716 3 28.170 s (454) -2% 3 27.716

PARCEL TAX REVENUES s 133.000 3 135.180 s (2.180) -2% 3 133.000

TOTAL NON OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) s 197,000 3 222,245 5 (25,245) -11% 3 201,174

ITOTAL NET INCOME (LOSS) s 37,874 3 38,774 5 (900) -2% 3 (73,974)1

Operating Margin -3.1% -3.8% -5.8%

Total Profit Margin 0.7% 0.8% -1.6%

EBIDA -0.9% -1.2% -3.1%

Cash Flow Margin 2.4% 2.9% 0.5%



statement of Revenue and Expense

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA
For the month ended January 31,2020

PAGE 6

YEAR-TO-DATE

Positive Prior

Actual Budget (Negative) Percentage Year

01/31/20 01/31/20 Variance Variance 01/31/19

GROSS PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES
INPATIENT S 11.745.918 S 12.778.241 S (1.032.323) •8% S 12.534.380

SWING BED S 3.753.500 S 2.678.335 S 1.075.165 40% S 1.816.216

OUTPATIENT S 48.162.791 S 49.388.580 s (1.225.789) -2% S 48.775.009

NORTH COAST FAMILY HEALTH CENTER S 2.875.853 S 3.128.764 s (252.911) -8% S 3.186.232

HOME HEALTH S 869.646 S 854.265 s 15.381 2% S 839.288

TOTAL PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES S 67,407.708 S 68.828.185 s (1.420.477) -2% S 67.151.125

DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUE
CONTRACTUAL ALLOWANCES S (34.956.736) S (37.662.903) s 2.706.167 7% S (36.843.588)

POLICY DISCOUNTS S (52.490) S (59.678) s 7.188 12% S (53.435)

STATE PROGRAMS s 1.364.823 S 1.126.162 s 238.661 21% s 735.829

BAD DEBT s (910.808) S (734.699) $ (176.109) -24% s (608.460)

CHARITY s (151.841) s (202.001) s 50.160 25% s (166.544)

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUES S (34.707.052) S (37.533,119) s 2.826.067 8% S (37.136.198)

NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES S 32.700.656 S 31.295,066 s 1.405.590 4% S 30.014.927

OTHER OPERATING REVENUES S 1.357.908 S 1.605.750 s (247.842) •15% S 1.088.868

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES ^SJ4j058j5^ S 32,900,816 $ 1,157,748 4% s 31,083,795

OPERATING EXPENSES

SALARIES & WAGES - STAFF S 10.691.261 s 10.726.885 s 35.624 0% s 10.412.024

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS s 5.153.865 s 5.189.652 s 35.787 1% s 5.134.767

PROFESSIONAL FEES - PHYSICIAN s 4.286.765 s 3.739..47 s (547.618) -15% s 3.545.574

OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES - REGISTRY s 4.260.225 s 3.858.663 s (401.562) •10% s 3.654.885

OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES - OTHER s 1.304,058 s 875.155 s (428.903) -49% s 754.393

SUPPLIES-DRUGS s 3.235.604 s 3.292.780 s 57.176 2% s 3.040.372

SUPPLIES-MEDICAL s 1.455.440 s 1.700.888 s 245,448 14% s 1.675.115

SUPPLIES-OTHER s 521.653 s 613.335 s 91.682 15% s 531.808

PURCHASED SERVICES s 831.212 s 811.161 s (20.051) -2% s 756.926

REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE s 461.313 s 485.818 $ 24.515 5% s 502.607

UTILITIES s 530.784 s 517.531 s (13.203) -3% s 519.606

INSURANCE s 376.736 s 370.190 s (6.546) -2% s 338.140

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION s 779,270 s 875.147 s 95.877 11% s 894.505

RENTAULEASE s 413.576 s 382.394 s (31.182) •8% s 371.997

OTHER EXPENSE s 1.006.611 s 986.629 s (19.982) -2% s 816.415

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $ 35,308,373 5 34,425,435 s (882,938) -3% s 32,949,134

INET OPERATING SURPLUS (LOSS) s (1,249,805) s (1,524,619) s 274,814 -18% $ (1,865,339)1

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
OPERATING TAX REVENUES s 490.002 s 462.779 s 27.223 6% s 455.000

INVESTMENT INCOME s 47.050 s 45.806 s 1.244 3% s 52.338

DONATIONS s 279.065 s 190.427 s 88.638 47% s 6.583

INTEREST EXPENSE (ALL) s (281,448) S (299.889) s 18.441 -6% s (301.729)

EXTRAORDINARY GAINS/(LOSS) s - s 1.505 s (1.505) -100% s 2.118

BOND EXPENSE (ALL) s 7.784 s 7.842 s 58 1% s 7.784

TAX SUBSIDIES FOR GO BONDS s 194.012 s 195.375 s (1.363) -1% s 194.012

PARCEL TAX REVENUES s 923.887 s 937.541 s (13.654) -1% s 931.000

TOTAL NON OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 1jM0j35Z S 1,541,388 $ 119,082 8% $ 1,347,106

(TOTALNET INCOME(LOSS) s 410,551 5 16,767 $ 393,784 2349% s (515,233)1

Operating Margin -3.7% •4.6% -6.0%

Total Profit Margin 1.2% 0.1% -1.7%

EBiOA -1.4% -2.0% -3.1%

Cash Flow Margin 2.9% 2.1% 0.6%



statement of Revenue and Expense -13 Month Trano

MENOOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT PAGE 7

FORT BRAGG, CA 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual

1/31/2020 12/31/2019 11/30/2019 10/31/2019 9/30/2019 8/31/2019 7/31/2019 6/30/2019

GROSS PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES
INPATIENT 2.259685 1.782.284 1 495 025 1 153.050 1 604.445 1 417 030 2 041 6.10 1 793 781

SWING BED 358.059 452.101 591.134 534.825 563 316 578.121 635 444 620 020

OUTPATIENT 7 075 776 6.885.146 5.866 234 6.533.241 6.928 288 6 941 079 7 S25.5B4 6.606 140

NORTH COAST FAMILY HEALTH CEN' 530.514 360.566 375.950 393 997 398.500 358.273 458 053 362 717

HOME HEALTH 117.815 114.114 96.294 130.250 117.874 129.099 164 200 128 396

TAL PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES 10,381.849 9.594.211 8.424,638 8,745,363 9.61^924 9.423.602 11.225.121 9.511.054

•EDUCTIONS FROM REVENUE
(4 889 557)CONTRACTUAL ALLOWANCES (4,931.163) (3.680.823) (4.465.213) (4.864.781) (5.269.096) (5.360.482) (6060.1781

POLICY DISCOUNTS (8.696) (5.254) (6.346) (8.8371 (3.393) (11 141) (8.823) '211 250)

STATE PROGRAMS 41 823 220 500 220.500 220.600 220.500 220.500 220 500 459 275

BAD DEBT (285.523) (100.000) (100.000) (99.408) (150.000) 125S77) (150 000) (563 3141

CHARITY (1 101) (11.451) (32.255) (15108) (192661 13D 242) (42.318) (167 430'i

XLDEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUES (5.184.660) (3.577.028) (4.383,314) (4,767,634) (5.221.255) (5.207.342) (6.040.819) (5.47Z276)

YET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES 5.197.189 6,017,183 4.041.324 3.977,729 4.391.669 4.216.260 5.184.302 4.038.778

OPERATING TAX REVENUES 0 0 0 0 0 0

222.760OTHER OPERATING REVENUES 187.885 178.993 253.239 145.834 211.134 148.991 231 832

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 5,385,074 6,196,176 4,294,563 4,123,663 4,602,803 4,365,251 5,416,134

OPERATING EXPENSES
1 665446SALARIES & WAGES - STAFF 1.558.203 1.486.764 1.472.959 1.531.442 1.508.063 1.549,641 1.584 168

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 758.773 733.036 704 251 720.704 716.731 732.314 788.055 863005

PROFESSIONAL FEES - PHYSICIAN 768.453 604.498 573.785 579.785 586.416 592.615 531.203 486.140

OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES - REGI! 603.931 572.176 660.928 593 362 524.969 •356.648 548.211 463441

OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES - OTHE 152.596 163.515 113.632 130.892 355.562 193.370 194,091 321 237

SUPPLIES-DRUGS 397.969 464.993 405.834 534.462 485.018 450.697 496.631 348 636

SUPPLIES-MEDICAL 271 314 215.027 136.118 169.312 187.460 '81 727 294 462 257.159

SUPPLIES-OTHER 73297 66.513 61.708 70.672 72.760 85.319 90.884 50 854

PURCHASED SERVICES 129 173 83.601 159.312 122 389 81,707 150.888 104.142 110 385

REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 72.873 47.146 54 411 101.429 71,220 60.715 53.519 77556

UTILITIES 78.301 80.366 62.264 87.158 73.180 72714 75 801 60 76:

INSURANCE 47.355 49 965 44.384 62.105 35.745 69 394 6" 739 42 5-17

INTEREST 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 111.255 112.673 111.214 111.949 110.664 '11.015 110 500 112555

RENTAIAEASE 55 698 64.964 57'354 63.474 62.348 57.509 205.716 54 321

OTHER EXPENSE 139.599 108530 157.305 135.374 181.670 120 936 0 122358

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 5,219,200 4,863,767 4,776,179 5,014,509 5,053,533 5,096,002 5,296,172

INET OPERATINGSURPLUS (LOSS) 165,874 1,342,409 (480,616) (890,946) (450,730) (730,751) 119,962 (774,880)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
7O.OO0 66 000OPERATING TAX REVENUES 70.000 70.000 70 000 70.000 70.000 70 000

INVESTMENT INCOME 5.000 5.000 17 053 5000 5.000 5 000 5 000 17 304

DONATIONS 0 183.050 33.794 0 0 12.220 0 0

INTEREST EXPENSE (ALL) (39.828) (39.734) (39.631) (40,213) (40 645) 140.199) (41 148) (41,161)

EXTRAORDINARY GAINS/(LOSS) 0 0 0 0 0 0 Q •22 163)

BOND EXPENSE (ALL) 1 112 1 112 1 112 1 112 1 112 1 112 1 1'2 1 '13

TAX SUBSIDIES FOR GO BONDS 27 716 27.715 27 716 27 716 27 716 27.715 27 7!6 27 '16

PARCEL TAX REVENUE 133.000 132.079 133000 133.000 133.000 131 704 128.104 133 GOO

. NON OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 197,000 379,223 292,994 198,615 196;183 207,553 190,784 180,748

(TOTAL NET INCOME (LOSS) 362,874 1,721,632 (187,622) (694,331) (254,547) (523,195) 310,746 (594,132)

Operating Margin 3% 22% -11% •22% •10% -17% 2% •18%

Total Profit Margin 7% 28% -4% •17% -6% -12% 6% •14%

EBIDA 5% 23% -9% •19% •7% -14% 4% •16%

Cash Flow Margin 7% 28% -5% -17% •6% -12% 6% •14%



statement of Revenue and Exf

MENOOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DIS' PAGES
FORT BRAGG, CA 9 10 11 12 13

Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual

S/31/2019 4/30/2019 3/31/2019 2/28/2019 1/31/2019

GROSS PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES

INPATIENT ' 296 892 1.449258 2..323 912 I 827.740 1.946 223

SWING BED G03.924 740.806 7.32.395 510 398 271.7/6

OUTPATIENT 7 648.177 7489.072 6 991 396 6 799 213 7.884,721

NORTH COAST FAMILY HEALTH CEN" 355.521 413678 440 820 357.755 463.344

HOME HEALTH 119.334 129.461 124 983 118 117 123.260

TAL PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES 10.028.948 10.222.275 10.813.506 9,653.228 10,689.326

DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUE

CONTRACTUAL ALLOWANCES (S 810.269) (5.634.202) (5.525.455) (5.409.176) (5.074 3851
POLICY DISCOUNTS (41.405) (9.735) (13.405) (8.089) (6.458)
STATE PROGRAMS 552.945 556.245 157 500 148 000 96.000

BAD DEBT (254.225) (147.787) 0 (86.000) (109 000)
CHARITY (33 772) (35612) (39 882) (435Z1) (45 276)

XLDEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUES (5.586.726) (5.272.090) (5.422.242) (5.398.786) (6.140.119)

^^ET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES 4.442.222 4.950,185 5.191.264 4.254.442 4.549,207

OPERATING TAX REVENUES 0 0 0

OTHER OPERATING REVENUES 235.212 131 589 179.877 251 431 205 803

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 4,677,434 5,131,774 5,371,141 4,505,873 4,766,010

OPERATING EXPENSES

SALARIES & WAGES - STAFF 1.472.457 1.556.058 2.004 021 I 419.826 1 577.412

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 742.651 728.459 762.127 755.588 795.016

PROFESSIONAL FEES - PHYSICIAN 485 547 727,967 456,645 521,380 458.183

OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES - REGIl 605.856 580,617 579,522 447.930 567.028

OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES - OTHE 336.996 329.561 232.597 324.380 206.653

SUPPLIES • DRUGS 500.098 424,393 431,693 446867 496.553

SUPPLIES-MEDICAL 159.002 251,183 225,148 259.509 273.077

SUPPLIES-OTHER 85.876 99.137 91.307 110.688 63.509

PURCHASED SERVICES 113.222 121.511 117.892 96.041 94.425

REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 56.884 51.088 71 321 57.350 66.037

UTILITIES 80.245 58 408 66 061 72.901 72 356

INSURANCE 36.013 37 864 42.782 37 864 36 453

INTEREST 0 0 0

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 135.663 113.204 100,746 125.253 125 735

RENTALA.EASE 55.991 53.005 59,316 52,775 55.751

OTHER EXPENSE 141 698 201.696 127.813 140 770 142.968

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 5,019,209 _^Jj3«j271^ 5,368,991 4,869,122 5,031,156

INET OPERATING SURPLUS (LOSS) (341,775) (212,497) 2,150 (363,249) (275,146)

NON-OPERATING REX/ENUES (EXPENSI
OPERATING TAX REVENUES 65.000 65.000 65.000 65.000 65.000
INVESTMENT INCOME 18572 4000 4.000 4 000 17 020

DONATIONS 37.547 0 13.558 0

INTEREST EXPENSE (ALL) (a 1.464) (41 841) (41.028) 140.826) (42.674)

EXTRAORDINARY GAINS/(LOSS) (34.252) 0 0 0

BOND EXPENSE (ALL) 1 112 1.112 1 112 1 112 1 112

TAX SUBSIDIES FOR GO BONDS 27 716 27 716 27 716 27 716 27 715

PARCEL TAX REVENUE 133 000 133 000 133 000 133.000 133.000

. NON OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 207,221 188,987 189,800 203.560 201,174

ITOTAL NET INCOME (LOSS) (134,554) (23,510) 191,950 (159,689) (73,972)

Operating Margin -7% -4% 0% •8% -6%

Total Profit Margin •3% 0% 4% •2%

EBIDA •4% •2% 2% •5% •3%

Cash Flow Margin -3% -1% 3% -3% •1%



statement of Cash Flows

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT PAGE 9

FORT BRAGG, CA
for the 7 months ended 1/31/20

1/31/2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net Income (Loss) 5410,551
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation 779,270
(lncrease)/Decrease in Net Patient Accounts Receivable (2.-j29.366)
(lncrease)/Oecrease in Other Receivables 15,844
Oncrease)/0ecrease in Inventories 49,649
(lncrease)/Decrease in Pre-Paid Expenses (° 09.995)
(lncrease)/Decrease in Third Party Receivables 1.814,590
lncrease/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable 1.716,938
lncrease/(Decrease) in Notes and Loans Payable 305,673
lncrease/(Decrease) in Accrued Payroll and Benefits (696.041)
lncrease/(Decrease) in Previous Year Pension Payable 0
tncrease/(Decrease) in Third Party Liabilities <639.908)
lncrease/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities (..09.692)

Net Cash Provided byOperating Activities: 907,513

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (631,336)
(lncrease)/Decrease in Limited Use Cash and Investments 952,948
(lncrease)/Decrease in Other Limited Use Assets (351.667)

Net Cash Used byInvesting Activities 30.055)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

lncrease/(Decrease) in Bond/Mortgage Debt (' 11.882)
lncrease/(Decrease) in Capital Lease Debt 0
lncrease/(Decrease) inOtherLong Term Liabilities ("69.039)

Net Cash Used for Financing Activities (::80.921)

(INCREASE)/DECREASE IN RESTRICTED ASSETS

Net lncrease/(Decrease) in Cash 596,536

Cash. Beginning of Period 2,018,978

Cash, End of Period 52,615,514

3



Patient Statistics

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA
For the month ended January 31, 2020

Curront Month

PAGE 10

Year-To^ate

Positive/ Prior Positive/ Prior

Actual Budget (Negative) Year Actual Budget (Negative) Year

01/31/20 01/31/20 Variance 01/31/19 STATISTICS 01/31/20 01/31/20 Variance 01/31/19

Admissions

15 12 25% 12 Cnlicai Care Services 77 84 (8%) 87

43 49 (12%) 70 General 304 347 (12%) 357

SB 61 (5%) 82 Subtotal Medical & Surgical Admissions 381 431 (12%) 444

9 6 13% 8 08 37 56 (34%) 65

67 69 <3%) 90 Total Admissions 418 487 (14%) 510

15 11 36% 15 Swing Bed 95 77 23% 87

9 8 13% 8 Total Deliveries 35 56 (38%) 61

Inpatient Days
28051 42 21% 45 Cntical Care Services 221 294 (25%)

234 172 36% 260 General 1194 1216 (2%) 1268

265 214 33% 305 Subtotal Medical & Surgical Inpatient Days 1415 1510 (6%) 1548

21 18 17% 22 08 96 126 (24%) 161

306 232 32% 327 Total Inpatient Days 1511 1636 (8%) 1709

111 99 12% 103 Swing Bed 1003 693 45% 720

21 16 31% 17 Total Newborn Days 76 112 (32%) 138

Average Length of Stay
3.4 3.5 (3%) 3 8 Cntical Care Services 2.87 350 (18%) 3 22

5.4 3.5 55% 3.7 General 3.93 350 12% 3 55

49 3.5 40% 3.7 Subtotal Medical & Surgical 3.71 3.50 6% 349

2.3 2.3 4% 2.8 OB 2.59 2.25 15% 2.44

4.6 3.4 36% 3.6 Total Inpatient (CAM) 3.61 3.36 8% 3.35

7.4 9.0 (18%) 6.9 Swing Bed 10.56 9.00 17% 8.28

Avg Dally Census - Hospital

1.6 14 16% 1.5 Cntical Care Services (4 Beds) 10 14 (25%) 13

7.5 5.7 32% 8.4 General (8 Beds) 5.6 57 (2%) 59

92 7.1 29% 9.8 Subtotal Medical & Surgical (12 Beds) 6.6 7 1 (7%) 72

0.7 0.6 13% 0.7 OB (3 Beds) 04 06 (24%) 08

9.9 7.7 28% 10.5 Subtotal Acute (IS Beds) 7.0 7.6 (8%) 8.0

3.6 3.3 9% 3.3 Swing Care (10 Beds) 4.7 3.2 44% 34

13.5 11.0 22% 13.9 Total Hospital (25 Beds Available) 11.7 10.9 7% 11.4

Emergency Department
761 777 <2%) 750 Outpatients Treated in ED • Emergent 5427 5537 (2%) 5.641

44 48 (8%) 65 Patients Admitted from ED 318 340 (6%) 355

805 825 (2%) 815 Total Patients treated In ED 5,745 5877 (2%) 5,996

Ambulance Service

124 164 (24%) 156 911 - Transports 986 1168 (16%) 1082

3 1 200% 2 Transfer - Transports 14 7 100% 6

127 165 (23%) 158 Total Ambulance Transports 1000 1175 (15%) 1090

Surgery - Cases
12 18 (33%) 23 Inpatient Cases 88 125 (30%) 121

0 7 (100%) 8 Total Implant Cases 15 42 (64%) 31

124 201 (38%) 197 Outoatient Cases 1062 1364 (22%) 1321

136 226 (40%) 228 Total Surgery Cases 1165 1531 (24%) 1473

North Coast Family Health Center
2,649 2,783 (5%) 2,961 Visits 17,123 18.846 (9%) 18.375

Home Health
460 548 (16%) 536 Visits 3,617 3,711 (3%) 3,687

Outpatient
113%) 34,9814,717 5,391 (13%) 5,424 Encounters 31,871 36.512



Key Financial Ratios
WIENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA

Year to Date

1/31/2020

Profitability:
Operating Margin -3.7%
Total ProfitMargin 1.2%
EBIDA -1.4%
Contractual Allowance % To Gross Charges 55.0%
inpatient Gross Revenue Percentage (Hospital) 24.3%
OutpatientGross Revenue Percentage (Hospital) 75.7%

Liquidity:
Days of Cash on Hand, Short Term 11.8
Days Cash, Ail Sources 37.4
Net Days in Accounts Receivable 44.8
Hospital Gross Days in AR 56.1
Cash FlowMargin 2.9%
Days inAccoi-nts Payable 72
Current Ratio 1.23

Capital Structure:
Average Age of Plant (Annualized) 25.7
Capital Costs as a % of Total Exp. 1.8%
Capital Spend as a % of Annual Depreciation 81.0%
Long Term Debt to Net Position 57.6%
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.08

Productivity and Efficiency:

Net Patient Service Revenue per FTE SI 72,487
Salary & Benefits Expense per Paid FTE (S83.579)
Salary & Benefits as a % of Total Expenses 44.9%
Salary and Benefits as a % of Net Pat Rev. 48.5%
Employee Benefits as a % of Salaries 48.2%

Other Ratios:

FTE - PRODUCTIVE

FTE - NON-PRODUCTIVE

FTE - REGISTRY/CONTRACT

FTE-TOTAL PAID

Cost To Charge Ratio

Medicare Revenue as a % of Total Revenue

Medi-cal Revenue as a % of Total Revenue

BC/BS Ins Revenue as a % of Total Revenue

Other Ins Revenue as a % of Total Revenue

Self-Pay Revenue as a % of Total Revenue

238.8

38.2

39.7

316.8

52.4%

61%

18%

12%

6%

3%

BUDGET

-4.3%

0.4%

-1.7%

58.2%

23.8%

76.2%

$177,583
(S112,151)

46.2%

50.8%

48.4%

300.0

50.0%

60%

20%

13%

5%

2%

PAGE 11

Prior Fiscal

Year End

06/30/19

-6.0%

-1.7%

-3.1%

58.1%

22.9%

77.1%

7.3

41.0

25.4

55.5

0.6%

47

1.10

21.8

2.6%

102.0%

61.1%

0.40

3171,055

(888,990)
47.0%

52.0%

48.5%

241.1

35.7

32.4

309.2

50.0%

61%

21%

13%

4%

1%



NOTICE AND AGENDA OF SPECIAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

MONDAY APRIL 6,2020
4:30 pm Closed Session
6:00 P.M. Open Session

Meeting Via Teleconference.
Dial In Number:

877-573-1973Meeting ID (ifyou plan on making acomment enter the following number)
3300400#(if you don't want to speak and just want to listen enter the foUowing number)
5500600#

® called for Monday, April
^ teleconference only in order to redicr?he

™ 'COVID-W) aid pursuant to the Governor's Ex«aitiv. Oidert

from which members of the public may observe the meeting and offer public
niter on LSwJlgnumber. 8775731973 (to comment enter 3300400) (to just listen enter 5500600
CONDUCT OF BlLSfNFJgS.

PPEN SESSION: MS. IRSSICA GRINRFRG. PRRSinffMT
1. Call to Order
2. Roll Call
3. Comments from the Community

menik '̂ofte •"^8»in number that is available to oul, theId of Directois. The Board of Directors will return to the open/puhUc Une at the
conclusionof the closedsession.

CLOSED SESSinN.

'• NegSo^r^"' (Conference wiU. Real Property
Property: MCDH 700 River Dr, Fort Bragg, CA 95437
Agency negotiator; Interim CEO
Counsel: Mr. Craig Cannizzo, Attorney Hooper, Lundy &Bookman

§54957.6: (Confemnce with Labor j :
Agenpy designated representative: Dan Camp. ' ''
Employee organization: Local UFCW 8-Golden State



> Roll call

REPORT OUT ON ANY ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SRSSIQN; GOVERNMENT CODE 949CT.1
1. Lease agreement with Adventist Health
2. District's Labor Union Agreement

OPEN SESSION ITEMS;

^ Fiscal Year 2018/2019 Audit Report and Approval: Ms. Kami Matzek, Tab 1CPA Dingus, Zarecor & Associates
2. Information: OB Update: Ms. Lynn Finley, CNO Tab 2
3. Action/Information: OB Hardship Fund: Mr. Steve Lund, Vice President
4. Inform^n: COVID 19 Update: Dr. William Miller, Chief of Staff; Ms. Lynn Finley, CNO
5. Action/Information: February 2020 Financial Report and Approval: Tab 3

Mr. JohnRedding, Treasurer
6. Comments from Community

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board of Directors on any
matter which the Distnct has junsdiction. You must state your name and address for the record. Time
js hmited to 3minutes per speaker. The Board of Directors can take no action on your presentation,
but can seek clanfication to points made in your presentation or comments.

7. Comments from Board of Directors
8. Adjourn

Dated:April 3, 2020

February Financial update: Mr. John Redding

Gayl Moon
Secretary to the Board of Directors

STATE OF CALIFORNIA)
COUNTY OF MENDOCINO) §

if Mendocino Com Health Gate District Boatd
thfa •' o I posted this notice at the North and Patient Services Building Lobby entrances tothe Mendocino Coast District Hospital on April 3,2020 ^ entrances to

Gayl Moon Date
Secretary to theBoard of Directors

ori moriiflcatiotts or accommodations, inciudlna auxiiiarv
mr l,o"Tr'̂ ^ "> ™"P-Wic meeting to Oayi iZn sTteZ
Se m , T""' 95437 no later than iJkSsthe meeting that such matter be included on that month's agenda.



1



w

M
e
n

d
o

c
in

o
C

o
a
st

H
e
a
lt

h
C

a
re

D
is

tr
ic

t
d

o
in

g
bu

si
ne

ss
as

M
en

d
o

ci
n

o
C

o
as

t
D

is
tr

ic
tH

o
sp

it
al

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

Ju
n

e
30

,
2

0
1

9

D
IN

G
U

S
IZ

flR
€C

O
R

&
flS

SO
C

Ifl
T€

Sp
uc

C
o

ft
if

ie
d

P
u

b
li

c
A

c
c
o

u
n

ta
n

ts



M
e
n

d
o

d
n

o
C

o
as

t
H

ea
lt

h
C

a
re

D
is

tr
ic

t
do

in
g

bu
si

ne
ss

as
M

en
d

o
ci

n
o

C
o

as
t

D
is

tr
ic

t
H

o
sp

it
al

T
o

ta
l

M
ar

g
in

C
h

a
n

e
e

in
N

e
t

P
o

si
ti

o
n

T
o

ta
l

R
e
v

e
n

u
e
s

T
hi

s
ra

ti
o

re
fl

ec
ts

pr
of

lts
fr

om
bo

th
op

er
at

io
ns

an
d

no
no

pe
ra

ti
on

s.
H

ig
he

r
is

be
tt

er
.

A
ll

C
a
li

fo
rn

ia

H
os

pi
ta

ls
2

0
1

7

A
ll

H
os

pi
ta

ls
<

5
0

B
e
d

s

2
0

1
7

A
ll

R
u

ra
l

H
os

pi
ta

ls
<

S
9

0
M

il
li

o
n

in
R

e
v

e
n

u
e

2
0

1
7

A
ll

H
os

pi
ta

ls
<

$
8

0
M

il
li

o
n

in
R

e
v

e
n

u
e

2
0

1
7

CH
NG

US
IZ

fW
eC

O
R

S
flS

SC
X

If
lT

eS
fu

t
C

a
/t

if
tf

ld
P

u
O

lk
A

e
c
o

tf
n

U
n

tt



..
'.V

'
•

-4
;4

%

M
e
n

d
o

c
in

o
C

o
a
s
t

H
e
a
lt

h
C

a
re

D
is

tr
ic

t

do
in

g
bu

si
ne

ss
as

M
e
n

d
o

c
in

o
C

o
a
st

D
is

tr
ic

t
H

o
sp

it
a
l

O
p

er
at

in
g

M
ar

g
in

O
p

er
at

in
g

In
co

m
e

(L
o

ss
)

T
ot

al
O

pe
ra

ti
ng

R
ev

en
ue

s

3
.9

%
-

•6
.0

%
,

f
il

lt
io

'l
ir

fa
tC

iI
iM

"
!!

!

.-
18

.2
%

-2
0

.6
%

A
ll

A
ll

H
os

pi
ta

ls
A

ll
R

ur
al

A
ll

H
os

pi
ta

ls
C

al
if

or
ni

a
<

50
B

ed
s

H
os

pi
ta

ls
<

$8
0

M
ill

io
n

H
os

pi
ta

ls
20

17
<

S
9

0
M

ill
io

n
in

R
ev

en
ue

2
0

1
7

in
R

e
v

e
n

u
e

2
0

1
7

2
0

1
7

D
IN

G
U

S
Iz

e
n

e
c
o

ft
&

n
ss

o
o

fi
T

es
K

ic
"
u

b
'i

c
A

c
e
u

u
n

ij
n

r
i



M
e
n

d
o

c
in

o
C

o
a
st

H
e
a
lt

h
C

a
re

D
is

tr
ic

t
do

in
g

bu
si

ne
ss

as
M

e
n

d
o

c
in

o
C

o
a
st

D
is

tr
ic

t
H

o
sp

it
a
l

I

D
ay

s
C

as
h

on
H

an
d

-
A

ll
S

ou
rc

es
C

as
h

+
S

h
o

rt
-t

er
m

In
v

es
tm

en
ts

+
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
ed

L
o

n
g

-t
er

m
In

v
es

tm
en

ts

(T
ot

al
E

xp
en

se
s

-
D

ep
re

ci
at

io
n)

/
36

5

D
ay

s
C

as
h

on
H

an
d

-
A

ll
So

ur
ce

s
m

ea
su

re
s

th
e

nu
m

be
r

of
da

ys
of

av
er

ag
e

ca
sh

ex
pe

ns
es

th
at

th
e

D
is

tr
ic

t
m

ai
nt

ai
ns

in
ca

sh
an

d
m

ar
ke

ta
bl

e
se

cu
ri

tie
s.

It
is

a
m

ea
su

re
of

to
ta

ll
iq

ui
di

ty
,b

ot
h

sh
or

t-
te

rm
an

d
lo

ng
-t

er
m

.H
ig

h
va

lu
es

fo
r

D
ay

sC
as

h
on

H
an

d
-

A
ll

So
ur

ce
s

us
ua

lly
im

pl
y

a
gr

ea
te

r
ab

ili
ty

to
m

ee
tb

ot
h

sh
or

t-
te

rm
ob

lig
at

io
ns

an
d

lo
n

g
-t

er
m

ca
p

it
al

re
p

la
ce

m
en

t
n

ee
d

s.
H

ig
h

er
is

b
et

te
r.

A
ll

C
a
li

fo
rn

ia

H
os

pi
ta

ls
2

0
1

A
ll

H
os

pi
ta

ls
<

5
0

B
e
d

s
2

0
1

7

D
IN

G
U

S
Iz

n
ae

co
R

&
n

ss
o

ci
ar

es
ra

c
C

s
rl

lt
l'

d
P

u
D

i>
6

A
<

C
U

V
fv

t1
n

U



M
e
n

d
o

c
in

o
C

o
a
st

H
e
a
lt

h
C

a
re

D
is

tr
ic

t
do

in
g

bu
si

ne
ss

as
M

en
d

o
ci

n
o

C
o

as
t

D
is

tr
ic

t
H

o
sp

it
al

C
u

rr
e
n

t
R

a
ti

o

C
u

rr
e
n

t
A

ss
e
ts

C
u

rr
e
n

t
L

ia
b

il
it

ie
s

T
he

C
u

rr
en

t
R

at
io

is
pe

rh
ap

s
th

e
m

os
t

w
id

el
y

us
ed

m
ea

su
re

o
f

li
qu

id
it

y.
H

ig
h

va
lu

es
ca

n
so

m
et

im
es

be
m

is
le

ad
in

g
if

th
e

cu
rr

en
t

as
se

ts
a
re

n
o

t
li

q
u

id
,s

u
ch

as
in

v
en

to
ry

o
r

n
o

n
-

co
ll

cc
ti

bl
c

ac
co

u
n

ts
re

ce
iv

ab
le

.
H

ig
h

er
is

b
et

te
r. A

ll

C
a
li

fo
rn

ia

H
os

pi
ta

ls
2

0
1

7

A
ll

H
os

pi
ta

ls
<

5
0

B
e
d

s

2
0

1
7

A
ll

R
u

ra
l

H
os

pi
ta

ls
<

$
9

0
M

il
li

o
n

in
R

e
v

e
n

u
e

2
0

1
7

m
ij

\

A
ll

H
os

pi
ta

ls
<

$
8

0
M

il
li

o
n

in
R

ev
en

u
e

2
0

1
7

D
IN

G
U

S
IZ

ft
n€

C
G

fl
&

O
SS

O
C

in
Te

Sp
>u

C
>

rt
if

ie
d

P
u

fi
li

c
A

rc
o

w
n

u
n

lt



M
e
n

d
o

c
in

o
C

o
a
s
t

H
e
a
lt

h
C

a
re

D
is

tn
c
t

do
in

g
bu

si
ne

ss
as

M
en

d
o

ci
n

o
C

o
as

t
D

is
tr

ic
t

H
o

sp
it

al

C
ap

it
al

E
qu

ip
m

en
tE

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

o
fA

nn
ua

lE
qu

ip
m

en
tD

ep
re

ci
at

io
n

3
0

0
%

2
5

0
%

2
2

1
%

-.

2
0

0
%

C
a
o

it
a
l

E
a
u

io
m

e
n

t
E

x
o

e
n

d
it

u
re

s

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n
E

xp
en

se

1
2

5
%

.

i
;
-
«

A
.4

3
^

7
5

i
S

:
n

?

C
ap

it
a)

E
q

u
ip

m
en

t
E

x
p

en
d

it
u

re
s

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

o
fA

n
n

u
al

E
q

u
ip

m
en

t
D

ep
re

ci
at

io
n

is
th

e
cu

rr
en

ty
ea

r
ca

pi
ta

la
cq

ui
si

tio
ns

as
a

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
||

o
f

cu
rr

en
ty

ea
r

de
pr

ec
ia

ti
on

ex
pe

ns
e.

V
al

ue
s

of
lO

O
p

er
ce

n
t

o
r

m
o

re
ar

e
an

in
d

ic
at

o
r

th
at

ca
pi

ta
l

as
se

ts
ar

e
be

in
g

u
p

d
at

ed
an

d
re

pl
ac

ed
.

2
0

9
%

I
.

r«
\

y
.
'i

•

D
IN

G
U

S
Iz

m
e
c
o

fl
&

n
ss

o
a
a
T

e
sn

u
A

n
o

w
M

v
i
t
i



7
0

.0
%

6
0

.0
%

5
0

.0
%

4
0

.0
%

30
.0

%
?

20
.0

%
S

r~
-I

1
0

.0
%

^

M
en

d
o

ci
D

o
C

o
a
st

H
e
a
lt

h
C

a
re

D
is

tr
ic

t

do
in

g
bu

si
ne

ss
as

M
e
n

d
o

c
in

o
C

o
a
st

D
is

tr
ic

t
H

o
sp

it
a
l

L
o

n
g

-t
er

m
D

eb
tt

o
N

et
P

os
it

io
n

L
on

g-
te

rm
D

eb
t

L
on

g-
te

rm
D

eb
t+

N
et

Po
si

tio
n

1
6

.6
%

•'(
''••

A?
*

'
4'

^A
.

•
-7

V
j

I'.

n
r
a
ii

B
ir

r
a
E

H

2
4

.9
%

g
n

i
r
i
i
i
i
t
i
i
i

2
2

.7
%

1
9

.3
%

;

•
m

A
ll

A
ll

H
os

pi
ta

ls
A

ll
R

ur
al

A
ll

H
os

pi
ta

ls
C

al
if

or
ni

a
<

50
B

ed
s

H
os

pi
ta

ls
<

$8
0

M
ill

io
n

H
os

pi
ta

ls
20

17
<

$9
0M

il
li

on
in

R
ev

en
ue

2
0

1
7

in
R

ev
en

u
e

2
0

1
7

2
0

1
7

D
IM

G
U

S
IZ

A
A

6C
0A

&
n

ss
o

aR
T

es
u

c
C

«
M

i'
ir

d
'o

b
il

e



M
e
o

d
o

c
in

o
C

o
a
st

H
e
a
lt

h
C

a
re

D
is

tr
ic

t
do

in
g

bu
si

ne
ss

as
M

en
d

o
ci

n
o

C
o

as
tD

is
tr

ic
tH

o
sp

it
al

D
ay

s
in

N
et

P
at

ie
n

tA
cc

o
u

n
ts

R
ec

ei
v

ab
le

N
e
t

P
a
ti

e
n

t
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
R

e
c
e
iv

a
b

le

N
e
t

P
a
ti

e
n

t
S

e
rv

ic
e

R
e
v

e
n

u
e

/
3

6
5

D
ay

s
in

N
et

Pa
tie

nt
A

cc
ou

nt
s

R
ec

ei
va

bl
e

is
th

e
av

er
ag

e
tim

e
th

at
re

ce
iv

ab
le

s
I

ar
e

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g,

or
th

e
av

er
ag

e
co

lle
ct

io
n

pe
ri

od
.

H
ig

he
r

co
lle

ct
io

n
pe

ri
od

s
le

ad
to

gr
ea

te
rs

ho
rt

-t
er

m
fi

na
nc

in
g

re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

an
d

w
ill

of
te

n
fo

rc
e

ho
sp

ita
ls

to
re

d
u

ce
sh

o
rt

-t
er

m
ca

sh
o

r
In

cr
ea

se
sh

o
rt

-t
er

m
d

eb
t.

L
o

w
er

is
b

et
te

r.

II
6«

S9
5

^

A
ll

C
al

if
o

rn
ia

H
os

pi
ta

ls
2

0
1

7

A
ll

H
os

pi
ta

ls
<

5
0

B
e
d

s
2

0
1

7

A
ll

R
u

ra
l

H
os

pi
ta

ls
<

$
9

0
M

il
li

o
n

in
R

e
v

e
n

u
e

2
0

1
7

A
ll

H
os

pi
ta

ls
<

$
8

0
M

il
li

on
in

R
e
v

e
n

u
e

2
0

1
7

D
IN

G
U

S
Iz

n
n

ec
o

A
&

n
ss

o
af

lT
S

S
n

u
C

e
tl

rP
w

d
Pb

&
«K

A
c
c
o

w
n

T
^

ls



M
e
n

d
o

c
m

o
C

o
a
s
t

H
e
a
lt

h
C

a
re

D
is

tr
ic

t

do
in

g
bu

si
ne

ss
as

M
en

d
o

ci
n

o
C

o
as

t
D

is
tr

ic
t

H
o

sp
it

al

G
ro

ss
D

ay
s

in
A

cc
ou

nt
s

R
ec

ei
va

bl
e

-
H

os
pi

ta
l

G
ro

ss
Pa

tie
nt

R
ev

en
ue

s

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
H

os
pi

ta
l

R
ev

en
ue

(R
ev

en
ue

/3
65

)

r
a
n

n
a
i
m

I
I

I
I

I

F
i
i
i
u

n
r
a
i
a

r
n

[
iR

r
m

iM
iH

ii
ii

ii

n
i
m

i
n

i
i
T

••y
--

D
B

46
U

S
I

z
m

e
c
o

fl
s

A
ss

o
an

re
sK

ic



M
e
n

d
o

c
in

o
C

o
a
st

H
e
a
lt

h
C

a
re

D
is

tn
c
t

do
in

g
bu

si
ne

ss
as

M
en

d
o

ci
n

o
C

o
as

t
D

is
tn

c
t

H
o

sp
it

al

G
ro

ss
D

ay
s

in
A

cc
o

u
n

ts
R

ec
ei

va
bl

e
-

R
H

C
G

ro
ss

P
a
ti

e
n

t
R

e
v

e
n

u
e
s

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
H

os
pi

ta
l

R
ev

en
ue

(R
ev

en
ue

/
36

5)

G
ro

ss
D

ay
s

in
A

cc
o

u
n

ts
R

ec
ei

v
ab

le
-

R
H

C
is

th
e

av
er

ag
e

ti
m

e
th

at
re

ce
iv

ab
le

s
ar

e
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g,
o

r
th

e
av

er
ag

e
co

ll
ec

ti
on

pe
ri

od
.

H
ig

h
er

co
ll

ec
ti

on
pe

ri
od

s
le

ad
to

g
re

at
er

sh
o

rt
-t

er
m

fi
na

nc
in

g
re

q
u

ir
em

en
ts

an
d

w
ill

o
ft

en
fo

rc
e

h
o

sp
it

al
s

to
re

d
u

ce
sh

o
rt

-t
er

m
ca

sh
o

r
in

cr
ea

se
sh

o
rt

-t
er

m
d

eb
t.

L
o

w
e
r

is
b

e
tt

e
r.

.•!
•

D
M

G
U

S
I
z
m

e
c
o

n
s

R
ss

o
aa

r€
s>

u
c

B
u

b
'C

A
r
c
a
y

n
r
a
n

ti



M
e
n

d
o

c
in

o
C

o
a
st

H
e
a
lt

h
C

a
re

D
is

tr
ic

t

do
in

g
bu

si
ne

ss
as

M
en

d
o

ci
n

o
C

o
as

t
D

is
tr

ic
t

H
o

sp
it

al

C
o

n
tr

ac
tu

al
A

d
ju

st
m

en
t

P
er

ce
n

ta
g

e
C

o
n

tr
a
c
tu

a
l

A
d

iu
st

m
e
n

te

G
ro

ss
P

a
ti

e
n

t
R

e
v

e
n

u
e
s

C
o

n
tr

ac
tu

al
A

d
ju

st
m

en
t

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

is
th

e
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

o
f

gr
os

s
p

at
ie

n
t

re
ve

nu
e

th
at

is
di

sc
ou

nt
ed

to
th

ir
d

-p
ar

ty
p

ay
o

rs
.

In
cr

ea
si

n
g

v
al

u
es

fo
r

th
is

in
d

ic
at

o
r

p
u

ts
tr

em
en

d
o

u
s

p
re

ss
u

re
o

n
h

o
sp

it
al

p
ri

ce
s

in
th

o
se

li
m

it
ed

ar
ea

s
in

w
h

ic
h

fu
ll

er
re

co
v

er
y

o
f

ra
te

s
is

po
ss

ib
le

.L
o

w
er

is
g

en
er

al
ly

b
et

te
r.

D
M

G
u

s
Iz

m
e
c
o

ft
«

R
ss

o
ci

fl
re

sn
u



M
e
n

d
o

c
in

o
C

o
a
st

H
e
a
lt

h
C

a
re

D
is

tr
ic

t
do

in
g

bu
si

ne
ss

as
M

en
d

o
ci

n
o

C
o

as
t

D
is

tr
ic

t
H

o
sp

it
al

B
ad

D
eb

ta
s

a
P

er
ce

n
ta

g
e

o
fN

et
P

at
ie

n
tS

er
vi

ce
R

ev
en

ue

2
5

.0
%

2
0

.0
%

1
5

.0
%

T
iT

iT
lH

ii
f
l
i
n

t

JF
,

t
V

j
•

p
E

lz
i

is
m

-.
:-

••

m
-

P
ro

v
is

io
n

fo
r

B
a
d

D
e
b

t

N
e
t

P
a
ti

e
n

t
S

e
rv

ic
e

R
e
v

e
n

u
e
s

1
^

v3
*5

% I
W

'
4

.i
y

o I A
ll

C
a
li

fo
rn

ia

H
os

pi
ta

ls
2

0
1

7

A
ll

H
os

pi
ta

ls
<

5
0

B
e
d

s

2
0

1
7

A
ll

R
u

ra
l

H
os

pi
ta

ls

26
:6

";
'̂̂'

A
ll

H
os

pi
ta

ls
<

$
8

0
M

il
li

o
n

<
$

9
0

M
il

li
o

n
in

R
ev

en
u

e
in

R
e
v

e
n

u
e

2
0

1
7

2
0

1
7

D
IN

G
U

S
Iz

m
e
c
o

n
&

ft
ss

o
an

re
sK

i;
C

«
rT

lf
l*

fl
Pi

jQ
Ik

c
A

tr
o

v
n

U
n

K



M
e
n

d
o

c
in

o
C

o
a
st

H
e
a
lt

h
C

a
re

D
is

tr
ic

t

do
in

g
bu

si
ne

ss
as

M
en

d
o

ci
n

o
C

o
as

t
D

is
tr

ic
t

H
o

sp
it

al

B
ad

D
eb

t
an

d
C

h
ar

it
y

C
ar

e
P

er
ce

n
ta

g
e

P
ro

v
is

io
n

fo
r

B
a
d

D
e
b

t
&

C
h

ar
it

y
C

a
re

G
ro

ss
P

a
ti

e
n

t
S

e
rv

ic
e

R
e
v

e
n

u
e
s

B
ad

D
eb

t
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
Is

th
e

p
er

ce
n

ta
g

e
o

f
p

at
ie

n
t

re
v

e
n

u
e

th
a
t

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

e
a
rn

e
d

b
u

t
is

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d

to

b
e

u
n

c
o

ll
e
c
ti

b
ic

.
C

o
n

tr
o

i
o

v
e
r

u
n

c
o

ll
e
c
ti

b
le

a
c
c
o

u
n

ts

is
an

im
p

o
rt

an
ti

n
d

ic
at

o
r

o
ft

h
e

qu
al

it
y

o
fa

ho
sp

it
aP

s
re

ce
iv

ab
le

s
an

d
th

e
st

re
n

g
th

o
f

th
ei

r
co

ll
ec

ti
on

pr
oc

es
s.

L
o

w
er

is
b

et
te

r.

C
ha

ri
ty

C
ar

e
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

is
th

e
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

of
pa

ti
en

t
re

v
e
n

u
e

th
a
t

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

e
a
rn

e
d

b
u

t
n

o
t

b
il

le
d

o
r

co
ll

ec
te

d
as

p
ar

t
o

ft
h

e
ho

sp
it

aP
s

ch
ar

it
y

ca
re

pr
og

ra
m

.T
hi

s
is

an
in

di
ca

to
ro

ft
he

be
ne

fi
t

th
e

ho
sp

it
al

pr
ov

id
es

to
in

-n
ee

d
m

em
be

rs
o

ft
he

co
m

m
un

it
y

fr
om

a
se

rv
ic

e
pe

rs
pe

ct
iv

e.

•
-

-

n
A

-'
'

•••
--

r
•

-
r
.

•

D
IN

G
U

S
Iz

aR
€C

on
&

as
so

af
lT

eS
M

c



M
e
n

d
o

c
in

o
C

o
a
st

H
e
a
lt

h
C

a
re

D
is

tr
ic

t
do

in
g

bu
si

ne
ss

as
M

en
d

o
ci

n
o

C
o

as
t

D
is

tr
ic

t
H

o
sp

it
al

F
ul

l-
ti

m
e

E
qu

iv
al

en
tE

m
pl

oy
ee

s
(F

T
E

)

F
ul

l-
ti

m
e

E
qu

iv
al

en
tE

m
pl

oy
ee

s
(F

T
E

)
pr

es
en

ts
th

e
tr

en
d

in
th

e
la

rg
es

t
si

ng
le

ex
p

en
se

o
f

th
e

h
o

sp
it

al
.

F
T

E
is

a
m

ea
su

re
o

f
w

o
rk

lo
ad

an
d

is
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

by
di

vi
di

ng
to

ta
l

h
o

u
rs

by
2,

08
0

h
o

u
rs

(4
0

ho
ur

s
p

er
w

ee
k

fo
r

52
w

ee
ks

a
ye

ar
).

O
n

e
F

T
E

is
th

e
eq

u
iv

al
en

to
fo

n
e

fu
ll

-t
im

e
w

o
rk

er
.

D
IN

G
U

S
Iz

m
€C

O
R

0
a
ss

o
a
n

re
sw

c
P

u
o

i«
e

A
c
e
e
y

r
ii

a
n

's



-
•

-
1

^
,-

.
I

M
e
n

d
o

c
ia

o
C

o
a
st

H
e
a
lt

h
C

a
re

D
is

tr
ic

t
do

in
g

bu
si

ne
ss

as
M

cn
d

o
ci

n
o

C
o

as
t

D
is

tr
ic

t
H

o
sp

it
al

S
al

ar
ie

s
an

d
B

en
ef

it
s

p
er

F
T

E
T

o
ta

l
S

al
ar

ie
s

+
T

o
ta

l
B

en
ef

it
s

P
T

E
s

S
al

ar
ie

s
an

d
B

en
ef

its
pe

r
F

T
E

pr
ov

id
es

a
si

m
pl

e
m

ea
su

re
o

ft
he

re
la

ti
ve

co
st

of
th

e
la

rg
es

t
re

so
ur

ce
ite

m
us

ed
in

th
e

ho
sp

ita
li

nd
us

tr
y.

C
on

tr
ol

ov
er

w
ag

es
an

d
be

ne
fi

ts
is

im
p

o
rt

an
tt

o
ho

sp
it

al
fi

na
nc

ia
l

vi
ab

il
it

y.

:
$9

8,
58

2
$

1
0

0
,7

9
3

$
9

9
$

1
0

0
,1

4
0

$
1

0
4

,1
1

7

D
IN

G
U

S
IZ

R
A

C
C

O
a

&
ftS

SO
O

O
T

eS
M

c



$3
00

,0
00

$2
50

,0
00

$2
00

,0
00

$1
50

,0
00

$1
00

,0
00

$5
0,

00
0

M
e
n

d
o

c
in

o
C

o
a
st

H
e
a
lt

h
C

a
re

D
is

tr
ic

t
do

in
g

bu
si

ne
ss

as
M

en
d

o
ci

n
o

C
o

as
t

D
is

tr
ic

t
H

o
sp

it
al

N
et

P
at

ie
n

tS
er

vi
ce

R
ev

en
ue

p
er

F
T

E
N

e
t

P
at

ie
n

t
S

er
v

ic
e

R
ev

en
u

e

P
T

E
s

T
»

«
-

N
et

P
at

ie
n

tS
er

vi
ce

R
ev

en
ue

p
er

F
T

E
is

n
et

pa
ti

en
t

re
ve

nu
e

di
vi

de
d

by
th

e
n

u
m

b
er

o
f

F
T

E
s.

T
h

is
in

d
ic

at
o

r
is

us
ed

as
a

b
ro

ad
m

ea
su

re
o

f
pr

od
uc

ti
vi

ty
.

$1
92

,5
97

D
IN

G
U

S
Iz

aa
ec

o
fl

s
R

S
S

o
aa

re
sM

c
d

rf
n

iN
o

S
P

u
O

ir
t

A
ft

o
u

n
td

'U
i



Mendocino Coast Health Care District

doing business as
Mendocino Coast District Hospital

Basic Financial Statements and

Independent Auditors' Report

June 30,2019 and 2018

DINGUS I ZflfleCOR & fissociflies F^<
Cortifiod Public Accoun {jnU



Mendocino Coast Health Care District
doingbusiness as Mendocino Coast DistrictHospital

Table of Contents

Page

INDEPENDENTAUDITORS'REPORT 1-2

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSIONAND ANALYSIS 3-7

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

Statements ofnet position

Statements ofrevenues, expenses, andchanges innetposition 10

Statements ofcash flows 11-12

Notes to basic financial statements 13-27



DINGUS I ZflR€COfi & F6SOCIFlTeS fuc
Pi»hli? AccounMnts

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board ofDirectors
Mendocino Coast Health Care District

doing businessas Mendocino CoastDistrict Hospital
Fort Bragg, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited theaccompanying financial statements of Mendocino Coast Health CareDistrict doing
business as Mendocino Coast District Hospital (theDistrict) as of and fortheyears ended June30, 2019
and 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, whichcollectively comprisethe District's
basic financial statements as listed in the table ofcontents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Managementis responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordancewith accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, andmaintenance of intemal control relevant to thepreparation andfair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether dueto fraud or
error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to expressan opinionon these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtainaudit evidence about the amounts anddisclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider intemal control relevant to the entity's preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
intemal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

i 20 i 5 East Main Avenue Spokane Valley. WA 99206 509.2-52 08;'! WvVvv. dro r; on. c o ni



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, inall material respects, the
financial position of theDistrict asof June30,2019and2018, andthechanges in itsfinancial position
and cash flows for theyearsthenendedin accordance with accoimting principles generally accepted in
the United States ofAmerica.

Other Matter

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysison pages3 through7 be presentedto supplement the basicfinancialstatements.
Such information, alAough not a part ofthe basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essentialpart offinancial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.

We have applied certain limitedprocedures to the required supplementaryinformation in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the mefliodsofpreparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit ofthe basic financial statements.We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the infomuition becausethe limitedprocedures do not provideus with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

^anecofi &y4Moc£citeA
Spokane Valley, Washington
February 17,2020



Mendocino Coast Health Care District
doing business as Mendocino Coast District Hospital

Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30,2019 and 2018

Ourdiscussion andanalysis ofMendocino Coast Health Care District doing business asMendocino Coast
District Hospital's (the District) financial performance provides an overview of theDistrict's financial
activities for theyears ended June 30,2019 and 2018. Please read it in conjunction with the District's
financial statements, which begin on page 8.

Financial Highlights

• TheDistrict's netposition increased by $3.1 million or41.4percent in the fiscal year ended June 30,
2019, and decreased by $1.2million or 13.8 percent in the prior fiscalyearendedJune30,2018.

• The Districtreported an operating income of S.S million in the fiscalyearendedJune30,2019, and an
operating lossofS2.4 million in the priorfiscal yearendedJune30,2018. Theoperating incomein
2019wasan increase in operating income of $3.1 million firom die2018 prioryear. Theoperating loss
in 2018 was a decrease in operating incomeof$1.3 million from the 2017 year.

Nonoperatingnet revenues(expenses) increased by $1.6million in 2019 compared to 2018.
Nonoperatingnet revenues(expenses) increased by $.2 million in 2018 comparedto 2017.

Using This Annual Report

Financial statementsare uniformlydesignedand presentedin conformity with the provisions of GAAP
(generally accepted accounting principles), andnecessary for the fairevaluation of operations and the
financialpositionof the Districtwhen lookedat by variousstakeholders. By readingand understanding
these financial statements, stakeholders can determine if the District has made or lost money, where the
money went and how the Districtstands financially. The District's financial statementsconsistofthree
statements — a StatementofNet Position; a StatementofRevenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position; and a Statement ofCash Flows.

The Statement of Net Position

The following Table 1 summarizes the more detailed statement on pages 8 and 9. The District's net
position is the differencebetween its assets and liabilities.The District's net position increasedby $3.1
million or 41.4 percent in 2019 and decreased by $1.2 millionor 13.8percent in 2018.



Mendocino Coast Health Care District
doingbusiness as Mendocino Coast DistrictHospital

Management's Discnssion and Analysis (Continued)
June 30,2019 and 2018

Assets

Cunent assets

Investments limitedas to use in localagencyinvestment fund
Ca^ andca^ equivaleots restricted or limited as to use, lesscmrent poition

.net

Total assets

Deferred outflows ofresources

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

Liabilities

Cunent liabilities

Long-tenn debt, net ofcurrent maturities
Total liabilities

*Net position
Investedin coital assets,net of relateddebt
Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities and net position

Current ratio (current assets/cunent liabilities}

2019 2018 2017

S 14,238,922 S 12,663^14 S 14,262,968
4,376,979 4,280,051 4,226,086

407,350 407,350 407350
14354,638 14.572383 15307,782
33377,889 31,922,998 34,104,186

471351 520,001 568.750

$ 34,049,140 $ 32,442,999 $ 34,672,936

S 11325381 S 13304.768 S 12384346
11386,879 11.486338 12.885393
23312.460 24.851,006 25.869,639

2,681,811

8,054369

10,736,680

3,013,037

4378,956

7391.993

2,500,488
6302.809

8,803397

S 34,049,140 $ 32,442,999 $ 34,672,936

13 0.90 1.1

The cunent ratioprovides onemeasure of liquidity wherehighervalues are favorable, comparing current
assets to cunent liabilities. It is an indicatorof the District havingenough resources to meet its short-term
obligations.



Mendocino Coast Health Care District
doing business asMendocino CoastDistrict Hospital

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
June 30,2019 and 2018

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Table 2 summarizes themore detailed statement onpage 10. This statement provides annual financial
performance, financial activities within ayear. Financial performance is assessed by giving asuimn^ of
how theDistrict incurred itsrevenues and expenses through both operating and nonoperating activities.

Table 2. Operating Results and Changes in Net Assets

2018 20172019

Operating revenues
Net patient service revenue
Other operating revenue

$ 58,142,969
91US4

$ 53,639,509
812,600

S 51,866,507
673,437

Total operating revenues 59,054323 54,452,109 52,539,944

Operating expenses
Salaries and benefits

Supplies
Depreciation
Professional fees and registty
Other expenses

27307309
9,044,465

1,481331
14320329
6,400386

26,407,725
8,472,046
1,511,526

14,689,773
5,752,398

25,948,038
8,314,818
1,456,629

12,671,358
5,240,509

Total operating expenses 58,554,520 56,833,468 53,631,352

Operating income Ooss) 499,803 (2,381,359) (1,091,408)

Nonoperating revenues (eiqjenses)
Taxation for operations
Taxation for debt service

hiterest expense
Bond issuance costs

Loss on disposal ofassets

2394,047

476,848
(548,102)

(66338)

831,003
512,895

(513,157)

805,563
332,592

(736,975)
(593,450)

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses), net 2,456,455 830,741 (192,270)

Excess of revenues(expenses)beforecapitalcontributions 2356358 (1,550,618) (1,283,678)

Capital contributions 188,429 339,314 559,311

Change in net position
Net position, begiiming ofyear

3,144,687
7,591,993

(I3II304)
8,803,297

(724,367)
9,527,664

Net position, end of year $ 10,736,680 S 7,591,993 S 8,803,297

The first component ofthe overall change in the District's net position is its operating income—
generally, the differencebetween net patient revenues and the expenses incurred to perform those
services. The District reported an operating income for the first time in three years in 2019.

The District primarilyprovides its healthcare services through billing for those services.Healthcare
reimbursementfromvariouspayors is much less than the gross charges;this difference allowsthe
differing payment methods from governmentaland commercial insurance companies.Note 8 ofthe
financial statements, net patientservice revenues, goes intogreaterexplanation. Netpatientservice
revenues increased $4.5 million or 8.4 percent in 2019 and increased $1.7 million or 3.4 percent in 2018.



Mendocino Coast Health Care District

doing business as Mendocino Coast District Hospital
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
June 30,2019 and 2018

The District is service oriented and as such, the largest expenditureofproviding these healthcare services
is the personnelcost.Compounding this cost is the nature of the services, requiringskilledand educated
staffthat is often in shortageboth on a local and national level. The District also has a collective
bargaining unit (union). Total personnel cost increased S0.9 million or 3.4 percent in 2019 and increased
$0.5 million or 1.8 percent in 2018.

The District's next largest operating cost is supplies. Healthcaresupplies are characteristicallyexpensive
due to the nature of the servicesprovided. The District belongs to a group purchasing organization in the
process ofmitigating these costs. Total supply cost increased $0.6 million or 6.8 percent in 2019 and
increased $0.2 million or 1.9 percent in 2018.

The other primary expense components of these operating results are:

• A decrease in registry costs of$0.9 million or 5.6 percent in 2019, and an increase in registry costs of
$0.7 million or 11.7percent in 2018.

• An increase in purchasedservicescosts of $700,000or 57 percent in 2019, and an increasein
purchased services costs of $178,000 or 16.9 percent in 2018

• A decrease in depreciationexpense of $29,000 or 2 percent in 2019, and an increase in depreciation
expense of$55,000 or 3.8 percent in 2018

• The District's levelofuncompensated care providedin 2019 was $487,761 and $269,000in 2018, or
0.8 percent and 0.5 percent ofgross revenue, respectively.These are services provided for which no
pajmaentis expected.

The Statement of Cash Flows

Table 3 summarizes the more detailed statements on pages 11 and 12.The statements ofcash flows
reports cash receipts, cashpayments, and net changes in cashresulting from operations, investing, and
financing activities. It providesanswersto such questions as, "Where did cash come fix)m?", "What was
cashusedfor?", and"What wasthechange incash balance during thereporting period?" There is an
unfavorable decreasing trend in ending cash.

Table 3: Statements of Cash Flows

Beginning cash
Net cash providedby (usedin) operating activities
Net cash providedby noncapital financing activities
Net cash used in capitaland relatedfinancing activities
Net cash used minvesting activities

Ending cash

2019

3,007,141 $
(871,122)

2,214,035

(1,052,067)
(96,928)

2018

3,622,886
563,104

277,969

(1,402,853)
(53,965)

2017

4,460,648
1,446,007

461,788

(2,518,072)
(227,485)

3,201,059 $ 3,007,141 $ 3,622386



Mendocino Coast Health Care District

doing business as Mendocino Coast District Hospital
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
June 30,2019 and 2018

Other Economic Factors

Competition fromotherhospitalsand healthcareproviders is a risk to the District's revenue. New or
existing organizations try to carveout profitablesegments of the District's businessby expandingfrieir
marketing and/or facilities to meet the demand ofhealthcare in this area.

Contacting the District's Financial Management

This financial report is designedto provide oiu* patients, suppliers, taxpayers, and creditorswith a general
overview ofthe District's finances and to show the District's accountability for the money it receives. If
you have questions about this report or need additional information, contact the finance department

Mendocino Coast District Hospital
700 River Drive

Fort Bragg, California 9S437



Mendocino Coast Health Care District
doing business as Mendocino Coast District Hospital

Statements of Net Position

June 30,2019 and 2018

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 2019 2018

Current assets

Cashandcashequivalents S
Cash and cash equivalents restrictedor limitedas to use
Receivables:

Patient accounts

.-Estinuted third-partypayor settlements
Other

Taxes

Inventories

Prepaid expenses

2,038,841 $

754,8^

4,832,481

1,133,896

192,601

839,076

470323

1,806,804

792,987

5,152,985

2,852,947
756396

70,390

811,360

419,545

Total current assets 14338.922 12,663,314

Noncurrent assets

Investmentslimited as to use in local agency investmentfund
Cashandcashequivalents restricted or limited as to use,lesscurrent portion
Capital assets, net

4376379
407350

14,554,638

4380,051

407,350

14,572383

Total noncurrent assets 19,338.967 19,259,684

Deferred outflows ofresources, bond refunding 471351 520,001

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources S 34,049,140 S 32,442,999

See accompanying notes to basicfinancial statements.



Mendocino Coast Health Care District

doing business as Mendocino Coast District Hospital
Statements of Net Position (Continued)
June 30,2019 and 2018

UABfLITIES AND NET POSITION 2019 2018

Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued compensation and related liabilities
Estimated third-paity payor settlements
Accrued interest

Current maturities oflong-term debt

$ 4,511,076 S
3,191,861

1,618,185
1,011,655

1,492,204

6,422,501

2,843,613

1,648,985

1,120,700

1328,969

Total current liabilities 11,825,581 13,364,768

Long-term debt, less current maturities 11,486,879 11,486,238

Total liabilities 23,312,460 24,851,006

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Umestricted

2,681,811

8,054,869

3,013,037
4,578,956

Total net position 10,736,680 7,591,993

Total liabilities and net position $ 34,049,140 S 32,442,999

See accompanying notes to basicfinancial statements



Mendocino Coast Health Care District

doing business as Mendocino Coast District Hospital
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Operating revenues
Net patient service revenue $ 58,142,969 $ 53,639,509
Other revenue 911,354 812,600

Total operating revenues 59,054,323 54,452,109

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages 21,015,322 19,922,700
Employee benefits 6,291,887 6,485,025
Professional fees 7,885,520 7,875,143
Registry 6,435,009 6,814,630
Purchased services 1,936,630 1,233,737
Supplies 9,044,465 8,472,046
Depreciation 1,481,931 1,511,526
Repairs and maintenance 817,116 937,924
Utilities 880,404 805,686
Leases and rentals 650,751 550,046
Insurance 535,214 541,866
Other 1,580,271 1,683,139

Total operating expenses 58,554,520 56,833,468

Operating income Goss) 499,803 (2,381,359)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Taxation for operations 2,594,047 831,003
Taxation for debt service 476,848 512,895
Interest expense (548,102) (513,157)
Loss on disposal ofassets (66,338) .

Total nonoperating revenues, net 2,456,455 830,741

Excess of revenues (expenses) beforecapitalcontributions 2,956,258 (1,550,618)

Capital contributions 188,429 339,314

Change in net position 3,144,687 (1,211,304)
Net position, beginning ofyear 7,591,993 8,803,297

Net position, end of year $ 10,736,680 $ 7,591,993

See accompanying notesto basicfinancial statements.

10



Mendocino Coast Health Care District

doing business as Mendocino Coast District Hospital
Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equividents

Cashflowsfrom operating activities
Receipts from and on behalfofpatients
Other receipts
Payments to and on behalfofemployees
Payments to suppliers and contractors

S 57,308,784 $

533,754

(26,958,961)
(31,754,699)

53,238,012

612,279

(26,455,047)
(26,832,140)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (871,122) 563,104

Cashflowsjrom noncapitalflnancing activities
District tax receipts for maintenance andoperations
Principal paymentson long-termdebt
Interest paid

2,471,836

(210,000)

(47,801)

826,037

(500,267)
(47,801)

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 2,214,035 277,969

CashflowsJrom capitaland relatedflnancing activities
Districttax receiptsforbondprincipal and interest
Capital contributions
Principalpaymentson long-term debt
Proceeds fromissuance of long-term debt
Interest paid
Purchase ofcapital assets

476,848

188,429

(1,056316)
1300,000

(630,404)
(1330,624)

512,895

339,314

(818,968)

(560,067)
(876,027)

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (1,052,067) (1,402,853)

CashflowsJrom investingactivities
Pwchase of investmentsin local agency investmentfund (96328) (53,965)

Net cash used in investing activities (96328) (53,965)

Net decrease in cashand cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents,be^nning ofyear

193,918

3,007,141

(615,745)
3,622,886

Cash and cash eauivalents, end ofyear S 3301,059 $ 3.007.141

See accompanyingnotes to basicfinancial statements.

II



Mendocino Coast Health Care District

doing business as Mendocino Coast District Hospital
Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)
Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

2019 2018

ReconcUiation ofCash and Cash Equivalents to the
Statements ofNet Position

Cashandcashequivalents $ 2,038,841 S 1,806,804
Cashandcashequivalents restricted or limited as to use,current 754,868 792,987
Cash and cash equivalents restricted orlimited as to use, long-term 407,350 407,350

Total cash and cash equivalents 3,201,059 $ 3,007,141

Reconciliation ofOperating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by (Usedin) Operating Actinties

Operating incomeOoss) S 499,803 $ (2,381,359)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) tonet
cashprovidedby(usedin)operatingactivities

Depreciation 1,481,931 1,511,526
Provision for bad debts 779,129 1,878,991
(Increase) decrease in assets:

Receivables:

Patient accounts (458,625) (428,440)
Estimatedthird-partypayor settlements (1,123,889) (393,540)
Other (377,600) (200,321)

Inventories (27,716) 22,175
Prepaid expenses (50,778) 110,010

Increase(decrease)in liabilities:
Accountspayable (1,910,825) 1,949,892
Accrued compensation and relatedliabilities 348,248 (47322)
Estimated third-party payor settlements (30,800) (1,458,508)

^{etcash_grorid^^jr^us^Jn2_0£erating^cttriti^

Seeaccompanying notes to basicfinancialstatements.

$ (871.122) $ 563.104

12



Mendocino Coast Health Care District

doing business as Mendodno Coast District Hospital
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Years Ended Jane 30,2019 and 2018

1. Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

a. Reporting Entity

Mendocino Coast Health Care District doing business as Mendocino Coast District Hospital
(the District) is comprisedof two separate divisions, a hospital division and a home
health/hospicedivision,both ofwhich are wholly owned by the District, a public entity
organizedunder Local Hospital District Law as set forth in the Health and Safety Code ofthe
State ofCalifornia. The District is a political subdivision ofthe State ofCalifornia and is not
subject to federalor state income taxes. The District is governed by a five member Board of
Directors, elected from withinthe district to specified termsof office. The District'shospital
and offices are located in Fort Bragg, California.

TheDistrict is a critical accesshospital with 25 set-upacute-care beds. Services offeredby the
District include medical, swing be^ surgical, labor/delivery and nursery care, 24-hour
emergency, laboratory, imaging services, orthopedics, oncology, physical therapy, homehealth,
cardiac rehabilitation, andclinics. Members of themedical staffinclude specialist in emergency
medicine, family practice, general surgery, radiology, and inpatient hospitalization.

A proposition to lease MendocinoCoastDistrictHospital to AdventistHealthfor the next 30
yearswill bevotedon by countyresidents in March2020.Ifapproved, the Districtwill no
longercontrol the operations of thehealth services in the coimty.

The Districthas no significantcomponent units.

b. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use ofestimates - The preparation of financial statements inconformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in theUnited States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affectthe reported amounts of assetsand liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assetsand liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues andexpenses during thereporting period. Actual results could
differ fivm those estimates.

Enterprisefund accounting—Tbs District's accounting policies conform to accounting
principles generally accepted in theUnited States ofAmerica asapplicable toproprietary funds
ofgovernments. The District uses enterprise fund accoimting. Revenues and expenses are
recognized onthe accrual basisusingthe economic resources measurement focus.

Risk management-The District isexposed tovarious risks ofloss from torts; theft of, damage
to,anddestruction ofassets; business interruption; errors and omissions; employee injuries and
illnesses; natural disasters; and medical malpractice. Commercial insurance coverage is
purchasedfor claimsarising from such matters.

Cash andcash equivalents andinvestments—The District considers cash and cash equivalents
to include certain investments inhighly liquid debt instruments with anoriginal maturity date
of90 days or less.

Inventories- Inventories are statedat coston the first-in, first-out method. Inventories consist
ofpharmaceutical, medical, surgical, and other supplies used inthe operation ofthe District.

Repaidej^enses - Prepaid expenses are expenses paid during the year relating to expenses
incurred infuture periods. Prepaid expenses are amortized over the expected benefit period of
the related expense.

13



Mendocino Coast Health Care District

doing business as Mendocino Coast District Hospital
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

1. Reporting Entity and Summary of Siguificant Accounting Policies (continued):

b. Summary ofSignificant Accounting Policies (continued)

Accrued compensated absences - The District's employees earn paid time off(PTO) for
vacation, holidays,and short-term illnessesbasedupon years ofservice.The relatedliability is
accrued during Ae period in which it is earned.The District's policy is to permit employees to
accumulateup to 400 hours ofaccrued compensatedabsences. The District may pay accrued
vacationabsencesupon termination if propernotice and termination procedures are followed.
As ofJune 30,2019 and 2018, the District has an accrued compensatedabsence liability of
$1,149,244and $1,173,087, respectively.

Net position - Net position ofthe District is classified into three components. Net investment in
capital assets consistsofcapitalassetsnet ofaccumulated depreciation, and is reducedby the
current balances of any outstanding borrowings used to finance the purchase or construction of
those assets.Restricted netposition is noncapital net position that must be used for a particular
purpose, asspecified by cr^itors, grantors, orcontributors external to the District. The District
had no restricted net position as ofJune 30,2019 and 2018. Unrestricted netposition is
remaining net position that does not meet die definition ofnet investment in capital assets or
restricted net position.

Operating revenues and ejg/enses - The District's statements ofrevenues,expenses, and
changes in net position distinguishbetween operating and nonoperatingrevenues and expenses.
Operating revenues result from exchange transactions associated with providinghealthcare
services,which is the District's principal activity. Operating expenses are all expenses incurred
to provide healthcare services, other than financing costs. Nonoperatingrevenues and expenses
are those transactionsnot considered directly linked to providing healthcareservices.

Restricted resources - When the District has both restricted and unrestricted resources
available to finance a particular program, it is the District's policyto use restricted resources
before unrestricted resources.

Grants and contributions - From time to time, the District receivesgrants from the state of
California and others, as well as contributions fiom individuals andprivate organizations.
Revenues fromgrants and contributions (including contributions ofcapitalassets)are
recognizedwhen all eligibility requirementsare met. Grants and contributionsmay be restricted
for specific operating purposes or for capitalpurposes. Amounts thatare restricted to specific
capitalacquisitions are reportedafter nonoperating revenuesand expenses. Grants that are for
specific projects or purposes relatedto the District'soperating activities are reported as
operating revenue. Grants that are used to subsidizeoperatingdeficitsare reportedas
nonoperating revenue.Contributions, exceptfor capitalcontributions, are reportedas
nonoperating revenue.

Redassifications-CetisAn reclassifications have been made to the 2018 financial statements to
conform with the classifications used in the 2019 financial statements with no effect on
previouslyreportedchange in net position.

Subsequentevents - Subsequent events have beenreviewed through February 17,2020, the
date on which the financial statements were available to be issued.

14



Mendocino Coast Health Care District

doing bnsiness as Mendocino Coast District Hospital
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continned)
Years Ended Jnne 30,2019 and 2018

1. Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued):

b. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Upcomingaccounting standardpronouncements - In January 2017, the Governmental
AccountingStandardsBoard (GASH)issued StatementNo. 84, Fiduciary Activities, to improve
guidance regarding the identificationof fiduciaryactivities for accoimtingand financial
reporting purposesand how those activities shodd be reported. It includespension trust funds
as fiduciaryactivities and will require them to be discretely presentedon the District's financial
statements as fiduciary component units. The new guidance is effective for the District's year
ending June 30,2020, although earlier application is encouraged. The District has not elected to
implementthis statement early; however, management is still evaluatingthe impact, ifany, of
this statement in the year ofadoption.

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases, which increases the usefulness of
goverrunents' financial statements by requiring recognition ofcertain lease assets and liabilities
for leases previously classified as operating leases and recognizedas inflows ofresources or
outflows of resources based on the payment provisions ofthe contract. It establishes a single
model for lease accountingbased on die foundationalprinciple that leases are financings ofthe
Tightto use an underlyingasset. Under this statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease
payable and a right to use asset, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistencyof
informationabout governments' leasing activities. The new guidance is effective for the
District's year endingJune 30,2021, althoughearlier application is encouraged. The District
has not electedto implement this statementearly;however,management is still evaluating the
impact, ifany, ofthis statement in the year ofa^ption.

In June 2018, the GASB issued StatementNo. 89,Accounting/or Interest Cost Incurred Before
the End ofa Construction Period. The objectives ofthis statement are (1) to enhance the
relevance and comparability of information aboutcapitalassetsand the costofborrowingfor a
reporting period and (2) to simplify accounting for interest cost incuned before the end ofa
constmction period. The new guidance is effective for the District's year Jime 30,2021.
Management is currentlyevaluating the effect this statement will have on the financial
statements and related disclosures.

2. Bank Deposits and Investments:

As of June 30,2019 and 2018,the Districthad amounts on deposit in various financial institutions
in the form ofoperatingcash and cash equivalents. All ofthese funds were collateralized in
accordance with the California Government Code (CGC),exceptfor $250,000per financial
institution that is federally insured.

Undertheprovisions of theCGC, California banksandsavings andloanassociations arerequired
to secure die District's deposits by pledging government securities as collateral.The market value
ofpledged securities must equal at least110 percent of theDistrict's deposits. Califomia lawalso
allows financial institutions to secure District deposits by pledging first trustdeedmortgage notes
having a value of 1SO percent of theDistrict's totaldeposits. Thepledged securities areheldby the
pledgingfinancial institution's trust department in the nameof the District

15



Mendocino Coast Health Care District

doing business as Mendocino Coast District Hospital
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

3. Investments:

The District's investment balances and average maturities were as follows:

2019
Investment Maturities in Years Investment

Fair Value Lesstlian I I to5 Over5 Ratings

fnvestment in Local Akchcv Investment Funds $ 4,376.979 S 4,376,979 $ $ Not tqiplicable
Total investments S 4,376,979 S 4376,979 $ S

2018

Investment Maturities in Years Investment

Fair Value Less than I I to 5 OveT5 Ratings

Investment in Local Aftency Investment Fimds S 4,280,051 s 4380,051 S $ Not aiiplicable
Total investments $ 4,280,051 s 4380,051 S $

The District categorizesits fair value measurementswithin the fair value hierarchy established by
generallyaccepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is basedon the valuation inputsused to
measure the fair value ofthe asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets; Level2 inputsare significant otherobservable inputs; Level 3 inputsare significant
unobservable inputs. The Districthad no investments subjectto fairvalue measurements at June 30,
2019 or 2018.

The policy identifiescertain provisions which address interest rate risk, credit risk, and
concentration ofcredit risk.

Interest rate risk - Interestrate risk is the risk thatchanges in marketinterest rateswill adversely
affectthe fairvalue of an investmentGenerally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the
greaterthe sensitivity of its fair valueto changes in market interest rates. The District's exposure to
interest rateriskis minimal as 100percent of their investments have a maturity of less thanone
year. Informationabout the sensitivity ofthe feir values ofthe District's investmentsto market
interest rate fluctuations is provided by thepreceding schedules thatshowthedistribution of the
District's investmentsby maturity.

Creditrisk - Credit risk is the risk that the issuerof an investment willnot fulfill itsobligation to
theholder of theinvestment Thisis measured bytheassignment of a rating by a nationally
recognized statistical ratingorganization suchas Moody's Investor Service, Inc.The District's
investments are in governmentinvestmentfundswhichare not rated. The Districtbelievesthat

•there is minimal credit risk with its investments at this time.

Custodial credit risk —Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure ofthe
counterparty(e.g., broker-dealer), the District will not be able to recover the value of its investment
or collateral securities thatarein thepossession of another party. TheDistrict's investments are
generally heldby banksor government agencies. TheDistrictbelieves there is minimal custodial
creditriskwith Aeir investments at thistime. District management monitors theentities which hold
thevarious investments to ensure they remain ingood standing.

Concentration ofcredit risk—Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the
magmtude of theDistrict's investment in a singleissuer. The Districtbelieves there is minimal
concentration ofcredit risk at this time.

16



Mendocino Coast Health Care District

doing business as Mendocino Coast District Hospital
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
Years Ended Jnne 30,2019 and 2018

3. Investments (continued):

Assets limited as to use - Assets limited as to use as ofJune 30,2019 and 2018, were comprised of
cash and cash equivalents held by the County ofMendocino under a General Obligation bond
agreement, held by a trustee under bond indentureagreements, and designatedby the board for
investment in Local Agency Investment Fund for board determined use. Interest income, dividends,
and both realizedand unrealizedgains and losses on investmentsare recorded as investment
income. Total investment income includes both income from operating cashand cash equivalents
and cash and cash equivalents related to assets limited as to use.

Assets limitedas to use were comprised ofthe following:

2019 2018

Board desigoated forthepafticipation in Medicaid supplemental payment programs S 447«,979 $ 4380.051
Boarddesignated for repayment of long-term debt 754368 792,987
Bond restricted for payment of long-term debt 407350 407.350

Total assets limited as to use S 5,539,197 S 5.480.388

4. Patient Accounts Receivable:

Patient accounts receivable are reduced by anallowance foruncollectible accounts. In evaluating
thecollectibility of accounts receivable, theDistrict analyzes its pasthistory andidentifies trends
foreach of itsmajor payor sources ofrevenue to estimate theappropriate allowance for
uncollectible accounts andprovision forbaddebts. Management regularly reviews dataaboutthese
major payor sources of revenue inevaluating thesufficiency of theallowance forluicollectible
accounts. Forreceivables associated withservices provided to patients whohavethird-party
coverage, the Districtanalyzes contractually due amounts and provides an allowance for
uncollectible accounts anda provision for baddebts, ifnecessary (forexample, forexpected
uncollectible deductibles and copayments onaccounts forwhich thethird-party payor hasnotyet
paid,or forpayors who are knownto be havingfinancial difficulties that makethe realization of
amounts dueunlikely). Forreceivables associated withself-pay patients (which include both
patients without insurance andpatients withdeductible andcopayment balances dueforwhich
third-party coverage exists for part of the bill), theDistrict records a significant provision forbad
debts in theperiod of service onthebasis of itspast experience, which indicates that many patients
are unable orunwilling topaythe portion oftheir bill forwhich they are financially responsible.
Thedifference between thestandard rates (or thediscounted rates if negotiated) andtheamounts
actually collected afterall reasonable collection efforts have beenexhausted is charged offagainst
the allowance forimcollectible accounts.

17



Mendocino Coast Health Care District

doing business as Mendocino Coast District Hospital
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

4. Patient Accounts Receivable (continued):

The District's allowance for uncollectible accounts for self-pay patients increased from the prior
year due to accounts becoming more aged. The District does not maintain a material allowance for
uncollectible accounts from third-party payers, nor did it have significant writeoffs from third-party
payers.

Patient accounts receivable reported as current assets consisted ofthese amounts:

2019 2018

Receivable from patients and their insurance carriers
Receivable from Medicare

Receivable from Medi-Cal

$ 4,634,559 $
2,278,826

620,716

4,697,861

1,766,877

507,997
Total patient accoimts receivable 7,534,101 6,972,735

Less allowance for uncollectible accounts (2,701,620) (1,819,750)

Patient accounts receivable, net S 4,832,481 $ 5,152,985

5. District Tax Revenues:

TheMendocino County Treasurer acts asanagent to collect property taxes levied in theCoiuty for
all taxing authorities. Taxes are levied annually andaredue in equal installments on October31 and
February 1. Property taxes are recorded as revenue when levied. Since state law allows for sale of
property for failure to pay taxes, no estimate ofuncollectible taxes is made.

Beginning July 1,2018, the county voted toapprove a special tax of$144 per parcel for each parcel
of taxable realproperty within theDistrict each yearfora period oftwelve years, which is
estimated to raise approximately $1.7 million annually.

18



Mendocino Coast Health Care District

doing business as Mendocino Coast District Hospital
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

6. Capital Assets:

The District capitalizes assets whose costs exceed $5,000 and have an estimated iiseful life ofat
least twoyears. Majorexpenses for capitalassets, including repairs that increase the usefiil lives,
are capitalized. Maintenance, repairs,and minorrenewals are accounted for as expensesas
incurred. Capital assets are reported at historical cost or their estimated fair value at the date of
donation. Depreciation is provided over the estimated usefullife of eachclassof depreciable asset
and computed using the straight-linemethod.

Useful lives are estimated as follows:

Buildingsand improvements
Equipment

Capital asset activity follows:

5-40 years
3-20 years

Balance

Jane 30,

2018 AJdlUoni Reflrementi Tranefen

Balance

Jane 30,

2019

Capital assets not beingdepreciated
Land

Consliuction in projgesa

Total coital assetsnot being
denreciated

Capitalassetsbeingdepreciated
Buildingand inptovements
Equipnient

Total coital assetsbeing

depreciated

S 117,490 $ - S

280.584 1,456.217

398.074 1.456.217

25,215,842
22.640.197

47.856.039

lAAOn

74.407

Lessaccunadateddepreciationfor
Building and improvements (14,982,920) (788,063)
Equipment (18.698.9101 (693.8681

Total accumulated depreciation

Total coital assetsbeing
depiecialed.net

Capital assets, net of accamnlated
depredation

(33.681.8301 (1.481.9311

14.174309 (1.407524)

$ 14,572383 $ 48.693 $

(1.678.0401

(1.678.0401

1.611.702

1.611.702

(665381

S S

(134.1141

117,490

1.602.687

(134.1141 1.720.177

134.114

134.114

134.114

25,215,842
21.170J78

46386520

(15,770583)
(17.781.0761

(335525591

12534561

(66538) S S 14554538

19



Mendocino Coast Health Care District

doing bnsiness as Mendocino Coast District Hospital
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

6. Capital Assets (continued):

Balance

June 30,

2017

Balance

June 30,

2018AddiMoni ReUrementi Tranifen

Capita! assets not beingdepreciated

Land

Consttuctian in nrogten

S 117,490 S

1.137.652

S

647.081

S S

(1.504.149)

117,490

280484

Total capital assetsnot being

depieciated 1.255.142 647.081 (1.504,149) 398.074

Capital assets being depreciated

Buildingand impioventents

Equimnent

25,215,S42

20.966.403 228.946 (59401) 1.504.149

25415,842

22,640.197

Total capital assetsbeing

depieciated 46.182.245 228.946 (59.301) 1.504.149 47456.039

Less ttccumtdateddqireciationfar

Buildingand imptovements

Eouipinenl

(14.172424)

(18.057481)

(810496)

aao.930) 59401

• (14482420)

(18498410)
Total ammuilatfd depreciation (32429.605) (1.511426) 59401 • (33,681430)
Total capital assetsbeing

depreciated, net 13452.640 (1482480) 1404.149 14,174409

Capital assets, net or accumulated

depreciation $ 15407,782 $ (635,499) S I S 14472483

Construction inprogress - As ofJune 30,2019, construction inprogress consisted of the following
projects:

Estimated ToUl Total Estimated

Completion Budgeted Cost Cost to

Date Project Cost incurred Complete

Auto Transfer Switch December 2019 $ 1,077,926 $ 677,926 S 400,000
HVAC December 2019 1,078,464 878,464 200,000
Emergency Department WaterHeater December 2019 98,411 28,411 70,000
Cardiology Building Remodel December 2019 267,886 17,886 250,000

Total costs to complete S 2422,687 $ 1,602,687 S 920,000

20



Mendocino Coast Health Care District

doing business as Mendocino Coast District Hospital
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

7. Long-term Debt and Capital Lease Obligations:

A schedule ofchanges in the District's long-tenn debt follows:

Balance Balance Amounts

June 30, June 30, Due Wllhln
Bonds and Notes Payable 2018 Additions Rednctiotts 2019 One Year

LTGO bonds series 2016 $ 4,090,000 S S (50,000) S 4,040,000 $ 50,000
LTCO bonds series 2000 - capital appreciation 428,773 - (79,659) 349,114 78,463
2009 revenue bonds 240,000 - (240,000) - .

2016 revenue bonds 5,090,000 . (360,000) 4,730,000 625,000
United Healthcare note 1,260,000 . (210,000) 1,050,000 210,000
OSHPDCAL Mortgage 755,805 . (200,000) 555,805 200,000
Bankruptcypayables 189,310 - . 189,310 189,310
HELP n loan

- 1,500,000 (126,657) 1,373,343 139,431
Premiuiiis and discounts 76U19 - (69,808) 691,511 .

Total long-term debt S 12,815,207 s 1,500,000 $ (1,336,124) S 12,979,083 S 1,492,204

Balance Balance Amounts
June 30, June 30, Due Within

Bonds and Notes Payable 2017 Additions Reductions 2018 One Year

LTGO bonds series 2016 s 4,125,000 s $ (35,000) s 4,090,000 S 50,000
LTGO bonds series 2000 - capital appreciation 507,741 . (78,968) 428,773 79,659
2009 revenue bonds 470,000 - (230,000) 240,000 240,000
2016 revenue bonds 5,440,000 - (350,000) 5,090,000 360,000
United Healthcare note 1,470,000 . (210,000) 1,260,000 210,000
CMS note 55,483 - (55,483) .

OSHPO CALMortgage 880,805 - (125,000) 755,805 200,000
Bankruptcy payables 424,094 . (234,784) 189,310 189,310
Piemiuins and discounts 831,505

- (70,186) 761,319 -

Total long-tenn debt S 14,204.628 $ $ (1.389,421) S 12.815,207 $ 1.328.969

Aggregate annual principal and interest payments over the terms oflong-term debt follow:

Long-term DebtYears Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2020 $ 1,492,204 $ 602,124 $ 2,094,328
2021 1,083,601 586,100 1,669,701
2022 1,047,791 569,815 1,617,606
2023 910,802 563,863 1,474,665
2024 1,065,701 405,949 1,471,650

2025 - 2029 5,442,473 859,487 6,301,960
2030 - 2031 1.245.000 47,157 1,292,157

S 12,287,572 $ 3,634,495 $ 15,922,067

21



Mendodno Coast Health Care District

doing business as Mendodno Coast District Hospital
Notes to Basic Finandal Statements (Continued)
Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

7. Long-term Debt and Capital Lease Obligations (continued):

RefunMng Revenue Bonds, Series 20Q9 - Bonds payable dated October 1,2009, in the original
amountof$5,000,000, partiallyrefunded in 2017 by the Refunding RevenueBonds,Series2016.
The imfimded portion ofthebondprincipal in the amoimt of $240,000 was paidin full during 2019.

RendingRevenue Bonds, Series 2016 - In July 2016, the District issued the Mendocino Coast
Health CareDistrict (Mendocino Counfy, California) Insured Health Facility Refunding Revenue
Bonds, Series 2016 in theamount of $5,745,000. Thebondprincipal is payable yearlyat various
amounts from $360,000 to $625,000. Bondinterest ispayable semiannually at various ratesfrom
3.0percentto 5.0percent. Thebonds mature in 2029and are payable solelyfrom grossrevenues
andcertain funds heldunder theIndenture. Repayment of thebonds is insured pursuant to a
Contract of Insurance anda Regulatory Agreement through the California Health Facility
Construction Loan Insurance Program administered by theOffice of Statewide Health Planning and
Developmentofthe State of Califomia (OSHPD).

2000 General Obligation Rrfunding Bonds,Series 2016- InNovember 2016,the Districtissued
$4,125,000 principal amount of general obligation bonds inorder to refinance itsGeneral
Obligation Bonds, Series 2000. Interest onthe bonds ispayable semiannually at rates ranging from
2.375 percent to 5.000 percent andprincipal maturities, ranging from $50,000 in 2023 to $645,000
in 2031,are due annually on August 1ofeachyear.

Bonds maturing onor afterAugust 1,2027,mayberedeemed priorto matiuity at theDistrict's
option. The redemption price is 100 percent. The Bonds are general obligations oftheDistrict
payable from advalorem taxes. Payment ofprincipal, interest and maturity value of theBonds,
when due, are insured bya municipal bond insurance policy.

Bonds maturing onAugust 1,2022, arc subject tomandatory redemption, paid from amandatory
sinking fund inwhich the District will make annual payments on August 1,2018, through August 1,
2022, in amounts ranging from$35,000 to $55,000.

United Healthcare Note-The District borrowed fimds in the amount of$2,100,000 in April 2014
fromUnitedHealthcare imdera program established to finance certainelectronic medical records
conversion and installation required byCenters for Medicare &Medicaid Services (CMS). The
note carries aninterest rate of4.0 percent and principal payments of$210,000 are due annually in
April through 2024.

22



Mendocino Coast Health Care District

doing business as Mendocino Coast District Hospital
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

7. Long-term Debt and Capital Lease Obligations (continued):

Cal Mortgage - The District borrowed a total of$1,005,806 from Cal Mortgage to replace a line of
credit with a bank in the amount of$1,000,000 during fiscal year ended June 30,2013. This was
done to help facilitate the District's bankruptcy filing. The note carries varying interest rates and
payments including principal and interest tanging from $233,207 to $157,570 and are due monthly
through March 2022.

The Agreement with OSHPD sets out certain business covenants ofthe District, including
maintenance, operation and management of facilities and limitations on encumbrances, assignment
and transfer ofany part ofthe facilities, and other matters. The Agreementalso provides for the
rights and obligations ofthe parties in fiie event ofa default. Under the Agreement, the District has
agreed to fix, charge, and collect such rates, fees, and charges which, togetherwith all other receipts
and revenues of the District, will produce a debt coverage ratio ofat least 1.25 times the District's
aggregate debt service for a fiscal year. The District met this requirement as ofJune 30,2019.

CMS Pt^able - The District had a note payable to CMS related to a settlement for a self-reported
Stark Law violation.This note was repaid during fiscal year ended June 30,2018.

Bankruptcy Pt^able - The District has a note payable related to amounts due to various vendors
from the bankruptcy settlement. The settlementwas for $900,884, and has a final paymentof
$189,310 due in 2020.

HELP H Loan - The District has a promissorynote payable to California Health Facilities
Financing Authority for the sum of $1,500,000. The loancarriesmonthly interest and principal
paymentsof$13,802throughJuly 2028. The promissory note requires the Districtto submit
audited financialstatementswithin 120days ofyear en^ which the District was not in compliance
with for the fiscal year ended June 30,2019.

23



Mendocino Coast Health Care District

doing business as Mendocino Coast District Hospital
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continned)
Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

8. Net Patient Service Revenues:

The Districtrecognizes patient servicerevenue associated with servicesprovidedto patients who
havethird-party payorcoverage on the basisof contractual ratesfor the services rendered. For
uninsured patientswho do not quality for charity care, the District recognizes revenue on the basis
of its standard rates for services provided (or on the basis ofdiscounted rates, ifnegotiated or
provided by policy). On the basis ofhistorical experience,a significantportion of the District's
uninsured patients will be unable or unwilling to pay for &e services provided. Thus, the District
records a significantprovision for bad debts related to uninsured patients in the period the services
are provided.The District's provision for bad debts and writeoff decreased from the prior year as
the District had performed a cleanup ofold accounts in the prior year. The District has not changed
its charity care or uninsured discount policiesduring 2019. Patient service revenue, net of
contractualadjustmentsand discoimts (but before the provision for bad debts), recognized in the
period from these major payor sources, is as follows:

2019 2018

Patient service revenue (net ofcontractual
adjustmentsand discounts);

Medicare $ 41,023,992 $ 31,655,763
Medi-Cal 2,830,314 4,530,030
Other third-party payors 10,958,113 14,444,611
Patients 1,411,209 1,840,649
Supplemental payments 3,186,231 3,316,703

59,409,859 55,787,756
Less:

Charity care 487,761 269,256
Provision for bad debts 779,129 1,878,991

Net patient service revenue S 58,142,969 $ 53,639,509

The Districthas agreements with third-party payors thatprovidefor payments to the Districtat
amounts different fromits established rates. A summary of thepayment arrangements withmajor
third-party payors follows:

• Medicare - The District has been designateda critical access hospital by Medicare and is
reimbursed for inpatientand outpatient servicesand rural health clinicvisits on a cost basis
as defined and limited by the Medicareprogram. Physician services outside the rural health
clinicarepaid on a fee schedule. Home health and hospice servicesare reimbursed on a
prospective rate per episode of care. The District is reimbursed for cost reimbursable items
at a tentative ratewith final settlement determined after submission of aimual costreports by
the District and audits thereof by the Medicareadministrativecontractor.

• Medi-Cal - Services to Medi-Cal beneficiariesare paid at prospectively determinedrates
per procedure or discharge. The ruralhealthclinicis paid a prospective rateper encounter
and updated annually for inflation.

24



Mendocino Coast Health Care District

doing business as Mendocino Coast District Hospital
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continaed)
Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

8. Net Patient Service Revenues (continued):

The District also has entered into payment agreementswith certain commercial insurancecarriers,
health maintenanceorganizations,and preferred provider organizations.The basis for payment to
the District under these agreements includesprospectivelydetermined rates per discharge,
discounts from established charges, and prospectively determined daily rates.

Laws and regulations governing Medicare, Med-Cal, and other programs are extremely complex
and subject to interpretation. As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibilitythat recorded
estimates will change by a material amount in the near term. Net patient service revenue increased
by approximately $930,000 and decreased by approximately $70,000 in 2019 and 2018,
respectively, due to differencesbetween original estimates and final settlementsor revised
estimates. Net patientservicerevenue increased by approximately $1,300,000 and $690,000 in
2019 and 2018, respectively,due to differencesbetween original estimatesand final settlements or
revised estimates for supplementalpayment programs.

The District provides charity care to patients who are financially imable to pay for the healthcare
services they receive. The District's policy is not to pursue collection ofamountsdetermined to
qualifyas charitycare. Accordingly, the Districtdoes not report these amounts in net operating
revenues or in the allowance for uncollectible accounts. The District determines the costs associated
withproviding charity careby aggregating the applicable directand indirect costs, including
salaries andwages, benefits, supplies, andotheroperating expenses, based on datafrom its costing
system.The costsofcaring for charitycare patientsfor the years ended June 30,2019 and 2018,
were approximately$243,000 and $131,000, respectively.The District did not receive any gifts or
grants to subsidize charityservicesduring2019and 2018.

9. Employees' Retirement Plans:

TheDistrict hasa noncontributory, defined contribution pension plan which covers substantially all
employees, theMendocino CoastDistrict Hospital Money Purchase Pension Plan(thePlan)which
is administered by Transamerica. The District has the authority to amendthe Plan. Assetsof the
Plan consist ofa group of aimuity contracts. Theannual contribution made bytheDistrict is equal
to approximately 5 percent of eligible employee salaries. Total pension expense fortheyears ended
June30,2019 and 2018,were$841,369 and$834,849, respectively. For the yearsendedJune 30,
2019 and 2018, the amounts owed to the Plan by the District were $877,969 and $860,213,
respectively.

TheDistrict hasa 403(b) salary savings plan(the403(b) Plan) which is available to substantially all
employees. The403(b)Plan is whollyemployee funded through regulardeductions fromwages and
salaries. There isno provision foranymatching or other such contributions bytheDistrict.
Employeecontributions to the plan for the years endedJune 30,2019 and 2018,were $864,386and
$829,747, respectively.

25



Mendocino Coast Health Care District

doing business as Mendocino Coast District Hospitai
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

10. Risk Management and Contingencies:

Medical malpractice claims- The Districtpurchasesmalpractice liabilityinsurance through Beta
Healthcare Group. Beta offers the District a professional and general liability policy on a "claims
made"basis with primarylimits of$10,000,000 per claim and an annualaggregate of $20,000,000.
The policy has a $1,000 deductibleper claim. Beginning in fiscalyear 2019, the District decreased
its coverage with limits of$1,000,000per claim with an annual aggregateof$3,000,000.

No liability has been accmed for future coverage ofacts, if any, occurring in this or prior years.
Also, it is possible that claims may exceed coverage available in any given year.

Risk management - The District is exposed to various risks of loss from torts; theft of, damage to,
and destruction ofassets; business intermption; errors and omissions;employee injuries and
illnesses; natural disasters; and employeehealth, dental, and accidentbenefits. Commercial
insurance coverage is piuchased for claims arising from such matters. Settled claims have not
exceeded this conunercial coverage in any ofthe three preceding years.

Industry relations - The healthcare industry is subject to numerous laws and regulationsof
federal, state, and local governments.Recently,goverrunentactivityhas increasedwith respect to
investigations and allegations concerning possible violations ofvarious statutes and regulations by
healthcare providers. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future
government review and interpretation as well as regulatoiy actions unknown or unassorted at this
time. Management believes die District is in compliance with fraud and abuse as well as other
applicable government laws and regulations. If the District is found in violation ofthese laws, the
District could be subject to substantial monetary fines, civil and criminalpenalties, and exclusion
from participation in the Medicare and Medicaid programs.

11. Mendocino Coast District Foundation:

The Mendocino Coast DistrictFoundation (the Foundation) has been established as a nonprofit
public benefit corporationto solicit contributionson behalf ofthe community in the Mendocino
County coastal area. Funds raised, except for funds required for operation ofthe Foundation, are
distributed to the District or held for the benefit ofthe District and other healthcare functions within
the community. The Foundation's funds, which represent the Foundation's uiuestricted resources,
are donated to the District in amounts and in periods determined by the Foundation's Board of
Tmstees, who may also restrict the use ofsuch funds for Districtproperty or equipment
replacement, expansion, or other specific piuposes.

The District received contributions from the Foundation in the amount of $188,429 and $339,314
during the years ended June 30,2019 and 2018, respectively. The District provides office space to
the Foundation at no charge and the Foundation's directors and computer equipment are covered
imder the District's general liability, directors and officers, and property insiuance.

The Foundation's financial statements are not consolidated with the District's financial statements

as the Foundation's operations are not material.

26



Mendocino Coast Health Care District

doing business as Mendocino Coast District Hospital
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

12. Concentrations of Credit Risk:

PaHeni accounts receivable - TheDistrict grants credit without collateral to itspatients and
residents, most ofwhom are local residents and are insured under third-party payor agreements.
The majority ofthese patients are geographically concentrated inand around Mendocino County.

The mix of receivables frompatients was as follows:

2019 2018

Medicare 40 % 42 %

Medi-Cal 18 18

Other third-partypayors 25 28

Patients 17 12

ICQ % 100 %

Physicians - The Distnct isdependent on local physicians practicing inits service area to provide
admissions andutilize District services onan outpatient basis. A decrease in thenumber of
physicians providing these services orchange in their utilization patterns may have an adverse
effect on District operations.

Collective bargaining unA- Effective July1,2018,theDistrict renewed its contract with United
Food &Commercial Workers Union 8-Golden State (the Union). The contract is effective through
June 30,2020. As ofJune 30,2019 and 2018,70 percent and 75 percent, respectively, ofthe
District'semployees were represented by theUnion.

27



DINGUS ! ZflR6COR S flSSOCIflT€S fuc
Cartrfied Public Accountants

Board ofDirectors

Mendocino Coast Health Care District

doing businessas Mendocino CoastDistrictHospital
Fort Bragg, California

We have audited the financial statements ofMendocino Coast Health Care District doing business as
Mendocino Coast District Hospital (the District) fortheyear ended June 30,2019. Professional standards
require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing
standards, as wellas certain information related to theplaimed scope and timing of ouraudit. Wehave
communicatedsuch information in our letterto you dated June 27,2019. Professional standards also
require that wecommunicate toyou the following information related to ouraudit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects ofAccounting Practices

Management is responsible for theselection anduseof appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies usedby theDistrict aredescribed in Note 1 to the financial statements. Nonew
accounting policies were adopted andtheapplication of existing policies wasnotchanged during 2019.
We noted no transactions enteredinto by the Districtduring the year for which there is a lack of
authoritativeguidanceor consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral partof thefinancial statements prepared by management and are
basedon management's knowledge andexperience aboutpast andcurrent events andassumptions about
future events.Certainaccounting estimatesare particularly sensitivebecause of their significance to the
financialstatements and becauseof the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. Themost sensitive estimates affecting the District's financial
statements were:

• Management's estimate of the allowance for uncollectible patient accounts and contractual
adjustments is based on experience, third-party collection history, and analysis of the
collectibility of the individual accounts.

• Management'sestimatefor third-party settlements is based on interim payments, District
expenses, patient revenues, and patient statistical data.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates in determining that they
are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

The completion of the audit was delayed because a reconciled trial balance, supporting schedules, and
other information was not gathered on a timely basis.

I20'5 East Main Avenue | Spokane Valley. WA 99206 509.242,087a www.dzacpa.com



Board of Directors
Mendocino Coast Health Care District

doing business as MendocinoCoast District Hospital
Page 2

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate allknown andlikely misstatements identified during the
audit,otherthanthosethatare clearly trivial, andcommunicate themto the appropriate levelof
management Management has corrected all suchmisstatements. Thefollowing material misstatements
detectedas a resultof auditprocedures wereby management: the allowance forimcoUectible accounts,
accounts receivable, and estimated third party settlements.

Disagreements with Management

Forpurposes of thisletter, a disagreement withmanagement is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or notresolved to oursatisfaction, thatcould be significant to diefinancial
statementsor the auditors' report We are pleasedto reportthatno suchdisagreements aroseduring the
course ofour audit

Management Representations

We have requested certain representationsfi'om managementthat are included in the management
representation letter dated February 17,2020.

Management Consultationswith Other Independent Accountants

In some cases,management maydecide to consultwithotheraccountants aboutauditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a "secondopinion"on certainsituations. If a consultation involves
application of an accounting principle to the District's financial statements or a determination of the type
ofauditors' opinion thatmay be expressed on thosestatements, our professional standards requirethe
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultanthas all the relevant facts. To our
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety ofmatters, including the applicationofaccountingprinciples and auditing
standards, with management eachyearprior to retention as the District's auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course ofour professionalrelationshipand our responses were not a
condition to our retention.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the information and use ofthe Board ofDirectors and management
ofMendocino Coast Health Care District doing business as Mendocino Coast District Hospital and is not
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

^etnecot &^ddociated. 'PJLd^
Spokane Valley, Washington
Febmaiy 17,2020



DINGUS I ZflReCOfl S ftSSOCIHTeSwt
Cerlin«d Public Accountants

Board ofDirectors
Mendocino Coast Health Care District

doing business asMendocino Coast District Hospital
Fort Bragg, California

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Mendocino Coast Health Care District
doing business as Mendocino Coast District Hospital (the District) as ofand for the year end^June 30,
2019, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica, we
considered the District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) asa basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose ofexpressing our opinion on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose ofexpressing an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe
District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe District's
internal control.

Adeficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation ofacontrol does not allow
management oremployees, in the normal course ofperforming their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. Amaterial weakness is a deficiency, ora combination
ofdeficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that amaterial misstatement
ofthe entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
Our consideration of internal control was for thelimited purpose described in the first paragraph andwas
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses andtherefore there can be noassurance thatall such deficiencies have been
identified. However, as described below, we identified deficiencies in internal control that we consider to
be material weaknesses.

Auditor detected adjustments - Numerous auditor defected adjustments were proposed by the audit team
in order to correct the financial statements, related to the allowance for contractual adjustments andbad
debts, patient accounts receivable, third-party settlements, Medicaid supplemental payments, and revenue
bond activity. Adjustments should not be necessary in the audit process, and such adjustments indicate
weaknessin internal controls over financial reporting and preparation. As a result, financial statements
being used by management and the Board for decision making purposes were not accurate. Adequate
internal controls should be implemented toreconcile all accoimts on the general ledger prior tothe audit
process. There should also be areview and approval ofall manual journal entries and reconciliations by
an individual who did not prepare the entry or reconciliation.

Clinic receivables - TheDistrict's accounts receivable related to theclinic were notreconciled atyear end.
The District should have a process of reconciling balance to ensure accurate financial reporting. We
recommend the implementation ofa formal reconciliation and review process toensure these are
reconciled on a monthly basis.

Internal Controls

During our audit, we also became aware ofseveral matters that are opportunities for strengthening
internal controls and operating efficiency. This letter does not affect ourreport dated February 17,2020,
on the financial statements of the District.

12015 East Main Avenue Spokane Voiley. WA 99206 509.242,0374 www.dzacpa.com



Board ofDirectors
Mendocino Coast Health Care District

doing business asMendocino Coast District Hospital
Page 2

We will reviewthe statusofthe conunentsduringour next audit engagement. Our comments are
summarized as follows:

Internal controlsare deterrentsto fraudand errors.The following internalcontrol stracturecomments
should beconsidered along with available resources, the cost, benefits ofthe particular control, andother
mitigating controls. The inability to optimally segregate incompatible duties increases the importance of
management's and the Board ofDirector's oversight in the intemal control process. Although nothing has
come to our attention thatwouldleadus to believefraudhas occurred, we recommend the following
procedures tohelp minimize therisk oferrors and fraud inyour organization:

• The District does nothave updated and complete policies and procedures. Policies and procedures
help ensure proper procedures are consistently followed and that new employees or temporary
employees have adequate instroction to perform their tasks and follow proper intemal control
processes. We recommend all policies and procedures bereviewed and updated during the year.

• The District does nothave a formal policy for reviewing manual journal entries orbank
reconciliations. Itwasnoted during theintemal control walkthroughs thatJournal entries created
and posted bythe Controller were not being reviewed. We recommend the implementation ofa
formal review process toensure alljournal entries are reviewed after posted to the general ledger.

Lease Standard Implementation

TheDistrict willbe required to implement Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87,
Leases (orFinancial Accounting Standards Board No. 2016-02, Leases), in theyear ending June 30,2021.
TheDistrict will also berequired to restate theyear ending June 30,2020, when implementing thenewlease
accounting standard. The District will need tobeprepared to account forcurrently reported operating leases
as capital leases on July 1,2020.

Weexpect a material amoimt oflease obligations and the related assets will beadded tothe District's
statement ofnet position in 2021.

We recommend theDistrict develop andimplement a planto evaluate all leases during 2020. The
implementation plan should include the following:

• Develop a system (spreadsheetor software) for monitoring leases.
• Prepare an inventoryofall leased equipmentand real estate.
• Reviewlease expenseaccountswhile preparingthe inventory.
• Develop written policies andprocedures forall staffinvolved in equipment andrealestate leases

(accounting, departmentmanagers, purchasing, etc.).
• Review existing serviceandsupplies agreements for implicit equipment leases (an example is a

laboratory analyzer provided ifa certain amount of reagents are purchased froma vendor) Develop a
leasecapitalization threshold. Thiswould allowfor leases withtotalpayments undera certain dollar
threshold to be expensed as paid (die current practice for operating leases).

The Districthas verysignificant real estateleases. Suchleasesoften contain renewal optionswhichwill need
to be evaluated to determine ifit is reasonably certain, basedon all relevantfactors, that the lesseewill
exercise the option or not.



Board ofDirectors

Mendocino Coast Health Care District
doing business as Mendocino Coast District Hospital

Page 3

We can assist with the implementationof the new lease standard.

Thiscommunication is intended solely for theinformation anduseof management, theBoard ofDirectors,
andothers within theorganization andis not intended to be,andshould notbe,used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

SpokaneValley,Washington
February 17,2020



2



Mendocino Coast District Hospital

Labor and Delivery Update

April 3, 2020

To: Mendocino Coast Healthcare District Board

This correspondence serves as an update regarding the preparations done to ensure the care for a laboring woman

that presents to the Emergency Department as of April 1,2020.

As previously stipulated, we have identified and prepared Room 3 in the Emergency Department as the room where

we will deliver care. This room isa single patient room with solid walls which will accommodate the Hemorrhage/OB
Cart, the OB Stretcher, and the infant warmer. It will provide privacy for the laboring mother.

All planned updates of our equipment are completed. The Stryker OBstretcher will be placed in ED room 3 when

needed. OB nurses have worked with ED RN's, pharmacy and ED Physicians to design and stock an OB/Hemorrhage

cart that will be housed in Room 3 at all times. The infant warmer will be housed with the OB Stretcher.

All California Department of Public Health required preparations for this transition have been completed.

Furthermore, all hospital required obstetrical and neonatal education has been completed. Additional courses that

we have offered, although not required, include S.T.A.B.L.E., the "OB Emergencies" course taught by Darlene Harris,

REACH "High Risk OB" and UCSF "High RiskScenarios". ED staff attended the "OB Emergencies "course and

S.T.A.B.L.E.. As per the mandate from our Governor's Office, due to COVID -19, REACH has postponed the "High Risk

OB" class. Once we know we can safely gather as a group to schedule this, we will do so. To date, UCSF has not

postponed its May 12"" scenarios in the ED, We will continue to seek out supplemental educational opportunities as
they become available.

All policies that have been developed for the Emergency Department regarding obstetrical care in the facility, starting

April 1,2020, have gone through Medical Staff for approval. All essential order sets and forms have been reviewed

and are in the process of final approval. The final will be completed by the March 31, 2020 deadline.

Finally and critically, regarding the Emergency Operations Command and it's response to the COVID-19 crisis, the

space previously designated for OB services has been designated for the service of acute COViD-19 patients, as the

need arises. The availability of this space is essential for the adequate care of our community during this anticipated

epidemic.

Thank you so much for your time and consideration.

William Miller MD, Chief of Staff

John Delgado MD, Chair of Physician OBTask Force, EOC Physician Liaison

Lynn Finley RN Chief Nursing Officer



3



MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, OA

Unaudited Financial Statements

for

For the month ended February 29, 2020



Table of Contents

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA

For the month ended February 29,2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

BALANCE SHEET - ASSETS

BALANCE SHEET - LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS - CURRENT MONTH

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS - YEAR-TO-DATE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

KEY OPERATING STATISTICS

FINANCIAL RATIOS AND BENCHMARKS

PAGE 1

PAGE 2

PAGE 3

PAGE 4

PAGES

PAGES

PAGE?

PAGES

PAGE 9



MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
EXECUTIVE FINANCIAL SUMMARY

For the month ended February 29,2020

PAGE 2

BALANCE SHEET 1

2^9^020 6/30/2019

ASSETS

Current Assets $17,485,673 $14,710,373

Assets Whose Use is Limited 4,345,651 5,608.305

Property, Riant and Equipment (Net) 14,366,776 14,554,636

Total Unrestricted Assets 36,198,100 34,873,313

Total Assets $36,198,100 $34,873,313

LIABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Uabilities $11,888,646 $11,157,552

Long-Term Debt 12,081,267 12,979,083

Total Liabilities 23,969,913 24,136,635

Net Assets 12,228,186 10,736,679

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $36,198,100 $34,873,313

1 STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSE • YTD

ACTUAL BUDGET

Revenue:

Gross Patient Revenues $76,631,157 $78,112,162

Deductions From Revenue (38.483.037) (42,597,558)

Net Patient Revenues 38,148,120 35,514,604

Other Operating Revenue 1.453,276 1,852,877

Total Operating Revenues 39,601,396 37,367,481

Expenses:
Salaries, Benefits & Contract Labor 22,801,798 22,429,194

Purchased Services & Physician Fees 7,333,572 6,157,305

Supply Expenses 5,830,886 6,379,929

Interest Expense 0 0

Depreciation Expense 877,644 996,837

Other Operating Expenses 3,133.486 3,098,585

Total Expenses 39,977,384 39,061,850

NET OPERATING SURPLUS (375,991) (1,694,369)
Non-Operating Revenue/{Expenses) 1,867,503 1,749,301

TOTAL NET SURPLUS $1,491,508 $54,932

BOND COVENANTS

REQUIREMENT ACTUAL

DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO 1.25 3.75

CURRENT RATIO 1.00 1.47

DAYS CASH ON HAND 30.0 31.6

NET DAYS IN ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

•6 8%

55%

51%

49%

47%

45%

HOSPITAL MARGINS

8^^

0.7%

•0.9%

Operating Margin Total Profit Margin

DAYS CASH ON HAND

SALARY AND BENEFIT EXPENSE AS A
PERCENTAGE OF NET PATIENT REVENUE

[508^

•47^H

I MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTf 2/29/2020

• Budget 2/29/2020

I Prior Fiscal Year End 6/30/2019



Balance Sheet • Assets

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA

For the month ended February 29, 2020

Current

Month

2/29/2020

CURRENTASSETS

CASH $ 940,208

PARCEL TAX REVENUE ACCT 710,727

PATIENT RECEIVABLES 18,437,155

LESS: RESERVES FOR ALLOWANCES FOR RECEIVABLES (10.467.880)

NET PATIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES 7,969,275

ESTIMATED THIRD-PARTY PAYOR SETTLEMENTS 5,248,181

OTHER RECEIVABLES 1,190,225

INVENTORIES 800,862

PREPAID EXPENSES 626,195

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS S 17,485,673

ASSETS WHOSE USE IS LIMITED

BOARD DESIGNATED FUNDS

PLAN FUND

SPECIFIC PURPOSE FUND

BONDS

BONO COSTS

$ 3,437,554

13,774

0

455,573

438.750

TOTAL LIMITED USE ASSETS S 4,345,651

PROPERTY, PL4NT, & EQUIPMENT

LAND

LAND IMPROVEMENTS

BUILDINGS & IMPROVEMENTS

LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS

EQUIPMENT

CONSTRUCTION-1N-PROGRESS

GROSS PROPERTY, PLANT, & EQUIPMENT

LESS: ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

$ 117.490

805.398

24,604,464

546.439

20,902,409

1,820.283

$ 48.796.483

(34.429.705)

NET PROPERTY, PLANT. & EQUIPMENT S 14,366,776

TOTAL ASSETS $ 36,198,100

PAGE 3

Prior

Year End

6/30/2019

$ 1,145,996

872,982

18,226,405

(12,555.953)

5,670.452

4,570,009

1,141,535

839,076

470,323

S 14,710,373

4,376,979

13.774

0

746,302

471,250

S 5,608,305

$ 117,490

805,398

24,604,464

546,439

20,430,219

1,602,686

$ 48,106.696

(33.552.060)

S 14,554,636

S 34,873,313



Balance Sheet - Liabilities and Net Assets

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA

For the month ended February 29, 2020

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current

Month

2/29/2020

PAGE 4

Prior

Year End

6/30/2019

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ 5,520,968 $ 4,416,725

ACCRUED PAYROLL $ 391,879 $ 859,231

ACCRUED VACATION/HOLIDAY/SICK PAY $ 995,111 $ 1,149,245

PAYROLL TAXES PAYABLE $ 28,979 $ 60,642

ESTIMATED THIRD-PARTY PAYOR SETTLEMENTS $ 2,195,614 $ 1,868,522

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES $ 673,954 $ 911,488

INTEREST PAYABLE $ 885,719 $ 1,013,730

PREVIOUS FY PENSION PAYABLE $ 877,969 $ 877,969

CURRENT PORTION OF LTD (BONDS/MORTGAGES) $ 66,667 $ -

CURRENT PORTION OF LTD (OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES) $ 251,787 $ -

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES $ 11,888,646 $ 11,157,552

LONG TERM LIABILITIES

BONDS PAYABLE $ 9,007,742

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES $ 2.434,718

CURRENT FY PENSION PAYABLE {NON-CURRENT LIABILITY) $ 638,808

TOTAL LONG TERM LIABILITIES $ 12,081,267

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 23,969,913

FUND BALANCE

UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANACE

TEMPORARY RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE

Net Revenue/(Expenses) (YTD)

$ 10,736,679

$ 1,491,508

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 12,228,186

TOTAL LIABILITIES

AND NET ASSETS $ 36,198,100

$ 9,810,624

$ 3,168,459

_$ -
$ 12,979,083

S 24,136,635

$ 7,591,991

$

$ 3,144,687

$ 10,736,679

$ 34,873,313



statement of Revenue and Expense

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA

For the month ended February 29, 2020

PAGES

CURRENT MONTH

Poslttve

Actual

Prior

Year

02/29/20 02/29/20 Variance Variance 02/28/19

GROSS PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES

INPATIENT S 1,707.120 S 1,723,607 3 (16,487) -1% $ 1,827,740

SWING BED s 533.534 S 361.257 $ 172.277 48% $ 510,398

OUTPATIENT s 6,320,352 s 6,661.879 s (341,527) -5% s 6,799,218

NORTH COAST FAMILY HEALTH CENTER $ 560,825 s 422,024 S 138,801 33% S 397,765

HOME HEALTH s 101,617 s 115,210 S (13,593) -12% S 118,117

TOTAL PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES S 9,223,448 s 9,283,977 S (60,529) -1% S 9.653.228

DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUE

CONTRACTUAL ALLOWANCES s (3,859,341) $ (5,081,944) $ 1,222,603 24% s (5,409,176)

POLICY DISCOUNTS s (18,932) s (8,050) S (10,882) -135% $ (6,089)
STATE PROGRAMS S 103,073 s 151,900 $ (48,827) -32% s 148,000

BAD DEBT s - s (99,099) S 99,099 100% $ (86,000)
CHARITY s (786) s (27,246) S 26,460 97% s (43.521)

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUES s (3.775,986) s (5,064,439) S 1,288,453 25% s (5,398.786)

NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES S 5.447,462 s 4.219,538 S 1.227.924 29% s 4,254.442

OTHER OPERATING REVENUES s 95,368 s 247,127 $ (151.759) -61% s 251.431

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES $ 5,542,631 s 4,466,665 s 1,076,166 24% $ 4,505,673

OPERATING EXPENSES

SALARIES & WAGES - STAFF $ 1,456,214 S 1,440,029 S (16,185) -1% $ 1,419,826

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS s 721,264 $ 693,494 s (27,770) -4% S 755.588

PROFESSIONAL FEES - PHYSICIAN S 729,969 S 504,282 $ (225,687) -45% s 521.380

OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES - REGISTRY s 518,980 S 520,471 $ 1,491 0% S 447,930
OTHER PHOFESSION/«. FEES - OTHER s 80,931 $ 117,258 s 36,327 31% s 324.380

SUPPLIES-DRUGS s 377,879 s 460,765 s 82,886 18% S 446,867

SUPPLIES - MEDICAL s 165.877 s 229,429 $ 63,752 28% $ 259,509

SUPPLIES-OTHER s 74,635 s 82,732 s 8,097 10% s 110,688

PURCHASED SERVICES s 100.637 $ 110,302 $ 9,665 9% s 96,041
REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE s 56.660 $ 65,526 $ 8,868 14% s 57,350

UTILITIES s 69,972 s 69,813 $ (159) 0% s 72,901
INSURANCE s 44,816 s 49,933 s 5,117 10% $ 37,864

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION s 98,374 s 121,690 s 23,316 19% s 125,253
RENTAULEASE s 58,480 $ 51,579 $ (6,901) -13% $ 52,775
OTHER EXPENSE s 114,538 $ 119,110 $ 4,572 4% S 140,769

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES s 4,669.024 s 4,636.415 s (32,609) •1% s 4,669,122

INET OPERATING SURPLUS (LOSS)' 873.606 S (169.750) S 1,043,556 615% (363,249)1

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
OPERATING TAX REVENUES S 70,000 S 62.421 S 7,579 12% s 65,000
INVESTMENT INCOME s 13,522 s 6,178 $ 7,344 119% $ 4,000
DONATIONS $ - s 25.686 $ (25.686) -100% $ 13,558
INTEREST EXPENSE (ALL) s (36,209) s (40,451) S 2,242 -6% s (40,826)
EXTRAORDINARYGAINS/(LOSS) s - s 212 s (212) -100% s .

BONO EXPENSE (ALL) $ 1,112 s 1,057 s 55 6% $ 1,112
TAX SUBSIDIES FOR GO BONDS s 27,716 s 26,353 5 1,363 5% S 27.716
PARCEL TAX REVENUES s 133,000 s 126,459 s 6,541 5% S 133,000

TOTAL NON OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) s 207,141 s 207,916 s (774) 0% s 203,560

ITOTAL NET INCOME (LOSS)

Operating Margin

Total Profit Margin
E8IDA

Cash Flow Margin

S 1,060,946

15.6%

19.5%

17.5%

20.6%

38,165 S 1,042,763

-3.8%

0.9%

•1.1%

3.0%

2732% S (159.688)1

-8.1%

•3.5%

-5.3%

•1.4%



Statement of Revenue and Expense

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA

For the month ended February 29, 2020

PAGE 6

YEAR-TO-DATE

Poaitlve Prior

Actual Budget (Negative) Percentage Year

02/29/20 02/2^0 Variance Variance 02/28/19

GROSS PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES

INPATIENT S 13.453,038 $ 14,501,848 S (1,048,810) -7% S 14.362,120

SWING BED s 4.287,034 S 3,039,592 s 1,247,442 41% S 2,326,614

OUTPATIENT s 54.483.143 s 56,050.459 s (1,567,316) -3% s 55,574,227

NORTH COAST FAMILY HEALTH CENTER s 3.436,678 $ 3,550,788 S (114,110) •3% s 3,583,987

HOME HEALTH s 971,263 s 969,475 $ 1,768 0% s 957,405

TOTAL PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES $ 76,631,157 $ 78,112,162 s (1,481,005) -2% s 76,804,351

DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUE

CONTRACTUAL ALLOWANCES S (38,816,077) s (42.744,847) s 3,928,770 9% S (42,252.763)

POLICY DISCOUNTS S (71,422) s (67,728) S (3.694) -5% S (61.522)

STATE PROGRAMS S 1,467.896 s 1.278,062 S 189.834 15% S 683,829

BAD DEBT $ (910.808) s (833.798) $ (77.010) •9% $ (694,460)

CHARITY S (152.627) s (229,247) $ 76,620 33% s (210,065)

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUES $ (38,463.037) S 142.597.5581 s 4,114.520 10% S (42.534,982)

NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES $ 38,148,120 S 35,514,604 S 2,633.515 7% S 34,269,369

OTHER OPERATING REVENUES S 1,453,276 $ 1.852,877 S (399,601) -22% 3 1,320,299

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES i 39,601,396 $ 37,367.481 s 2,233,915 6% S 35,589,669

OPERATING EXPENSES

SALARIES « WAGES - STAFF s 12,147,464 $ 12,166.914 S 19,450 0% $ 11.831,850

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS $ 5,875,129 S 5,883.146 s 8,017 0% S 5.890,355

PROFESSIONAL FEES • PHYSICIAN s 5,016,734 s 4,243,429 s (773.305) •18% s 4.066,954

OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES - REGISTRY s 4,779,205 $ 4,379.134 s (400.071) •9% s 4.102,815

OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES • OTHER $ 1,384,989 $ 992.413 s (392.576) -40% s 1.078,773

SUPPLIES - DRUGS s 3,613,483 s 3,753,545 s 140.062 4% s 3.487,239

SUPPLIES-MEDICAL s 1,621.117 s 1.930.317 $ 309.200 16% S 1.934,624

SUPPLIES-OTHER s 596,288 $ 696,067 3 99,779 14% s 642,496

PURCHASED SERVICES $ 931,849 $ 921,463 s (10,386) -1% S 852,967

REPAIRS a MAINTENANCE $ 517,973 s 551,356 3 33,383 6% s 559,957

UTILITIES s 600,756 s 587.394 3 (13,362) -2% $ 592,507

INSURANCE s 421,552 s 420.123 3 (1,429) 0% S 376,005

DEPRECIATION a AMORTIZATION s 877,644 $ 996.837 3 119,193 12% $ 1.019,758

RENTAL/LEASE $ 472,056 $ 433.973 3 (36,083) -9% S 424,770

OTHER EXPENSE s 1,121.149 $ 1.105.739 3 (15,410) •1% s 957,190

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES s 39,977,387 $ 39,061,650 3 (915,537) •2% S 37,618,260

INETOPERATINGSURPLUS (LOSS) $ (375,991) S (1.694,369) S 1,316,378 -78% S (2.228,591)1

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
OPERATING TAX REVENUES $ 560.000 S 525,200 S 34,800 7% $ 520,000

INVESTMENT INCOME S 60,575 $ 51,984 s 8.691 17% s 56,338
DONATIONS S 279.065 $ 216,113 s 62.952 29% $ 20,141
INTEREST EXPENSE (ALL) s (319,657) s (340,340) S 20,683 -6% s (342.555)
EXTRAORDINARYGAINS/(LOSS) s - s 1,717 S (1.717) -100% $ 2,118
BOND EXPENSE (ALL) $ 6,896 s 6.899 s 3 0% $ 6,899
TAX SUBSIDIES FOR GO BONDS $ 221,728 s 221,728 $ - 0% $ 221,728
PARCEL TAX REVENUES $ 1.056,667 s 1,064,000 s (7,113) -1% s 1,064,000

TOTAL NON OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) s 1,867.499 s 1,749,301 s 118,198 7% s 1,550.669

(TOTALNET INCOME (LOSS) 5 1,491,508 s 54,932 s 1.436,576 2615% s (677.922)1

Operating Margin -0,9% -4.5% -6.3%

Total Profit Margin 3.6% 0.1% •1.9%

EBIDA 1.3% •1.9% -3.4%

Caali Flow Margin 5.4% 2.2% 0.3%



Statement of Cash Flows

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA

for the 8 months ended 2/29/20

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net Income (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
(Increasej/Decreass in Net Patient Accounts Receivable
(Increase)/Decrease In Other Receivables
(Increase)/Decrease In Inventories
(Increase)/Decrease in Pre-Paid Expenses
(Increasej/Decrease in Third Party Receivables
lncrease/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable
lncrease/(Decrease) in Notes and Loans Payable
lncrease/(Decrease) in Accrued Payroll and Benefits
lncrease/{Decrease) in Previous Year Pension Payable
lncrease/(Decrease) in Third Party Liabilities
lncrease/(Decrease) In Other Current Liabilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
(Increasej/Decrease in Limited Use Cash and Investments
(Increasej/Decrease in Other Limited Use Assets

Net Cash Used by investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

lncrease/(Decrease) in Bond/Mortgage Debt
increase/(Decrease) in Capital Lease Debt
increase/(Oecrease) in Other Long Term Liabilities

Net Cash Used for Financing Activities

(INCREASEj/DECREASE IN RESTRICTED ASSETS

Net lncrease/(Decrease) in Cash

Cash, Beginning of Period

Cash, End of Period

PAGE?

2/29/2020

$1,491,508

877,644

(2,298,823)

(48,690)

38,214

(155,872)

(678,172)
1,104,243

190,443

(653,149)

0

327,092

(237,534)

(43,096)

(689,785)
939,425

323,229
572,869

(802,882)
0

(94,933)

(897,815)

(368,043)

2,018,978

$1,650,935



Patient Statistics

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG. CA

For the month ended February 29, 2920

Actual

02/29QO

Current Mdnlh

Prior

Budget {Negative) Year
02/3d/3Q Variance 02/28/19 STATISTICS

Actu^

02/29/20

PAGES

Year*ToH3ele

Posrtiv*/

Budget (Negative)
02/29/20 Variance

Prior

Year

02/28/19

Admiaiiona

12 11 9% 12 Cnilcai Care Services 69 95 (6%) 99

4S 45 0% 41 Ger>efal 349 392 (11%) 398

57 56 2% 53 Subtotal Medical 8 Surgical A^lsaions 436 487 (10%) 497

7 7 0% 2 oa 44 63 (30%) 68

84 83 2% 59 Total Admiaaions 462 550 (12%) 565

12 10 20% 6 Swinq Bed 107 87 23% 95

7 7 0% 2 Total Dftllveriaa 42 63 (33%) 63

Inpattent Dave

35 39 (10%) 36 Critical Cara Services 256 333 (23%) 318

169 156 7% 140 Ger>eral 1363 1374 (1%) 1408

204 197 4% 178 SL^Motal Medical & Surgical inpailem Deys 1619 1707 (S%) 1726

13 16 i19%> 5 OB 109 142 (23%) 166

217 219 2% 183 Total inpationi Days 1726 1849 fr%) 1892

147 90 83% 82 Swing Bed 1150 763 47% 802

12 14 (14%) 3 Total Newborn Days 98 126 (30%) 141

Averaoe Length of Slav

2.9 3.5 (18%) 3.2 Critical Care Services 2.68 3.61 (18%) 3 21

3.6 3.S 7% 3.4 General 3.91 3.61 11% 3.54

3.6 3.5 2% 3.4 Subtoial Medical 8 Surgical 3.70 3.51 S% 3.47

1.9 2.3 (19%) 2.5 03 2.46 2.25 10% 2.44

9.4 3.4 0% 3.3 Total In patient (CAM) 3.59 3.36 7% 3.35

12.3 9.0 36% 10.3 Swinq Bed 10.75 9.00 19% 8.44

Avg Daily Cenaue • Hoepllal

1.2 1.4 (13%) 1.2 Critical Care Services (4 Beds) 1,0 1.4 (24%) 1.3

5.8 5.6 3% 45 General (6 Beds) 5.6 5.7 (2%) s.e

7.0 7,0 (0%) 5.7 Subtotal Medical & Surgical (12 Beds) 6.6 7,t 16%) 7.1

0.4 0.6 (22%) 0.2 OB (3 Bads) 0.4 0.6 (24%) 0.7

7.5 7.8 (2%) 5.9 Subtotal Acute (15 Beds) 7.1 7.6 (7%) 7.8

5.1 3.2 56% 2.6 Suina Care (10 Beds) 4.7 3.2 46% 3.3

12.8 10.8 16% 6.S Total HoepKal (25 Beds Available) 11.6 10.9 8% 11.1

Emeroerwv Departmani

689 725 (5%) 679 Outpateents Treated in ED • Errvergeni 6116 6262 (2%) 6.320

46 44 5% 41 Pahenis Admnted Irom EO 364 384 (5%) 396

735 789 (4%) 720 Total Patients treated In ED 6.480 6646 (2%) 6,718

Ambulance Service

141 153 (8%) 125 911 • Transports 1127 1321 (15%) 1207

0 1 (100%) 0 Transfer - Transpons 14 8 75% 8

141 154 (8%) 125 Total Ambulsnce Tranepona 1141 1329 (14%) 1215

Suroerv' Casee

14 16 (13%) 12 inpeUani Cases 102 141 (28%) 133

1 6 (83%) 6 Total imptarM Cases 16 48 (67%) 37

157 174 110%) 185 OutpatieriT Cases 1219 1536 (21%) 1506

172 198 (12%) 203 Total Surgery Cases 1337 1727 (23%) 1676

2,294 ^40^ 2,494

401 473 (15%)

4,207 4,656 (10%) 4,734

North Co4»i Family Hmllh C«nl««

Visits

Home Health

Visits

OutpaManI

Encountsrs

19.41T

4.018

36.076

21.249 (9%) 2D.B69

4,194 i4%) 4,1S2

41,168 (12%) 39.716



Key Financiai Ratios
MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA

Profitability:

Operating Margin
Total Profit Margin
EBIDA

Contractual Allowance % To Gross Charges
inpatlent Gross Revenue Percentage (Hospital)
Outpatient Gross Revenue Percentage (Hospital)

Liquidity:
Days of Cash on Hand, Short Term
Days Cash, All Sources
Net Days in Accounts Receivable
Hospital Gross Days In AR
Cash Flow Margin
Days in Accounts Payable
Current Ratio

Capital Structure:

Average Age of Plant (Annualized)
Capital Costs as a % of Total Exp.
Capital Spend as a % of Annual Depreciation
Long Term Debt to Net Position
Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Productivity and Efficiency:

Net Patient Sen/ice Revenue per PTE
Salary & Benefits Expense per Paid PTE
Salary & Benefits as a % of Total Expenses
Salary and Benefits as a % of Net Pat Rev.
Employee Benefits as a % of Salaries

Other Ratios:

Year to Date

2/29/2020

-0.9%

3,8%

1.3%

53.8%

24,6%

75,4%

5,8

31.6

48.8

61.1

5.4%

68

1.47

29,2

1.7%

78,6%

49,7%

3.75

$184,588
($110,331)

45.1%

47.2%

48.4%

BUDGET

-4.3%

0.4%

•1.7%

58.2%

23.8%

76,2%

$177,583

($112,151)
46.2%

50.8%

48.4%

PAGE 9

Prior Fiscal

Year End

06/30/19

0.7%

5.3%

1,0%

57.4%

23.7%

76.2%

7.3

41.0

38.4

53.6

7.0%

49.0

1.3

21.8

2.6%

102.0%

54,7%

2.98

$183,185

($108,875)
46,6%

48,2%

47,4%

FTE - PRODUCTIVE 239.3 241.1

PTE - NON-PRODUCTIVE 37,8 35.7

PTE - REGISTRY/CONTRACT 32,9 32.4

PTE-TOTAL PAID 310.0 300,0 309.2

Cost To Charge Ratio 52,2% 50,0% 49,5%

Medicare Revenue as a % of Total Revenue 63% 60% 61%

Medl-cal Revenue as a % of Total Revenue 20% 20% 21%

BC/BS ins Revenue as a % of Total Revenue 11% 13% 13%

Other Ins Revenue as a % of Total Revenue 5% 5% 4%

Self-Pay Revenue as a % of Total Revenue 1% 2% 1%



 

 

 
NOTICE AND AGENDA OF SPECIAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

 

SUNDAY, APRIL 19, 2020 
1:00 P.M.  Open Session 

Meeting Via Teleconference  
Dial In Number:  

CALL IN NUMBER: 
877-573-1973 

Passcode 9614637# 
 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE a special Board of Directors meeting has been called for Sunday, April 19, 2020 at 1:00 pm. 
This meeting will be held via teleconference only in order to reduce the risk of spreading coronavirus (COVID-19) 
and pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Orders N-25-20 and N-29-20.  
 

No physical location from which members of the public may observe the meeting and offer public comment will be 
provided. The public may listen in and provide comments on the following number: 877-573-1973 passcode 9614637# 
 

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS: 
 

OPEN SESSION: MS. JESSICA GRINBERG, PRESIDENT 
1.  Call to Order 
 

2.  Roll Call 
 

3.  Comments from the Community  
This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board of Directors on any matter which the 
District has jurisdiction. You may state your name and address for the record. Time is limited to 3 minutes per speaker. The 
Board of Directors can take no action on your presentation, but can seek clarification to points made in your presentation or 
comments. 
 

4. ACTION: APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR: MS. JESSICA GRINBERG, PRESIDENT  
 1. Minutes: Regular Session February 27, 2020        TAB 1 
 2.  Minutes: Special Session April 6, 2020         TAB 2 
 

5. Action/Information: LEASE               TAB 3 
    BETWEEN 
    MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT, AS LANDLORD   
        AND 
    ADVENTIST HEALTH MENDOCINO COAST, AS TENANT 
  
6. Action/Information: TRANSFER OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS AGREEMENT        TAB 4 
     

    MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT, 
    A Local Health Care District of the State of California 
             (“District”) 
        

       AND 
 

    ADVENTIST HEALTH MENDOCINO COAST, 
    A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation 
      (“AH Mendocino”) 
 

       AND 
        

    STONE POINT HEALTH, 
    A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation 
             (“Stone Point Health”) 
      
7.  Action/Information: BOARD RESOLUTION NO. 2020-01: Authorizing District Officers to   TAB 5 



 

 

 Enter into Lease and Transfer of Business Operations Agreement (Items No. 5 and 6) 
 

8. Comments from Community 
 This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board of Directors on any       
 matter which the District has jurisdiction. You must state your name and address for the record. Time is 
limited to 3 minutes per speaker. The Board of Directors can take no action on your presentation, but can 
seek clarification to points made in your presentation or comments. 

 

 9. Comments from Board of Directors 
 

10. Adjourn 
 

Dated: April 16, 2020 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 

Gayl Moon 
Secretary to the Board of Directors 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA) 
COUNTY OF MENDOCINO)  § 
 

I declare under penalty of perjury that I am employed by the Mendocino Coast Health Care District Board of Directors; and that 
I posted this notice at the North and Patient Services Building Lobby entrances to the Mendocino Coast District Hospital on 
April 16, 2020 
 
 
__________________________         _______________ 
Gayl Moon       Date 
Secretary to the Board of Directors 
 

All disabled persons requesting disability related modifications or accommodations, including auxiliary aids or service may 
make such request in order to participate in a public meeting to Gayl Moon, Secretary to the Board of Directors, 700 River 
Drive, Fort Bragg, CA  95437 no later than 1 working days prior to the meeting that such matter be included on that month’s 
agenda. 

*Per District Resolution, each member of the public who wishes to speak shall be limited to three minutes each per agenda 
item.  Please identify yourself prior to speaking.  Thank you.      
 
Board Packets will be made available for pick up at the Patient Registration area until 5:00 pm on Friday, April 17, 
2020: 700 RIVER DR. FORT BRAGG, CA 95437  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

              

           T
A
B
 

1    
 

 



1 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
REDWOODS ROOM                       

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 27, 2020 
MINUTES 

 

The Board of Directors of the Mendocino Coast Health Care District met in CLOSED session at 4:30 pm in 
the Redwoods Room, Jessica Grinberg, Chair presiding 
 

PRESENT: Mr. Redding, Ms.  Arnold, Ms. Grinberg, Mr. Lund 
Absent: Ms. Amy McColley 
Mr. Wayne Allen, Interim CEO 
 

 I.  CALL TO ORDER: 
  OPEN Session of the Board of Directors of the Mendocino Coast Health Care District convened at 

6:00 p.m. in the Redwoods Room, Ms. Jessica Grinberg, President presiding 
 

II.  ROLL CALL: 
  PRESENT: Mr. Steve Lund, Mr. John Redding, Ms. Karen Arnold, Ms. Jessica Grinberg 

  Board Members 
 

  BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: Ms. Amy McColley                 
 

  ALSO PRESENT:   
  Mr. Wayne Allen, Interim CEO 
  Mr. Doran Hammett, Interim CFO 
     

III.  REPORT ON ANY ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION; GOVERNMENT CODE 94957.1              

1. Information/Action: Hardin v. Mendocino Coast District Hospital, U.S. District Court 
for the Northern District of California, et al., Case No. 3:17‐CV‐05554, conference with 
legal counsel. Government Code §54956.9. 

2. Information/Action: Pursuant to California Government Code §54954.5 and §32155 
of the Health and Safety Code Medical Staff Credentials and Privileges Review and 
Medical Staff Report    

3. Information/Action: Pursuant to §32155 of the Health and Safety Code January Quality  
Management and Improvement Council Reports  

 

IV.  REPORT ON ANY ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION; GOVERNMENT CODE 94957.1 
 The Board has authorized Wayne Allen as CEO to sign the settlement agreement to release all of 

the claims in the Ellen Hardin Case.   
 

V.  PUBLIC COMMENTS   
 Community members made comments regarding Hospital issues. Following are topics that were 

discussed: 
 Many community members urged the Board not to close Labor and Delivery.                              

 

VI.  ACTION: REVIEW OF THE AGENDA 
 There were no changes to the agenda.                                           

   

MOTION: To accept the agenda as presented 
 Lund moved 
 Arnold second 
 Roll call 
 Ayes: Lund, Redding, Arnold, Grinberg 



2 
 

 Noes: None 
 Absent: McColley 
 Abstain: None 

 Motion carried 
   

 VII.  BOARD COMMENTS 
 Mr. Redding stated that he was with Dr. Miller when they gave twelve (12) Town Hall 

presentations. What was expressed at these meetings was that Adventist Health would be 
successful if they do take over the Hospital’s operations. Mr. Redding agrees with that.  

 

VIII.  ACTION: APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR: MS. KAREN ARNOLD, CHAIR 
1. Minutes: Regular Session, January 30, 2020 
2. Minutes: Special Session, January 23, 2020              
3. Patient Visitation Policy #829 
4. Authorization for Release of Verbal Information to Others 
5. Alysoun Huntley Ford Fund Draw (there were no requests)  
 

  MOTION: To approve the Consent Calendar as presented  
 Lund moved 
 Arnold second  
 Roll call 
 Ayes: Lund, Redding, Arnold, Grinberg 
 Noes: None 
 Absent: McColley 
 Abstain: None     

 Motion carried 
   

IX.  ACTION: TRANSITION PLAN OF STABILIZE AND TRANSPORT: DR. WILLIAM MILLER AND MS. LYNN 
FINLEY, CNO 
 Dr. Miller stated that a team has been working the preparation for the eventual closure of the 

OB Department has been ongoing for about eight (8) months, since July 2019. The team 
members are: 
 Lynn Finley, CNO 
 Davey Beak, Ambulance Service Manager 
 Heather Brown‐Douglas, Quality Manager 
 Anita West, ER Manager 
 Dr. John Delgado 
 Dr. Robin Serrahn  

 The team gave a power point presentation which covered: 
 Project timeline 
 Research 
 Training for ED RN’s and Paramedics for Neonatal Resuscitation Program (NRP) 
 Training of ED RN’s and Paramedics for S.T.A.B.L.E Neonatal education program to focus 

exclusively on the post‐resuscitation/pre‐transport stabilization care of sick infants. 
 Training ED Physicians for Advanced Life Support in Obstetrics (ALSO) 
 Training in R.E.A.C.H High Risk OB Emergencies and Neonatal Stabilization 
 Pediatrics 

o UCSF for neonatal consults, transport and admission 
o UVMC Pediatric Hospitalist for consult and admission 
o UC Davis Tele Health for Pediatric consult 



3 
 

 Obstetrics 
o Care for Her in Ukiah Consult and admission 
o UCSF consult, transport and admission for high risk 
o Emergent C‐Sections 

 Transport 
 Policies and Protocols in development 
 Equipment 
 Financials 

 

 Dr. Miller thanked the team for all their hard work. He recommended to the Board that vote to 
close Labor & Delivery with a closure date of March 31, 2020 as staff is prepared. 

 Ms. Grinberg told the audience that she was allowing twenty (20) minutes for comments. 
 Mr. Lund would like to see a presentation with budget information: he would like clarification 

on who will continue to provide prenatal care on the coast: he would like to see a plan for 
helping women with families in economic need, and he would like further information on what 
staff has done regarding risk assessment. Mr. Lund stated that he would prefer moving the date 
to close OB from March 31st to the end of April in order to work through some of these issues.  

 Ms. Grinberg asked Mr. Redding, Chair of the Finance Committee and Mr. Lund, Chair of the 
Planning if they want this presentation/information brought back to their committees prior to 
voting on this issue. Mr. Lund said that he would like it brought back to his committee. Mr. 
Redding said that he has all the information he needs.  

 

  MOTION: To close Labor and Delivery Services formally as of April 30th   
 Lund moved 

 

Mr. Lund amended to the following: 
MOTION: To move forward with the formal closure of the OB Department April 30th with in the 
interim, a budget analysis for the challenges we’re facing now and how this is going to help us 
moving forward financially; a summary of the risk assessment that has been done both by clinical 
staff and from a liability perspective; the alternative support for expectant mothers, at least have a 
framework of how that could be done; cover prenatal care and where it will be done  
 Lund moved 
 Arnold second  

 

Mr. Redding stated that he feels the training is well along. He stated that that extra month with cost 
the Hospital $200,000, and he wants to make sure that the Hospital will gain something in the next 
month that is worth that kind of money. If it is a matter of how MCDH will support the 
disadvantaged families, that can be worked out. He is not necessarily convinced that it is worth the 
extra month. 
 

Dr. Miller stated that a framework can be provided of the issues Mr. Lund is requesting. Dr. Miller 
stated he feels the Board should make a decision to close by March 31st because the Hospital staff is 
ready to do so now. Dr. Delgado agreed.  
 

Mr. Lund with withdrew his motion, and Ms. Arnold withdrew her second.  

MOTION: To move forward with the formal closure of the OB Department March 31, 2020 within 

the interim, a budget analysis for the challenges we’re facing now and how this is going to help us 

moving forward financially; a summary of the risk assessment that has been done both by clinical 

staff and from a liability perspective; the alternative support for expectant mothers, at lease have a 

framework of how that could be done; cover prenatal care and where it will be done 



4 
 

 Lund moved 
 Redding second  
 Roll call  
 Ayes: Lund, Redding, Arnold, Grinberg 
 Noes: None 
 Absent: McColley 
 Abstain: None     

 Motion carried 
   

MOTION: To set aside the $200,000 potential savings from closing the service March 31st rather 

than April 30th to provide funding in support of families in need during this transition time 

 Lund moved 
 Arnold second  
Ms. Renteria with Mendocino Coast Clinics will partner with Ms. Finley, CNO of MCDH to make a list 
of the ways community members may need this fund.  
 

Mr. Lund amended his motion to reflect the following: 
MOTION: To set aside the $200,000 potential savings from closing the service March 31st rather 
than April 30th to provide funding in support of families in need during this transition time; the 
criteria will be developed as to how the funds will be utilized  
 Lund moved 
 Arnold second 
 Roll call 
 Ayes: Lund, Redding, Arnold, Grinberg 
 Noes: None 
 Absent: McColley 
 Abstain: None     

 Motion carried 
   

  X.  ACTION: RESIGNATION OF INTERIM CFO: MS. JESSICA GRINBERG, PRESIDENT 
 Mr. Doran Hammett has resigned as Interim CFO.  
 The Board thanked him for his service. 

 

MOTION: To approve the resignation of Interim CFO 
 Lund moved 
 Arnold second 
 Roll call 
 Ayes: Lund, Arnold, Grinberg 
 Noes: Redding 
 Absent: McColley 
 Abstain: None 

 Motion carried 
 

XI.  INFORMATION: CEO REPORT: MR. WAYNE ALLEN, INTERIM CEO 
 Mr. Allen stated that he and City Manager Tabatha Miller developed a press release regarding 

the serious health concern that we are currently facing. The press release focuses on common 
sense precautions and reassuring the community that the Hospital and the City of Fort Bragg are 
ready and prepared.  

 The press release will go to the press, the state, and on the MCDH & City of Fort Bragg’s 
websites. Will also get the word out to the schools and community groups. 



5 
 

 Mr. Allen continues to negotiate with Adventist Health on the Lease. 
 

XII.  ACTION: MEDICAL STAFF REPORT: DR. WILLIAM MILLER CHIEF OF STAFF 
A. Appointments to Medical Staff/Allied Health Professional‐Provisional Status 
1. I‐Wen Tseng, DO –Department of Medicine‐Emergency Medicine 
2. Donald Lombardi, MD –Department of Medicine‐Oncology‐Hematology 
3. Sandra Mendel, MD –Department of Medicine‐Internal Medicine‐NCFHC 
 

B. Temporary Privileges (as we await Board Meeting) 
1. Donald Lombardi, MD –Department of Medicine‐Oncology‐Hematology (Feb. 10‐Feb. 27, 2020) 
 

C.  Re‐Appointments to Medical Staff/Allied Health Professional Staff 
1. Kevin Miller, MD –Department of Surgery‐Ophthalmology 
2. Ramesh Nathan, MD –Department of Medicine‐Infectious Disease 
3. Brent Wright, MD –Department of Surgery‐Obstetrics‐Gynecology 
 

D. Resignations from Medical Staff 
1. Meyer Horensten, DO –Department of Medicine‐NCFHC (effective Feb. 1, 2020)  
2. Robert Pollard, MD –Department of Medicine‐Emergency Medicine (effective Feb. 1, 2020) 
3. John Rochat, MD –Department of Medicine‐Oncology‐Hematology (effective Feb. 1, 2020) 
 

E. Appointments to V‐Rad Tele‐Radiology Staff 
1. Christopher Lawton, MD –Department of Medicine‐Tele Radiology 
2. Richard Mitchell, MD –Department of Medicine‐Tele Radiology 
 

MOTION: To approve the Appointments to Medical Staff/Allied Health Professional Status, 
Temporary Privileges, Re‐Appointments to Medical Staff, Resignations & Appointments to V‐Rad 
Tele‐Radiology Staff as presented 
 Lund moved 
 Arnold second  
 Roll call      
 

 Ayes: Lund, Redding, Grinberg, Arnold 
 Noes: None 
 Abstain: None 
 Absent: McColley 

 Motion carried 
 

Dr. Miller, Dr. Berna & Dr. Kilian are all currently taking an on‐line course to become infection 
physicians.   

 

XIII.  INFORMATION: PLANNING COMMITTEE REPORT: MR. STEVE LUND 
 Mr. Lund stated the Planning Committee accepted resignations from Dr. Kilian and John Allison. 

Community members interested in serving on the Planning Committee should contact Mr. Lund. 
 Dr. Kreger gave a presentation on Hubs & Routes on disaster preparedness.  
 Discussed county wide mental health. 
 The next Planning Committee meeting will be on March 17th. 
 Discussed the structure and the purpose of the District post affiliation.  
 Discussed how the District could try to sustain a Volunteer Hospice Program. 
 Mr. Lund thanked all the staff for their hard work and dedication to the community. 

 

   

XIV.  INFORMATION: CHIEF NURSING OFFICER REPORT: MS. LYNN FINLEY 
 Ms. Finley thanked the Board for the brave decision that was made tonight.   

 



6 
 

XV.  INFORMATION: FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT: MR. JOHN REDDING 
 Mr. Redding stated that the Hospital is starting to see the results of the financial improvement plan. 

They are back on budget.  
 Mr. Hammett presented the January financials. 

 

  MOTION: To approve the January 2020 Financial Statement                                                 
 Lund moved 
 Arnold second 
 Roll call 
 Ayes: Lund, Redding, Arnold, Grinberg 
 Noes: None 
 Absent: McColley 
 Abstain: None 

 Motion carried 
 

The Finance Committee looked at what the District might look like post affiliation.  
Core purposes: 
 Make payments on all debt obligations 
 Manage and comply with the Lease Agreement 
 Manage the capital budget and accompanying procurement activities 
 Deposit the money in excess of operating costs into an escrow account to be used for the 

seismic retrofit program or a new health care facility. Manage this investment 
 

  Staffing needed: 
 Executive Director/Financial Manager 
 Administrative assistant 
 Maintenance Supervisor 
 Program manager for seismic upgrade efforts and procurement activities 
 Bookkeeper/payroll services/CPA (outsource) 
 Legal services (outsource) 
 

Other resources needed: 
 Office space for District personnel 
 Meeting space for Board and staff meetings 
 Board insurance 
 Employee benefit plan 

 

  Short term needs: 
 Manage Accounts Payable and Accounts Receivable until all are cleared 
 Participate in transition activities 
 

  Allocation of costs 
 Costs uncured as the result of complying with the Lease Agreement will be identified separate 

from all other costs. 
 Costs related to the Lease Agreement are considered overhead costs and will count toward the 

$2M+ a year obligation to maintain the plant and equipment. 
 

XVI.  INFORMATION: FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: MS. JESSICA GRINBERG, PRESIDENT 
 Continue planning for post affiliation. 
 Special Board Meeting regarding the audit and the lease.  

 

     XVII.  INFORMATION: ASSOCIATION AND COMMUNITY SERVICE REPORTS 



7 
 

 There were no Association and Community Service Reports. 
 

XVIII.  PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
 There were no public comments. 

 

XIX.  ADJOURN:  
    The meeting adjourned at 8:30 p.m. 

  
   

____________________________          _______________________ 
  Karen Arnold, Secretary                Gayl Moon, Secretary to the  
  Board of Directors                Board of Directors      



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

              

           T
A
B
 

2    
 

 

 



1 
 

MENDOCINO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS                  

SPECIAL SESSION 
MINUTES 

MONDAY, APRIL 6, 2020 
FORT BRAGG, CA 95437 

MEETING VIA TELECONFERENCE 
 

The Board of Directors of the Mendocino Coast Health Care District met  in CLOSED session at 4:30 pm 
via Teleconference, Jessica Grinberg, Chair presiding 
 

PRESENT: Mr. Redding, Ms.  Arnold, Ms. Grinberg, Mr. Lund, Ms. Amy McColley 
Absent: None              
Mr. Wayne Allen, Interim CEO 
 

 I.  CALL TO ORDER: 
  OPEN Session of the Board of Directors of the Mendocino Coast Health Care District convened at 

6:00 p.m. via Teleconference, Ms. Jessica Grinberg, President presiding 
 

II.  ROLL CALL VIA TELECONFERENCE: 
  PRESENT: Ms. Jessica Grinberg, Ms. Amy McColley, Mr. John Redding, Ms. Karen Arnold, Mr. Steve Lund 

  Board Members 
 

  BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: None                             
 

  ALSO PRESENT:   
  Mr. Wayne Allen, Interim CEO 
       

III.  COMMENTS FROM THE COMMUNITY 
 A community member raised concerns regarding the closing of the OB Department. 

 

IV.  CLOSED SESSION: 

1. Information/Action: Pursuant to Government Code §54956.8 (Conference with Real 
Property Negotiators)  
Property: MCDH 700 River Dr, Fort Bragg, CA 95437  
Counsel: Mr. Craig Cannizzo, Attorney Hooper, Lundy, & Bookman   
Negotiating parties: Stone Point Health, A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation 
(“Stone point Health”), An Affiliate of Adventist Health System/West, d/b/a Adventist Health 
Under negotiation: Lease of hospital property 

2. Information/Action: Pursuant to Government Code §54957.6 (Conference with Labor 
Negotiator) 
Agency designated representative: Dan Camp 
Employee organization: Local UFCW 8‐Golden State 

 

V.  RECONVENTION OF OPEN SESSION: 
   

VI.  ROLL CALL: Arnold, Grinberg, Redding, McColley, Lund                 
  ABSENT: None      
   

VII.  REPORT ON ANY ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION; GOVERNMENT CODE 94957.1 
 The Board will reconvene into Closed Session after Open Session. There was no report out.   
 

VII.  PUBLIC COMMENTS   



2 
 

 A community member made a comment regarding the importance for MCDH to sign the lease 
agreement with Adventist Health as soon as possible.                      

 

VI.  ACTION/INFORMATION: FISCAL YEAR 2018/2019 AUDIT REPORT AND APPROVAL: MS. KAMI 
MATZEK, CPA DINGUS ZARECOR & ASSOCIATES  
 Dr. Jason Kirkman, Audit Committee Chair, introduced Mr. Luke Zarecor with DZA & 

Associates  who  presented  the  Audit  Report  for  FYE  2018/2019  in  lieu  of  Kami 
Matzek as stated on the agenda, as she was unavailable.                                     

   

MOTION: To accept the  
 Redding moved 
 Arnold second 
 Roll call 
 Ayes: Redding, McColley, Lund, Arnold, Grinberg 
 Noes: None 
 Absent: None     
 Abstain: None 

 Motion carried 
   

 VII.  INFORMATION: OB UPDATE: MS. LYNN FINLEY, CNO 
 The OB Department closed on March 31, 2020. 
 Room 3 has been prepared up in the Emergency Department as the room where the Hospital 

will deliver care. This room will accommodate the Hemorrhage/OB Cart, the OB Stretcher, and 
the infant warmer. It will provide privacy for the laboring mother. OB nurses have worked with 
ED RN’s, Pharmacy and ED Physicians to design and stock an OB/Hemorrhage cart that will be 
housed in Room 3 at all times. The infant warmer will be housed with the OB Stretcher. A 
procedure has been put in place to clean the room if a COVID 19 patient has been in there prior 
to any other patient being treated in that same room. All California Department of Health 
required preparations for this transition have been completed. All hospital required obstetrical 
and neonatal education has been completed. 

 All policies that have been developed for the Emergency Department regarding obstetrical care 
in the facility, starting April 1, 2020, have been approved by the Medical Staff. 

 Finally and critically, regarding the Emergency Department Command and it’s response to the 
COVID‐19 crisis, the space previously designated for OB Services has been designated for the 
service of acute COVID‐19 patients, as the need arises. The availability of this space is essential 
for the adequate care of our community during this anticipated epidemic.  
Ms. McColley suggested waiting for one hour before putting another patient in that same room 
to enable all the droplets to drop. Ms. Finley stated that MCDH is following the CDC guidelines 
pertaining to COVID‐19; however she will reach out to the other healthcare facilities in the 
county to see what their procedures are for this matter. Ms. Finley will give another report to 
the Board at a future meeting. 

 

VIII.  ACTION/INFORMATION: OB HARDSHIP FUND: MR. STEVE LUND, VICE CHAIR 
 This item is regarding the need to provide hardship funding for mothers to be/families that were 

in need of  that  level of  support  given  the  change  in having  to  go over  the hill  for  childbirth 
services unless  it  is an emergency. The Board had previously discussed setting aside $200,000; 
however after doing some research, it was determined that the Hospital District is unable to do 
this, as  it would be  considered a gift of public  funds.  In order  to do  this properly, a decision 
would need  to be made  to allocate  the  level of  funding  to  the Mendocino Coast Clinics, and 
allow them to be the administrator and be the allocator of the designated funds to mothers and 



3 
 

or  families  according  to  the  guidelines.  The  requirement/desire would  be  to  have  Lucresha 
Renteria, Mendocino  Coast  Clinics  Administrator  provide  the  Hospital  District with  quarterly 
reports.  

 Mr. Lund stated that the funds will be provided by the Healthcare District which  is currently a 
part of the Hospital.   
   

 MOTION: To establish a fund of $25,000 to be allocated to the Mendocino Coast Clinics in their role 
as  a 501c3  to  serve  the purpose of  creating  a hardship  fund  for  administration  in  the  labor  and 
delivery area of their work with the expectation that they will provide a quarterly report regarding  
the use and benefit of those funds 
 Lund moved   
 Redding second 

   

Mr. Lund further stated that the clinic could request additional funding from the District if there was 
a need. There was discussion at the last Board meeting for the need to have the District create a 
hardship fund to support those families in need.   
 

Mr. Lund suggested allocating the funding and tasking the Mendocino Coast Clinics to develop 
procedures and guidelines as to how the funds should be utilized. The Board requested reviewing an 
outline for the funds prior to allocating the money the Mendocino Coast Clinics.   
 

Mr. Lund amended his motion and Mr. Redding amended his second to the following: 
MOTION: To establish a fund of $25,000 to be allocated to the Mendocino Coast Clinics in their role 
as  a 501c3  to  serve  the purpose of  creating  a hardship  fund  for  administration  in  the  labor  and 
delivery area of their work with the expectation that they will provide a quarterly report regarding  
the  use  and  benefit of  those  funds.  To have Ms. Renteria  and  the  clinic  present  an outline  that 
describes how these funds will be administered and used: the funds to be provided to Ms. Renteria 
and the clinic as soon as possible in order to fulfill immediate needs. 
 

 Roll call 
 Ayes: Lund, Redding, Grinberg, Arnold, McColley 
 Noes: None 
 Absent: None     
 Abstain: None     

 Motion carried 
   

IX.  INFORMATION: COVID 19 UPDATE: DR. WILLIAM MILLER, CHIEF OF STAFF; MS. LYNN FINLEY, CNO 
 Dr. Miller stated 
 The current projection is that there will be a delay in the upswing of cases to June. Currently 

have had no patients or staff with COVID 19 at MCDH. 
 Emergency command has been working and planning very hard. There are four phases to 

this plan. 
1. The planning & conservation phase 
2. This phase will occur when the Hospital actually has COVID 19 patients come for 

treatment, at which time a second Emergency Department will be opened in order to 
separate the COVID 19 patients from the general emergency patients. The Station 1 
nursing area will become a designated respiratory unit. 

3. When the Hospital has an even more significant increase in COVID 19 patients, this will 
mark expansion into the Intensive Care Unit. 

4. If the situation does arise that the Hospital has so many patients that it exceeds their 
capabilities.  

 The supply of personal protective equipment is inventoried daily and are being locked up. 



4 
 

 MCDH does not have the test capability to do the test on campus. They are currently 
sending all tests to Quest. Quest in turn sends them to Los Angeles for processing. If the 
test is flagged as critical, the turnaround time is approximately 2 to 3 days. The turnaround 
time for a regular test is 7 to 10 days.    

 The number of tests that MCDH can do at this time is limited and therefore the general 
population cannot be tested.   

 MCDH does have to different analyzers on campus, both of these analyzers now have FDA 
approved COVID tests; however the Hospital will not receive test kits for either of these 
analyzers in the foreseeable future.  

 Policies are continually updated following CDC guidelines.  
 The Hospital remains in very close coordination with the County Health Department, the 

state Department of Health, with their colleagues at Adventist Health in Ukiah and Willits, 
local providers, Mendocino  Coast Clinics & Sherwood Oaks.  

 Dr. Miller and Tabatha Miller, City Manager are writing a joint weekly report (The Miller 
Report). This report is being posted on numerous sites. Every morning at 9:30 am on Kozt, 
a local radio station, the Hospital gives a 5 minute update which is presented by different 
staff members each day. Every Tuesday at 1:00 pm there is a provider phone call.   

 The Board thanked everyone for their outstanding efforts during this very difficult time.  
 

  X.  ACTION/INFORMATION: FEBRUARY 2020 FINANCIAL  REPORT AND APPROVAL: MR. JOHN 
REDDING, TREASURER 
 Mr. Redding presented the February Financial Report. 

 

MOTION: To approve the  
 Redding moved 
 McColley second 
 Roll call 
 Ayes: Grinberg, Lund, McColley, Redding, Arnold 
 Noes: None    
 Absent: None    
 Abstain: None 

 Motion carried 
 

XI.  COMMENTS FROM COMMUNITY 
 There were no comments from the community. 
 

XII.  COMMENTS FROM BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 Mr. Lund stated appreciation for Dr. Miller’s report and all the hard work being done by 

everyone on staff.  
 Ms. McColley requested perhaps using Zoom or some other application in the future.  
 Ms. Arnold thanked all staff for all of their work during this pandemic. 
 Mr. Redding thanked the medical staff, Lynn Finley and the entire team for their for organizing 

and implementing the closure of Labor & Delivery and transitioning to stabilize and transfer, and 
during this pandemic. 

 Ms. Grinberg thanked the business community and the community at large for their vigilance 
during these difficult times. 
 

XIII.  ADJOURN: 
 The meeting adjourned at 7:30 pm 
 



5 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
The Board reconvened into Closed Session at 7:30 pm 
 

CLOSED SESSION REPORT OUT 
 

1. Information/Action: Pursuant to Government Code §54956.8 (Conference with Real 
Property Negotiators)  
Property: MCDH 700 River Dr, Fort Bragg, CA 95437  
Counsel: Mr. Craig Cannizzo, Attorney Hooper, Lundy, & Bookman   
Negotiating parties: Stone Point Health, A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation 
(“Stone point Health”), An Affiliate of Adventist Health System/West, d/b/a Adventist Health 
Under negotiation: Lease of hospital property 
 No action was taken 

 
2. Information/Action: Pursuant to Government Code §54957.6 (Conference with Labor 

Negotiator) 
Agency designated representative: Dan Camp 
Employee organization: Local UFCW 8‐Golden State 
 No action was taken 

 

 
 

  
   

____________________________          _______________________ 
  Karen Arnold, Secretary                Gayl Moon, Secretary to the  
  Board of Directors                Board of Directors      
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

              

           T
A
B
 

3    
 

 

 































































































































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

              

           T
A
B
 

4    
 

 

 









































































































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

              

           T
A
B
 

5    
 

 

 



 

THIS DOCUMENT 

WILL BE SENT 

WHEN AT A LATER 

TIME 



NOTICE AND AGENDA OF SPECIAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

TUESDAY, APRIL 28,2020
6:00 P.M. Open Session

Meeting Via Teleconference
Dial In Number:

CALL IN NUMBER:

877-573-1973

Passcode 9614637#

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE a special Boardof Directorsmeetinghas been called for Tuesday, April 28, 2020
at 6:00 pm. This meeting will be held via teleconference only in order to reduce the risk of spreading
coronavirus (COVID-19) and pursuant to the Governor's Executive Orders N-25-20and N-29-20.

No physical location from which members of the public may observe the meeting and offer public comment
will be provided. The public may listen in and provide comments on the following number: 877-573-1973
passcode 9614637#

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS:

OPEN SESSION; MS. .lESSICA GRINBERG. PRESIDENT

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Comments from the Community
This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board of Directors on any matter
which the District has jurisdiction. You may state your name and address for the record. Time is limited to 3
minutes per speaker. The Board of Directors can take no action on your presentation,but can seek clarification
to points made in your presentation or comments.

4. ACTION/DISCUSSION: RESOLUTION No. 2020-02 APPROVING TERMINATION OF TAB 1

MENDOCINO COAST DISTRICT HOSPITAL 403fb) RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN;

MR. WAYNE ALLEN. INTERIM CEO

5. ACTION/INFORMATION: INTERIM MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT TAB 2
Mr. Craig Cannizzo, Attorney
Hooper Lundy and Bookman MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT,

A Local Health Care District of the State of California

("District")

AND

ADVENTIST HEALTH MENDOCINO COAST,
A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation

("Manager")

AND

STONE POINT HEALTH,
A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation

("Stone Point Health")

6. Comments from Community
This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board of Directors on any



matter which the District hasjurisdiction. You must state yournameand address for the record.
Time is limited to 3 minutes per speaker. The Board of Directors can take no action on your
presentation, butcan seekclarification to pointsmade in your presentation or comments.

7. Comments from Board of Directors

8. Adjourn

Dated: April 27,2020

Gayl Moon
Secretary to the Board of Directors

STATE OF CALIFORNIA)
COUNTY OF MENDOCINO) §

I declare under penalty of perjury that I am employed by the Mendocino Coast Health Care District Board of
Directors; and that I posted this notice at the North and Patient Services Building Lobby entrances to the
Mendocino Coast District Hospital on April 27, 2020

Gayl Moon Date
Secretary to the Board of Directors

All disabled persons requesting disability related modifications or accommodations, including auxiliary aids or
service may make such request in order to participate in a public meeting to Gayl Moon, Secretary to the Board of
Directors, 700 River Drive, Fort Bragg, CA 95437 no later than 1 working days prior to the meeting that such
matter be included on that month's agenda.

*Fer District Resolution, each member of the public who wishes to speak shall be limited to three minutes each per
agenda item. Please identify yourself prior to speaking. Thank you.

Board Packets will be made available for pick up at the Patient Registration area until 5:00 pm on Friday,
April 17, 2020: 700 RIVER DR. FORT BRAGG, CA 95437



1



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-02

RESOLUTION OF THE MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE
DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS APPROVING TERMINATION OF
MENDOCINO COAST DISTRICT HOSPITAL 403(b) RETIREMENT
SAVINGS PLAN

WHEREAS:

A. Mendocino Coast Healthcare District ("District"), also known as Mendocino Coast
District Hospital ("Hospital"), sponsors the Mendocino Coast District Hospital 403(b)
Retirement Savings Plan ("Plan") for the benefit of District employees.

B. Pursuant to the transaction ("Transaction") documented in a Transfer of Business
Operations Agreement and a Hospital Lease (collectively referred to as the "Agreement")
between the District and Adventist Health Mendocino Coast ("AH Mendocino"), AH
Mendocino will hire District employees and operate the Hospital.

C. Immediately prior to the Closing Date ("Closing") of the Agreement, District desires to
terminate the Plan.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS:

1. The Plan hereby is amended to cease all contributions to the Plan effective with
respect to pay dates subsequent to the last pay date of District immediately prior to the Closing.
Pursuant to this amendment, the Plan shall not accept contributions with respect to pay dates
after the last pay date immediately prior to the Closing, other than corrective contributions (if
any).

2. The Plan hereby is terminated effective as of the day immediately preceding the
Closing ('Termination Date").

- 3. As of the Termination Date, all participants with a benefit under the Plan on the
Termination Date are 100% vested in that benefit.

4. As soon as administratively practicable after the Termination Date, provisions
shall be made for the orderly winding down of the Plan, including, but not limited to preparation
of notices, amendments, and filings with governmental entities.

5. Plan termination distributions shall be structured pursuant to Internal Revenue
Service Revenue Ruling 2011-7, as that ruling has been modified and expanded by Section 110
(Treatment of Custodial Accounts on Termination of Section 403(b) Plans) of the Setting Every
Community Up for Retirement Enhancement Act ("SECURE ACT").



6. Theappropriate officers and designated employees of theDistrict (including, but
not limited to JessicaGrinberg) and, after the Closing, the appropriate officers and designated
employees of Adventist Health (including, but not limited to Nicole Black) be, and theyhereby
are, authorized, empowered and directed to take such furtheractions (including, but not limited
to the execution and delivery of agreements, plan documents, certifications, and other
documentation) and to do suchfurther things theydetermine to be necessary or appropriate to
give effect to and carry out the foregoing resolutions, and all such actions previously taken
hereby are ratified and confirmed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned herebycertifies that the foregoing
Resolutions were duly adopted by the District's Board of Directors.

The foregoing Resolution was adopted by the Board of Directors of the Mendocino Coast
Health Care District at a special meeting held on April 28,2020 by the following vote:

AYES:

Jessica Grinberg

NOES: President, Board of Directors

Mendocino Coast Health Care District

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:



B

2



US-DOCS\l 15518844.4

INTERIM MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT,
A Local Health Care District of the State of California

("District")

AND

ADVENTIST HEALTH MENDOCINO COAST,
A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation

("Manager")

AND

STONE POINT HEALTH,
A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation

("Stone Point Health")

4/27/20



4/27/20

INTERIM MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS INTERIM MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT ("Agreement")
is entered into as of May 1,2020 (the "Execution Date"), by and between MENDOCINO
COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT, a local health care district of the State of California
CT)istrict"), on the one hand, and ADVENTIST HEALTH MENDOCINO COAST, a California
nonprofit public benefit corporation ("AH Mendocmo") and STONE POINT HEALTH, a
California nonprofit public benefit corporation ("Stone Point Health" and together with AH
Mendocino, "Manager"). Districtand Managerare sometimesreferred to in this Agreement as
a "Party" or, collectively, as the "Parties."

RECITALS

A. District is the owner of a critical access hospital located in Fort Bragg, California,
known as Mendocino Coast District Hospital (the "Hospital").

B. Stone Point Health, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation and affiliate
of Adventist Health System/West, a California nonprofit religious corporation, is the sole
corporate member of AH Mendocino.

C. AH Mendocino is a newly incorporated affiliate of Stone Point Health, formed for
the purpose of becoming the successor operator of the Hospital, to effect the continued delivery
of health care for the benefit of conununities served by the District.

D. Concurrent with this Agreement and in accordance with Section 3212 l(p) of the
California Health and Safety Code, District and Manager are negotiating a certain Lease
("Lease") and a Transfer of Business Operations Agreement ("OTA"), pursuant to which AH
Mendocino shall lease real and personal property utilized in the Hospital's operation and certain
assets, including contracts, inventory, intangible property and District employees, shall transfer
to AH Mendocino, for AH Mendocino's operation of the Hospital effective upon the Lease
commencement. Pursuant to terms of this Agreement, the Lease and the OTA, AH Mendocino
shall submit a change of ownership ("CHOW") application package to CDPH and to other
regulatory agencies, including but not limited to the California Board of Pharmacy, CMS and the
California Department of Health Care Services ("DHCS"), to effect a change in licensed
operator of the Hospital from District to Manager (each an "Application"). The Lease shall
commence upon AH Mendocino's receipt of all necessary Applications approvals and other
closing conditions as agreed upon by the Parties in the OTA, where such conunencement date is
further defined in the Lease ("Lease Commencement Date").

E. From the Effective Date of this Agreement (as defined in Section 7.1) until the
Lease Commencement Date (the "Transition Period"), the Parties desire for Manager to
provide District with certain management and administrative services in support of the District's
operation of the Hospital as identified in this Agreement. District and Manager believe that
Manager's provision of the services identified in this Agreement will enhance District's ability to
provide high quality, efficient health care services to the community served by the Hospital
during the Transition Period.



4/27/20

F. To further memorialize the context in which this Agreement is entered into, the
Parties acknowledge the following:

(i) On January 31,2020, the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services declared a Public Health Emergency in response to the recent outbreak
of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus world-wide pandemic ("COVID-19 Emergency").
Subsequently on March 4,2020, the Governor of the State of California ("Governor")
declared a State of Emergency in an effort to make additional resources available and
formalize emergency actions across multiple state agencies and departments in response
to the COVID-19 Emergency in California. Various Federal and State guidance has been
issued as a result of the COVID-19 Emergency, including the March 18,2020
recommendation from the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services ("CMS") to limit
all non-essential planned surgeries and procedures ("CMS Elective Procedure
Guidance"), and other State policies pertaining to health care providers issued through
the Governor's Executive Orders, including but not limited to Executive Order 39-20
issued on March 30,2020 ("Executive Orders"). New guidance and policies relevant to
health care facilities continue to be issued in response to changing circumstances of the
COVID-19 Emergency, including the April 22,2020 authorization from the Governor
that certain non-emergency surgeries may resume in California hospitals (collectively
with the COVID-19 Emergency, CMS Elective Procedure Guidance and Executive
Orders, the "COVID Pandemic Circumstances").

(ii) On February 4,2020, the California Department of Public Health
("CDPH"), on behalf of CMS, completed a complaint validation survey during which it
identified an immediate jeopardy ("IJ") finding due to Hospital's violation of the
infection control condition of participation under 42 CFR s 482.42. The U was abated
prior to survey completion, but the Hospital's Medicare certification remains on a 90-day
termination track, subject to termination on May 4,2020, unless District is able to submit
an acceptable plan of correction (the "POC") to CMS and obtain subsequent verification
ofcompliance through a recertification survey ("Recertification Survey") conducted by
CDPH. District submitted the POC to CMS on March 31,2020, and submitted an
amended POC on April , 2020 in response to CMS requested revisions. To date.
District has not received confirmation that the POC, as amended, has been accepted and
the Recertification Survey remains outstanding. As of [DATE], CMS and CDPH has
provided [written] assurances that the Recertification Survey will occur after May 4,
2020 as a result of the COVID Pandemic Circumstances and the Hospital's Medicare
certification will not be terminated as a result of the Recertification Survey delay.
Hereinafter, the foregoing events described in this Recital F(ii) shall be referred to
collectively as the "Jeopardy Circumstances".

AGREEMENT

THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

ARTICLE 1.

DUTIES OF MANAGER



4/27/20

1.1 Management. Subject to those duties that shall remain the responsibilityof
District as set forth in Article H, Manager shall provide day-to-day management and operation
services for the Hospital and certain ancillary services operated by the District as described on
Schedule 1.1 (collectively, "Hospital Operations"), assuming and discharging all usual and
customary responsibilities, duties and obligations in connection with operating and maintaining
the Hospital Operations in full compliance with all regulations and standards required of a
general acute care hospital so licensed, including providing the items and services described in
this Article I (collectively, the "Management Services"), and shall do so in a fiscally
responsible manner seeking to provide high-quality services to the community. Manager shall
have the exclusive authority to perform these functions, subject to District's ultimate authority
and control over the profession^, administrative and other operations ofthe Hospital Operations
as required under applicable conditions of participation (42 C.F.R. 482), California Health &
Safety Code Section 1250 et seq., and regulations thereunder.

1.2 Management Team. Manager shall employ a managementteam,
includingcertain senior managementpersonnel for Hospital as deemed necessaryby
Manager, including Jason Wells as Chief Executive Officer and Linda Givens as CMef
Nursing Officer who shall be approved by the District's board of directors (the "Board"),
to carry out Manager's duties under this Agreement.The management team shall consist
of a sufficient number of individuals as determined by Manager and each team member
will possess the skill and experience necessary to perform the functions and duties
required of Manager under this Agreement. Manager shall also ensure that an
appropriate level senior management personnel is physically present on-site at Hospital
as necessary for Hospital Operations.

1.3 SuDervislon of Personnel. Manager shall manage and supervise any and all
Hospital employed or contracted personnel ("Personnel"), in compliance with all applicable
federal, state and local laws and ordinances, rules, regulations and orders. Manager shall analyze
Hospital's workforce and provide District a recommended staffing plan that would comply with
all staffing requirements and all related obligations under California licensure, accreditation and
certification and payor participation standards.

1.4 Medical Staff. Manager shall cooperate with the leadership of the medical staff
of the Hospital (the "Medical Staff') and shall advise and assist the Medical Staff and the Board
in functioning in the manner provided by the standards and guidelines on accreditation
promulgated by The Joint Commission ("The Joint Commission") and in accordance with the
Medical Staff bylaws. Matters with respect to professional competency of medical personnel
shall be determined by the officers of the Medical Staff with the assistance of the appropriate
Hospital or Medical Staff committees. Manager shall assist the Medical Staff in reviewing the
Medical Staff bylaws, as modified from time to time, and shall advise the Medical Staff
regarding procedural matters, but medical, ethical and professional matters shall be the
responsibility of District, including control of and questions relating to the composition,
qualifications and responsibilities of the Medical Staff.

1.5 Revenue Cycle Management



4/27/20

(a) Manager shall oversee the billing and collection of charges for all services
provided as part of the Hospital Operations in accordance with charge schedules and collection
policies established and approved by District and in a manner that is in compliance with
District's charity care policy. Manager shall be entitled to obtain on behalf of and at the expense
of District the assistance of one or more collection agencies, including, without limitation,
affiliates of Manager.

(b) Manager shall undertake, manage, and administer: (i) the timely payment
of all Hospital Operationsexpenses, invoices, accounts payable and other obligationsof District
related to the Hospital Operations; (ii) the timely billing of fees for all services, goods and other
items provided as part of the Hospital Operations; and (iii) the collection of accounts receivable
pertaining to Hospital Operations services and items. Manager shall carry out District's written
directives and exercise reasonable care in managing the accounts and available cash of District
by maintaining accounts, certificates of deposit and other investments with one or more financial
institutions. Manager shall take such actions on behalf of District and under District's provider
numbers, including, without limitation. District's provider numbers issued by Medicare, Medi-
Cal or their fiscal intermediaries or paying agents (the "Government Programs").

(c) District hereby appoints Manager as its agent for purposes of billing and
collecting District's accounts receivable and District hereby agrees to execute any and all
documents reasonably necessary to memorialize such appointments. District further appoints
Manager to be its true and lawful attomey-in-fact during the term of this Agreement for purposes
of (i) billing and collecting in the name ofDistrict, and (ii) receiving, taking possession of and
endorsing in the name of District any notes, checks, money orders, insurance payments and other
instruments received in payment of accounts receivable of District. District agrees to cooperate
with Manager, and to execute such documents and take such other actions as may be reasonably
necessary or desirable, in connection with the efficient day-to-day billing and collection of the
fees and charges of District, including, without limitation, the addition of Manager and its
designated agents as authorized signatories on District's bank accounts, and granting Manager
the right to make withdrawals from such bank accounts when and as required to pay expenses
pertaining to Hospital operations .

(d) In connection with its administration, management and payment of all
District expenses and accounts payable. Manager shall have full and complete authority to draw,
by check or other means, all available amounts in District's bank accounts to cover the payment
of such fees and expenses. Notwithstanding the foregoing, all expenditures of [Two Hundred and
Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000)] or more shall require the approval of the District's Board.

It is specincally agreed and understood that Manager's ability to make payments to third
parties under this Agreement, including to affiliates, is subject to availability of funds.
Nothing eontained herein shall obligate Manager to make any such payments from its own
funds or resources or to advance any of its own monies whatsoever to District. Unless
otherwise specifically agreed to in writing by Manager, Manager shall not be liable either
primarily or as guarantor for debts of District.

1.6 Finance and Accounting.



4/27/20

(a) Accounting. Manager shall oversee District's accounting system and shall
prepare monthly, quarterly and annual balance sheets and statements of income and loss, actual
performance to budgets, and bookkeeping, as well as such other reports as may be reasonably
requested by District. The selection of, and any fees charged by, the independent auditors for
District shall be the responsibility of District.

(b) Expenditures and Contracts. Manager shall manage District's existing
vendor agreements for supplies, goods and services that are currently in place for the operation
of Hospital. Manager shall not negotiate, enter into or terminate contracts for supplies, goods
and services on behalf ofDistrict that results in or reasonably could result in [Two Hun^d and
Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000)] or greater in annual expenditures by, or revenues to.
Hospital (each a "Material Contract") without the prior approval of the Board. For all non-
Material Contracts that Managerdetermines are reasonably necessary for the operation of the
Hospital in accordance with this Agreement, Manager shall have the right to negotiate, enter into
and terminate such contracts withoutthe Board's prior approval, providedthat Manager shall
provideinformation to the Board related to such contractsupon request. Managermust receive
approval from the Board for all capital plan items. Manager agrees to implement those Hospital
projects approved by District's Board that are in process as of the Effective Date.

(c) Business Records. Manager shall prepare and maintain all business
records relating to the Hospital Operations, including, without limitation, financial and
operational records and such other books and records customarily prepared and/or maintainedby
or with respect to a general acute care hospital (collectively, "Business Records"). Manager
shall manage all Business Records in compliance with all applicable law and shall make such
Business Records readily accessible to District.

1.7 Licensing; Accreditation.

(a) The Parties acknowledge that Manager shall recommend and
oversee all steps required to keep the Hospital fully licensed and certified for
participation in Government Programs and other third party payor programs, and duly
accredited by The Joint Commission and such state or other agencies, if applicable, and
District shall cooperate fully in said endeavors including providing Manager access to
previous licensure and certification processes and work product of the Hospital, including
those involving third party professionals. Manager shall notify District immediately if
Manager receives any written notice or communication from a Governmental Authority
relating to revocation or threat of revocation of District's participation in any
Government Program. Manager shall participate in any and all actions necessary,
including survey preparation, so that Hospital is prepared to pass the forthcoming
Recertification Survey necessary to restore its Medicare certification to good standing;
provided, however, that nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to he a
representation, or warranty of Manager regarding the ultimate outcome of the
Recertification Survey; and Manager shall have no liability whatsoever resulting
from any failure of Hospital to pass the forthcoming Recertification Survey.

1.8 Corporate Services. If deemed necessary by Manager, Manager shall provide as
part of the Management Services the administrative and corporate services that are necessary



4/27/20

and/or appropriate for Hospital Operations and that will provide an incremental benefit towards
achieving improvement in Hospital Operations, as determined by Manager, during the Transition
Period (the "Corporate Services").

1.9 Utilities and Supplies. Manager shall oversee the ordering of all utilities,
services, materials and supplies, consumable goods, and other items reasonably required in the
proper day-to-day operations of the Hospital Operations, as required by all laws, regulations,
certifications and payer requirements. Manager, on behalf of District, shall also arrange and
manage the acquisition of all pharmaceutical items for the Hospital Operations, to the extent
allowed by law, and in a manner that recognizes that District's existing contractual commitments
limiting the scope of Manager's activities with respect to pharmaceutical items and services.

1.10 District Access; Manager Liaison with District. District shall at all times

during the Transition Period have full and unrestricted access to the Hospital Operations,
including all of its facilities, personnel, accounts, Business Records, contracts and otherwise, as
the owner and operator of the Hospital Operations and in furtherance of District's discharge of
its duties thereby. Manager shall facilitate such access by the Board and its representatives.
Manager also shall use its reasonable best efforts to ensure its attendance, through Manager's
representatives, at all meetings of the Board during the Transition Period, and provide reports or
presentations to the Board with respect to Hospital Operations on at least a monthly basis.

1.11 Information Systems. Manager shall not change any application
applicable to District's current information system or information technology during the
Transition Period without District's consent.

1.12 Government Reporting Requirement.

(a) Manager shall oversee the preparation and timely filing of all reports for
Hospital Operations required by any Governmental Authority, provided that such filing shall be
provided to District for review and comment at least ten (10) days prior to its filing, unless
waived by District. Manager agrees that it will keep, and will make available upon written
request to the Secretary of Health and Human Services, or upon request, to the Comptroller
General or any of their duly authorized representatives the contract and books, documents and
records necessary to comply with the provisions of Section 1861 (v)( I)(I) of the Social Security
Act, which are in the possession of Manager, until the expiration of four (4) years after the
furnishing of services pursuant to this Agreement, subject to applicable privileges and
immunities. This provision shall continue to be effective between the Parties notwithstanding
the termination or rescission of all or part of the remainder of this Agreement.

(c) If Manager carries out any of the duties under this Agreement through a
subcontract with a value or cost of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) or more over a twelve
(12) month period with a related organization, such subcontract shall contain a clause which is
identical to paragraph L_[2te) of this Section, but for the name of the subcontractor

1.13 Manager's Right to Subcontract; Limitations on Manager's Duties.
Manager may subcontract with other persons or entities for any of the services that
Manager is required to performunder this Agreement. Except as set forth herein and



4/27/20

absent a specific written agreement to the contrary, the ManagementServices shall not
include audit services or outside counsel legal services. In consultation with Manager,
District may enter into consulting services agreements it deems necessary to carry out its
ongoing duties and responsibilities with respect to the Hospital.

1.14 Provision of Management Services. Notwithstandinganything to the contrary
contained herein. Manager shall have the right to determine the specific method and timing of
the provision of the Management Services in a manner that is consistent with its commitments
contained in this Agreement. Manager shall not be deemed to be in breach of its obligations
under this Agreement as a result of any failure or alleged failure to provide the described
ManagementServices herein in a particular manner; provided that any decision regarding the
manner of the provision of the Management Services is made in good faith and is in the best
interest of the Hospital.

ARTICLE 11.

DUTIES OF OWNER

2.1 District's Board; Role and Responsibilities. Withoutlimiting (a) the
responsibility of District and its Board concerning establishment of the mission and vision
of the Hospital Operations and determination of appropriate strategic goals, objectives and
relationships for the Hospital Operations, or (b) the duties of the Board as prescribed under
applicable conditions of participation (42 C.F.R. 482) and by the California Health &
Safety Code Sections 1250, et seq., the Board, acting in its duly appointed role, shall:

(a) Board Control. Exercise ultimate control and responsibilityover
the assets, capital and operation of the Hospital Operations, except that Manager (as
provided in Section 1.1)shall act as District's agent for the management of the Hospital
Operations, and shall have the authority to supervise and manage its day-to-day operations
in accordance with the policy directives, rules and regulations adopted by the Board and as
otherwise expressly set forth herein. Notwithstanding the foregoing. District shall at all
times during the term of this Agreement have full and unrestricted access to the Hospital
Operations, including all of its facilities, personnel, accounts. Business Records, contracts
and otherwise, as the owner and operator of the Hospital Operations; and

(b) Medical Staff Appointments and Privileges. Approve all
Medical Staff appointments, as well as define, adjust, withhold, or withdraw any and all
practice privileges in the Hospital. Such action will be based upon the recommendationsof
the Medical Staff within the provisions of the Bylaws of the Hospital. Manager shall
designate an individual on its management team to serve as the liaison between the Medical
Staff and the Board, and Manager shall have the responsibility to consult with the Board
and/or the Medical Staff in regard to matters pertaining to appointments, the definition of
privileges, and Medical Staff function within the Hospital.

2.2 Licensure. District shall use best efforts and Manager shall use reasonable
efforts under the COVID Pandemic and Jeopardy Circumstances (hereinafter, "the Party's
Respective Contracted Standard of Care") to keep in full force and effect all licenses,
certifications, permits. Government Programs participation, and similar items necessary or



4/27/20

appropriate to the continued operation of the Hospital Operations and the Parties shall use the
Party's Respective Contracted Standard of Care to not allow any of the same to become invalid,
restricted, revoked or otherwise adversely affected by the acts or omissions of any of their
officers, employees, agents or representatives. District, with assistance from Manager, shall
perform those obligations and responsibilities that must be performedby District for the Hospital
Operations to remain licensed and certified, but the Parties recognize that the Hospital will be
managed and operated by Manager. Manager shall promptly notify District of any actions that
must be affirmatively taken by District in order to maintain any of the above items during the
term of this Agreement

(a) Neither District nor Manager shall take any action or fail to take any
action inconsistent with the Party's Contracted Respective Standard of Care that could be
reasonably anticipated to terminate or jeopardize the effectiveness of any licenses, certifications,
approvals or participation in any Government Programs necessary for operation of the Hospital
Operations. District shall not take any action or adopt any policy that would interfere with
Manager's provision of the services described herein, except as allowed by this Agreement.

(b) District shall: (i) notify Manager immediately if District receives
any written notice or communication from a Governmental Authority relating to the
Hospital Operations; and (ii) execute and return, in a timely manner, all contracts and
agreements (including extensions and renewals thereoO reasonably necessary to continue
in effect the Hospital's participation in and eligibility for the Government Programs.

2.3 Consent bv District. District shall not unreasonably withhold consent
from any action requested by Manager hereunder and shall not unreasonably interfere
with Manager's activities hereunder. District shall not unreasonably interfere with the
day-to-day operations of the Hospital.

2.4 Public Communications. District and Manager shall make mutually agreed
upon, joint public statements about the Hospital Operations.

2.5 District Actions. During the Transition Period, District shall not, without the
consent of Manager:

(a) Authorize or approve the transfer, sale or other disposition of any of the
Hospital's real or personal property other than in the ordinary and usual course of business as
heretofore conducted, except for such items as are no longer useful, or obsolete, worn out or
incapable of any further use, and as will be replaced in accordance with District's usual practice
with other items of substantially the same value and utility as the items transferred, sold,
exchanged or otherwise disposed of;

(b) Authorize or approve the creation, participation in or agreement to the
creation of any liens, encumbrances or hypothecations of any of the Hospital's real or personal
property, except any liens for current taxes not yet due and payable and liens created in the
ordinary and usual course of its business as heretofore conducted;

(c) Authorize or approve the execution of any lease, contract or agreement of
any kind or character with respect to the Hospital or its licensed operations, or incur any

8



4/27/20

liabilities in connection therewith, save and except (a) the Lease and OTA, (b) those which will
terminate or expire prior to the Lease Commencement Date; and (c) those to which it is presently
committed or that arise in the ordinary course of business as heretofore conducted;

(d) Authorize or approve the termination of any licenses, certifications, or
permits concerning the Hospital Operations;

(e) Authorize or approve the waiver or release of any right or claim of District
with respect to the Hospital Operationsexcept in the ordinary course of business;or

(f) Take any action that in any way alters Manager's rights to access Hospital
assets as set forth in this Agreement.

ARTICLE m.

COMPLIANCE

3.1 Legal Compliance.

(a) By entering into this Agreement, the Parties specifically intend to comply
with, and cause their employees, contractors and agents to comply with, in all material respects,
all applicable federal, state and local laws and ordinances, rules, regulations and orders.

(b) By executing this Agreement, each Party hereto hereby represents and
warrants: (i) it shall participate in the corporate compliance program applicable to Hospital, or if
approved and adopted by the Board, the corporate compliance program of Manager; and (ii) that
it shall not, and Manager shall not on behalf of District, knowingly employ or contract with (with
or without compensation) any individual or entity (singularly or collectively, "Agent") listed by
a federal agency as debarred, excluded, suspended or otherwise determined to be ineligible to
participate in any Government Program ("Debarred"). To comply with this provision. Manager
shall make reasonable inquiry into the status of any Agent contracted or arranged by Manager or
by the District (assuming District has informed Manager of the identity of any such Agent whom
District employed or with whom District contracted without the knowledge of Manager) by
reviewing, at a minimum, the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Inspector
General Cumulative Sanctions Report and the General Services Administration List of Parties
Excluded from Federal Procurement and Non-Procurement Programs.

(c) Manager shall supervise the provision of patient care at the Hospital in
compliance with all applicable federal, state and local laws and ordinances, rules, regulations and
orders. Manager shall use all commercially reasonable efforts to manage the Hospital
Operations (including, without limitation, its billing and collection activities) in a manner that (i)
is intended to result in the delivery of quality medical care, and (ii) eliminates as reasonably
practical, grounds for complaints, investigations or adverse action against the Hospital
Operations' related licenseor permit (or against District, by virtueof Districtholdingsuch
licenseor permit)by any Governmental Authority or third party relatingto patientcare or the
operation and maintenance of the Hospital Operations during the Transition Period.

3.2 Patient Information.



4/27/20

(a) Manager shall comply at all times, in all material respects, with the
requirements of all applicable HIPAA Regulations (as defined in the BAA) and the business
associate agreement by and between the Parties attached hereto as Exhibit A (the "BAA")and
incorporated herein by this reference.

(b) All patient records and informationshall remain the property of District
during the Transition Period. Manager shall properly and completely maintain all patient records
of the Hospital Operationsduring the Transition Period. Manager shall have the right, to the
extentpermitted by applicable law, to analyze and obtain information from such records and
report same to District. Nothing in this section constitutes the waiver of any attorney-client
privilege or other privilege or confidentialityobligation and neither Party shall be required
hereunder to give the other Party documents if, as a result, an existing attorney-clientprivilege or
other privilege or confidentialityobligation would be waived. All records, files, proceedingsand
related information with respect to patients, and of District and of the Medical Staff and its
committees pertaining to the evaluation and improvementof the quality of patient care at the
Hospital Operations,shall be kept strictly confidential by Manager and its personnel according to
any applicable federal and state laws and District policies. Manager shall take all steps necessary
to assure that the confidentialityof medical records and health informationof Hospital patients is
preserved in accordance with HIPAA Regulations as defined in the BAA, and that all employees
and agents of Manager shall use such information solely for the purposes necessary to perform
Manager's obligations under this Agreement. Neither Manager nor its personnel shall
voluntarily disclose such records or information, either orally or in writing, except as expressly
required by law.

3.3 Certain Representations of District Regarding Compliance.

(a) Government Program Participation. Except as otherwise disclosed to
Manager, Hospital is certified for participation in the Government Programs and has current and
valid provider agreements with such Government Programs (the "Program Agreements").
Except for the matters described in Schedule 3.3fa). Hospital is in compliance with the
conditions of participation in the Government Programs and with the terms, conditions, and
provisions of the Program Agreements. Except for the matters described in Schedule 3.3(a), the
Program Agreements are each in full force and effect, and no events or facts exist that would
cause any Program Agreement to be suspended, terminated, restricted or withdrawn. District has
received all permits and approvals necessary for reimbursement of the Hospital by the
Govemment Programs.

(b) Govemment Program Reimbursement.

(i) For the past six (6) years, to the best of District's knowledge, all
billing practices of District to all third-party payors, including the Govemment Programs and
commercial payors, have been conducted in material compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations and the billing guidelines of such third-party payors in all material respects. To the
best of District's knowledge, neither District nor Hospital has billed or received any payment or
reimbursement in excess of amounts allowed by law or the billing guidelines of any third-party
payor, including the Govemment Programs and commercial payors. Except for the matters
described in Schedule 3.3(a), there is no proceeding, survey, or other action pending, or, to

10



4/27/20

District's knowledge, threatened, involving any of the Government Programs or any other third-
party payor programs, including Hospital's participation in and the reimbursement received by
District and Hospital from the Government Programs or any other third-party payor program,
and District has no reason to believe that any such proceedings, surveys, or actions are pending,
threatened or imminent. To District's knowledge, neither District nor, any of its employees,
officers, or directors have committed a violation of any applicable law relating to payments and
reimbursements under the Government Programs or any other third-party payor program.

(ii) Notwithstanding the generality of the foregoing. District
specifically represents, warrants and covenants that, to the best of District's knowledge, at all
times prior to the Effective Date, District has been, and, following the Effective Date (including
following the termination date of this Agreement), District shall continue to be, in material
compliance with its obligations with regard to Medicare and Medicaid overpayments
("Overpayments"), specifically including those set forth in 81 FR 7653 (the "60-Day
Overpayment Rule"). As further set forth in Section 5.2 below. District shall fully indemnify
Manager for any and all liability resulting from non-compliance with the 60-Day Overpayment
Rule that relates to conduct or financial arrangements that existed prior to the Effective Date.
Following the Effective Date, District shall defer to Manager's recommendations regardingany
and all reporting and/or returning of Overpayments to ensure compliance with the 60-Day
Overpayment Rule. In the event District and/or the Board chooses not to defer to Manager's
recommendations with respect to reporting and/or returning an Overpayment (an "Overpayment
Reporting Disagreement"), Manager shall have the option to terminate this Agreement for
cause pursuant to Section 7.2(c).

(iii) Third-Partv Pavor Cost Reports. For the last six (6) years. District
has timely filed all required Cost Reports for all fiscal years through and including the fiscal year
ended June 30,2019. All Cost Reports filed by or on behalf of District accurately reflect, in all
material respects, the information required to be included therein, and such Cost Reports do not
claim, and neither District nor Hospital have received, reimbursement in any amount in excess of
the amounts allowed by law or any applicable agreement. To District's knowledge, there are no
facts or circumstances that would give rise to any disallowance under any such Cost Reports.
District has established adequate reserves to cover any potential reimbursement obligations that
District may have in respect of such Cost Reports.

(c) Compliance with Healthcare Laws.

(i) Neither District nor Hospital, nor any of their respective officers,
directors or employees, have been convicted of, charged with or, to District's knowledge,
investigated for, or have engaged in conduct that would constitute, a Medicare or other Federal
Health Care Program (as defined in 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7(b)(f)) related offense or convicted of,
charged with or, to District's knowledge, investigated for, or engaged in conduct that would
constitute a violation of any law related to fraud, theft, embezzlement, breach of fiduciary duty,
kickbacks, bribes, other financial misconduct, obstruction of an investigation or controlled
substances. None of District, Hospital, nor any officer, director, employee or independent
contractor of District or Hospital (whether an individual or entity), has been Debarred from any
Federal Health Care Program, subject to sanction pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7a or § 1320a-8

II



4/27/20

or been convicted of a crime described at 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b, nor, to District's knowledge, are
any such exclusions, sanctions or charges threatened or pending.

(ii) Except for the matters described in Schedule 3.3fc). to the best of
District's knowledge. District and Hospital have been and are presently in compliance in all
material respects with all applicable laws, including Title XVIII of the Social Security Act,
42 U.S.C. §§ 1395-1395hhh (the Medicare statute), including specifically, the Ethics in Patient
Referrals Act, as amended, or "Stark Law," 42 U.S.C. § 1395nn; Title XDC of the Social Security
Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 1396-1396v (the Medicaid statute); the Federal Health Care Program Anti-
Kickback Statute, 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b(b); the False Claims Act, as amended, 31 U.S.C.
§§ 3729-3733; the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act, 31 U.S.C. §§ 3801-3812; the Anti-
Kickback Act of 1986,41 U.S.C. §§ 51-58; the Civil Monetary Penalties Law, 42 U.S.C.
§§ 1320a-7a and 1320a-7b; the Exclusion Laws, 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7; HIPAA and all applicable
implementing regulations, rules, ordinances and orders; and any similar state and local laws that
address the subject matter of the foregoing.

(iii) Except for the matters described in Schedule 3.3fc). neither
District nor Hospital has received any communication from a Governmental Authority, third-
party payor or patient that alleges Hospital Operations is not in compliance with any law, other
than statements of deficiencies from a Governmental Authority received in the ordinary course
of business. District has timely filed all material reports, data, and other information required to
be filed with such commissions, boards, bureaus, and agencies regarding the Hospital.

(iv) All of District's contracts with physicians, other health care
providers, or immediate family members of any physicians or other health care providers, or
entities in which physicians, other health care providers, or immediate family members of any
physicians or other health care providers are equity owners, involving services, supplies,
payments, or any other type of remuneration, and all of District's leases of personal or real
property with such physicians, health care providers, immediate family members or other
Persons are in writing, are signed by the appropriate parties, set forth the services to be provided,
provide for a fair market value compensation in exchange for such services, space, or goods and
comply with all applicable laws.

(v) Except in compliance with applicable laws, neither District nor any
of its officers, directors or employees is a party to any contract, lease agreement or other
arrangement (including any joint venture or consulting agreement) related to District or Hospital
with any physician, immediate family member of a physician or other person that is in a position
to make or influence referrals to or otherwise generate business for District with respect to the
Hospital, to provide services, lease space, lease equipment or engage in any other venture or
activity.

(vi) To District's knowledge, none of District's officers, directors or
employees have engaged in any activities that are prohibited under 42 U.S.C. §§ 1320a-7 et seq.,
or the regulations promulgated thereunder, or under any other federal or state statutes or
regulations, or which are prohibited by applicable rules of professional conduct.

12



4/27/20

ARTICLE IV.

COMPENSATION

4.1 Management Fee. As compensation for providing the ManagementServices
under this Agreement, Districtshall pay to Manager fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00) per
month (the "Management Fee"). Districtshallpay the Management Fee within sixty(60)
calendar days of the last day of each month Management Services are performed.

4.2 District Right to Audit. District shall have the right to audit all financial
information and/orbookswith respect to Manager's services and Hospital Operation's
performance under the terms of this Agreement. Manager agrees to reasonably cooperate with
any such requests and to provide responses in a timely manner.

5.1 Insurance.

ARTICLE V.

INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

(a) Coverage Requirements. Each of the Parties during the term of this
Agreementand any extensions or continuations, shall at their sole cost and expense, and as
applicable, purchase or provide, keep and maintain, and require any agents or contractors
providing servicespursuant to this Agreement to do the same, insurance coverageas follows:

Coverage Type District Manager
Hospital Professional
Liability

Primary Additional Insured

General Liability Primary Additional Insured

Directors and Officers

Liability
Yes Yes

Property Insurance Primary Additional Insured

Automobile Liability District-owned

vehicles

Manager-owned /
Manager employees-
owned vehicles

Worker's

Compensation
Liability (including
Employer's Liability)

Yes, covering District
employees

Yes, covering
Manager employees

Fiduciary and ERISA
Liability

Yes, covering District
employees

Yes, covering
Manager employees

Privacy (Cyber Risk)
Liability

Primary Additional Insured for

all coverage parts,
excluding E&O
coverage part

Pollution Liability Primary Additional Insured

Fidelity (Crime) Yes, covering District
employees

Yes, covering
Manager employees

Peer Review (follows
HPL coverage)

Primary Additional Insured

13



Coverage Type District Manager

Employment Practices
Liability

Yes, covering District
employees

Yes, covering
Manager employees
(included in
Manager's D&O
coverage)

4/27/20

Such insurance shall be with carriers with a minimum Best rating (or equivalent) of A- VII, or
throughan acceptable programof self-insurance. Districtagrees that Managershall be deemed
to have satisfied any insurance requirements under the Agreement if (a) Manager participates in
program(s)of self-insurancemaintainedby Manager and its affiliates; or (b) if Manager
maintains program(s)of self-insurance, with blanket policies, high deductibles or other
coveragesconsistentwith those typicallymaintained by Manager. Such insurance shall be in
amounts and in a form necessary to protect against loss from claims arising out of the Parties
business activities. Reasonable changes in the amounts or types of coverage necessary to protect
against loss will be made upon the mutual agreement of the Parties. Unless notified in writing
within thirty (30) days thereafter the insurance coverages in place will be deemed reasonable as
of the date of the Agreement. Changes can be requested by written notice of one Party to the
other.

(b) Evidence of Coverage. The Parties shall provide to each other evidence
of each coverage required in this Agreement on or as mutually agreed to after the Effective Date.
To the extent possible under District's existing CHI policies, District agrees that the following
policies will name Manager as Additional Insured during the term of this Agreement: Hospital
Professional Liability, General Liability, Property Insurance, Privacy (Cyber Risk) Liability and
Pollution Liability as respects the management and operations support of the Hospital.

(c) Notice of Changes In Coverage; Tail Requirements. Each of the Parties
shall provide at least thirty (30) days' advance written notice to the other Party as to any material
alteration or amendment of coverage including cancellation or other termination. If any policy is
written on a "claims made" basis and is later converted to "occurrence" or canceled for any
reason, "prior acts" or "tail" coverage shall be obtained in the amounts specified for an unlimited
reporting period (except for D&O which tail coverage shall be as long as District deems
appropriate).

5.2 District's Indemnification.

(a) Except as and to the extent relating to Manager's or any of its affiliates'
gross negligence, recklessness, willful misconduct, bad faith or fraud. District shall indemnify
and hold harmless Manager, its affiliates, and its and their respective officers, directors, partners,
managers, shareholders, members, principals, attorneys, agents, employees and other
representatives (collectively, the ''Manager Indemnified Parties") from and against any and all
Losses (as defined below) that any such Manager Indemnified Party incurs as a result of, arising
out of, relating to or in connection with: (i) any breach or nonfulfillment of any covenants or
other agreements made by District in this Agreement; (ii) any breach or nonfulfillment of any
covenants or other agreements made by District in this Agreement; (iii) any breach of or
inaccuracy in any of the representations or warranties made by District in Section 3.3; (iv)

14



4/27/20

District's non-compliance with the 60-Day Overpayment Rule; (v) any fraud, gross negligence,
recklessness, willful misconduct or criminal acts of District or its officers, directors, members,
shareholders,employees, agents and/or independentcontractors; and any matter relating to the
employment of the District Senior Management Personnel and District Personnel (including
claims arising out of tort, contract, equity, implied covenant, invasion of privacy, violation of
any collective bargaining agreement, unfair labor practice charges, defamation, personal injury,
wrongful discharge, emotional distress, discrimination (whether based on race, sex, age, color,
national origin, religion, disability or any other class protected by law), harassment, retaliation,
occupational safety and health claims, work related injuries, claims for workers' compensation
benefits, claims for insurance or other employee benefits, claims for wages, any claim under the
Age Discrimination in Employment Act (29 U.S.C. §621 et. seq.), the Civil Rights Act (42
U.S.C. §1981),Title VR of the Civil Rights Act of 1964(42 U.S.C. §2000eet. seq.), the Civil
Rights Act of 1991 (42 U.S.C. §1981(a) et. seq.), the Americans With Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C.
§12101, et. seq.), ERISA or the Family Medicd Leave Act (29 U.S.C. §2601 et. seq.), any claim
under the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938 (29 U.S.C. §201 et. seq.), the Rehabilitation Act of
1973 (29 U.S.C. §701 et. seq.), any claim undercommonlaw and any claim under any federal,
state or local statute, regulation, constitution, order or executive order).

(b) Specifically with regard to District's indemnityobligations set forth under
Section 5.2(a) above. District shall indemnify Manager for all Losses regardless of whether the
non-compliance resulting in, arising out of, related to, or in connection with the Losses incurred
before the Effective Date, during the term of this Agreement or following the termination of this
Agreement.

(c) Except as described in this Agreement, in no event will District be liable
for any special, incidental, exemplary, punitive, indirect or consequentialdamages (including
without limitation any lost revenue or lost profits), even if District is advised of the possibility of
such damages or such damages are foreseeable.

5.3 Manager's Indemnification.

(a) Except as and to the extent relating to (a) District's or any of its
affiliates' gross negligence, recklessness, willful misconduct, bad faith or fraud, or (b)
the COVID Pandemic and Jeopardy Circumstances', Manager shall indemnify and hold
harmless District, its affiliates, and its and their respective officers, directors, partners,
managers, shareholders, members, principals, attorneys, agents, employees and other
representatives (collectively, the "District Indemnified Parties") from and against any
and all Losses that any such District Indemnified Party incurs as a result of, or arising
from: (i) any breach of or inaccuracy in any of the representations or warranties made by
Manager in this Agreement; (ii) any breach or non-fulfillment of any of the covenants or
other agreements made by Manager in this Agreement; and (iii) any fraud, gross
negligence, recklessness, willful misconduct or criminal acts of Manager or its officers,
directors, employees, agents and independent contractors; provided, however, that the
fraud, willful misconduct, or criminal act of the District Senior Management Personnel

' AH note proposed extraordinary limitation concerning indemnification.

15



4/27/20

and District Personnel shall not be deemed to be the fraud, willful misconduct, or
criminal act of the Manager or any of its affiliates).

(b) Except as described in this Agreement, in no event will Manager
be liable for any special, incidental, exemplary, punitive, indirector consequential
damages (including without limitation any lost revenue or lost profits), even if Manager
is advised of the possibility of such damages or such damages are foreseeable.

(c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary. Manager's aggregate
liability in respect of claims for indemnification pursuant to Section 5.3(a) shall not
exceed [2 months' Management Fee]^ (the"Cap"); provided, however, that the foregoing
limitation shall not apply with respect to any Losses as a result of, arising out of, related
to or in connection with any claim for indemnification under Section 5.3(a)(ii) and
Section 5.3(a)(iii), and none of such Losses shall count towards the satisfaction of the
Cap. For any claim covered by, or required to be covered by, insurance as described in
Section 5.1, the cap on liability for such claim shall be the applicable minimum insurance
amount(s) required or the Cap in this Section 5.3(c), whichever is greater.

5.4 Determination of Losses. Subject to Section 5.3(c), the amount of any Losses
shall be reduced or reimbursed, as the case may be, by any amount received by any Manager
Indemnified Parties or any District Indemnified Parties, as applicable, with respect thereto under
any insurance coverage provided by any third party or from any other party alleged to be
responsible therefor, provided that such reduction or reimbursement shall be net of any (i)
increase in premiums in any such insurance coverage or (ii) costs of collection. The Manager
Indemnitied Parties and the District Indemnified Parties, as applicable, shall use commercially
reasonable efforts to collect any amounts available under such insurance coverage and from such
other party alleged to have responsibility. If a Manager Indenmitied Party or District
Indemnified Party, as applicable, receives an amount under insurance coverage or from such
other party with respect to Losses at any time subsequent to any indemnification provided by
District pursuant to Section 5.2 or by Manager pursuant to Section 5.3, then such Manager
Indemnified Party or District Indemnified Party, as applicable, shall promptly reimburse
Manager or District, as applicable, for any payment made or out-of-pocket expense incurred by
such Person in connection with providing such indemnification up to such amount received (less
any costs or expenses incurred in recovering such amounts) by the Manager Indemnified Party or
District Indemnified Party, as applicable. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Section
5.4 shall be construed to relieve any insurance carrier of its obligations under any insurance
coverage maintained by District, Manager or any affiliate of District or Manager, which in all
cases shall be primary to the indemnification obligations hereunder.

5.5 Notice of Third-Party Claims and Control of Litigation.

(a) If a Governmental Authority or other third party asserts a claim or
potential liability (a "Third Party Claim") against a Person entitled to indemnification under
this Article V (the "Indemnified Party") that would give rise to a claim under this Article V, the
Indemnified Party promptly shall provide written notice of the Third Party Claim (a "Claim

' AH to confirm.

16



4/27/20

Notice") to the Person providing indemnityhereunder ("Indemnifying Party"); provided,
however, that the failure to provide such notice as so indicated shall not affect the Indenmifying
Party's obligation to indemnify the Indemnified Party unless such notice is not provided prior to
the expiration of the Survival Period (as defined below in Section 5.8 for suchThird Party
Claim), and the Indemnifying Party shall have no remedy by reason of such failure except to the
extent of any actual prejudice resulting from such delay. The Indemnifying Party, at its sole cost
and expense, will be entitled to participate in the defense of any Third Party Claim and will have
the right to defend the Indemnified Party against the Third PartyClaim so long as (i) the
Indemnifying Party gives written notice to the Indemnified Partywithin ten (10) business days
after receiptof a Claim Notice that it will indemnify the Indemnified Party from and against the
entiretyof any and all Losses the Indemnified Party may suffer resulting ft^om, arisingout of,
relating to, or in connection with the Third Party Claim described in such Claim Notice, (ii) the
Third PartyClaiminvolves onlyclaimsfor monetary damages anddoes not seek an injunction or
other equitable relief against the IndemnifiedParty, (iii) the IndenmifledParty has not been
advised by counsel thata conflict or potential conflict exists between the Indemnified Partyand
the Indemnifying Party in connection with the defenseof the Third Party Claim, (iv) the Third
PartyClaimdoes not relate to or otherwise arise in connection withanycriminal or regulatory
enforcement action, and (v) the Indemnifying Partyconducts the defense of the ThirdParty
Claimactively and diligently. If the Indemnifying Party, within ten (10) business days after
receipt of a ClaimNotice, fails to defend suchThird PartyClaim, the Indenmifled Partywill
(upon further notice to the IndemnifyingParty) have the right to undertake the defense,
compromise or settlement of such Third Party Claim on behalf of and for the account and risk of
the Indemnifying Party and seek indemnification therefor under Section 5.2 or Section 5,3, as
applicable.

(b) If the Indenmifying Party assumes the defense of a Third Party Claim in
accordance with Section 5.5(a), the Indemnifted Party shall cooperate in all commercially
reasonable respects with the Indenmifying Party in the investigation, trial and defense of any
Proceeding relating to such Third Party Claim, including any appeal arising therefrom; provided,
however, that the Indemnified Party may, at its own cost, participate in the investigation, trial and
defense of such Proceedingor any appeal arising therefrom. The Parties shall cooperatewith each
other in any notifications to insurers. The IndenmifledParty shall reasonablyassist and cooperate,
at the cost and expense of the Indenmifying Party, with the Indemnifying Party in the making of
settlements and the enforcement of any right of contribution to which the Indemnified Party may
be entitled from any Person or entity in connection with the subject matter of any litigation subject
to indenmification hereunder.

5.6 Notice of Non-Third-Partv Claims. If an Indemnified Party seeks
indemnification under this Article V with respect to any matter which does not involve a Third-
Party Claim, the Indemnified Party shall give written notice to the Indemnifying Party promptly
after discovering the liability, obligation or facts giving rise to such claim for indenmification,
describing the nature of the claim in reasonable detail, the amount thereof (if known and
quantifiable), and the basis thereof (the "Indemnity Notice"); provided that any failure to so notify
or any delay in notifying the Indenmifying Party shall not relieve the Indemnifying Party of its or
his obligations hereunder except to the extent that the Indemnifying Party is materially prejudiced
by such failure or delay. If the Indemnifying Party does not notify the Indemnified Party in writing
within thirty (30) days from its receipt of the Indemnity Notice that the Indemnifying Party

17



4/27/20

disputes such claim, the Indemnifying Party shall be deemed to have accepted and agreed to
indemnify the Indemnified Party from and against the entirety of any Losses described in the
Indemnity Notice, subject to the limitations on indemnification set forth in this Article V. If the
IndemnifyingParty delivers a notice disputing the indemnification claim to the IndemnifiedParty
within thirty (30) days from its receipt of the Indemnity Notice, the Indemnifying Party and the
Indemnified Party shall proceed in good faith to negotiate a resolution to such dispute. If the
Indemnifying Party and the Indemnifled Party cannot resolve such dispute within forty-five (45)
days after delivery of the indemnity dispute notice, such dispute shall be resolved in accordance
with Article VIII.

5.7 Certain Definitions.

(a) "Losses" means all losses, liabilities, claims, damages, penalties, fines,
judgments, awards, settlements, costs, fees (including court costs and costs of appeal),
disbursements and expenses (including reasonable costs of investigation and defense and
reasonable attorneys' fees) or diminution in value incurred or suffered by an indemnified Party,
whether or not involving a third-partyclaim, including reasonably foreseeable lost profits and
other similar economic losses or damages.

(b) "Goyemmental Authority" means any government or any agency,
bureau, board, directorate, commission, court, department, official, political subdivision,
tribunal, special district or other instrumentality of any govemment, whether federal, state or
local, domestic or foreign, and any self-regulatory organization.

(c) "Person" means an individual, association, corporation, limited liability
company, partnership, limited liability partnership, trust. Government^ Authority or any other
entity or organization.

(d) "Proceeding" means any claim, action, arbitration, audit (including any
Recovery Audit Contractor, Medicaid Integrity Contractor, Comprehensive Error Rate Testing,
Zone Program Integrity Contractor or similar audits), hearing, investigation, litigation suit or
other similar proceeding by or before a Governmental Authority.

5.8 Survival. The provisions in Section 5.2 through Section 5.6 shall survive any
expiration or termination of this Agreement until the later of (i) ninety (90) days after the
expiration of the applicable statute of limitations, including any applicable tolling period or (ii)
fully performed or observed in accordance with its terms (each such period, a "Survival
Period").

ARTICLE VI.

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE PARTIES

6.1 Independent Contractor. Manager is and shall at all times be an
independentcontractor with respect to District in meeting Manager's responsibilities
under this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement is intended nor shall be construed to
create a partnership, employer-employee or joint venture relationship between Manager
and District.

18



4/27/20

6.2 Limitation on Control. Managershall neitherhave nor exercise any
control or direction over the professionalmedicaljudgment of any professional provider
contracted with District, or the methods by any professional provider contracted with
District performs professional medical services; provided, however, that any professional
provider contracted with District shall be subject to and shall at all times comply with the
bylaws, guidelines, policies and rules of District. Neither Party shall have any right,
power or authority to act for or enter into binding agreements on behalf of the other
Party, except as specifically set forth in this Agreement.

6.3 Referrals. No term of this Agreementshall be construed as requiring or
inducing District or any person employed or retained by District to refer patients to
Manageror any Manager-affiliated entity. District's rights under this Agreement shall
not be dependent in any way on the referral of patients to Manager or its affiliated
organizationsby District or any person employed or retainedby District.

ARTICLE VII.

TERM AND TERMINATION

7.1 Term. This Agreement shall become effective on May 1,2020 (the
"Effective Date"), and shall continueuntil the LeaseCommencement Date, subject to
the termination provisions of this Agreement.

7.2 Termination.

(a) Without Cause Termination. Beginning on the Effective Date,
Manager will have a recurring right to terminate this Agreement without cause by
providing sixty (60) days' written notice to District.

(b) Termination for Cause bv District. If Manager breaches any
material provision of this Agreement, then District may, at its option, upon thirty (30)
days written notice to Manager, unless Manager has cured said breach before said thirty
(30) days have elapsed or immediately in the case of danger to patient care, (i) terminate
this Agreement, or (ii) maintain this Agreement in full force and effect, and in either case
seek damages or other relief appropriate thereto.

(c) Termination for Cause bv Manager. If District breaches any
material provision of this Agreement, then Manager may, at its option, upon thirty (30)
days written notice to District (unless District has cured the material breach before said
thirty (30) days have elapsed, if applicable), or immediately in the case of danger to
patient care, (i) terminate this Agreement, or (ii) maintain this Agreement in full force
and effect, and in either case seek damages or other relief appropriate thereto. Manager
may terminate this Agreement immediately without notice if Hospital is unable to pass
the Recertification Survey.

(d) This Agreement may be terminated upon mutual written agreement
of the Parties.

19



4/27/20

7.3 Effect of Termination or Expiration. Upon any termination or expiration
of this Agreement, the following shall apply:

(a) District shall pay Manager all Management Fees due Manager under the
terms of this Agreement through the effective date of terminationor expiration, as applicable.
This obligation is unconditional and shall survive the termination or expiration without renewal
of this Agreement (including all amounts owed to Manager that are not fully ascertainable as of
the termination date).

(b) All rights and obligations of the Parties shall cease except those
rights and obligations that have accrued or expressly survive such termination or
expiration.

ARTICLE Vni.

DISPUTE RESOLUTION

8.1 Dispute Resolution. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any
dispute, claim or controversy arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the breach,
termination, enforcement, interpretation, or validity thereof, including the determination of the
scope or applicability of this Agreement to arbitrate or any claims for specific performance or
injunctive relief (collectively, a "Dispute") shall be settled in accordance with the following
procedures. Notwithstanding anything that may be construed to the contrary herein, each of the
Parties expressly acknowledges that (i) it has an affirmative duty to expedite the process and
procedures described below to the extent reasonably practical in order to facilitate a prompt
resolution of any Dispute and (ii) each Party has a mission of serving their communities, and all
communications and proposed resolutions of the Dispute shall take these missions into
consideration.

(a) Dispute Notice. Notice by either Party of the existence of a Dispute shall
(i) be delivered in writing, (ii) specify what provision of the Agreement such Party believes is
under Dispute and (iii) recommend a course of action to resolve the Dispute (the "Dispute
Notice").

(b) Meet and Confer. If, within fifteen (15) days after receipt by the
applicable Party of a Dispute Notice, the Parties do not resolve such dispute, then the Dispute
shall be referred to the designated senior executives with authority to resolve the Dispute from
each Party for further negotiation (the "Meet and Confer"). The obligation to conduct a Meet
and Confer pursuant to this Section 8.1(b) does not obligate any Party to agree to any
compromise or resolution of the Dispute that such Party does not determine, in its sole and
absolute discretion, to be a satisfactory resolution of the Dispute. The Meet and Confer shall be
considered a settlement negotiation for the purpose of all applicable laws protecting statements,
disclosures, or conduct in such context, and any offer in compromise or other statements or
conduct made at or in connection with any Meet and Confer shall be protected under such laws,
including California Evidence Code Section 1152.

(c) Arbitration. If any Dispute is not resolved to the mutual satisfaction of
the Parties within thirty (30) days after delivery of the Dispute Notice (or such other period as

20



4/27/20

may be mutually agreed upon by the Parties in writing), the Dispute shall be determined by
arbitration in Mendocino County, California. The arbitration shall be administered by Judicial
Arbitration and Mediation Services, Inc. ("JAMS") pursuant to its Comprehensive Arbitration
Rules and Procedures. Judgment on the Award may be entered in any court havingjurisdiction.

(i) Either Party may commence arbitration by giving written notice to
the other Party demanding arbitration (the "Arbitration Notice").
The Arbitration Notice shall specify the Dispute, the particular
claims and/or causes of action alleged by the Party demanding
arbitration, and the factual and legal basis in support of such claims
and/or causes of action.

(ii) The parties shall cooperate in good faith to identifyone person that
is acceptable to both Parties to act as an arbitrator within fifteen
(15) days after the commencement of arbitration. In the event the
Parties are unable or fail to agree upon the arbitrator within the
allotted time, the arbitrator shall be appointed by JAMS in
accordance with its rules. All arbitrators shall serve as neutral,
independent and impartial arbitrators, and they shall have the
authority to grant any relief permittedby law, includingequitable
relief.

(iii) The Parties shall be entitled to reasonable production of relevant,
non-privileged documents, carried out expeditiously. If the Parties
are unable to agree upon same, the arbitrator shall have the power,
upon application of any Party, to make all appropriate orders for
production of documents by any Party. Depositions shall be
permitted only upon a showing of substantial need.

(iv) The substantive internal law (and not the conflict of laws) of the
State shall be applied by the arbitrator to the resolution of the
Dispute.

(v) The following time limits are to apply to any arbitration arising out
of or related to this Agreement: The evidentiary hearing on the
merits ("Hearing") is to commence within six (6) months of the
service of the arbitration demand. A brief, reasoned award is to be
rendered within forty-five (45) days of the close of the Hearing or
within forty-five (45) days of service of post-hearing briefs if the
arbitrator directs the service of such briefs. The arbitrator must

agree to the foregoing deadlines before accepting appointment.
Failure to meet any of the foregoing deadlines will not render the
award invalid, unenforceable or subject to being vacated.

(vi) The Parties shall maintain the confidential nature of the arbitration
proceeding and the award, including the Hearing, except as may be
necessary to prepare for or conduct the arbitration hearing on the

21



4/27/20

merits, or except as may be necessary in connection with a court
application for a preliminary remedy, a judicial challenge to an
award or its enforcement, or unless otherwise required by law or
judicial decision.

(vii) The award of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the
Parties without appeal or review except as permitted by applicable
law.

8.2 Provisional Measures. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent either Party
from seeking provisional measures from any court of competent jurisdiction, and any such
request shall not be deemed incompatible with the agreement to arbitrate or a waiver of the right
to arbitrate.

8.3 Attorneys* Fees and Costs. The arbitrator(s) in the Sections 8.1(c) shall award
to the,prevailing Party, if any, the costs and attorneys' fees reasonably incurred by the prevailing
Party in connection with the arbitration. In addition, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to its
reasonable attorneys' fees and other costs for any other action, including court proceedings for
provisional measures or for the enforcement of any arbitral award.

ARTICLE IX.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

9.1 Amendment. This Agreement may be modified or amended only by
mutual written agreement of the Parties. Any such modification or amendment must be
in writing,dated, signed by the Parties and attached to this Agreement.

9.2 Assignment. Except for assignment by Manager to an entity owned,
controlled by, or under common control with Manager, neither Party may assign any
interest or obligation under this Agreementwithout the other Party's prior written
consent. Subject to the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding on and shall inure to
the benefit of the Parties and their respective successors and assigns.

9.3 Authorized Persons. Whenever any consent,approval or determination
of a Party is required pursuant to this Agreement, the consent, approval or determination
shall be rendered on behalf of the Party by the person or personsduly authorized to do so,
which the other Partyshall be justified in assuming means any officerof the Party
rendering such consent, approval or determination, or the Party's board of directors.

22



4/27/20

9.4 Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with
and governed by the laws of the State of California, except choice of law rules that would
require the application of the laws of any other jurisdiction.

9.5 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together
shall constitute one and the same instrument.

9.6 Entire Agreement. This Agreement is the entire understanding and
agreement of the Parties regarding its subject matter, and supersedes any prior oral or
written agreements, representations, understandings or discussions between the Parties.
No other understanding between the Parties shall be binding on them unless set forth in
writing, signed and attached to this Agreement.

9.7 Schedules and Exhibits. The attached schedules and exhibits, together
with all documents incorporated by reference in the schedules and exhibits, form an
integral part of this Agreement and are incorporated into this Agreement wherever
reference is made to them to the same extent as if they were set out in full at the point at
which such reference is made.

9.8 Force Maieure. Neither Party is liable for nonperformance or defective
or late performance of any of its obligations under this Agreement to the extent and for
such periods of time as such nonperformance, defective performance or late performance
is due to reasons outside such Party's control, including acts of God, war (declared or
undeclared), action of any governmental authority, riots, revolutions, fire, floods,
explosions, sabotage, nuclear incidents, lightning, weather, earthquakes, storms,
sinkholes, epidemics, strikes or similar nonperformance or defective performance or late
performance of employees, suppliers or subcontractors.

9.9 Further Assurances. Each Party shall, at the reasonable request of the
other Party, execute and deliver to the other party all further instruments, assignments,
assurances and other documents, and take any actions as the other Party reasonably
requests in connection with the carrying out of this Agreement.

9.10 Headings. The headings in this Agreement are intended solely for
convenience of reference and shall be given no effect in the construction or interpretation
of this Agreement.

9.11 Notices. All notices or communications required or permitted under this
Agreement shall be given in writing and delivered personally or sent by United States
registered or certified mail with postage prepaid and return receipt requested or by
overnight delivery service (e.g.. Federal Express, DHL). Notice is deemed given when
sent if sent as specified in this paragraph,or otherwise deemed given when received. In
each case, notice shall be delivered or sent to:

OWNER: Mendocino Coast Health Care District
[ADDRESS]

23



With a copy to:

MANAGER:

With copies to:

4/27/20

Hooper Lundy and Bookman, P.C.
101 Montgomery Street
San Francisco, California 95661
Attention: Craig Cannizzo

Adventist Health Mendocino Coast

ONE Adventist Health Way
Roseville, Califomia 95661
Attention: President

Stone Point Health

ONE Adventist Health Way
Roseville, Califomia 95661
Attention: Office of General Counsel

Latham & Watkins LLP

355 South Grand Avenue, Suite ICQ
Los Angeles, Califomia 90071-1560
Attention: Daniel K. Settelmayer, Esq.

9.12 Severabilitv. If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be
illegal or unenforceable, that provision shall be severed from this Agreement, and such
severance shall have no effect upon the enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement
unless the purpose of this Agreement is thereby destroyed.

9.13 No Third-Party Beneficiary Rights. The Parties do not intend to confer

and this Agreement shall not be constmed to confer any rights or benefits to any person,
firm, owner, corporation or entity other than the Parties.

9.14 Waiver. No failure or delay by a Party to insist on the strict performance
of any term of this Agreement, or to exercise any right or remedy consequent on a breach
thereof, shall constitute a waiver of any breach or any subsequent breach of such term.
Neither this Agreement nor any of its terms may be changed, waived, discharged or
terminatedexcept by an instmment in writing signed by the Party against whom the
enforcement of the change, waiver, discharge or termination is sought. No waiver of any
breach shall affect or alter this Agreement, but each and every term of this Agreement
shall continue in fiill force and effect with respect to any other then existing or
subsequent breach. The remedies provided in this Agreement are cumulative and not
exclusive of the remedies provided by law or in equity.

[Signature Page Follows]

24



The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first above written.,

DISTRICT

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT,
a local health care district of the State of California

By:

Signature Page to Interim Management Services Agreement
US-DOCSU 15518844.4



MANAGER

ADVENTIST HEALTH MENDOCINO COAST
a California nonprofitpublic benefit corporation

By:

[•]
President

Signature Page to Interim Management Services Agreement
US-D0CS\l 15518844.4



STONE POINT HEALTH

STONE POINT HEALTH

a California nonprofit public benefit corporation

By:

[•]
President

Signature Page to Interim Management Services Agreement
US-D0CS\115518844.4



Exhibit A

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

This BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT (this "BAA") is made by and between
Mendocino Coast Health Care District ("Provider") and Adventist Health Mendocino Coast
("Vendor"), and is effective as of [ • ], 2020 (the "BAA Effective Date").

RECITALS

A. Vendor provides certain services for or on behalf of Provider ("Services"), pursuant to an
agreement or arrangement (the "Underlying Agreement"), and, in the performance of the
Services, Vendor may create, receive, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information on
behalfof Provider ("Provider PHI").

B. Provider and Vendor intend to protect the privacy and provide for the security of the Provider
PHI in compliance with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,
Public Law 104-191, as amended by the Health Information Technology for Economic and
Clinical Health Act, Public Law 111-005 (collectively, "HIPAA"), and the implementation
regulations promulgated thereunder by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
(the "HIPAA Regulations") and other applicable laws.

C. The HIPAA Regulations require Provider to enter into an agreement containing specific
requirements with its business associates prior to the disclosure of Protected Health
Information.

In consideration of the mutual promises below and the exchange of information pursuant to this
BAA, the parties agree as follows:

1. Deflnitions.

a. General Definitions. Unless otherwise provided in this BAA, all capitalized terms that
are used in this BAA will have the same meaning as defined under the HIPAA Regulations.

b. "Privacy Rule" means the HIPAA Regulations that are codified at 45 C.F.R. Part 160 and
Part 164, Subparts A and E.

c. "Security Rule" means the HIPAA Regulations that are codified at 45 C.F.R. Part 160 and
Part 164, Subparts A and C.

2. Obligations of BA.

a. Permitted Uses. Vendor may not use Provider PHI except for the purpose of performing
the Services, or as otherwise explicitly permitted by this BAA or as Required By Law.
Further, Vendor may not use Provider PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy Rule if so used by Provider, except as otherwise permitted by this BAA.
Vendor may use Provider PHI: (i) for the proper management and administration of

US-DOCS\ II SSI 8844.4



Vendor; (ii) tocarryout the legalresponsibilities of Vendor; and (iii)for DataAggregation
purposes for the Health Care Operations of Provider. Vendor may also de-identify PHI in
accordance with the standards set forth in 45 C.F.R. § 164.514(b)and may use or disclose
such de-identified data for any purpose.

b. Permitted Disclosures. Vendor may not disclose Provider PHI except for the purpose of
performing the Services, or as otherwise permitted by this BAA or as Required By Law.
Vendor may not disclose Provider PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of
the Privacy Rule if so disclosed by Provider, except as otherwise permitted by this BAA.
Vendor may disclose Provider PHI: (i) for the proper management and administration of
Vendor; (ii) to carry out the legal responsibilities of Vendor; or (iii) for Data Aggregation
purposes for the Health Care Operations of Provider. If Vendor discloses Provider PHI to
a third party for Vendor's proper managementand administrationor to carry out Vendor's
legal responsibilities, the disclosuremust be RequiredBy Law, or prior to makingany such
disclosure. Vendor must obtain reasonable assurances from the person to whom the
information is disclosed that it shall remain confidential and will be used or further

disclosed only as Required by Law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the
person (which purpose must be consistent with the limitations imposed upon Vendor
pursuant to this BAA), and that the person agrees to notify Vendor of any instances of
which it is aware in which the confidentiality of the information has been breached.

c. Appropriate Safeguards. Vendor shall use appropriatesafeguardsand shall comply with
the Security Rule with respect to Provider Electronic PHI, to prevent use or disclosure of
such information other than as provided for by the Underlying Agreement and this BAA.

d. Mitigation. Vendor agrees to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is
known to Vendor of a use or disclosure of Provider PHI in violation of this BAA. -

e. Reporting of Improper Access, Use or Disclosure. Vendor will notify Provider in
writing of any use or disclosure of Provider PHI not permitted by this BAA, including any
Breach of Unsecured Provider PHI and Security Incident, without unreasonable delay (and
in no case later than sixty (60) days after discovery of any Breach of Unsecured Provider
PHI).

Notwithstanding the foregoing. Provider and Vendor acknowledge the ongoing existence
and occurrence of attempted but unsuccessful Security Incidents that are trivial in nature,
such as pings and port scans, and Provider acknowledges and agrees that no additional
notification to Provider of such unsuccessful Security Incidents is necessary. However, to
the extent that Vendor becomes aware of an unusually high number of such unsuccessful
Security Incidents due to the repeated acts of a single party. Vendor shall notify Provider
of these attempts and provide the name, if available, of said party.

f. Vendor's Agents and Subcontractors. Vendor will ensure that any Subcontractors that
create, receive, maintain or transmit Provider PHI on behalf of Vendor agree in writing to
restrictions and conditions no less stringent than those that apply to Vendor under this BAA
(with respect to such Provider PHI).

US-DOCSM ISSI8844.4



g. Access to Provider PHI. Vendor will make Provider PHI it maintains in Designated
Record Sets available to Provider for inspection and copying upon request by Provider in
a manner that enables Provider to fulfill its obligations under 45 C.F.R. § 164.524,
however. Vendor is not required to provide such access where the Provider PHI contained
in a Designated Record Set is duplicative of the Provider PHI contained in a Designated
Record Set possessed by Provider. If any Individual asks to inspect or access his or her
Provider PHI directly from Vendor, Vendor will notify Provider in writing of the request.
Any approval or denial of an Individual's request to access or inspect his or her Provider
PHI is the responsibility of Provider.

h. Amendment ofProvider PHI. Upon request from Provider for an amendment to Provider
PHI that is maintained in a Designated Record Set by Vendor, Vendor will make the
Provider PHI available to Provider for amendment in such a manner so as to enable

Provider to fulfill its obligations under 45 C.F.R. § 164.526. If any Individual requests an
amendment of Provider PHI directly from Vendor, Vendor will notify Provider in writing
of the request. Any approval or denial of an amendment of Provider PHI is the
responsibility of Provider.

i. Accounting Rights. Vendor will maintain a record of all disclosures of Provider PHI that
Vendor makes, if Provider would be required to provide an accounting to an Individual of
such Disclosures under 45 C.F.R. § 164.528. Upon request by Provider for an accounting
of disclosures of Provider PHI, Vendor will make available to Provider all information
related to disclosures by Vendor and its Subcontractors necessary for Provider to fulfill its
obligations under 45 C.F.R. § 164.528. The information collected and maintained will
include: (i) the date of disclosure; (ii) the name of the person who received the Provider
PHI and, if known, the address of the person; (iii) a brief description of Provider PHI
disclosed; and (iv) a brief statement of purpose of the disclosure that reasonably informs
the Individualof the basis for the disclosure,or a copy of the Individual's authorization,or
a copy of the written request for disclosure. In the event that the request for an accounting
is delivered directly to Vendor, Vendor will forward it to Provider in writing. It is
Provider's responsibilityto prepareand deliverany such accountingrequested, and Vendor
will not provide an accounting directly to an Individual.

j. Delegations of Obligations. To the extent that Vendor contracts with Provider to carry
out Provider's obligations under the Privacy Rule, Vendor shall comply with the
requirements of the Privacy Rule that apply to Provider in the performance of such
obligations.

k. Access to Records. Vendor will makeits internal practices, booksand records relating to
the use and disclosure of Provider PHI available to the Secretary for purposes of
determining Provider's and Vendor's compliance with the Privacy Rule and this BAA.

1. Minimum Necessary. Provider and Vendor will work together to ensure that only the
minimum amount of Provider PHInecessary toaccomplish thepurpose of theServices will
be disclosed by Provider to Vendor. The Parties understand and agree that the definition

US-DOCS\IISSI8844.4



of "minimum necessary" is in flux, and they will keep themselves informed of guidance
issued by the Secretary with respect to what constitutes "minimum necessary."

3. Term and Termination.

a. Term. The Term of this BAA is concurrent with that of the Underlying Agreement.

b. Material Breach of Provisions Applicable to Provider PHI. Any other provision of the
UnderlyingAgreementnotwithstanding, the UnderlyingAgreement and this BAA may be
terminated by a party (the "Non-Breaching Party") upon thirty (30) days written notice
to the other party (the "Breaching Party") in the event that the Breaching Party materially
breaches any provision in this BAA applicable to Provider PHI in any material respect and
such breach is not cured within such thirty (30) day period.

c. Effect of Termination. Upon termination of this BAA for any reason. Vendor will return
or destroy all Provider PHI that Vendor still maintains, and will not retain any copies of
such Provider PHI. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Vendor determines that returning or
destroying such Provider PHI is infeasible. Vendor will continue to extend the protections
of this BAA to such information and limit further use of such Provider PHI to those

purposes that make the return or destruction of such Provider PHI infeasible. Vendor will
be responsible for returning or destroying any Provider PHI in the possession of its
Subcontractors consistent with the requirements of this Section related to return and
destruction of Provider PHI.

4. Amendment to Comply with Law. The parties acknowledge that state and federal laws
relating to data security and privacy are rapidly evolving and that amendment of this BAA may
be required to provide for procedures to ensure compliance with such developments. The
parties specifically agree to take such action as is necessary to implement the standards and
requirements of HIPAA, the HIPAA Regulations and other applicable laws relating to the
security or confidentiality of Provider PHI. Upon the request of either party, the other party
agrees to promptly enter into negotiations concerning the terms of an amendment to this BAA
embodying written assurances consistent with the standards and requirements of HIPAA, the
HEPAA Regulations or other applicable laws.

5. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Nothing express or implied in this BAA is intended to confer,
nor shall anything herein confer, upon any person other than Provider, Vendor and their
respective successors or assigns, any rights, remedies, obligations or liabilities whatsoever.

6. Interpretation. The provisions of this BAA prevail over any provisions in the Underlying
Agreement that may conflict or appear inconsistent with any provision in this BAA, provided
that any terms in the UnderlyingAgreementthat may providegreater protections to the privacy
and security of Provider PHI than are set forth in this BAA govern. This BAA and the
Underlying Agreement shall be interpreted as broadly as necessary to implement and comply
with HIPAA and the HIPAA Regulations. The parties agree that any ambiguity in this BAA
will be resolved in favor of a meaning that complies and is consistent with HIPAA and the
HIPAA Regulations.

US-DOCS\l 15518844.4



7. Survival. The rights and obligation under Sections 2.i. and 3.c. expressly survive termination of this
BAA.

INWITNESS WHEREOF, theparties hereto havedulyexecuted thisBAAas of theBAAEffective
Date.

PROVIDER VENDOR

By: By:
Print Name: Print Name:
Title: Title:

US-DOCS\II.'>.'>l8844.4



US-D0CS\115518844.4

Schedule 1.1

HOSPITAL OFERATIONS



Schedule S-Sfa)

GOVERNMENT PROGRAM FARTiaPATION

• Medicare certification is not in good standing as described by the Jeopardy
Circumstances

US-D0CS\115518844.4



Schedule S.Sfc)

COMPLIANCE WITH HEALTHCARE LAWS

»Medicare certification is not in good standing as described by the Jeopardy
Circumstances

US-D0CS\115518844.4



MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

BOARD OF DIREaORS

REGULAR MEETING

THURSDAY, APRIL 30,2020

6:00 p.m. Open Session

MENDOCINO COAST DISTRICT HOSPITAL

Meeting via Teleconference
Dial in Number:

877-573-1973

Passcode 9614637#

Mendocino Coast District Hospital Mission Statement
MISSION

To make a positive difference in the health of our rural community.

VISION

MCDH will play a vital role in the overall health and well-being of the community, and will be the key element in
the healthcare system serving the needs of our community. We will provide leadership to enhance the efficiency,
coordination, quality and range of services provided within our rural healthcare system.

MCDH will be the healthcare provider and employer of choice within our community. We will continually address
and keep up with technology and superior clinical skills

We will have a positive impact on health by encouraging personal and community responsibility for health and
wellness. Our efforts will play a decisive role in people choosing to stay in our community or to locate here.

VALUES

MCDH is committed to providing excellent quality, patient centered, cost effective health care in a caring, safe
and professional environment, and serving the communit/s healthcare needs with current technology and
superior clinicalskills.We believe in the right to local access to a wide range of excellent quality healthcare
services in our rural community. We promote patient safety and satisfaction, and consistently work toward a high
level of care with results in our patients recommending us to others and in their returning to us for needed health
care.

Every member of our healthcare team willplay an active, participative role that effectively utilizes the skills and
talents of each. People are our most valuable resource. We encourage professionaldevelopment that will
achieve a levelof competence and morale that will attract and maintain the highest quality staff. We strive to
build partnership with our employees emphasizing mutual respect and mutual success.

OPEN SESSION: MS. JESSICA GRINBERG. PRESIDENT

I. ROLLCAU

II. PUBUC COMMENTS

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board of Directorson any matter
over which the District has jurisdiction. You may state your name and address for the record. Time is limited
to 3 minutes with a 20-minute total time limit for all comments. The Board of Directors can take no action on
your presentation, but can seek clarification to points made in your presentation or comments.



BROWNACTREQUIREMENTS: Pursuant to the Brown Act, the Board of Directors cannot discuss issues or take
action on any requests during this comment period.

III. REVIEW OF THE AGENDA Action

IV. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR Action

The following items are considered routine and non-controversial by Hospital Staff. Consent items may be
approved by one motion if no member of the Board or audience wishes to comment or ask questions. If
comment or discussion is desired, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered
under new business

1. Approval of Special Board of Directors meeting minutes of April 19,2020 Tab 1

V. NEW BUSINESS

1. ACTION/INFORMATION: INTERIM MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT Tab 2

MR. CRA1G CANNIZZO, ATTORNEY

HOOPERLUNDV AND BOOKMAN MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT,

A Local Health Care District of the State of California

("District")

AND

ADVENTIST HEALTH MENDOCINO COAST,

A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation
("Manager")

AND

STONE POINT HEALTH,

California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation
("Stone Point Health")

2. ACTION/DISCUSSION: MOTION TO APPROVE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

(JASON WELLS) FOR MENDOCINO COAST DISTRICT HOSPITAL:

MS. JESSICA GRINBERG. PRESIDENT

VI. REPORTS

> INFORMATION: CEO Report: Mr. Wayne Allen, Interim CEO

> ACTION: Medical Staff Report: Dr. William Miller Chief of Staff Tab 3
A. Appointments to Medical Staff-Provisional Status

1. Shah Khan, MD-Department of Medicine-Emergency Medicine
2. Russell Wong, MD-Department of Medicine-Hospitalist Medicine

B. Temporary Privileges (As we await Board Meeting)

1. Shah Khan, MD -Department of Medicine-Emergency Medicine {April ii-Aprii so, 2020)
2. Russell Wong, MD-Department of Medicine-Hospitalist Medicine (Mar 4-Mar 27,2020 &Apr 12-15,2020)

C. Voluntary Relinouishine of Privileges

1. Brent Wright, MD-Department ofSurgery-Obstetrics Privileges effective 03/28/20

> ACTION: Finance Committee Report: Mr.John Redding Tab4

VII. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: MS. JESSICA GRINBERG. PRESIDENT information
• Action Item List



VIII. ASSOCIATION AND COMMUNITY SERVICE REPORTS tnformatlon

IX. Public Comments

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board of Directors on any matter
over which the District has jurisdiction. You maystate your name and address for the record. Time is limited
to 3 minutes with a 20-minute total time limit for all comments. The Board of Directors can take no action on

your presentation, but can seek ciarification to points made in your presentation or comments.

BROWN ACT REQUIREMENTS: Pursuant to the Brown Act, the council cannot discuss issues or take action on
any requests during this comment period.

X. ADJOURNMENT

• THIS DOCUMENT WILL BE PROVIDED AT THE MEETING.

Ail disabled persons requesting disabiiity related modifications or accommodations, including auxiliaryaids or
service may make such request in order to participate in a public meeting to Gayl Moon, Secretary to the
Board of Directors, 700 River Drive, Fort Bragg, CA 95437, no later than 72 hours prior to the meeting that
such matter be included on that month's agenda.
*Per District Resolution, each member of the Public who wishes to speak shall be limited to three minutes
each per agenda item. Please identify yourself prior to speaking. Thank you.



1



MENDOCINO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SPECIAL SESSION

MINUTES

SUNDAY, APRIL 19,2020

FORT BRAGG, CA 95437

MEETING VIA TELECONFERENCE

The Board of Directors of the Mendocino Coast Health Care District met in CLOSED session at 1:00 pm
via Teleconference, Jessica Grinberg, Chair presiding

PRESENT: Mr. Redding, Ms. McColley, Mr. Lund, Ms. Arnold, Ms. Grinberg
Absent: None

Mr. Wayne Allen, Interim CEO

I. CALL TO ORDER;

OPEN Session of the Board of Directors of the Mendocino Coast Health Care District convened at

1:00 p.m. via Teleconference, Ms. Jessica Grinberg, President presiding

II. ROLL CALL VIA TELECONFERENCE:

PRESENT: Ms. Jessica Grinberg, Ms. Amy McColley, Mr. John Redding, Ms. Karen Arnold, Mr. Steve Lund
Board Members

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: None

ALSO PRESENT:

Mr. Wayne Allen, Interim CEO

III. COMMENTS FROM THE COMMUNITY

• A community member urged the Board to approve the Adventist Health Lease and Transfer
Agreements.

• Carole White, a community member had concerns regarding:
The amount of funds set aside for expectant mothers in need being $25,000 and not $200,000.
Wanted to know the results of the Ellen Hardin case agreement.

^ Wanted to know what is happening with the revenue generated by the Hospice ThriftStore.
Concerned about the cash flow.

She tendered her resignation from the Planning Committee.

IV. ACTION:APPROVALOF CONSENTCALENDAR: MS. JESSICA GRINBERG, PRESIDENT
• Minutes: Regular Session February 27,2020

MOTION:To approve the February 27,2020 minutes
• Lund moved

• Arnold second

• Roll Call

> Ayes: Arnold, Grinberg, Lund, Redding
> Noes: None

> Abstain: McColley
> Absent: None

• Motion carried



MOTION:To approve the April 6,2020 Board minutes
• McColley moved
• Lund second

- Roll Call

> Ayes: Arnold, Grinberg, Redding, McColley, Lund
> Noes: None

> Abstain: None

> Absent: None

• Motion carried

V. ACTION/INFORMATION: LEASE

BETWEEN

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT,AS LANDLORD
AND

ADVENTIST HEALTH MENDOCINO COAST, AS TENANT

" Mr. Cralg Cannlzzo, Attorney Hooper, Lundy & Bookman presented the Lease Agreement.
Following are some changes that the Board request at the April 6 Board meeting:
> Section 3.2-Payment

^ The rent will be paid in two (2) six (6) month Installments; at the beginning and mid-way
throughout each year of the term.

> Section 5.1-Permitted Use

^ The tenant shall provide emergency services throughout the thirty (30) year term of the
lease.

> Section 7.1-Obligation to Maintain
^ Relterated/Reclarlfled that the expenditure fund contribution of the District for

Improvement of the facility will have to comply with Measure C. The following sentence
has been added:

❖ Prior to undertaking any project described In the Improvements Schedule, Tenant
will provide the Improvements Schedule to Landlord so that Landlord can determine
whether the expenditures comply with Measure C.

^ Another clarification was that this contribution shall be made In two (2) annual
Installments each year.

> Section 7.2-Restricted Capital Fund
^ The most significant aspect of this change Isthe labeling. It Is no longer called the Seismic

Fund; It Is called a Restrained Restricted Capital Fund. The reason for this change is:
1) to achieve seismic compliance of the Improvements as mandated by state and federal

Laws ("Seismic Compliance")
2) upon mutual agreement with Tenant, for (I) the development or modernization of

Hospital outpatient facilities or (11) the development or modernization of Inpatient
facilities

> Section 15.4-Special Operating Covenant
^ The first sentence now makes clear that they must maintain a designation as a Critical

Access Hospital under the CMS Program.
> Section IS.S-Tenant's Purchase Option

^ The significance of this change Is, at the request of the Tenant, there Isan option. It was
always a purchase option for the Hospital,and it now potentially Includes the vacant land
parcels that the Districtowns. Those vacant land parcels are subject to the surplus
property requirements of the District that otherwise be obligated to follow, and



therefore the purchase option only becomes operative if the surpius property iaws are
otherwise complied with.

> Section 15.5.7-lmprovements Fund and Restricted Capital Fund
^ The last sentence that was previously inserted in which the seismic funds would follow

the property acquired by the Adventist pursuant to the purchase option. That sentence
has been deleted as it no longer follows the property into the hands of the purchasing
Tenant.

> Section 19.2.2.1-Restricted Capital Fund
v' This is just labeling changes, converting the reference from seismic funds to Restricted

Capital Funds.
> Exhibit A-Land Description

^ This is a list of the premises being subject to the lease. This clarifiesthat ail of the
buildings that are currently being operated by the District are part of the transfer;
however the NCFHC and the Hospice Thrift Store are leased and will not be part of the
transfer.

> Exhibit E-Purchase Option Parcels
^ This is a reflection of the addition of the vacant land as something that could be

theoretically subject to the purchase option.
> Exhibit D-Restricted Capital Fund Funding Schedule

^ This has been tweaked Pursuant to discussions between Mr. Allen and Mr. Beehler to

accommodate several realities:

• The current cash flow impact due to the Corona Virus, and also a more realistic
assessment of the District's cash flow anticipated schedule.

• Discussion ensued.

> Mr. Redding requested the agreement be amended to include an audit and some reports for
the Improvement Fund which Adventist Health will be managing.

> Mr. Cannizzo proposed a sentence be inserted into Section 7.1. If the sentence is
satisfactory, the condition of approval to be based on Board approval of the Resolution. The
sentence reads as follows:

"Tenant shall provide an accounting annually to Landlord of Measure C Funds for the
purpose of the Oversight Committee's retrospective review and validation on the use of
Measure C Funds."

Mr. Lund requested that language be added to the sentence to reflect that the annual
report encompass the entire $2,000,000 amount. Mr. Cannizzo recommended removing the
reference to Measure Cfunds and Just state Adventist Health provide an accounting of the
entire amount. Mr. Cannizzo will change the sentence to read:
"Tenant shall provide an accounting annually to Landlord of the use of the Improvement
Fund for the purpose of, among other things allowing the District to determine compliance
with Measure C."

• The District Board will have their meetings in the Neva Cannon Room after the affiliation takes
place.

MOTION: To approve the Lease as presented between the Mendocino Coast Healthcare District as
Landlord and Adventist Health Mendocino Coast as Tenant with the suggestions and modifications
that have been discussed with the understanding any further documentation that is required that is
substantive or administerial will result in an additional Special Board Meeting
• Lund moved

• Arnold second



" Ms. McColleywas concerned that some of the resolutions and exhibits are incomplete.
• Mr. Redding suggested Mr. Lund amend his motion to Include that the Board instruct Mr. Allen

and the attorneys to complete the documents faithfully in accordance with their understanding
of the deal.

• Mr. Cannizzostated that Mr. Lundwill be the one helping to make a final decision that the
documents have been completed in a correct manner. Aformer resolution empowers Board
Officers to supervise and implement the Board's resolution by ensuring that any further
documentation in the form of these other schedules or any other changes are non-substantive
and not ministerial. Mr. Cannizzo assured the Board that if they choose to approve this in its
current form, it will be the current form, and any other things that are added into the innocuous
schedules will only be signed if the Board Officers conclude they are not worthy of convening
another Board meeting. The changes will be sent to the Board, and if any Board member feels it
warrants another meeting, their input will be honored.

• Roll call

> Ayes: Redding, McColley, Lund, Arnold, Grinberg
> Noes: None

> Abstain: None

> Absent: None

• Motion carried

VI. INFORMATION/ACTION:

TRANSFER OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS AGREEMENT

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT,

A Local Health Care District of the State of California

("District")

AND

ADVENTIST HEALTH MENDOCINO COAST,
A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation

("AH Mendocino")

AND

STONE POINT HEALTH,
A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation

("Stone Point Health")

• Mr. Ben Durie, Attorney Hooper, Lundy & Bookman presented the Transfer of Business
operations Agreement.

> Mr. Durie stated that there isa provision in the TransferAgreement that states the
District will clearly retain any money that relates in period In time prior to May
including any monies related to COVID 19 to the extent that they were provided
before that date.

> Article 6-Representations and Warranties of District
^ In paragraph one (1) the Controllerand the ChiefHuman ResourcesOfficer have been

added in order to round out the representation. This represents to the Adventists that
those certain facts are true of the individuals named in this Article.

> Article 10-Post-Closing Covenants
Some language has been added in Section 10.11 which clarifies that for a reasonable
period of time following the closingof this transaction following May 1, the District



will be able to purchase certain transition services from AH in order for the District to
complete ordinary tasks that it needs to do in order to rack up its business with
respect to the operation of the Hospital priorto May l".

^ Section 3.2 addresses the purchase of certain personal property that the Adventists
purchase not using the Improvement Fund during the term of the lease.
Ms. McColley noted that on page 10 the purchase price is omitted. Mr. Durie stated
that it is the value of the prepaid and the inventory currently held by the Hospital, and
then it is offset bythe PTO. The Pharmacy inventorywas just done three (3)days ago
and it is at the invoice price of what the Hospital paid for the drugs, so it is FairMarket
Value. The PTO will probably be around $1 million,and the inventory will be
approximately $1 million. Ms. McCoiley also noted that schedule of excluded
employees and their positions are blank. These decisions are usually made within a
few days of the close of the transaction. Ms. McCoiiey asked about the changes to
operations. The District is leaving this decision to Adventist Health.
Mr. Redding asked that when the State of California declares a state of emergency,
like we are currently under, are certain aspects of the Labor Lawsrelaxed that would
allow workers to be laid off? He stated that he was just wondering. The employees
will transitionto Adventist Health on May 1^.

MOTION:To approve Transfer of Business Operations Agreement with Adventist Health Mendocino
Coast, ACalifornia Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation ("AH Mendocino") and Stone Point Health,
A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation ("Stone Point Health")
• McColley moved
• Redding second
" Roil Call

> Ayes: Lund, Redding, Arnold, Grinberg, McColley
> Noes: None

> Absent: None

> Abstain: None

• Motion carried

VII. ACTION/INFORMATION: BOARD RESOLUTION NO. 2020-01: AUTHORIZING DISTRICT OFFICERS TO

ENTER INTO LEASE AND TRANSFER OF BUSINESS OPERATIONSAGREEMENT (ItemsSand 6)

MOTION: To approve Board Resolution #2020-01; which is a Resolution of the Mendocino Coast
Health Care District Board of Directors Approving Hospital Lease and Related Transaction
Documents

• Lund moved

• McColley second
• Roll Call

> Ayes: Grinberg, Lund, McColley, Redding, Arnold
> Noes: None

> Absent: None

> Abstain: None

• Motion carried

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENTS

• There were no public comments

IX. COMMENTS FROM BOARD OF DIRECTORS



" Ms. McColley thanked Ms. Grinberg for running an efficient meeting. She is looking forward to
collaborating with Stone Point Health and Adventist Health.

• Mr. Redding thanked everyone for all their hard work negotiating these agreements and
bringing them to fruition.

• Mr. Lund thanked everyone, including the Board for all the efforts that have gone into
negotiating and approving these agreements.

• Ms. Arnold thanked Ms. Grinberg for doing a fabulous job facilitating today's meeting.
• Ms. Grinberg thanked everyone for their hard work.

Xili. ADJOURN:

• The meeting adjourned at 3:25 pm

Karen Arnold, Secretary Gayl Moon, Secretary to the
Board of Directors Board of Directors



2



US-DOCS\l 15518844.4

INTERIM MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT,
A Local Health Care District of the State of California

("District")

AND

ADVENUST HEALTH MENDOCINO COAST,
A California NonproHt Public Benefit Corporation

("Manager")

AND

STONE POINT HEALTH,
A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation

("Stone Point Health")

mim



4/27/20

INTERIM MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS INTERIM MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT ("Agreement")
isentered into as ofMay 1,2020 (the "Execution Date"), byand between MENDOCINO
COASTHEALTH CAREDISTRICT, a localhealthcaredistrictof the Stateof California
("District"), on the one hand, and ADVENTIST HEALTH MENDOCINO COAST, aCalifornia
nonprofit public benefit corporation ("AH Mendocino") and STONE POINT HEALTH, a
California nonprofit public benefit corporation ("Stone Point Health" and together with AH
Mendocino, "Manager"). District and Manager aresometimes referred to in this Agreement as
a "Party" or, collectively, as the "Parties."

RECITALS

A. District is the ownerof a critical access hospital located in Fort Bragg,California,
known as MendocinoCoast District Hospital (the "Hospital").

B. StonePointHealth, a California nonprofit public benefitcorporation andaffiliate
ofAdventist Health System/West, a California nonprofit religious corporation, is the sole
corporate member of AHMendocino.

C. AH Mendocino is a newly incorporated affiliate of Stone Point Health, formed for
the purpose ofbecoming the successor operator ofthe Hospital, to effect the continued delivery
of health care for the benefit of communities served by the District.

D. Concurrent with this Agreement and inaccordance with Section 32121(p) of the
California Health and Safety Code, District and Manager are negotiating a certain Lease
("Lease") and aTransfer ofBusiness Operations Agreement ("OTA"), pursuant to which AH
Mendocino shall lease real and personal property utilized in the Hospital's operation and certain
assets, including contracts, inventory, intangible property and District employees, shall transfer
to AHMendocino, for AH Mendocino's operation of the Hospital effective upon the Lease
commencement. Pursuant to terms of this Agreement, the Lease and the OTA, AH Mendocino
shall submit a change ofownership ("CHOW") application package toCDPH and toother
regulatory agencies, including but not limited to the California Board ofPharmacy, CMS and the
California Department ofHealth Care Services ("DHCS"), toeffect a change in licensed
operator of the Hospital from District to Manager (each an "Application"). The Lease shall
commence upon AH Mendocino's receipt ofall necessary Applications approvals and other
closing conditions as agreed upon by the Parties in the OTA, where such commencement date is
further defined in the Lease ("Lease Commencement Date").

E. From the Effective Date of this Agreement (as defined in Section 7.1) until the
LeaseCommencement Date (the"Transition Period"), the Parties desirefor Manager to
provide District with certain management and administrative services in support of the District's
operation ofthe Hospital as identified in this Agreement. District and Manager believe that
Manager's provision ofthe services identified in this Agreement will enhance District's ability to
provide high quality, efficient health care services to the community served by the Hospital
during the Transition Period.



4/27/20

. the context inwhich this Agreement isentered into, the
Parties acknowledge the following:

(i) On January 31,2020, the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and
f ®Public Health Emergency in response to the recent outbreakot the 2019 Novel Coronavirus world-wide pandemic ("COVID-19 Emergency").

Subsequently on March 4,2020, the Governor of the State of California ("Governor")
declared aState ofEmergency in an effort to make additional resources available and
formalize emergency actions across multiple state agencies and departments in response
to the COVID-19 Emergency in Califomia. Various Federal and State guidance has been
issued as aresult of the COVID-19 Emergency, including the March 18,2020
recommendation from the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services ("CMS") to limit
all non-essential planned surgeries and procedures ("CMS Elective Procedure
Guidance ), and other State policies pertaining to health care providers issued through
the Govemor's Executive Orders, including but not limited to Executive Order 39-20
issued on March 30,2020 ("Executive Ordere"). New guidance and policies relevant to

fecihties continue to be issued in response to changing circumstances of the
COVID-19 Emergency, including the April 22,2020 authorization from the Governor
that certain non-emergency surgeries may resume in California hospitals (collectivelv
wiA the COVID-19 Emergency, CMS Elective Procedure Guidance and Executive
Orders, the "COVID Pandemic Circumstances").

February 4,2020, the Califomia Department ofPublic Health
•j CMS, completed acomplaint validation survey during which itIdentified an immediate jeopardy ("U") finding due to Hospital's violation of the
infection control condition of participation under 42 CFR s482.42. The Dwas abated
prior to survey completion, but the Hospital's Medicare certification remains on a90-day
tenmnation track, subject to termination on May 4,2020, unless District is able to submit
an acceptable plan ofcorrection (the "POC") to CMS and obtain subsequent verification

through arecertification survey ("Recertification Survey") conducted by
CDPH. District submitted the POC to CMS on March 31,2020, and submitted an
fended POC on Apnl _, 2020 in response to CMS requested revisions. To date,
Distoct has not received confirmation that the POC, as amended, has been accepted and
the Recertification Survey remains outstanding. As of[DATE], CMS and CDPH has
provided [written] assurances that the Recertification Survey will occur after May 4
2020 as aresult of the COVID Pandemic Circumstances and the Hospital's Medicare
wrtification will not be terminated as aresult of the Recertification Survey delay.
Hereinafter, the foregoing events described in this Recital F(ii) shall be referred to
collectively asthe"Jeopardy Circumstances".

AGREEMENT

THE PARTIES AGREEASFOLLOWS:

ARTICLE I.
DUTIES OF MANAGER



4/27/20

1.1 Management Subject to those duties that shall remain the responsibility of
District as set forth in Article H, Manager shall provide day-to-day management and operation
services for the Hospital and certain ancillary services operated by the District as described on
Schedule 1.1 (collectively, "Hospital Operations"), assuming and discharging all usual and
customary responsibilities, duties and obligations in connection with operating and naain^taimng
the Hospital Operations in full compliance with all regulations and standards required of a
general acute care hospital so licensed, including providing the items and services descnbed in
this Article I(collectively, the "Management Services"), and shall do so in afiscally
responsible manner seeking to provide high-quality services to the community. Manager shall
have the exclusive authority to perform these functions, subject to District's ultimate authority
and control over the professional, administrative and other operations of the Hospital OperaUons
as required under applicable conditions ofparticipation (42 C.F.R. 482), California Health &
Safety Code Section 1250 et seq., and regulations thereunder.

1.2 Manappment Team. Manager shall employ a management team,
including certain senior management personnel for Hospital as deemed necessary by
Manager, including Jason Wells as ChiefExecutive Officer and Linda Givens as Chief^
Nursing Officer who shall be approved by the District's board of directors (the Board ),
to carry out Manager's duties under this Agreement. The management team shall consist
of asufficient number ofindividuals as determined by Manager and each team member
will possess the skill and experience necessary to perform the functions and duties
required of Manager under Ais Agreement. Manager shall also ensure that an
appropriate level senior management personnel is physically present on-site at Hospital
as necessary forHospital Operations.

13 SuDervision of Personnel. Manager shall manage and supervise any and all
Hospital employed or contracted personnel ("Personnel"), in compliance with all applicable
federal, state and local laws and ordinances, rules, regulations and orders. Manager shall analjje
Hospital's workforce and provide District arecommended staffing plM that would comply with
all staffing requirements and all related obligations under California licensure, accreditation and
certification and payor participation standards.

1.4 Medical Manager shall cooperate with the leadership of the medical staff
of the Hospital (the "Medical Staff') and shall advise and assist the Medical Staff^d the Board
in functioning in the manner provided by the standards and guidelines on accreditation
promulgated by The Joint Commission ("The Joint Commission") and in accordance with the
Medical Staff bylaws. Matters with respect to professional competency of medical personnel
shall be determined by the officers of the Medical Staff with the assistance of Ae appropriate
Hospital or Medical Staff committees. Manager shall assist the Medical Staff in reviewing the
Medical Staff bylaws, as modified from time to time, and shall advise the Medical Staff
regarding procedural matters, but medical, ethical and profession^ matters shall be the
responsibility of District, including control of and questions relating to the composition,
qualifications and responsibilities of the Medical Staff.

1.5 Revenue Cvcle Management.



4127/20

Manager shall oversee the billing and collection ofcharges for all services
provided as of the Hospital Operations in accordance with charge schedules and collection
policies established and approved by District and in amanner that is in compliance with
Di^nct scharity care policy. Manager shall be entiUed to obtain on behalf of and at the expense

assistance ofone or more collection agencies, including, without limitation,
affiliates of Manager.

f 11 u • 1 Manager shall undertake, manage, and administer: (i) the timely paymentot all Hospital Operations expenses, invoices, accounts payable and other obligations of District
related to the Hospital Operations; (ii) the timely bUling of fees for all services, goods and other
ite^ provided as part of the Hospital Operations; and (Hi) the collection of accounts receivable
pertaining to Hospital Operations services and items. Manager shall carry out District's written
irectives and exercise reasonable care in managing the accounts and available cash of District

• certificates ofdeposit and other investments with one ormore financialinstitutions. Manager shall take such actions on behalf ofDistrict and under District's provider
numbers, including, without limitation. District's provider numbers issued by Medicare, Medi
cal or their fiscal intermediaries or paying agents (the "Government Programs").

(c) District hereby appoints Manager as its agent for purposes of billing and
collecting District saccounts receivable and District hereby agrees to execute any and all
documents reasonably necessary to memorialize such appointments. District further appoints
Meager to be its tine and lawful attomey-in-fact during the term of this Agreement for purposes
of (1) billrng and collecting in the name of District, and (ii) receiving, taking possession of and
endorsing mthe name ofDistnct any notes, checks, money orders, insurance payments and other

received mpayment of accounts receivable of District. District agrees to cooperate
with Manager, and to execute such documents and take such other actions as may be reasonably
necessary or desirable, mconnection with the efficient day-to-day billing and collection of the
fees and charges of District, including, without Umitation, the addition of Manager and its
designated agents as authorized signatories on District's bank accounts, and granting Manager
the nght to m^e withdrawals from such bank accounts when and as required to pay expenses
pertaining to Hospital operations.

(d) In connection with its administration, management and payment of all
District expenses and accounts payable. Manager shall have full and complete authority to draw
by check or other means, all available amounts in District's bank accounts to cover the payment'
P ^ Notwithstanding the foregoing, all expenditures of [Two Hundred andifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000)] or more shall require the approval of the District's Board.

It is specifically agreed and understood that Manager's ability to make payments to third
partly under ftis Agreement, including to affiliates, Is subject to availability of funds.
Nothingcontained herein shall obligate Manager to make any such payments from its own
funds orresources orto advance any ofits own monies whatsoever to District Unless
otherwise specifically agreed to in writing by Manager, Manager shall not be liable either
primarily or as guarantor for debts of District

1*^ Finance and Accounting-



4/27/20

(a) Accounting. Manager shall oversee District's accounting system and shall
prepare monthly, quarterly and annual balance sheets and statements of income and loss, actual
performance to budgets, and bookkeeping, as well as such other reports as may be reasonably
requested by District. The selection of, and any fees charged by, the independent auditors for
Districtshallbe the responsibility of District.

(5) Expenditures and Contracts. Manager shall manage District's existing
vendor agreements for supplies, goods and services that are currently in place for the operatmn
of Hospital. Manager shall not negotiate, enter into or terminate contracts for supplies, goods
and services on behalf of District that results in or reasonably could result in [Two Hundred and
Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000)] or greater in annual expenditures by, or revenues to.
Hospital (each a"Material Contract") without the prior approval of the Board. For all non-
Material Contracts that Manager determines are reasonably necessary for the operation of the
Hospital in accordance with this Agreement, Manager shall have the right to negotiate, enter into
and terminate such contracts without the Board's prior approval, provided that Manager shall
provide information to the Board related to such contracts upon request. Manager must receive
approval from the Board for all capital plan items. Manager agrees to implement those Hospital
projects approved by District's Board that are in process as of the Effective Date.

(c) Business Records. Manager shall prepare and maintain all business
records relating to the Hospital Operations, including, without limitation, financial and
operational records and such other books and records customarily prepared and/or maintained by
or with respect to ageneral acute care hospital (collectively, "Business Records"). Manager-
shall manage all Business Records in compliance with all applicable law and shall make such
Business Records readily accessible to District.

1.7 Licensing: Accreditation.

(a) The Parties acknowledge that Manager shall recommend and
oversee all steps required to keep the Hospital fully licensed and certified for
participation in Government Programs and other third party payor pro^ams, and duly
accredited by The Joint Commission and such state or other agencies, if applicable, and
District shall cooperate fully in said endeavors including providing Manager access to
previous licensure and certification processes and work product of the Hospital, including
those involving third party professionals. Manager shall notify District immediately if
Manager receives any written notice or communication from aGovernmental Authority
relating to revocation or threat of revocation of District sparticipation in any
Government Program. Manager shall participate in any and all actions necessary,
including survey preparation, so that HospM is prepared to pass the forthcoming
Recertification Survey necessary to restore its Medicare certification to good standing;provided, however, that nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to be a
representation, or warranty of Manager regarding the ultimate outcome of the
Recertification Survey; and Manager shall have no liability whatsoever resulting
from any failure of Hospital to pass the forthcoming Recertification Survey.

1.8 romorate Services. If deemed necessary by Manager, Manager shall provide as
part of the Management Services the administrative and corporate services that are necessary



an^or appropriate for Hospital Operations and that wUl provide an incremental benefit towards
achieving improvement in Hospital Operations, as determined by Manager, during the Transition
Period (the "Corporate Services").

Utilities and Supplies. Manager shall oversee the ordering of all utilities,
services, materials and supplies, consumable goods, and other items reasonably required in the
proper day-to-day operations of the Hospital Operations, as required by all laws, regulations,
certifications and payer requirements. Manager, on behalf of District, shall also arrange and
manage the acquisition of all pharmaceutical items for the Hospital Operations, to the extent
flowed by law, and in amanner that recognizes that District's existing contractual commitments
limiting the scope ofManager's activities with respect to pharmaceutical items and services.

. District Access; Manager Liaison with Distrirt. T^Wtrirt ch.ii of .iiduring the Transition Period have full and unrestricted access to the Hospital Operations,
including all of its facilities, personnel, accounts. Business Records, contracts and otheiwise, as
the owner and operator of the Hospital Operations and in furtherance of District's discharge of
Its duties thereby. Manager shall facilitate such access by the Board and its representatives.
Manager also shall use its reasonable best efforts to ensure its attendance, through Manager's
representatives, at all meetings of the Board during the Transition Period, and provide reports or
presentations to the Board with respect to Hospital Operations on at least amonthly basis.

Infonnation Svstem.s. Manager shall not change any application
applicable to District's current information system or information technology during the
Transition Period without District's consent.

1*12 Government Reporting Remrirftmpn*

TT . shall oversee the preparation and timely filing ofall reports forHospital Operations required by any Governmental Authority, provided that such filing shall be
provided to Distnct for review and comment at least ten (10) days prior to its filing, unless
waived by Distnct. Manager agrees that it will keep, and will make available upon written
request to the Secreta^ ofHealth and Human Services, or upon request, to the Comptroller
General or any of their duly authorized representatives the contract and books, documents and
records necessary to comply with the provisions of Section 1861(v)(l)(I) of the Social Security
Act, which are mthe possession of Manager, until the expiration of four (4) years after the
furnishing of services pursuant to this Agreement, subject to applicable privileges and
immuniues. This provision shall continue to be effective between the Parties notwithstanding
the termination or rescission of all or part of the remainder of this Agreement.

(c) If Manager carries out any of the duties under this Agreement through a
subcontract with avalue or cost of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) or more over atwelve
(12) month penod with a related organization, such subcontract shall contain aclause which is
identical to paragraph lJ2(a)ofthis Section, but for the name ofthe subcontractor

Manager's Right toSubcontract; Limitations onManager's Duties.
Manager may subcontract with other persons or entities for any of the services that
Manager is required to perform under this Agreement. Except as set forth herein and



4/27/20

absent aspecific written agreement to the contrary, the Management Services shall not
include audit services oroutside counsel legal services. In consultation with Manager,
District may enter into consulting services agreements it deems necessary to carry out its
ongoing duties and responsibilities with respect to the Hospital.

j j4 Provision ofManagement Services. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary
contained herein. Manager shall have the right to determine the specific method and tiimng of
the provision of the Management Services in amanner that is consistent with its comimtoents
contained in this Agreement. Manager shall not be deemed to be in breach of its obliptions
under this Agreement as aresult of any failure or alleged failure to provide the described
Management Services herein in aparticular manner; provided that any decision regarding the
manner of the provision of the Management Services is made in good faith and is in the best
interest of the Hospital.

ARTICLE n.

DUTIES OF OWNER

2.1 District*s Board: Role andResponsibilities. Without limiting (a) the
responsibility of District and its Board concerning establishment of the mission and vision
of the Hospital Operations and determination ofappropriate strategic goals, objectives and
relationships for the Hospital Operations, or (b) the duties of the Board as prescribed under
applicable conditions of participation (42 C.F.R. 482) and by the Califomia Health &
Safety Code Sections 1250, et seq., the Board, acting in its duly appointed role, shaU:

(a) Board Control. Exercise ultimate control and responsibility over
the assets, capital and operation of the Hospital Operations, except that Manager (as ^
provided in Section 1.1) shall act as District's agent for the management of the Hospital
Operations, and shall have the authority to supervise and manage its day-to-day operations
in accordance with the policy directives, rules and regulations adopted by the Board and as
otherwise expressly set forth herein. Notwithstanding the foregoing. District shall at dl
times during the term of this Agreement have full and unrestricted access to the Hospital
Operations, including all of its facilities, personnel, accounts. Business Records, contracts
and otherwise, as the owner and operator ofthe Hospital Operations; and

(b) Medical Staff ADDointmente and Privileges. Approve all
Medical Staff appointments, as well as define, adjust, withhold, or withdraw any and all
practice privileges in the Hospital. Such action will be based upon the recommendations of
the Medical Staff within the provisions of the Bylaws ofthe Hospital. Manager shall
designate an individual on its management team to serve as the liaison between the Medical
Staff and the Board, and Manager shall have the responsibility to consult with the Board
and/or the Medical Staff in regard to matters pertaining to appointments, the definition of
privileges, and Medical Staff function within the Hospital.

2.2 Licensure. District shall use best efforts and Manager shall use reasonable
efforts under the COVID Pandemic and Jeopardy Circumstances (hereinafter, "the Party's
Respective Contracted Standard of Care") to keep in full force and effect all licenses,
certifications, permits, Government Programs participation, and similar items necessary or



minxi

Sv'c p continued operation of the Hospital Operations and the Parties shall use theStandard ofCare to not allow any of the same to become invalid,restacted, revoked or otherwise adversely affected by the acts or omissions of any of their
nerfoTm Z Trrepresentatives. District, with assistance from Manager, shall
OnlrZ . responsibilities that must be performed by District for the HospitalOperations to remain licensed and certified, but the Parties recognize that the Hospital will b^
rn^aged ^d operated by Manager. Manager shall promptly notify District of any actions that
term <*"""8 th'

jirtion • • District nor Manager shall take any action or fail to take any
Zc the Party's Contracted Respective Standard ofCare that could beanticipated to terminate or jeopardize the effectiveness of any licenses, certifications,

OpemI^L° Government Programs necessary for operation of the Hospital
MaZZ^^! nmv flu '"^®tfere withManager sprovision of the services described herein, except as allowed by this Agreement.

j,nv «,r;« District shall: (i) notify Manager immediately if District receivesany written notice or communication from aGovernmental Authority relating to the

^ manner, all contracts and

fn renewals thereof) reasonably necessary to continuein effect the Hospital sparticipation in and eligibility for the Government Programs.

. Consent by Di.stricf. District shall not unreasonably withhold consent
requested by Manager hereunder and shall not unreasonably interfere

with Mmager sactivities hereunder. District shaU not unreasonably interfere with the
day-to-day operations ofthe Hospital.

ComnnimVations. District and Manager shall make mutually agreed
upon, joint public statements about the Hospital Operations.

rnn..Jir.A ^*^tion.s. During the Transition Period, District Shall not, without theconsent ot Manager:

1. Authorize or approve the transfer, sale or other disposition of any of theHospital sreal or personal property other than in the ordinary and usual course of business as
.wZhZ iteres as are no longer useful, or obsolete, worn out or
ZfhnT ^ U ^ accordance with District's usual practicewith other Items of substantially the same value and utility as the items transferred, sold,
exchanged orotherwise disposed of;

e Authorize or approve the creation, participation in or agreement to thecreation of any liens, encumbrances or hypothecations of any of the Hospital's real or personal
property, except any hens for current taxes not yet due and payable and liens created in the
ordinary and usual course of its business as heretofore conducted;

anv UnH I, » Amhorizc or approve the execution of any lease, contract or agreement ofany kind or character with respect to the Hospital or its licensed operations, or incur my



4/27/20

liabilities in connection therewith, save and except (a) the Lease and OTA, (b) those which will
terminate or expire prior to the Lease Commencement Date; and (c) those to wbch it is presently
committed or that arise in the ordinary course of business as heretofore conducted,

(d) Authorize or approve the termination of any licenses, certifications, or
permits concerning the Hospital Operations;

(e) Authorize or approve the waiver or release of any right or claim of District
with respect to the Hospital Operations except in the ordinary course of business; or

(f) Take any action that in any way alters Manager's rights to access Hospital
assets as set forth in this Agreement.

ARTICLE III.
COMPLIANCE

3.1 T.ggal Compliance.

(a) By entering into this Agreement, the Parties specifically intend to comply
with and cause their employees, contractors and agents to comply with, in all material respects,
all applicable federal, state and local laws and ordinances, rules, regulations and orders.

(b) By executing this Agreement, each Party hereto hereby represents and
warrants: (i) it shall participate in the corporate compliance program applicable to Hospitd, or i
approved and adopted by the Board, the corporate compliance program of Manager; and (") that
it shall not, and Manager shall not on behalf of District, knowingly employ
or without compensation) any individual or entity (singularly or collectively. Agent )listed by
afederal agency as debarred, excluded, suspended or otherwise determin^ to be ineligible to
participate in any Government Program ("Debarred"). To comply with this provision Manager
shall make reasonable inquiry into the status of any Agent contracted or airanged by Manager or
bv the District (assuming District has informed Manager of the identity of any such Agent whom
District employed or with whom District contracted without the knowledge of Manager) by
reviewing, at aminimum, the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Inspector
General Cumulative Sanctions Report and the General Services Administration List of P es
Excluded from Federal Procurement and Non-Procurement Programs.

(c) Manager shall supervise the provision of patient care at the Hospital in
compliance with all applicable federal, state and local laws and ordinances rutes, regulations and
orders. Manager shall use all commercially reasonable efforts to manage the Hospital
Operations (including, without limitation, its billing and collection activities) in amanner hat (i)
is intended to result in the delivery of quality medical care, and (ii) elinunates^ re^onably
practical, grounds for complaints, investigations or adverse acuon ag^st the Hoyital
Operations' related license or permit (or against Distnct, by virtue of District boldmg su
license or permit) by any Governmental Authority or third party relating to patient care o
operation and maintenance of the Hospital Operations dunng the Transition Penod.

3.2 Patient Information.



4/27/20

Manager shall comply at all times, in all material respects, with the
requirements of all applicable HIPAA Regulations (as defined in the BAA) and the business
^sociate agreement by and between the Parties attached hereto as Exhibit A(the "BAA") and
incorporatedherein by this reference.

. , _ records and information shall remain the property ofDistrict
f Manager shall properly and completely maintain all paUent recordsot the Hospital Operations during the Transition Period. Manager shall have the right, to the

extent permitted by applicable law, to analyze and obtain information from such records and
report same to District. Nothing in this section constitutes the waiver of any attorney-client
pnvilege or other privilege or confidentiality obligation and neither Party shall be required
hereunder to give the other Party documents if, as aresult, an existing attorney-client privilege or
other pnvilege or confidentiality obligaUon would be waived. All records, files, proceedings and
related information with respect to patients, and of District and ofthe Medical Staff and its
comimtt^s pertmnmg to the evaluation and improvement of the quality of patient care at the
Hospitd Derations, shall be kept strictly confidential by Manager and its personnel according to
any applicable federal and state laws and District policies. Manager shall take all steps necessary
to assure that the confidentiality of medical records and health information of Hospital patients is
preserved in accordance with HIPAA Regulations as defined in the BAA, and that all employees
md agents of Manager shall use such information solely for the purposes necessary to perform
Mmager sobligations under this Agreement. Neither Manager nor its personnel shall

r^uSytaw'information, either orally or in writing, except as expressly
3.3 Certain Representations of District Regarding rnmplmnr.*

. Govortiment Program Participation. Except as otherwise disclosed toManager, Hospital is certified for participation in the Government Programs and has current and
valid provider agreements with such Government Programs (the "Program Agreements")
Except for the matters described in Schedule 3.3fa). Hospital is in compliance with the
conditions of participation in the Government Programs and with the terms, conditions, and
provisions of the Program Agreements. Except for the matters described in Schedule 3.3(a), the
Program Agreements are each in full force and effect, and no events or facts exist that would
cause any Program Agreement to be suspended, terminated, restricted or withdrawn. District has
received all permits and approvals necessary for reimbursement of the Hospital by the
Government Programs.

(b) Government Program Reimbursement

For the past six (6) years, to the best ofDistrict's knowledge, all1ling practices of District to all third-party payors, including the Government Programs and
commercial payors, have been conducted in material compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations and the billing guidelines of such third-party payors in all material respects. To the
best ofDistnct's knowledge, neither District nor Hospital has billed or received any payment or
reimbursement in excess of amounts allowed by law or the billing guidelines ofany third-party
payor, including the Government Programs and commercial payors. Except for the matters
descnbed in Schedule 3.3(a), there is no proceeding, survey, or other action pending, or, to

10



4/27/20

District's knowledge, threatened, involving any of the Government Programs or any other third-
party payor programs, including Hospital's participation in and the reimbursement received by
District and Hospital from the Government Programs or any other third-party payor program,
and District has no reason to believe that any such proceedings, surveys, or actions are pending,
threatened or imminent. To District's knowledge, neither District nor, any of its employees,
officers, or directors have committed aviolation of any applicable law relating to payments and
reimbursements under the Government Programs or any other third-party payor program.

(ii) Notwithstanding the generality of the foregoing. District
specifically represents, warrants and covenants that, to the best of District's knowledge, at all
times prior to the Effective Date, District has been, and, following the Effective Date (including
following the termination date of this Agreement), District shall continue to be, in material
compliance with its obligations with regard to Medicare and Medicaid overpayments
("Overpayments"), specifically including those set forth in 81 FR 7653 (the "60-Day
Overpayment Rule"). As further set forth in Section 5.2 below. District shall fully indemnify
Manager for any and all liability resulting from non-compliance with the 60-Day Overpayment
Rule that relates to conduct or financial arrangements that existed prior to the Effective Date.
Following the Effective Date, District shall defer to Manager's recommendations regarding any
and all reporting and/or retuming of Overpayments to ensure compliance with the 60-Day ^
Overpayment Rule. In the event District and/or the Board chooses not to defer to Manager's
recommendations with respect to reporting and/or retuming an Overpayment (an "Overpayment
Reporting Disagreement"), Manager shall have the option to terminate this Agreement for
cause pursuant to Section 7.2(c).

(iii) Third-Partv Pavnr Cost Reports. For the last six (6) years. District
has timely filed all required Cost Reports for all fiscal years through and including the fiscal year
ended June 30,2019. All Cost Reports filed by or on behalf ofDistrict accurately reflect, in all
material respects, the information required to be included therein, and such Cost Reports do not
claim, and neither District nor Hospital have received, reimbursement in any amount in excess of
the amounts allowed by law or any applicable agreement. To District's knowledge, there are no
facts or circumstances that would give rise to any disallowance under any such Cost Reports.
District has established adequate reserves to cover any potential reimbursement obligations that
District may have inrespect ofsuch Cost Reports.

(c) Compliance with Healthcare Laws.

(i) Neither District nor Hospital, nor any of their respective officers,
directors or employees, have been convicted of, charged with or, to District's knowledge,
investigated for, or have engaged in conduct that would constitute, aMedicare or other Federd
Health Care Program (as defined in 42 U.S.C. §1320a-7(b)(f)) related offense or convicted of,
charged with or, to District's knowledge, investigated for, or engaged mconduct Aat would
constitute aviolation of any law related to fraud, theft, embezzlement, breach of fiduci^y duty,
kickbacks, bribes, other financial misconduct, obstruction of an investigation or controlled
substances. None of District, Hospital, nor any officer, director, employee or independent
contractor ofDistrict orHospital (whether an individual orentity), ®
Federal Health Care Program, subject to sanction pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §1320a-7a or §1320a-8

11



4/27/20

or been convicted ofacrime described at 42 U.S.C. §1320a-7b, nor, to District's knowledge, are
any such exclusions, sanctions or charges threatened or pending.

Except for the matters described in Schedules^, to the best ofDistrict sknowledge. District and Hospital have been and are presently in compliance in all
matenal respects with all applicable laws, including TiUe XVm of the Social Security Act,
42 U.S.C. §§ 1395-1395hhh (the Medicare statute), including specifically, the Ethics in Patient
Refeffds Act, as amended, or "Stark Law," 42 U.S.C. §1395nn; Title XDC of the Social Security
Act 42 U.S.C. §§ 1396-1396V (the Medicaid statute); the Federal Health Care Program Anti-
^ckback Statute, 42 U.S.C. §1320a-7b(b); the False Claims Act, as amended, 31 U.S.C.
§§ 3729-3733; the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act, 31 U.S.C. §§ 3801-3812; the Anti-
Kickback Act of 1986,41 U.S.C. §§ 51-58; the Civil Monetary Penalties Law, 42 U.S.C.
§§ 1320a-7a and 1320a-7b; the Exclusion Laws, 42 U.S.C. §1320a-7; HIPAA and all applicable
iinplementing regulations, rules, ordinances and orders; and any similar state and local laws that
address the subject matter ofthe foregoing.

. ("') Except forthe matters described inSchedule 3.3fcL ncithftrDistrict nor Hospital has received any communication from aGovernmental Authority, third-
party payor or patient that alleges Hospital Operations is not in compliance with any law, other
than statements of deficiencies from aGovernmental Authority received in the ordinary course
of business. District has timely filed all material reports, data, and other information required to
be filed with such commissions, boards, bureaus, and agencies regarding the Hospital.

(iv) All ofDistrict's contracts with physicians, other health care
providere, or immediate family members of any physicians or other health care providers, or
entities in which physicians, other health care providers, or immediate family members of any
p ysicians or other health care providers are equity owners, involving services, supplies,
payments, or any other type of remuneration, and all ofDistrict's leases of personal or real
property with such physicians, health care providers, immediate family members or other
Persons ^ein wriUng, are signed by the appropriate parties, set forth the services to be provided,
provide for afair market value compensation in exchange for such services, space, or goods and'
comply with all applicable laws.

(^) Except in compliance with applicable laws, neither District nor anyof Its officers, directors or employees is aparty to any contract, lease agreement or other
arrangement (including any joint venture or consulting agreement) related to District or Hospital
with My physician, immediate family member ofaphysician or other person that is in aposition
to make or influence referrals to or otherwise generate business for District with respect to the
Hospital, to provide services, lease space, lease equipment or engage in any other venture or
activity.

(vi) To District's knowledge, none ofDistrict's officers, directors or
employees have engaged in any activities that are prohibited under 42 U.S.C. §§ 1320a-7 et seq.,
or the regulations promulgated thereunder, or under any other federal or state statutes or
regulations, or which are prohibited by applicable rules of professional conduct.

12



4/27/20

ARTICLE IV.
COMPENSATION

4 j ManajiPfngnt Fcc. As Compensation for providing the Management Services
under this Agreement, District shall pay to Manager fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00) per
month (the "Management Fee"). District shall pay the Management Fee within sixty (60)
calendar days of the last day ofeach month Management Services are performed.

4.2 District Ripht to Audit. District shall have the right to audit all financial
information and/or books with respect to Manager's services and Hospital Operation's
performance under the terms of this Agreement. Manager agrees to reasonably cooperate with
any such requests and to provide responses in atimely manner.

5.1 Insurance.

ARTICLE V.

INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

(a) Coverage Requirements. Each of the Parties during the term of this
Agreement and any extensions or continuations, shall at their sole cost and expense, and as
applicable, purchase or provide, keep and maintain, and require any agents or contractors
providing services pursuant to this Agreement to do the same, insurance coverage as follows:

Coverage Type District Manager

Hospital Professional
Liability

Primary Additional Insured

General Liability Primary Additional Insured

Directors and Officers
Liability

Yes Yes

Pronertv Insurance Primary Additional Insured

Automobile Liability District-owned

vehicles

Manager-owned /
Manageremployees-
owned vehicles

Worker's

Compensation
Liability (including
Emolover's Liability)

Yes, covering District
employees

Yes, covering
Manager employees

Fiduciary and ERISA
Liability

Yes, covering District
employees

Yes, covering
Manager employees

Privacy (Cyber Risk)
Liability

Primary Additional Insured for

all coverage parts,
excluding E&O
coverage part

Pollution Liability Primary Additional Insured

Fidelity (Crime) Yes, covering District
employees

Yes, covering
Manager employees

Peer Review (follows
HPL coverage)

Primary Additional Insured

13



Coverage Type District Manager
Emplojfment Practices
Liability

Yes, covering District
employees

Yes, covering
Manager employees
(included in
Manager's D&O
coverage)

miiiQ

Such insurance shall be with carriers with aminimum Best rating (or equivalent) of A- Vn, or
through an acceptable program of self-insurance. District agrees that Manager shall be deemed
to have satisfied any insurance requirements under the Agreement if(a) Manager participates in
program(s) of self-insurance maintained by Manager and its affiliates; or (b) ifManager
maintains program(s) of self-insurance, with blanket policies, high deductibles or other
coverages consistent with those typically maintained by Manager. Such insurance shall be in
amounts and in aform necessary to protect against loss from claims arising out ofthe Parties
business activities. Reasonable changes in the amounts or types ofcoverage necessary to protect
against loss will be made upon the mutual agreement of the Parties. Unless notified in writing
withm thirty (30) days thereafter the insurance coverages in place will be deemed reasonable as
ofthe date of the Agreement. Changes can be requested by written notice of one Party to the
other. ^

0^) Evidence ofCoverage. The Parties shall provide to each other evidence
ofeach coverage required in this Agreement on or as mutually agreed to after the Effective Date.
To the extent possible under District's existing CHI policies. District agrees that the following
policies will n^e Manager as Additional Insured during the term of this Agreement: Hospital
Professional Liability, General Liability, Property Insurance, Privacy (Cyber Risk) Liability and
Pollution Liability as respects the management and operations support of the Hospital.

. „ Notice of Changes in Coverage: Tail Reauiremente. Each of the Partiesshall provide at least thirty (30) days' advance written notice to the other Party as to any material
alteration or amendment of coverage including cancellation or other termination. If any policy is
written on a"claims made" basis and is later converted to "occurrence" or canceled for any
reason, prior acts or "tail" coverage shall be obtained in the amounts specified for an unlimited
reporting period (except for D&O which tail coverage shall be as long as District deems
appropriate).

5.2 District's Indemnificatinn.

(a) Except as and to the extent relating to Manager's or any ofits affiliates'
gross negligence, recklessness, willful misconduct, bad faith or fraud. District shall indemnify
and hold harmless Manager, its affiliates, and its and their respective officers, directors, partners,
managers, shareholders, members, principals, attorneys, agents, employees and other
representatives (collectively, the "Manager Indemnified Parties") from and against any and aU
Losses (as defined below) that any such Manager Indemnified Party incurs as aresult of, arising
out of, relating to or in connection with: (i) any breach or nonfulfillment of any covenants or
other agreements made by District in this Agreement; (ii) any breach or nonfulfillment of any
covenants or other agreements made by District in this Agreement; (iii) any breach of or
inaccuracy in any of the representations or warranties made by District in Section 3.3; (iv)

14



4/27/20

District's non-compliance with the 60-Day Overpayment Rule; (v) any fraud, gross negligence,
recklessness, willfiil misconduct or criminal acts ofDistrict orits officers, directors, members,
shareholders, employees, agents and/or independent contractors; and any matter relating to the
employment of the District Senior Management Personnel and District Personnel (including
claims arising out of tort, contract, equity, implied covenant, invasion of privacy, violation of
any collective bargaining agreement, unfair labor practice charges, defamation, personal injury,
wrongful discharge, emotional distress, discrimination (whether based on race, sex, age, color,
national origin, religion, disability or any other class protected by law), harassment, retaliation,
occupational safety and health claims, work related injuries, claims for workers' compensation
benefits, claims for insurance or other employee benefits, claims for wages, any claim under the
Age Discrimination in Employment Act (29 U.S.C. §621 et. seq.), the Civil Rights Act (42
U.S.C. §1981), Title Vn of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. §2000e et. seq.), the Civil
Rights Act of 1991 (42 U.S.C. §1981(a) et. seq.), the Americans With Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C.
§12101 et. seq.), ERISA or the Family Medical Leave Act (29 U.S.C. §2601 et. seq.), any claim
under the Fair Labor Standards Act of1938 (29 U.S.C. §201 et. seq.), the Rehabilitation Act of
1973 (29 U.S.C. §701 et. seq.), any claim under conunon law and any claim under any federal,
state or local statute, regulation, constitution, order orexecutive order).

(b) Specifically with regard to District's indemnity obligations set forth under
Section 5.2(a) above. District shall indemnify Manager for all Losses regardless of whether the
non-compliance resulting in, arising out of, related to, or in connection with the Losses incurred
before the Effective Date, during the term of this Agreement or following the termination of this
Agreement.

(c) Except as described in this Agreement, in no event will District be liable
for any special, incidental, exemplary, punitive, indirect or consequential damages (including
without limitation any lost revenue or lost profits), even ifDistrict is advised of the possibility of
such damages or such damages are foreseeable.

53 Manager*s Indemnification.

(a) Except as and to the extent relating to (a) District's or any of its
affiliates' gross negligence, recklessness, willful misconduct, bad faith or fraud, or (b)
the COVID Pandemic and Jeopardy Circumstances', Manager shall indemnify and hold
harmless District, its affiliates, and its and their respective officers, directors, partners,
managers, shareholders, members, principals, attorneys, agents, employees and other
representatives (collectively, the "District Indemnified Parties") from and against any
and all Losses that any such District Indemmfied Party incurs as a result of, or arising
from: (i) any breach of or inaccuracy in any of the representations or warranties made by
Manager in this Agreement; (ii) any breach or non-fiilfillment of any of the covenants or
other agreements made by Manager in this Agreement; and (iii) any fraud, gross
negligence, recklessness, willful misconduct or criminal acts of Manager or its officers,
directors, employees, agents and independent contractors; provided, however, that the
fmud, willful misconduct, or criminal act of the District Senior Management Personnel

AH note proposed extraordinary limitation concerning indemnification.

15



4/27/20

and District Personnel shall not be deemed to be the fraud, willful misconduct, or
criminal act ofthe Manager orany ofits affiliates).

^ described in this Agreement, in no event will Managerbe liable for any specif, incidental, exemplary, punitive, indirect or consequential
danaages (including without limitation any lost revenue or lost profits), even if Manager
IS advised of the possibility of such damages or such damages are foreseeable.

(^) Np^^distanding anything to the contrary. Manager's aggregate
liability in respect of claims for indemnification pursuant to Section 5.3(a) shall not
exceed [2 inonths' Management Fee]^ (the "Cap"); provided, however, that the foregoing
limitauon shall not apply with respect to any Losses as aresult of, arising out of, related
to or in connection with any claim for indemnification under Section 5.3(a)(ii) and
SecUon 5.3(a)(iii), and none ofsuch Losses shall count towards the satisfaction of the
Cap For My claim covered by, or required to be covered by, insurance as described in
Section 5.1, the cap on liability for such claim shall be the applicable minimum insurance
amount(s) required or the Cap in this Section 5.3(c), whichever is greater.

. peterminationofT,o.s.sfts. Subject to Section 5.3(c), the amount of any Lossesshdl be reduced or reimbursed, as the case may be, by any amount received by any Manager
Indemnified Parties or any District Indemnified Parties, as applicable, with respect thereto under
any insurMce coverage provided by any third party or from any other party alleged to be
responsible therefor, provided that such reduction or reimbursement shall be net of any (i)
increase in premiums in any such insurance coverage or (ii) costs ofcollection. The Manager
Indemnified Parties and the District Indemnified Parties, as applicable, shall use commercially
reasonable efforts to collect any amounts available under such insurance coverage and from such
other pMy alleged to have responsibility. IfaManager Indemnified Party or District
indemmfied Party, as applicable, receives an amount under insurance coverage or from such
other party with respect to Losses at any time subsequent to any indemnification provided by
District pureuMt to Section 5.2 or by Manager pursuant to Section 5.3, then such Manager
Indemnified Party or District Indemnified Party, as applicable, shaU promptly reimburse
Manager or Distnct, as applicable, for any payment made or out-of-pocket expense incurred by
such Person in connection with providing such indemnification up to such amount received (less
My costs or exi^nses incurred in recovering such amounts) by the MMager Indemnified Party or

NotwithstMding the foregoing, nothing in this SectionD.4 snail be construed to relieve My insurMce carrier of its obligations under My insurance
coverap maintained by District, MMager or My affiliate of District or Manager, which in all
cases shall be pnmary to the indemnification obligations hereunder.

Notice of Third-Party Claims and Control of Tatigation.

^ aGovernmental Authority or other third party asserts aclaim orpotentid liability (a "Third Party Claim") against aPerson entitled to indemnification under
this Article V(the Tndemnified Party") that would give rise to aclaim under this Article V, the
mdemnified Party promptly shall provide written notice of the Third Party Claim (a "Claim

2
AH to confirm.

16



4/27/20

Notice") to the Person providing indemnity hereunder ("Indemnifying Party"); provided,
however that the failure to provide such notice as so indicated shall not affect the Indemnifying
Party's Obligation to indemnify the Indemnified Party unless such notice is not provided pnor to
the expiration of the Survival Period (as defined below in Section 5.8 for such Third Party
Claim) and the Indemnifying Party shall have no remedy by reason of such failure except to the
extent of any actual prejudice resulting from such delay. The Indemnifying Party, at \\s sole cost
and expense, will be entitled to participate in the defense of any Third Party Claim and will have
the right to defend the Indemnified Party against the Third Party Clmnri so long as (i) the
Indemnifying Party gives written notice to the Indemnified Party within ten (10) business days
after receipt of aClaim Notice that it will indemnify the Indemnified Party from and against the
entirety of any and all Losses the Indemnified Party may suffer resulting from, arising out of
relating to, or in connection with the Third Party Claim described in such Claim Notice, (u) the
Third Party Claim involves only claims for monetary damages and does not seek an injunction or
other equitable relief against the Indemnified Party, (iii) tiie Indemnified Party has not been
advised by counsel that aconflict or potential conflict exists between the Indemnified Party and
the Indemnifying Party in connection with the defense of the Third Party Claim, (iv) the Third
Party Claim does not relate to or otherwise arise in connection with any criminal or regulatory
enforcement action, and (v) the Indemnifying Party conducts tiie defense of the Third Party
Claim actively and diligently. If the Indemnifying Party, within ten (10) business days after
receipt of aClaim Notice, fails to defend such Third Party Claim, the Indemnified Party will
(upon further notice to the Indemnifying Party) have the right to undertake the defense,
compromise or settlement of such Third Party Claim on behalf of and for the account and nsk of
the Indemnifying Party and seek indemnification therefor under Section 5.2 or Section 5.3, as
applicable.

(b) If the Indemnifying Party assumes the defense of aThird Party Claim in
accordance with Section 5.5(a), the Indemnified Party shall cooperate in all commercially
reasonable respects with the Indemnifying Party in the investigation, trial and defense of any
Proceeding relating to such Third Party Claim, including any appeal arising therefrom; provided,
however, that the Indemnified Party may, at its own cost, participate in the investigation, trial and
defense of such Proceeding or any appeal arising therefrom. The Parties shall cooperate with each
other in any notifications to insurers. The Indemnified Party shall reasonably assist and cooperate
at the cost and expense of the Indemnifying Party, with the Indemnifying Party in the making of
settlements and the enforcement of any right of contribution to which the Indemmfied Party^y
be entitled from any Person or entity in connection with the subject matter of any litigation subject
to indemnification hereunder.

5.6 Notice of Nnn-Third-Partv Claims. If an Indemnified Party seeks
indemnification under this Article Vwith respect to any matter which does not involve aThird-
Party Claim, the Indemnified Party shall give written notice to the Indeinnifying Party prompUy
after discovering the liability, obligation or facts giving rise to such claim for mde^ification,
describing the nature of the claim in reasonable detail, the amount thereof (if known and
quantifiable), and the basis thereof (the "Indemnity Notice"); provided that any failure to so notify
or any delay in notifying the Indemnifying Party shall not reUeve the Indemmfying Party of its or
his obligations hereunder except to the extent that the Indemnifymg Party is maten^ly prejudiced
by such failure or delay. If the Indemnifying Party does not notify the Indei^fied Party mwnting
within thirty (30) days from its receipt of the Indemnity Notice that the Indemnifymg Party

17



4/27/20

disputes such claim, the Indemnifying Party shall be deemed to have accepted and agreed to
indemnify the Indemnified Party from and against the entirety of any Losses described in the
n emnity Notice, subject to the limitations on indemnification set forth in this Article V. If the

indemnif^ng Party delivers anotice disputing the indemnification claim to the Indemnified Party
within thirty (30) days from its receipt of the Indemnity Notice, the Indemnifying Party and the
Indemnified Party shall proceed in good faith to negotiate aresolution to such dispute. If the
Indemnifymg Party and the Indemnified Party cannot resolve such dispute within forty-five (45)
days ^er delivery of the indemnity dispute notice, such dispute shall be resolved in accordance
with Article Vm.

5.7 Certain Definitions.

. , "Losses" means all losses, liabilities, claims, damages, penalties, fines,judgments, awards, settlements, costs, fees (including court costs and costs of appeal),
disbursements and expenses (including reasonable costs of investigation and defense and
re^onable attorneys' fees) or diminution in value incurred or suffered by an indemnified Party
whether or not involving athird-party claim, including reasonably foreseeable lost profits and '
other similar economic losses ordamages.

(b) "Governmental Authority" means any government or any agency,
bureau board, directorate, commission, court, department, official, political subdivision,
tribunal, specml district or other instrumentality of any government, whether federal, state or
local, domestic or foreign, and any self-regulatory organization.

(c) 'Terson" means an individual, association, corporation, limited liabilitv
company, partnership, limited liability partnership, trust. Governmental Authority or any other
entity or organization. ^

Troceeding" means any claim, action, arbitration, audit (including any
Recowry Audit Contractor, Medicaid Integrity Contractor, Comprehensive Error Rate Testing

ne rogram Integrity Contractor or similar audits), hearing, investigation, litigation suit or
other similar proceeding by or before aGovernmental Authority.

5.8 Sumval. The provisions in Section 5.2 through Section 5.6 shall survive any
expiration or termination of this Agreement until the later of (i) ninety (90) days after the
expiration of the applicable statute of limitations, including any applicable tolling period or (ii)
hilly performed or observed in accordance with its terms (each such period, a"Survival
Fenod ).

ARTICLE VI.
RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE PARTIES

Independent Contractor. Manager isand shall atall times be an
independent contractor with respect to District in meeting Manager's responsibilities
under this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement is intended nor shall be construed to
create apartnership, employer-employee or joint venture relationship between Manager

18



4/27/20

6.2 f imUation on Control. Manager shaU neither have nor exercise any
control or direction over the professional medical judgment of any professional provider
contracted with District, or the methods by any professional provider contracted with
District performs professional medical services; provided, however, that any professional
provider contracted with District shall be subject to and shall at all times comply with the
bylaws, guidelines, policies and rules of District. Neither Party shall have any right,
power or authority to act for or enter into binding agreements on behalf of the other
Party, except as specifically set forth in this Agreement.

6.3 Referrals. No term ofthis Agreement shall be construed as requiring or
inducing District or any person employed or retained by District to refer patients to
Manager or any Manager-affiliated entity. District's rights under this Agreenient shall
not be dependent in any way on the referral of patients to Manager or its affiliated
organizations by District or any person employed or retained by District.

ARTICLE m

TERM AND TERMINATION

7.1 Term. This Agreement shall become effective on May 1,2020 (the
"Effective Date"), and shall continue until the Lease Commencement Date, subject to
the termination provisions of this Agreement.

7.2 Termination.

(a) Without Cause Termination. Beginning on the Effective Date,
Manager will have arecurring right to terminate this Agreement without cause by
providing sixty (60) days' written notice to District.

(b) Termination for Cause bv District. IfManager breaches any
material provision of this Agreement, then District may, at its option, upon thirty (30)
days written notice to Manager, unless Manager has cured said breach before said thirty
(30) days have elapsed or immediately in the case of danger to patient care, (i) terminate
this Agreement, or (ii) maintain this Agreement in full force and effect, and in either case
seek damages orother relief appropriate thereto.

(c) Termination for Cause bv Manager. If District breaches any
material provision of this Agreement, then Manager may, at its option, upon thirty (30)
days written notice to District (unless District has cured the material breach before said
thirty (30) days have elapsed, if applicable), or immediately in the case of danger to
patient care, (i) terminate this Agreement, or (ii) maintmn this Agreement in full force
and effect, and in either case seek damages or other relief appropriate thereto. Manager
may terminate this Agreement immediately without notice if Hospital is unable to pass
the Recertification Survey.

(d) This Agreement may be terminated upon mutual written agreement
of the Parties.

19



4/27/20

1'̂ Effect of Termination or Expiratinn. Upon any termination or expirationofthis Agreement, the following shall apply:

. fL - P^y allManagement Fees dueManager under theerms of this Agreement through the effective date of termination or expiration, as applicable.
This obligation is unconditional and shall survive the termination or expiration without renewal
ot this Agreement (including all amounts owed to Manager that are not fully ascertainable as of
the termination date).

• t, j Li- rights and obligations ofthe Parties shall cease except thosenghts and obligations that have accrued or expressly survive such termination or
expiration.

ARTICLE Vm.
DISPUTE RESOLUTION

. Dispute Resolution. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, anydispute, claim or controversy arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the breach,
termination, enforcement, interpretation, or validity thereof, including the determination of the
scope or app icability of this Agreement to arbitrate or any claims for specific performance or
injunctive relief (collectively, a"Dispute") shall be settled in accordance with the following
procedures. Notwithstanding anything that may be construed to the contrary herein, each of the
Parties expressly aclmowledges that (i) it has an affirmative duty to expedite the process and
procedures descnbed below to the extent reasonably practical in order to facilitate aprompt
resolution of any Dispute and (ii) each Party has amission of serving their communities, and all
communications and proposed resolutions ofthe Dispute shall take these missions into
consideration.

K':i I- ffotice. Notice by either Party ofthe existence ofaDispute shall(1) be ^hvered in wnting, (ii) specify what provision of the Agreement such Party believes is

Notice")^^"^^ recommend acourse of action to resolve the Dispute (the "Dispute
Meet and Confer. If, within fifteen (15) days after receipt by the

applicable Party ofaDispute Notice, the Parties do not resolve such dispute, then the Dispute
shall be referred to the designated senior executives with authority to resolve the Dispute from
each Party for further negotiation (the "Meet and Confer"). The obligation to conduct aMeet
and Confer pursuant to this Section S.lfhi does not obligate any Party to agree to any
compromise or resolution ofthe Dispute that such Party does not determine, in its sole and
absolute discretion, to be asatisfactory resolution of the Dispute. The Meet and Confer shall be
considered asettlement negotiation for the purpose of all applicable laws protecting statements,
disclosures, or conduct in such context, and any offer in compromise or other statements or
conduct made at or in connection with any Meet and Confer shall be protected under such laws
including California Evidence CodeSection 1152.

. . . Arbitration. Ifany Dispute is not resolved to the mutual satisfaction ofthe Parties within thirty (30) days after delivery of the Dispute Notice (or such other period as

20



4/27/20

may be mutually agreed upon by the Parties in writing), the Dispute shall be determined by
arbitration in Mendocino County, California. The arbitration shall be administered by Judicial
Arbitration and Mediation Services, Inc. ("JAMS") pursuant to its ComprehensWe Arbitration
Rules and Procedures. Judgment on the Award may be entered in any court having jurisdicuon.

(i) Either Party may commence arbitration by giving written notice to
the other Party demanding arbitration (the "Arbitration Notice ).
The Arbitration Notice shall specify the Dispute, the particular
claims and/or causes ofaction alleged bythe Party demanding
arbitration, and the factual and legal basis in support ofsuch claims
and/or causes of action.

(ii) The parties shall cooperate in good faith to identify one person that
is acceptable to both Parties to act as an arbitrator within fifteen
(15) days after the commencement of arbitration. In the event the
Parties are unable or fail to agree upon the arbitrator within the
allotted time, the arbitrator shall be appointed by JAMS in
accordance with itsrules. All arbitrators shall serve as neutral,
independent and impartial arbitrators, and they shall have the
authority to grant any relief permitted by law, including equitable
relief.

(iii) The Parties shall be entitled to reasonable production of relevant,
non-privileged documents, carried out expeditiously. If the Parties
are unable to agree upon same, the arbitrator shall have the power,
upon application of any Party, to make all appropriate orders for
production of documents by any Party. Depositions shall be
permitted only upon ashowing ofsubstantial need.

(iv) The substantive intemal law (and not the conflict of laws) of the
State shall be applied by the arbitrator to the resolution ofthe
Dispute.

(v) The following time limits are to apply to any arbitration arising out
oforrelated tothis Agreement; The evidentiary hearing on the
merits ("Hearing") is to commence within six (6) months ofthe
service ofthe arbitration demand. Abrief, reasoned award is tobe
rendered within forty-five (45) days ofthe close ofthe Hearing or
within forty-five (45) days of service of post-hearing briefs ifthe
arbitrator directs theservice of such briefs. Thearbitrator must
agree to the foregoing deadlines before accepting appointment.
Failure to meet any ofthe foregoing deadlines will not render the
award invalid, unenforceable orsubject tobeing vacated.

(vi) The Parties shall maintain the confidential nature of the arbitration
proceeding and the award, including the Hearing, except as may be
necessary to prepare for or conduct the arbitration hearing on the

21



4/27/20

merits, orexcept as may be necessary inconnection with a court
application for apreliminary remedy, ajudicial challenge to an
award orits enforcement, orunless otherwise required by law or
judicial decision.

(vii) The award ofthe arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the
Parties without appeal orreview except as permitted by applicable
law.

Provisional Measure Nothing in this Agreement shaU prevent either Party
from seeking provisional measures from any court of competent jurisdiction, and any such
request shall not be deemed incompatible with the agreement to arbitrate or awaiver ofthe right
to arbitrate.

. Attorneys' Fees and Costs. The arbitrator(s) in the Sections 8.1 to) shall awardto the prevailing Party, if any, the costs and attorneys' fees reasonably incurred by the prevailing
Party in connection with the arbitration. In addition, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to its
reasonable attorneys' fees and other costs for any other action, including court proceedings for
provisional measures orfor the enforcement ofany arbitral award.

ARTICLE IX.
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Amendment. This Agreement may be modified or amended only by
mutu^ written agreement ofthe Parties. Any such modification or amendment must be
in writing, dated, signed by the Parties and attached to this Agreement.

9.2 Assignment. Except for assignment by Manager to an entity owned,
controlled by, or under common control with Manager, neither Party may assign any
interest or obligation under this Agreement without the other Party's prior written
consent. Subject to the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding on and shall inure to
the benefit of the Parties and their respective successors and assigns.

Authorized Persons Whenever any consent, approval or determination
of aParty is required pursuant to this Agreement, the consent, approval or determination
shdl be rendered on behalf of the Party by the person or persons duly authorized to do so,
which the other Party shall be justified in assuming means any officer of the Party
rendering such consent, approval or determination, or the Party's board of directors.

22



4/27/20

9.4 Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be construed inaccordance with
and governed by the laws of the State of California, except choice of law rules that would
require the application of the laws of any other jurisdiction.

9.5 Cniinternarts. ThisAgreement may be executed in oneor more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together
shall constitute one and the same instrument.

9.6 F.nfirp Agreement. This Agreement is the entire understanding and
agreement of the Parties regarding its subject matter, and supersedes any prior oral or
written agreements, representations, understandings or discussions between the Parties.
No other understanding between the Parties shall be binding on them unless set forth in
writing, signed and attached to this Agreement.

9.7 Schedules and Exhibits. The attached schedules and exhibits, together
with all documents incorporated by reference inthe schedules and exhibits, form an
integral part of this Agreement and are incorporated into this Agreement wherever
reference ismade tothem tothe same extent asif they were set out infull at the point at
which such reference is made.

9.8 ForceMaieure. Neither Party is liable for nonperformance ordefective
or late performance of any of its obligations under this Agreement to the extent and for
such periods of time as such nonperformance, defective performance or late performance
is due to reasons outside such Party's control, including acts ofGod, war (declared or
undeclared), action ofany governmental authority, riots, revolutions, fire, floods,
explosions, sabotage, nuclear incidents, lightning, weather, earthquakes, storms,
sinkholes, epidemics, strikes or similar nonperformance or defective performance or late
performance ofemployees, suppliers or subcontractors.

9.9 Further Assurances. Each Party shall, at the reasonable request of the
other Party, execute and deliver to the other party all further instruments, assignments,
assurances and other documents, and take any actions as the other Party reasonably
requests in connection with the carrying out ofthis Agreement.

9.10 Headings. The headings inthis Agreement are intended solely for
convenience ofreference and shall begiven no effect in the construction orinterpretation
of this Agreement.

9.11 Notices. All notices orcommunications required orpenmtted under this
Agreement shall be given in writing and delivered personally or sent by United States
registered or certified mail with postage prepaid and return receipt requested or by
overnight delivery service (e.g.. Federal Express, DHL). Notice is deemed given when
sent ifsent as specified in this paragraph, or otherwise deemed given when received. In
each case, notice shall be delivered or sent to:

OWNER: Mendocino Coast Health Care District
[ADDRESS]

23



4/27/20

With acopy to: Hooper Lundy and Bookman, P.C.
101 Montgomery Street
San Francisco, California 95661
Attention: CraigCannizzo

MANAGER: Adventist Health Mendocino Coast
ONE Adventist Health Way
Roseville, California 95661
Attention: President

With copies to: Stone Point Health
ONE Adventist Health Way
Roseville, California 95661
Attention: Office of General Counsel

Latham & Watkins LLP
355 South Grand Avenue, Suite 100
Los Angeles, California 90071-1560
Attention: Daniel K. Settelmayer, Esq.

Severabili^. Ifany provision ofthis Agreement is determined to be
Illegal or unenforceable, that provision shall be severed from this Agreement, and such
severance shall have no effect upon the enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement
unless the purpose ofthis Agreement is thereby destroyed.

, .. No Third-Party Beneficlarv Righte The Parties do not intend to conferand this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any rights or benefits to any person
firm, owner, corporation orentity other than the Parties.

9.14 Waiver. No failure or delay by aParty to insist on the strict performance
of any teim of this Agreement, or to exercise any right or remedy consequent on abreach
thereof, shall constitute awaiver of any breach or any subsequent breach ofsuch term.
Neither this Agreement nor any of its terms may be changed, waived, discharged or
terminated except by an instrument in writing signed by the Party against whom the
enforcement of the change, waiver, discharge or termination is sought. No waiver of any
breach shdl affect or alter this Agreement, but each and every term of this Agreement
shall continue in full force and effect with respect to any other then existing or
subsequent breach. The remedies provided in this Agreement are cumulative and not
exclusive ofthe remedies provided by law or in equity.

[Signature Page Follows]

24



The Parties have executed this Agreement as ofthe date first above written.

US-D0CS\115518844.4

DISTRICT

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT,
a local health care district of the State ofCalifornia

By:

Signature Page to Interim Management Services Agreement



MANAGER

ADVENTIST HEALTH MENDOCINO COAST

a California nonprofit public benefit corporation

By:

[•]
President

us DocsM I5S18844 4 to Interim Management Services Agreement



STONE POINT HEALTH
STONE POINT HEALTH

a California nonprofit public benefit corporation

By:

[•1
President

Signature Page toInterim Management Services Agreement
US-DOCSM 15518844.4



Exhibit A

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT (this "BAA") is made by and between
Mendocino Coast Health Care District ("Provider") and Adventist Health Mendocino Coast
("Vendor"), and is effective as of [ • ], 2020 (the "BAA Effective Date").

RECITALS

A. Vendor provides certain services for or on behalf of Provider ("Services"), pursuant to an
agreement or arrangement (the "Underlying Agreement"), and, in the performance of the
Services, Vendor may create, receive, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information on
behalf ofProvider ("Provider PHI").

B. Provider and Vendor intend to protect the privacy and provide for the security of the Provider
PHI in compliance with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,
Public Law 104-191, as amended by the Health Information Technology for Economic and
Clinical Health Act, Public Law 111-005 (collectively, "HIPAA"), and the implementation
regulations promulgated thereunder by the U.S. Department ofHealth and Human Services
(the "HIPAA Regulations") and other applicable laws.

C. The HIPAA Regulations require Provider to enter into an agreement containing specific
requirements with its business associates prior to the disclosure of Protected Health
Information.

to consideration of the mutual promises below and the exchange of information pursuant to this
BAA, the parties agree as follows:

1. Definitions.

a. General Definitions. Unless otherwise provided in this BAA, all capitalized terms that
are used in this BAA will have the same meaning as defined under the HIPAA Regulations.

b. "Privacy Rule" means the HIPAA Regulations that are codified at 45 C.F.R. Part 160 and
Part 164, Subparts A and E.

c. "Security Rule" means the HIPAA Regulations that are codified at45 C.F.R. Part 160 and
Part 164, Subparts A and C.

2. Obligations of BA.

a. Permitted Uses. Vendor may not use Provider PHI except for the purpose of performing
the Services, or as otherwise explicitly permitted by this BAA or as Required By Law.
Further, Vendor may not use Provider PHI in any manner that would constitute aviolation
of the Privacy Rule if so used by Provider, except as otherwise permitted by this BAA.
Vendor may use Provider PHI: (i) for the proper management and administration of

US-DOCS\ll55I8844.4



Vendor; (ii) to carry out the legal responsibilities of Vendor; and (iii) for Data Aggregation
purposes for the Health Care Operations of Provider. Vendor may also de-identify PHI in
accordance with the standards set forth in45 C.F.R. § 164.514(b) and may use ordisclose
such de-identified data for any purpose.

Permitted Disclosures. Vendor may not disclose Provider PHI except for the purpose of
performing the Services, or as otherwise permitted by this BAA or as Required By Law.
Vendor may not disclose Provider PHI in any manner that would constitute aviolation of
the Privacy Rule ifso disclosed by Provider, except as otherwise permitted by this BAA.
Vendor may disclose Provider PHI: (i) for the proper management and administration of
Vendor; (ii) to carry out the legal responsibilities ofVendor; or (iii) for Data Aggregation
purposes for the Health Care Operations of Provider. If Vendor discloses Provider PHI to
athird party for Vendor's proper management and administration or to carry out Vendor's
legal responsibilities, the disclosure must be Required By Law, or prior to making any such
disclosure. Vendor must obtain reasonable assurances from the person to whom the
information is disclosed that it shall remain confidential and will be used or further
disclosed only as Required by Law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the
person (which purpose must be consistent with the limitations imposed upon Vendor
pursuant to this BAA), and that the person agrees to notify Vendor of any instances of
which it is aware inwhich the confidentiality ofthe information has been breached.

Appropriate Safeguards. Vendor shall use appropriate safeguards and shall comply with
the Security Rule with respect to Provider Electronic PHI, to prevent use or disclosure of
such information other than as provided for by the Underlying Agreement and this BAA.

Mitigation. Vendor agrees to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is
known toVendor ofa use ordisclosure ofProvider PHI inviolation ofthis BAA.

Reporting of Improper Access, Use or Disclosure. Vendor will notify Provider in
writing of any use or disclosure of Provider PHI not permitted by this BAA, including any
Breach ofUnsecured Provider PHI and Security Incident, without unreasonable delay (and
in no case later than sixty (60) days after discovery ofany Breach ofUnsecured Provider
PHI).

Notwithstanding the foregoing. Provider and Vendor acknowledge the ongoing existence
and occurrence ofattempted but unsuccessful Security Incidents that are trivial innature,
such as pings and port scans, and Provider acknowledges and agrees that no additional
notification to Provider ofsuch unsuccessful Security Incidents isnecessary. However, to
the extent that Vendor becomes aware ofan unusually high number ofsuch unsuccessful
Security Incidents due to the repeated acts of asingle party. Vendor shall notify Provider
ofthese attempts and provide the name, ifavailable, ofsaid party.

f. Vendor's Agents and Subcontractors, Vendor will ensure that any Subcontractors that
create, receive, maintain or transmit Provider PHI on behalf of Vendor agree in writing to
restrictions and conditions no less stringent than those that apply to Vendor under this BAA
(with respect to suchProvider PHI).

e.

US-DOCS\l 15518844.4



1.'

Access to Provider PHI. Vendor will make Provider PHI it maintains in Designated
Record Sets available to Provider for inspection and copying upon request byProvider in
a manner that enables Provider to fulfill its obligations under 45 C.F.R. § 164.524,
however. Vendoris not required to providesuch access where the Provider PHIcontained
in a Designated Record Setis duplicative of the Provider PHI contained in a Designated
Record Set possessed by Provider. If any Individual asks to inspect or access his or her
Provider PHI directly from Vendor, Vendor will notify Provider in writing ofthe request.
Any approval ordenial of an Individual's request to access or inspect his orher Provider
PHI is the responsibility of Provider.

Amendment ofProviderPHI. Upon request from Provider for anamendment toProvider
PHI that is maintained in a Designated Record Set by Vendor, Vendor will make the
Provider PHI available to Provider for amendment in such a manner so as to enable
Provider to fulfill its obligations under 45 C.F.R. § 164.526. Ifany Individual requests an
amendment ofProvider PHI directly from Vendor, Vendor will notify Provider in writing
of the request. Any approval or denial of an amendment of Provider PHI is the
responsibility of Provider.

Accounting Rights. Vendorwill maintain a recordof all disclosures of ProviderPHI that
Vendor makes, ifProvider would be required to provide an accounting to an Individual of
such Disclosures under 45 C.F.R. § 164.528. Upon request by Provider for an accounting
of disclosures of Provider PHI, Vendor will make available to Provider all information
related to disclosures by Vendor and its Subcontractors necessary for Provider to fulfill its
obligations under 45 C.F.R. § 164.528. The information collected and maintained will
include: (i) the date ofdisclosure; (ii) the name of the person who received the Provider
PHI and, if known, the address of the person; (iii) a brief description of Provider PHI
disclosed; and (iv) a brief statement ofpurpose ofthe disclosure that reasonably informs
the Individual ofthe basis for the disclosure, ora copy ofthe Individual's authorization, or
acopy ofthe written request for disclosure. In the event that the request for an accounting
is delivered directly to Vendor, Vendor will forward it to Provider in writing. It is
Provider's responsibility to prepare and deliver any such accounting requested, and Vendor
will not provide anaccounting directly toanIndividual.

j. Delegations of Obligations. To the extent that Vendor contracts with Provider to carry
out Provider's obligations under the Privacy Rule, Vendor shall comply with the
requirements of the Privacy Rule that apply to Provider in the performance of such
obligations.

k. Access to Records. Vendor will make its internal practices, books and records relating to
the use and disclosure of Provider PHI available to the Secretary for purposes of
determining Provider's and Vendor's compliance with the Privacy Rule and this BAA.

1. IVfiiunnim Necessary. Provider and Vendor will work together to ensure that only the
minimum amount ofProvider PHI necessary to accomplish the purpose ofthe Services will
be disclosed by Provider to Vendor. The Parties understand and agree that the definition

US-D0CS\115518844.4



of "minimumnecessary" is in flux, and they will keep themselves informed of guidance
issuedby the Secretary with respect to whatconstitutes "minimum necessary."

3. Term and Termination.

a. Term. The Term of this BAA is concurrent with that of the Underlying Agreement.

b. Material Breach of Provisions Applicable to Provider PHI. Anyother provisionof the
Underlying Agreement notwithstanding, the Underlying Agreement andthisBAA may be
terminated by a party (the "Non-Breaching Party") upon thirty (30) days written notice
tothe other party (the "Breaching Party") inthe event that the Breaching Party materially
breaches any provision inthis BAA applicable toProvider PHI inany material respect and
such breach is not cured within such thirty (30) day period.

c. Effectof Termination. Upon termination of thisBAA for any reason. Vendor willreturn
or destroy all Provider PHI that Vendor still maintains, and will not retain any copies of
such Provider PHI. Notwithstanding theforegoing, if Vendor determines thatreturning or
destroying such Provider PHI is infeasible, Vendor will continue toextend the protections
of this BAA to such information and limit further use of such Provider PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction ofsuch Provider PHI infeasible. Vendor will
be responsible for returning or destroying any Provider PHI in the possession of its
Subcontractors consistent with the requirements of this Section related to return and
destruction of Provider PHI.

4. Amendment to Comply with Law. The parties acknowledge that state and federal laws
relating todata security and privacy are rapidly evolving and that amendment ofthis BAA may
be required to provide for procedures to ensure compliance with such developments. The
parties specifically agree to take such action as is necessary to implement the standards and
requirements ofHIPAA, the HIPAA Regulations and other applicable laws relating to the
security orconfidentiality ofProvider PHI. Upon the request ofeither party, the other party
agrees to promptly enter into negotiations conceming the terms ofan amendment to this BAA
embodying written assurances consistent with the standards and requirements ofHIPAA, the
HIPAA Regulations or other applicable laws.

5. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Nothing express orimplied inthis BAA is intended to confer,
nor shall anything herein confer, upon any person other than Provider, Vendor and their
respective successors orassigns, any rights, remedies, obligations or liabilities whatsoever.

6. Interpretation. The provisions of this BAA prevail over any provisions in the Underlying
Agreement that may conflict or appear inconsistent with any provision in this BAA, provided
that any terms in the Underlying Agreement that may provide greater protections to the privacy
and security of Provider PHI than are set forth in this BAA govern. This BAA and the
Underlying Agreement shall be interpreted as broadly as necessary to implement and comply
with HIPAA and the HIPAA Regulations. The parties agree that any ambiguity in this BAA
will be resolved in favor of a meaning that complies and is consistent with HIPAA and the
HIPAA Regulations.

US-DOCS\l 15518844.4



7. Survival. The rights and obligation under Sections 2.i. and 3.c. expressly survive termination of this
BAA.

INWITNESS WHEREOF, theparties hereto have duly executed this BAA asof theBAA Effective
Date.

PROVIDER VENDOR

By: By:
Print Name: print Name:
TiUe: Title:

US-DOCS\l l3St8S44.4



US-D0CS\115518844.4

Schediiie 1.1

HOSPITAL OPERATIONS



Schedule 3.3fa')

GOVERNMENT PROGRAM PARTICIPATION

• Medicare certification is not ingood standing asdescribed bythe Jeopardy
Circumstances

US-DOCS\l 15518844.4



Schedule 3.3fc)

COMPLIANCE WITH HEALTHCARE LAWS

o Medicare certification is not in good standing as described by theJeopardy
Circumstances

US-DOCS\l 15518844.4



B



MENDOCINO COAST DISTRICT HOSPITAL

DATE: March 18,2020

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: WILLIAM MILLER, MD
CHIEF OF STAFF

SUBJECT: MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

The Medical Executive Committee considered and approved the following medical staff
privileges and appointments and recommends these to the Board of Directors for approval:

Appointments to Medical Staff-Provisional Status
> Shah Khan. MD- Department of Medicine-Emergency Medicine
> Russell Wong. MD- Department of Medicine-Hospitalist Medicine

Temporary Privileges (As weawait Board Meeting)
> Shah Khan. MD- Department of Medicine-Emergency Medicine

(Aril 11-April30, 2020)
> Russell Wong. MD- Department of Medicine-Hospitalist Medicine

(MarOi 4,2020-March 27,2020 and April 12-15,2020)

Voluntary Relinquishing ofPrivileges
> Brent Wright. MD- Department of Surgery-Obstetrics Privileges effective

03/28/20

Page 1 of 1

Department of Medical Staff Services
WilUam Lee, CPCS, CPMSM- Director
700 River Drive • Fort Bragg, California 95437

Phone: (707 961-4740 • Fax: (707) 961-4786



4



MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA

Unaudited Financial Statements

for

For the month ended March 31, 2020



Table of Contents

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA

For the month ended March 31, 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

BALANCE SHEET - ASSETS

BALANCE SHEET - LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS - CURRENT MONTH

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS - YEAR-TO-DATE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

KEY OPERATING STATISTICS

FINANCIAL RATIOS AND BENCHMARKS

PAGE1

PAGE 2

PAGES

PAGE 4

PAGES

PAGES

PAGE?

PAGES

PAGE 9



MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
EXECUTIVE FINANCIAL SUMMARY

For the month ended March 31, 2020

PAGE 2

BALANCE SHEET

3/31/2020 6/30/2019 1

ASSETS

Current Assets $16,314,733 $14,710,373

Assets Whose Use is Limited 4.393.860 5,808,305

Property. Plant and Equipment (Net) 14.306.098 14.554,636

Total Unrestricted Assets 35,014,711 34,873,313

Total Assets $35,014,711 $34,873,313

UABtLiriES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities $10,430,555 $11,157,552
Long-Tetm Debt 12,068.908 12,979,083

Total Liabilities 22,499,463 24,136,635
Net Assets 12,515,247 10,736.679 i

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $35,014,711 $34,873,313

STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES - YTD

ACTUAL BUDGET

Revenue:

Gross Patient Revenues $85,207,535 $88,036,225 1
Deductions From Revenue (42,398,782) 148,007,958)
Net Patient Revenues 42,808.752 40,028.267

Other Operating Revenue 1,795,449 2,116.380
Total Operating Revenues 44,604,201 42,144,647

Expenses:
Salaries. Benefits & Contract Labor 25,753,993 25,279,176

Purchased Services & Physician Fees 8,290,255 6,940.126
Supply Expenses 6.531,044 7.204,420 1
Interest Expense 0 0

Depreciation Expense 975,899 1,122,413
Other Operating Expenses 3,506,530 3,476,361 !

Total Expenses 45,057,717 44,022,496

NET OPERATING SURPLUS (453,517) (1.677,849):

Non-Operating Revenue/(Expenses) 2,232,090 1,971,546 •

TOTAL NET SURPLUS $1,778,569 $93,697
I II

BOND COVENANTS

REQUIREMENT ACTUAL

DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO 1.25 4.35

CURRENT RATIO 1,00 1,56

DAYS CASH ON HAND 30,0

1

1

38.2

NET DAYS IN ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

55%

53%

51%

49%

47%

45%

HOSPITAL MARGINS

Opornling Mmgin Total Proni Matgm

DAYS CASH ON HAND

SALARY AND BENEFIT EXPENSE AS A
PERCENTAGE OF NET PATIENT REVENUE

so.ar.

47.8%

I MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE OlSTI 3A31/2020

• Budgel 3/31/2020

I Prior Fiscal Year End 6/30/2019



Balance Sheet - Assets

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA

For the month ended March 31, 2020

Current

Month

3/31/2020

CURRENT ASSETS

CASH $ 1,705.863

PARCEL TAX REVENUE ACCT 710.727

PATENT RECEIVABLES 17.486,728

LESS: RESERVES FOR ALLOWANCES FOR RECEIVABLES (10.482.658)

NET PATIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES 7.004,070

ESTIMATEDTHIRD-PARTY PAYOR SETTLEMENTS 4,101.221
OTHER RECEIVABLES 1.359.781

INVENTORIES 800.677

PREPAID EXPENSES 632.395
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS S 16.314,733

ASSETS WHOSE USE IS LIMITED

BOARD DESIGNATED FUNDS $

PLAN FUND $

SPECIFIC PURPOSE FUND $

BONDS $

BOND COSTS $

3.442.554

13,774

502.864

434,688

TOTAL LIMITED USE ASSETS S 4,393,880

PROPERTY. PLANT, & EQUIPMENT

LAND

LAND IMPROVEMENTS

BUILDINGS & IMPROVEMENTS

LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS

EQUIPMENT

CONSTRUCTION-IN-PROGRESS

GROSS PROPERTY. PLANT, & EQUIPMENT

LESS: ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

NET PROPERTY. PLANT, & EQUIPMENT

$ 117.490

$ 805.398

$ 24.604.464

$ 546.439

S 20,902.409

S 1,657.859

S 48,834.059

(34,527.960)

S 14,306,098

TOTAL ASSETS S 35,014,711

PAGES

Prior

Year End

6/30/2019

$ 1.145,996

872,982

18.226.405

(12,555.953)

5,670.452

4,570.009

1,141,535

839,076

470,323

S 14,710,373

4,376.979

13,774

0

746,302

471,250

S 5,608,305

$ 117,490

805,398

24.604,464

546.439

20,430.219

1.602,686

S 48.106,696

(33.552,060)

S 14,554,636

S 34,873,313



Balance Sheet - Liabilities and Net Assets

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA
For the month ended March 31, 2020

CURRENT LIABILITiES

Current

Month

3/31/2020

PAGE 4

Prior

Year End

6/30/2019

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ 3,845,949 $ 4,416,725

ACCRUED PAYROLL $ 559,567 $ 859,231

ACCRUED VACATION/HOLIDAY/SICK PAY S 1.057,960 $ 1,149,245

PAYROLL TAXES PAYABLE $ 34,962 S 60,642

ESTIMATED THIRD-PARTY PAYOR SETTLEMENTS $ 2.195,614 $ 1,868,522

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES s 674,673 $ 911,488

INTEREST PAYABLE s 893,741 $ 1,013,730

PREVIOUS FY PENSION PAYABLE $ 877,969 s 877,969

CURRENT PORTION OF LTD (BONDS/MORTGAGES) $ 50,000 $ -

CURRENT PORTION OF LTD (OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES) s 240,119 $ -

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES s 10,430,555 S 11,157,552

LONG TERM LIABILITIES

BONDS PAYABLE

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

CURRENT FY PENSION PAYABLE (NON-CURRENT LIABILITY)

$ 8,913.279

$ 2,434.718

S 720.912

TOTAL LONG TERM LIABILITIES S 12.068,908

TOTAL LIABILITIES S 22,499,463

FUND BALANCE

UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANACE

TEMPORARY RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE

Net Revenue/{Expenses) (YTD)

$ 10.736.679

$ 1.778.569

TOTAL NET ASSETS S 12,515,247

TOTAL LIABILITIES

AND NET ASSETS S 35,014,711

$ 9.810.624

$ 3,168,459

_S -
S 12,979,083

S 24,136,635

$ 7,591.991

$

$ 3,144.687

S 10,736,679

S 34,873,313



statement of Revenue and Expense

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA

For the month ended March 31, 2020

CURRENT MONTH

Positive

PAGES

Prior

Actual Budget (Negative) Percentage Year

03/31/20 03/31/20 Variance Variance 03/31/19

GROSS PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES

INPATIENT S 1.166,536 S 1,642,443 S (655,907) -36% S 2,323,912

SWING BED s 561,574 S 386,177 S 175,397 45% S 732,395

OUTPATIENT s 6,319,433 S 7,121,146 S (801,713) -11% S 6,991,396

NORTH COAST FAMILY HEALTH CENTER s 411,691 S 451,124 s (39,233) -9% s 440,820

HOME HEALTH s 96,944 s 123,173 s (26,229) -21% s 124,983

TOTAL PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES s 8.576,378 S 9,924,063 s (1.347,685) -14% s 10,613,506

DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUE

CONTRACTUAL ALLOWANCES 5 (5.465,807) s (5.429,112) s (36,695) -1% s (5.526,455)
POLICY DISCOUNTS s (13,958) s (8,605) s (6,363) -62% s (13,405)
STATE PROGRAMS s 1,580,308 s 162,376 s 1,417,932 873% s 157,500

BAD DEBT s s (105,033) s 105,933 100% s -

CHARITY s (16,288) s (29,126) s 12,638 44% s (39.882)

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUES s (3.915,746) S (5,410,400) s 1,494,655 28% $ (5.422.242)

NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES s 4,660,632 s 4,513.663 s 146,970 3% s 5,191,264

OTHER OPERATING REVENUES s 342,173 s 263.503 s 78,670 30% s 179,877

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES s 5,002,605 s 4,777.166 s 225,639 5% s 5J71.141

OPERATING EXPENSES

SALARIES 4 WAGES - STAFF s 1.609,815 s 1.545.354 s (64,461) -4% s 2.004.021
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS s 614,148 s 740.263 s (65,665) •9% s 762,127

PROFESSIONAL FEES • PHYSICIAN s 682,158 s 539.061 s (143.097) •27% s 456.645

OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES - REGISTRY s 526,232 s SS6.36S s 26,133 5% s 579.522
OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES • OTHER s 63,563 s 126.047 s 62.464 50% s 232.597

SUPPLIES • DRUGS s 433,765 $ 490,616 s 57,051 12% s 431.693

SUPPLIES - MEDICAL s 202,219 s 245.246 s 43,027 18% s 225.148

SUPPLIES-OTHER s 64,172 s 88.429 s 24,257 27% s 91.307

PURCHASED SERVICES s 210,942 s 117.713 s (93,229) •79% s 117.892

REPAIRS 4 MAINTENANCE s 57,295 s 70,047 5 12,752 18% s 71,321

UTILITIES s 66,432 s 74,630 s 6,198 11% s 66.061

INSURANCE s 50,589 s 53,376 s 2,787 5% s 42,782

DEPRECIATION 4 AMORTIZATION s 98,255 s 125,576 s 27,321 22% s 100,746

RENTAL/LEASE s 82,376 s 55,135 s (27,241) -49% s 59,316

OTHER EXPENSE s 116,352 s 124,588 s 8,236 7% s 127,613

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

{NET OPERATING SURPLUS(LOSS)

S 5,060,331 S A,860,WE (119,665) •2% S 5,366,992

(77,527) S (183,460) S 105,953 58% S 2,1^

NON-OPEHATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
OPERATING TAX REVENUES S 70.000 S 66,726 S 3.274 5% 5 65.000
INVESTMENT INCOME S 5,000 S 6.605 S (1.605) -24% S 4.0D0
DONATIONS s 165.600 s 27,457 s 138.143 503% s -

INTEREST EXPENSE (ALL) s (37.641) s (43.240) s 5.399 •12% s (41.028)
EXTRAORDINARY GAINS/(LOSS) s - s 216 s (216) •100% s -

BONOEXPENSE (ALL) s 1.112 s 1,131 s (19) •2% s 1.112
TAX SUBSIDIES FOR GO BONDS s 27.716 s 28,170 s (454) •2% s 27,716
PARCEL T/LX REVENUES s 133,000 s 135,180 s (2.180) -2% s 133.000

TOTAL NONOPERATING INCOME (LOSS) s 364W7 s 222,245 s 142,342 64% s 189,800

ITOTAL NETINCOME (LOSS) s 267,061 s 38.765 s 246.296 641% s 191,9501

Opersling Margin -1,5% -3.8% 0.0%
Tolal Prolll Margin 5.7% 0.8% 3.6%
EBIOA 0.4% •1.2% 1.9%

Casri Flow Margin 7.1% 2.9% 4.9%



statement of Revenue and Expense

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA

For the month ended March 31, 2020

VEAR-TO-DATE

Posiilvo

PAGE 6

Prior

Actual Budget (Negative) Percentage Year

03/31/20 03/31/30 Variance Verianee 03/31/19

GROSS PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES
INPATIENT S 14.639.S74 s 16.344.291 S (1,704.717) •10% S 16.686.032
SWING BEG s 4.B4B.608 s 3.425.769 s 1,422.839 42% $ 3.059.009

OUTPATIENT S 60.S02.S76 s 63.171,605 s (2,369.029) •4% s 62.565.623

NORTH COAST FAMILY HEALTH CENTER s 3.B48.S69 s 4,001,912 s (153.343) •4% s 4,024.807

HOME HEALTH s 1.068.207 s 1,092,648 s (24,441) -2% s 1.082.388

TOTAL PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES s BS.207.535 s 88,036,225 s (2,828.690) -3% $ 87.417.857

DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUE
CONTRACTUAL ALLOWANCES S(44.2B1.aB4) S (48,173,959) s 3.892.075 8% S (47,779,218)
POLICY DISCOUNTS s (85.380) S (76,333) s (9,047) -12% S (74.927)
STATE PROGRAMS s 3.048.204 S 1,440,438 s 1.607,766 112% s 1.041.329

BAD DEBT s (910.808) S (939,731) s 28.923 3% s (894.460)
CHARITY s 1168.9)5) s (258,373) s 89.458 35% s 1249.947)

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUES s (42.398.782) S (48.007,958) s 5.609.175 12<!i S (47.957.224)

NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES s 42.808.752 S 40,028.267 s 2.780.485 7% S 39.460.633

OTHEB OPERATING REVENUES s 1.795.449 s 2.116.380 s (320.931) -15% s t.500.176

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES s 44,604,201 s 42.144,647 s 2,459,564 6% s 40.960,810

OPERATING EXPENSES
SALARIES & WAGES • STAFF S 13.757,279 s 13,712,268 s (45.011) 0% s 13.835.871

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS s 0,689.277 s 6.631.409 s (57.868) -1% s 6.652.462

PROFESSIONAL FEES • PHYSICIAN s 5.698.892 s 4.782.490 s (916.402) -19% s 4.523.599

OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES - REGISTRY s 5.307,437 s 4.935.499 s (371.938) •8% s 4.682.337

OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES • OTHER s 1,448,572 s 1.118.460 s (330.112) -30% s 1.311.370

SUPW.IES - DRUGS 5 4.047.248 s 4.244.361 s 197.113 5% s 3.918.932

SUPtt.lES-MEDICAL s 1.823.336 s 2.175.563 s 352^27 16% s 2.159.772

SUPPLIES-OTHER s 660.460 s 784.496 s 124.036 16% s 733.803

PURCHASED SERVICES s ).142.791 s 1.039.176 s (103.615) -10% s 970.859

REPAIRS « MAINTENANCE s 575.268 s 621.403 s 46.135 7% s 631.278

UTILITIES s 667.168 s 662.024 s (5.164) -1% s 656.568
INSURANCE s 472.14) s 473.499 s 1,356 0% s 418.787

DEPRECIATION S AMORTIZATION s 975.899 5 1.122,413 s 146.514 13% s 1.120,504

RENTAL/LEASE s 554.432 5 480.108 s (65.324) -13% s 484.086

OTHER EXPENSE s 1.237.50) s 1.230,327 s (7,174) •1®p s 1.085.003

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES s 45.057.71 B s 44.022.496 s (1,035,224) •2% s 43,187.251

INETOPERATING SURPLUS(LOSS) s (453,517) s (1,877,849) s 1.424,332 •76% 5 (2.226.441)1

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
OPERATING TAX REVENUES s 630,000 s 591,926 s 38,074 s 585,000
INVESTMENT INCOME s 65,575 s 58.589 s 6.986 12% s 60,338
DONATIONS s 444.665 s 243.570 s 201.095 83% s 20,141

INTEREST EXPENSE (ALL) s (357,496) s (383.580) s 26,084 -7% s (383.583)
EXTRAORDINARY GAINS/(LOSS| s s 1.933 s (1.933) -100% s 2.118
BOND EXPENSE (ALL) s 10,011 s 10.030 s 19 01b s 10.011
TAX SUBSIDIES FOR GO BONDS s 249,444 s 249.898 $ (454) 0% 5 249.444
PARCEL TAX REVENUES s 1.189.88/ s 1.199.180 5 (9.293) -1% s 1.197.000

TOTAL NONOPERATINQ INCOME (LOSS) s 2.232.066 s 1,971.546 s 260,577 13% s 1,740,469

ITOTAL NETINCOME (LOSS) s 1.778.569 s 93,697 s 1,684,909 1798% s (485,972)1

Opcraling Margin •ro-s. •4.5% -5.4%

Total ProlK Margin 4.0% 0.2% •1.2%
EBIDA 1.2% -1.6% •2.7%
Casn Flow Margin S.6% 2.3% 0.9%



Statement of Cash Flows

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA

for the 9 months ended 3/31/20

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net Income (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Gash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation

(lncrease)/Decrease in Net Patient Accounts Receivable
(lncrease)/Decrease in Other Receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
(Increasej/Decrease in Pre-Paid Expenses
(lncrease)/Decrease in Third Party Receivables
lncrease/{Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase/tOecrease) in Notes and Loans Payable
lncrease/(Decrease) in Accrued Payroll and Benefits
lncrease/(Decrease) in Previous Year Pension Payable
lncrease/(Decrease) inThird Party Liabilities
lncrease/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase ol Property, Plant and Equipment
(lncrease)/Decrease in Limited Use Cash and Investments
(Increasej/Decrease in Other Limited Use Assets

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

lncrease/(Decrease) in Bond/Mortgage Debt
lncrease/(Decrease) in Capital Lease Debt
lncrease/(Decrease) in Other LongTerm Liabilities

Net Cash Used for Financing Activities

(INCREASE)/DECREASE IN RESTRICTED ASSETS

Net lncrease/(Decrease) in Cash

Cash, Beginning of Period

Cash, End of Period

PAGE 7

3/31/2020

$1,778,569

975,899

(1,333,618)
(218.246)

38,399

(162,072)
468,788

(570,776)
170,130

(416,629)

0

327,092

(236.815)

820.721

(727,361)
934,425

280.000

487.064

(897.345)
0

(12,8291

(910,174)

397,611

2,018,978

$2,416,590



Patient Statistics

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA

For the month ended March 31. 2020

Actual

03^31/20

Current Month
Positive/

Budget (Negative)
03/31/20 Variance

Prior

Year

03/31/19 STATISTICS

Actual

03/31/20

PAGES

Vear-To-Oate
Positive/

Budget (Negative)
03/31/20 Variance

Prior

Year

03/31/19

Admissions

13 12 8% 13 Cril;c3l Care Services 102 107 (5%) 112

35 50 (30%) 47 General 384 442 (13%) 445

48 62 (23%) 60 Subtotal Medical & Surgical Admissions 486 549 (11%) 557

1 8 (88%) 4 OB 45 71 (37%) 72

49 70 (30%) 64 Total Admissions 531 620 (14%) 629

8 11 (27%) 6 Swing Bed 115 98 17% 101

1 8 (88%) 3 Total Deliveries 43 71 (39%) 66

InDatleni Days

32 42 (24%) 71 Criiical Care Services 288 375 (23%) 389

133 175 (24%) 202 General 1496 1549 (3%) 1610

165 217 (24%) 273 Subtotal Medical & Surgical Inpatient Days 1704 1924 (7%) 1999

2 16 (89%) 9 OB 111 160 (31%) 175

167 235 (29%) 282 Total Inoatient Days 1895 2064 (9%) 2174

162 99 64% 82 Swing Bed 1312 882 49% 884

2 16 (88%) 7 Total Newborn Days 90 142 (37%) 148

Average Length of Slav
2.5 3.5 (30%) 55 Cntlcal Care Services 2 82 3 50 (19%) 347

3.8 3.5 9% 4.3 General 3.90 3.50 11% 352
34 3.5 (2%) 4.6 Subtotal Medical & Surgical 3 67 3.50 5% 3 59

20 2.3 (11%) 2.3 OB 2 47 2.25 9% 2 43

3.4 3.4 2% 4.4 Total Inpatient (CAH) 3.57 3.36 6% 3.46

20.3 9.0 125% 13.7 Swing Bed 11.41 9.00 27% 8.75

Avg Dally Census - Hosoilal
1.0 1.4 (24%) 2.3 Crilical Care Services (4 Beds] 1.0 1 4 (24%) 1.4

. 4.3 5.6 (24%) 65 General (8 Beds) 5.4 57 (4%) 5.5
5.3 7.0 (24%) 88 Subtotal Medical & Surgical (12 Beds) 6.5 70 (8%) 7,3

01 0.6 (89%) 03 OB (3 Beds) 0.4 0.6 (31%) 06

5.4 7.6 (29%) 9.1 Subtotal Acute <15 Beds) 6.9 7.6 (10%) 8.0

5.2 3.2 64% 26 Swino Care (tO Beds) 4.8 32 48% 3.2

10.6 10.8 (1%) 11.7 Total Hospital (25 Beds Available) 11.7 10.9 7% 11.2

647
Emergency Department

603 (19%) 783 Ouipaiienis Treated In ED - Emergent 6763 7065 (4%) 7.103
26 49 (47%) 48 Patients Admitted from ED 390 433 (10%) 444

673 852 (21%) 831 Total Patients treated In ED 7.153 7498 (6%) 7,547

Ambulance Service
163 169 (4%) 146 911 - Transports 1290 1490 (13%) 1353

1 1 0% t Transfer - Transports 15 9 67% 9
164 170 (4%) 147 Total Ambulance Transports 1305 1499 (13%) 1362

Surgery - Cases
6 18 (67%1 20 inpauem <3ases 108 159 (32%) 153
0 7 (100%) 9 Total Implant Cases 16 55 (71%) 46

94 192 (51%) 167 Outpatient Cases 1313 1730 (24%) 1693
100 217 (54%) 216 Total Surgery Cases 1437 1944 (26%) 1892

2,059
North Coast Family Health Center

2.656 (22%) 2,654 Visits 21.476 23,905 (10%) 23,523

Home Health
387 523 (26%) 538 Visits 4.405 4,707 (6%) 4,700

3,692 5.146
Outoallent

(28%) 5.403 Encounters 39,770 46,314 (14%) 45.118



Key Financial Ratios
MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

FORT BRAGG, CA

Profitability:
Operating Margin
Total Profit Margin
EBIDA

Contractual Allowance % To Gross Charges
Inpatlent Gross Revenue Percentage (Hospital)
Outpatient Gross Revenue Percentage (Hospital)

Liquidity:
Days of Cash on Hand. Short Term
Days Cash, AllSources
Net Days In Accounts Receivable
Hospital Gross Days In AR
Cash Flow Margin
Days In Accounts Payable
Current Ratio

Capital Structure:
Average Age of Plant (Annuallzed)
Capital Costs as a % of Total Exp.
Capital Spend as a % of Annual Depreciation
Long Term Debt to Net Position
Debt Sen/ice Coverage Ratio

Productivity and Efficiency:

Net Patient Service Revenue per FTE
Salary &Benefits Expense per Paid FTE
Salary &Benefits as a % of Total Expenses
Salary and Benefits as a % of Net Pat Rev.
Employee Benefits as a % of Salaries

Other Ratios:

FTE-PRODUCTIVE

FTE - NON-PRODUCTIVE
FTE - REGISTRY/CONTRACT

FTE-TOTAL PAID

Cost To Charge Ratio

Medicare Revenue as a % of Total Revenue
Medl-cal Revenue as a % of Total Revenue
BC/BS Ins Revenue as a % of Total Revenue
Other Ins Revenue as a % of Total Revenue
Self-Pay Revenue as a % of Total Revenue

Year to Date

3/3j/2020

-1.0%

4.0%

1.2%

55.3%

24.3%

75.7%

10.5

36.2

42.5

61.9

5.6%
45

1.6

29.3

1.6%

74.5%
49.1%

4.35

$184,124
($110,770)

45.4%

47.8%

48.6%

240.3

36.8

38.3

315.4

52.9%

63%

20%

11%

5%

1%

BUDGET

-4.3%

0.4%

-1.7%

58.2%

23.8%

76.2%

$177,583
($112,151)

46.2%

50.8%

48.4%

300.0

50.0%

60%

20%

13%

5%

2%

PAGES

Prior Fiscal

Year End

06/30/19

0.7%

5.3%

1.0%

57.4%

23.7%

76.2%

7.3

41.0

38.4

53.6

7.0%

49.0

1.3

21.8

2.6%

102.0%

54.7%

2.98

$183,185
($108,875)

46.6%

48.2%

47.4%

241.1

35.7

32.4

309.2

49.5%

21%

13%



 
NOTICE AND AGENDA OF SPECIAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

 

SUNDAY, APRIL 19, 2020 
1:00 P.M.  Open Session 

Meeting Via Teleconference  
Dial In Number:  

CALL IN NUMBER: 
877-573-1973 

Passcode 9614637# 
 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE a special Board of Directors meeting has been called for Sunday, April 19, 2020 at 1:00 pm. 
This meeting will be held via teleconference only in order to reduce the risk of spreading coronavirus (COVID-19) 
and pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Orders N-25-20 and N-29-20.  
 
No physical location from which members of the public may observe the meeting and offer public comment will be 
provided. The public may listen in and provide comments on the following number: 877-573-1973 passcode 9614637# 
 

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS: 
 
OPEN SESSION: MS. JESSICA GRINBERG, PRESIDENT 
1.  Call to Order 
 

2.  Roll Call 
 

3.  Comments from the Community  
This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board of Directors on any matter which the 
District has jurisdiction. You may state your name and address for the record. Time is limited to 3 minutes per speaker. The 
Board of Directors can take no action on your presentation, but can seek clarification to points made in your presentation or 
comments. 
 

4. ACTION: APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR: MS. JESSICA GRINBERG, PRESIDENT  
 1. Minutes: Regular Session February 27, 2020        TAB 1 
 2.  Minutes: Special Session April 6, 2020         TAB 2 
 

5. Action/Information: LEASE               TAB 3 
    BETWEEN 
    MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT, AS LANDLORD   
        AND 
    ADVENTIST HEALTH MENDOCINO COAST, AS TENANT 
  
6. Action/Information: TRANSFER OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS AGREEMENT        TAB 4      

    MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT, 
    A Local Health Care District of the State of California 
             (“District”)         

       AND 
 

    ADVENTIST HEALTH MENDOCINO COAST, 
    A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation 
      (“AH Mendocino”) 
 

       AND         

    STONE POINT HEALTH, 
    A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation 
             (“Stone Point Health”) 
      
7.  Action/Information: BOARD RESOLUTION NO. 2020-01: Authorizing District Officers to   TAB 5 
 Enter into Lease and Transfer of Business Operations Agreement (Items No. 5 and 6) 
 



8. Comments from Community 
 This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board of Directors on any       
 matter which the District has jurisdiction. You must state your name and address for the record. Time is 
limited to 3 minutes per speaker. The Board of Directors can take no action on your presentation, but can 
seek clarification to points made in your presentation or comments. 

 

 9. Comments from Board of Directors 
 

10. Adjourn 
 
Dated: April 16, 2020 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Gayl Moon 
Secretary to the Board of Directors 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA) 
COUNTY OF MENDOCINO)  § 
 
I declare under penalty of perjury that I am employed by the Mendocino Coast Health Care District Board of Directors; and that 
I posted this notice at the North and Patient Services Building Lobby entrances to the Mendocino Coast District Hospital on 
April 16, 2020 
 
 
__________________________         _______________ 
Gayl Moon       Date 
Secretary to the Board of Directors 
 

All disabled persons requesting disability related modifications or accommodations, including auxiliary aids or service may 
make such request in order to participate in a public meeting to Gayl Moon, Secretary to the Board of Directors, 700 River 
Drive, Fort Bragg, CA  95437 no later than 1 working days prior to the meeting that such matter be included on that month’s 
agenda. 

 
*Per District Resolution, each member of the public who wishes to speak shall be limited to three minutes each per agenda 
item.  Please identify yourself prior to speaking.  Thank you.      
 
Board Packets will be made available for pick up at the Patient Registration area until 5:00 pm on Friday, April 17, 
2020: 700 RIVER DR. FORT BRAGG, CA 95437  













































































































































































































Page 1 of 3

NOTICE AND AGENDA OF REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

THURSDAY, JULY 30, 2020 

6:00 P.M.  Open Session 

Meeting via Teleconference  
Dial In Number:  

CALL IN NUMBER: 
877-573-1973 

Passcode 9614637# 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE a regular Board of Directors meeting has been called for Thursday, July 30, 
2020 at 6:00 pm. This meeting will be held via teleconference only in order to reduce the risk of 
spreading coronavirus (COVID-19) and pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Orders N-25-20 and 
N-29-20.  

No physical location from which members of the public may observe the meeting and offer public 
comment will be provided. 

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS: 

1.  CALL TO ORDER:  Ms. Jessica Grinberg, President 
2.  ROLL CALL
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS  

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board of Directors on any 
matter which the District has jurisdiction. You may state your name and address for the record. Time 
is limited to 3 minutes per speaker. The Board of Directors can take no action on your presentation, 
but can seek clarification to points made in your presentation or comments. 

BROWN ACT REQUIREMENTS:  Pursuant to the Brown Act, the Board of Directors cannot discuss issues 
or take action on requests during this comment period. 

4. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Ms. Jessica Grinberg, President 

The following item #5 is considered routine and non-controversial by Hospital Staff. Consent 
items may be approved by one motion if no member of the Board or audience wishes to 
comment or ask questions.  If comment or discussion is desired, the item will be removed from 
the Consent Agenda and will be considered under new business 

5. ACTION:  Approval of Consent Calendar:  Ms. Jessica Grinberg, President
A.  Minutes: Regular Session June 25, 2020  TAB 1



Page 2 of 3

NEW BUSINESS:  

6. INFORMATION/ACTION:  Plateau Affordable Housing Project:  Ms. Tabatha Miller, City Manager                  

7.  INFORMATION/ACTION:  Understanding the Maintenance & Construction Process:   TAB 2
Mr. John Redding, Treasurer 

8. INFORMATION/ACTION: Update on future handling of Measure C (2018) Review/Approval Process 
including the exemption procedure and schedule coordination with the Oversight Committee: Mr. 
John Redding, Treasurer   

9.  INFORMATION/ACTION:  Post Affiliation Structure: Ms. Jessica Grinberg  
   A. By Laws- Second Read TAB 3

        B. Budget Draft  TAB 4

10. INFORMATION/ACTION:  Health Reimbursement Arrangement:   TAB 5
 Ms. Jessica Grinberg, President 

11.  INFORMATION/ACTION:  Refund Request from Mendocino Coast Health Foundation:  TAB 6
 Ms. Jessica Grinberg, President  

REPORTS: 

12.  INFORMATION/ACTION:  Administration Update:  Ms. Judy Leach, Ms. Linda Givens, Ms. Lindsey              
       Spencer and Mr. Jason Wells 

13.  INFORMATION/ACTION:  Finance Committee Report- Mr. John Redding, Treasurer and          TAB 7
       Mr. Judson Howe  

14.  ASSOCIATION AND COMMUNITY SERVICE REPORTS:  Ms. Jessica Grinberg, President

15.  FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS:  Ms. Jessica Grinberg, President

16.  PUBLIC COMMENTS  
This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board of Directors on any 
matter which the District has jurisdiction. You may state your name and address for the record. Time 
is limited to 3 minutes per speaker. The Board of Directors can take no action on your presentation but 
can seek clarification to points made in your presentation or comments. 

BROWN ACT REQUIREMENTS:  Pursuant to the Brown Act, the Board of Directors cannot discuss issues 
or take action on requests during this comment period. 

17.  COMMENTS FROM BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

18.  ADJOURNMENT 







1

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

THURSDAY, JUNE 25, 2020 
5:00 P.M. Closed Session 
6:00 P.M.  Open Session 

The Board of Directors of the Mendocino Coast Health Care District met in OPEN session at 6:00 
pm via teleconference.  Jessica Grinberg, Chair presiding 

PRESENT: Mr. Steve Lund, Mr. John Redding, Ms. Karen Arnold, Ms. Grinberg, Ms. McColley 
Absent: None 
Ms. Judy, Leach, Hospital President 

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS: 

1.  CALL TO ORDER 
OPEN Session of the Board of Directors of the Mendocino Coast Health Care District convened 
at 6:00 PM via teleconference, Ms. Jessica Grinberg, President presiding

2.  ROLL CALL 
PRESENT: Mr. Steve Lund, Mr. John Redding, Ms. Karen Arnold, Ms. Jessica Grinberg, Ms. Amy 
McColley, Board Members 

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: None 
      ALSO, PRESENT:  
      Judy Leach, Hospital President  
      Jason Wells, Adventist Health Mendocino County, President 
      Wayne Allen, Former Interim CEO 

3.  PUBLIC COMMENTS  
None.  

4.  REPORT OUT ON ANY ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION: GOVERNMENT CODE 94957.1 
     There was no report regarding closed session. 

5. ACTION: REVIEW OF THE AGENDA: MS. JESSICA GRINBERG, PRESIDENT 

MOTION: To approve the Agenda as submitted 

• Steve Lund moved 

• Amy McColley seconded 

• Roll call 
o Ayes: Jessica, Amy, Steve, John, Karen 
o Noes: 0 
o Absent: None 



2

o Abstain: None 

• Motion Carried 

6. ACTION:  Approval of Consent Calendar:  Ms. Jessica Grinberg, President 
A. Minutes: Regular Session May 28, 2020  

MOTION: To approve the consent calendar as is for the Minutes of May 28th

• Amy McColley moved 

• Steve Lund seconded 

• Roll call  
o Ayes: John, Steve, Jessica, Amy, Karen 
o Noes: 0 
o Absent: None 
o Abstain: None 

• Motion carried 

NEW BUSINESS:  

7. INFORMATION/ACTION: RESOLUTION (REVISED) APPROVING REISSUANCE OF TAX-EXEMPT 
REVENUE AND GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS.

 Mr. Craig Cannizzo reported that this is a technical and minor correction to the Resolution 
passed last month.  The Resolution omitted the reference to some old bonds from the election 
of 2000 (general obligation bonds).  They were part of the public notice but didn’t make it into 
the Resolution.  The proposed amendment of the earlier motion corrects the oversight and 
adds the reference to the 1.1 million in outstand bonds from 2000. 

 MOTION: To approve Resolution Number 2020-03, which is the Resolution of the Board of 
Directors of the Mendocino Coast Health Care District amending the District’s Resolution 2020-
02 approving the deemed reissuance for certain federal income tax purposes of certain tax-
exempt bonds that were originally issued to finance and refinance capital improvements with 
respect to certain health care facilities. 

• Steve Lund moved 

• Amy McColley seconded 

• Roll call 
o Ayes: John, Steve, Amy, Jessica, Karen 
o Noes: 0 
o Absent: None 
o Abstain: None 

• Motion carried 

8.  INFORMATION/ACTION:  IT TRANSITION AND MCDH EMAIL SYSTEM:  MR. SCOTT MIX         
      Scott Mix reports on moving the board emails and files over to a new system.  Discusses costs 

($15 per month p/user) and features associated with the new system.  Reported hoping to use 
the MCDH.org address domain so emails will change from .net to .org.  Adventist Health will 



3

forward all emails to their new system and discussed specific features and tools available 
through the product (RACK).  Discussion on the details of the transition and migration of email 
and files and how the board can access the new system.  

 MOTION: To approve the transition and associated cost to complete the transition process as 
preened and the selection of this particular system.   

• Steve Lund moved 

• Karen Arnold seconded 

• Roll call 
o Ayes: Steve, John, Amy, Jessica, Karen 
o Noes: 0 
o Absent: None 
o Abstain: None 

• Motion carried 

9.  INFORMATION/ACTION: POST AFFILIATION STRUCTURE: MR. STEVE LUND 

   A. By Laws- Second Read 
   B. Employees 
   C. Office Space   

Jessica reported that this agenda item is pulled until next month.  Steve reported on the 
following:  

• Bylaws:  They are not ready for a second read.  All suggestions or edits to the presentation 
should be given to Karen for tracking.  The second reading is tabled until the July meeting 

• Employees:  Not applicable at this time.  No decision by the board concerning structure 
moving forward and there won’t be until the lease is in place. 

• Office Space: Building was rekeyed.  Reported on the needed office furniture.  Help is 
needed from IT to upload district information along with a phone as soon as possible.  

10. INFORMATION/ACTION: RESIGNATION OF MR. STEVE LUND FROM THE MENDOCINO COAST 
HEALTH CARE DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS. 

 Mr. Lund read his letter of resignation serving formal notice to vacate his seat on the hospital 
board.  Discussion about board appointment and election. Discussion and expressions of 
gratitude by Steve Lund toward the community, board members, and staff.  Members of the 
board expressed their gratitude toward Steve commending him for his tremendous dedication 
to our community and wishing him well on his next adventure. 

MOTION: To approve the resignation of Mr. Steve Lund from the Mendocino Coast Health Care 
District Board of Directors.   

• Karen Arnold moved 

•   John Redding seconded   

• Roll call:  
o Ayes: John, Amy, Jessica, Karen, 
o Noes: 0 



4

o Absent: None 
o Abstain: Steve 

• Motion carried 

REPORTS: 

11. INFORMATION/ACTION: ADMINISTRATION UPDATE:  MS. JUDY LEACH, MS. LINDA GIVENS, 
MS.    LINDSEY SPENCER AND MR. JASON WELLS  

   Jason reported on the Lodi facility COVID-19 outbreak and the number COVID-19 cases in 
Mendocino County.  Discussed test kits, and PPE and reported to expect more hospitalization - 
Adventist Health is ready.  Judy reported on Town Hall and expresses her support from the 
district, Jason and the executive team.  She reported there were multiple sessions throughout 
the day hearing and listening to over 170 employees – talked about a culture of yes, seeing 
people regain confidence in the midst of COVID and coming back to the hospital and clinics. 

  Reported on the OR project targeted for completion on July 28th as well as providing ongoing 
training for staff on safety, proper usage of PPE, area cleaning. Reported that volumes are 
returning but working to get the word out that the hospital is safe.  Affiliation on track to close 
June 30, 2020.  

12.  INFORMATION/ACTION:  MEDICAL STAFF REPORT: WILLIAM MILLER M.D., CHIEF OF STAFF 

• No credentialing to report.   

• Community Surveillance Testing is going on in the community.  Hopefully within the 
next few weeks there will be consistent testing weekly. 

• Affiliation is going well.  Impressed with Adventist Health Team.  Reported on his 
participation in AH orientation and impressed with the financial commitment in patient 
safety.   

13.  INFORMATION/ACTION:  FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT- MR. JOHN REDDING AND MR. 
JUDSON HOWE

   Reported on trends from April to May and saw increases in volumes almost across the board 
including swing beds – while the trend is up we are still not back to normal.   

 Judson reported on resources labor/volume and to align human resources to volume. Looking 
at growth and opportunity to align service to bring specialty care to the coast.  

 Wayne reported that Adventist Health will be the payor of the property insurance to the tune 
of $210,000 p/year.  Also, they have HHS Virus Funding of $6 million, and they have not had to 
tap into restrictive funds. 

 John reported the annual budget as of July 1st looks like could be 145,000 p/year. 

MOTION: To accept the Financial report for month ended May 31, 2020 

• Steve Lund moved 

• Karen Arnold seconded 

• Roll call 
o Ayes: 5 
o Noes: 0 



5

o Absent: None 
o Abstain: None 

• Motion carried 

14. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS:  MS. JESSICA GRINBERG, PRESIDENT
       Discussion on bylaws, vacancy, seeking applicants, and appointment of new member.  

15. ASSOCIATION AND COMMUNITY SERVICE REPORTS:  Ms. Jessica Grinberg, President

16.  PUBLIC COMMENTS  

• Lois Leister – employee of MCDH expresses appreciation to board and wishes Steve Lund 
all the best.  

• Jacob Patterson – he did not receive an email notification of board meeting, encouraged 
the board to appoint a member, and does not think Adventist Health should have 
anything to do with the Health Care District due to the contract. 

• Judy Hougland – employee of MCDH expressed her appreciation to Steve Lund. 

17. COMMENTS FROM BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

• John – experienced seeing one of the Town Hall session 

• Amy – commented on how smooth things are going and expresses appreciation to her 
collogues. 

• Karen – wished Steve all the best and very glad Adventist Health is taking over. 

• Steve – expressed is excitement of health care in the future and thanks his colleagues 
for the work that has occurred over the last several years. 

• Jessica – expressed appreciation to Jason and Judy.  Reported on positive experience in 
L&D in Ukiah and wishes Steve well and good luck to his new adventure.  

18. ADJOURNMENT
      Meeting adjourned at 7:00pm. 









DRAFT 1.0 

BYLAWS OF THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

Adopted: TBD 



MCHDrevision 2020

-2-

ARTICLE I. GENERAL 

Section 1. Title. 

These Bylaws shall be known as the “Bylaws of the Board of Directors of Mendocino Coast 
Healthcare District,” and may be referenced as the “Bylaws.” 

Section 2. The District. 

(a) Mendocino Coast Healthcare District (the “District”) is a local healthcare district organized 
onMarch 6, 1967, under the provisions of the Local Healthcare District Law, Health & Safety Code section 
32000, et seq., (the “District Law”). Under the terms of the District Law, as amended from time to time, 
the District owns and leases a hospital (the “Hospital”) and rural health clinics (collectively, “District 
Facilities”). 

(b) The District is governed by an elected five-member Board of Directors (the “Board”).   The 
Board is responsible for oversight of all District Facilities, and shall make all rules and regulations necessary 
for the administration of the District Facilities. 

Section 3. Bylaws and Policy Manual. 

These Bylaws govern the conduct of the Board and implementation and compliance with the District 
Law and other applicable federal and state statutes and regulations. In addition to the Bylaws,  the Board 
shall adopt a policy manual governing specific matters of the Board to augment the Bylaws (the “Policy 
Manual”), including, at a minimum, a Conflict of Interest Code and policies for ethics standards, Board and 
committee meetings, investments, legal claims, contracts and purchasing, environmental review of District 
projects and public records and retention. 

Section 4. Effect of Bylaws on Past Actions and Obligations. 
The adoption of these Bylaws or the repeal of a resolution by the Bylaws shall not affect: 

(1) Vested rights and obligations pertaining to any prior resolution; or 
(2) Other matters of record referring to resolutions and not included within the 

Bylaws. 

Section 5. Maintenance of Bylaws. 

(a) At least three certified copies of the Bylaws shall be maintained on file in the District offices 
as the official copies of the Bylaws. Each director shall be given a copy of the Board Bylaws and Policy 
Manual.  Additional copies of the Bylaws shall be distributed as directed by the President. 

(b) Each resolution making a change in the Bylaws shall be filed by the Secretary in books  for 
such purpose, properly indexed for ready reference. 

ARTICLE II. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Section 1. Mission of Board of Directors. 

The mission of the Board is to ensure operation of its health care facilities and programs in the 
best interests of the public health; establish rules, regulations and policies for the administration, 
governance, protection and maintenance of the District; establish standards of operation; operate the 
District on a self-supporting basis; and, where applicable, establish reasonable rates for services. 

Section 2. Membership. 
(a) Assuming office.  A person may assume the office of Director by election or appointment. 

(b) Election. Directors shall be elected in accordance with the District Law, except the date  of 
election shall be the same date as the statewide general election.  The dates of any notices, canvass of 



MCHDrevision 2020

-3-

voters, certification of election, and all other procedural requirements shall comply with those for the 
statewide general election. Directors shall take office at noon on the first Friday in December following  an 
election, as provided by Elections Code section 10554. 

(c) Appointment. 

(1) The office of director may become vacant before the end of the term because of 
death, resignation or other event causing vacancy. A resignation is effective  when 
accepted by the Board and is irrevocable. 

(2) A notice of intention to fill the vacancy by appointment shall be posted by the 
Secretary immediately when a vacancy on the Board occurs. At least fifteen days 
after the notice is posted and within 60 days after the effective date of the vacancy, 
the remaining Directors may fill such vacancy by appointment or by calling an 
election. The Board of Supervisors may fill the vacancy if the Board fails to act 
within sixty days of the effective date of the vacancy. 

(3) If a vacancy is not filled by appointment, an election shall be held at the next 
regular election date at least 130 days after the effective date of the vacancy. 

(4) A person appointed or elected to fill an unexpired term shall hold office until the 
next regular district election held at least 130 days after the effective date of the 
vacancy. 

(d) Oath of Office. Persons elected or appointed to the Board shall take the oath of office 
prior to assuming office in the manner and at the time prescribed by law. The Secretary or other person 
authorized by law shall administer the oath. 

Section 3.        Ethics and Conflict of Interest Code. 

It is the intent of the Board to act in the highest ethical standard in carrying out its duties to the 
public, its patients, and employees, and in the operation of its health care services and facilities. It is also 
the intent of the Board to protect the District’s interests when entering in to a transaction or agreement, 
and not the private interests of any director, officer, or employee. To that end, the Board has adopted an 
“Ethics Policy” and a “Conflict of Interest Code” contained in the Board Policy Manual. 

Section 4.       Organization. 

(a) Officers of the board. The officers of the Board shall be President, Vice-President, Treasurer, 
and Secretary. Officers shall be elected at the Board’s regular December meeting for the next calendar 
year, and shall serve for one year, or until their successors assume office. 

(b) President.  The President shall: 
(1) Preside over all the meetings of the Board. 

(2) Be responsible for coordination and liaison with community groups, public 
agencies, and residents served by the District. 

(3) Be responsible for the ongoing administrative affairs of the Board, including 
without limitation, supervision of financial matters, correspondence, and 
administrative activities of the Board. 

(4) Sign as President: contracts, conveyances, and other instruments in writing, and 
checks on the funds of the District as the Board shall authorize or direct the 
President to sign. 

(5) Be responsible for coordination and liaison with District legal counsel, auditors, and 
consultants. 

(6) Designate members of the Board to undertake special responsibilities and to report 
to the President on those activities. 

(7) Coordinate with the District’s legal counsel: 
a. Receive all requests from Board members for the preparation of legal 

opinions, legal memoranda, contracts, corporate documents, or other   legal 



MCHDrevision 2020

-4-

work for legal counsel so as to eliminate duplication of same before 
submitting to legal counsel; 

b. Prepare Board agendas with the assistance of the (District ManagerTBD)  and 
legal counsel, and if necessary, instruct legal counsel to prepare memoranda 
which are necessary to hold closed session meetings, Board Resolutions, and 
other material pertinent to Board meetings as required; 

c. Serve as an alternate at committee meetings, if able, upon the excused 
absence of a Committee member, and 

d. Invite legal counsel to attend Committee meetings, as desired. 
(8) Perform other duties as pertain to the office as prescribed by the Board. 

(9) Appoint, with the concurrence of the Board, members of standing and ad hoc 
committees. 

(10) Represent the Board at official functions when necessary, serve as a 
spokesperson for the Board regarding board actions, and keep the Board promptly 
informed of these occasions. 

(c) Vice-President. In the absence or inability of the President to serve, the Vice-President 
shall perform the duties of the President, and shall perform other duties as are prescribed by the Board. 

(d) Treasurer.  The Treasurer or designee shall: 
(1) , Ensure correct and accurate accounts of the properties and financial 

transactions of the District; 
(2) Present an annual budget to the Board; 

(3) Cause an annual independent audit of the District to be performed in accordance 
with law; and 

(4) Perform all duties incident to the office and such other duties as prescribed by 
the Board. 

(e) Secretary.  The Secretary or designee shall: 

(1) Keep minutes of all meetings of the Board, and assure such minutes are filed in 
the official records of the District; 

(2) Maintain the official record of resolutions, actions and orders passed or adopted 
by the Board; 

(3) Keep all correspondence, financial records and reports in the records of the 
District; 

(4) Give, or cause to be given, appropriate notices in accordance with these Bylaws 
or as required by law; 

(5) Act as custodian of records of the District’s records; 
(6) Certify the official status, capacity and signature of directors, officers and 
employees; 
(7) Assure the District Seal is affixed, when required by law, to documents executed 

on behalf of the District; and 
(8) Perform all duties incident to the office and such other duties as prescribed by 

the Board. 

Section 5. Powers. 

The powers of the District are set forth in the District Law and other applicable law. The powers of 
the District are vested in the Board, which may delegate one or more of its powers in its sole  discretion.  
Specifically, the Board shall: 

(1) Establish by Resolution substantive and procedural policies regarding the affairs of the 
District in accordance with the best interests of the communities served by the District. 

(2) Monitor the activities of the District Manager (or other designee) as administrator of   the 



MCHDrevision 2020

-5-

District. 

(3) Enter into contracts and agreements with respect to the affairs of the District, including 
contracts for management services and for other activities approved by the Board. 

(4) Effectuate the purpose of the District to enhance the provision of quality healthcare in  the 
communities served by the District by, among other efforts, working with public and private entities 
(including the provision of financial assistance where feasible). 

(5) Identify and seek to respond to healthcare needs and enhance service quality in 
communities served by the District, and where feasible, respond to substantive needs by advocating for 
their support or remediation by healthcare providers and agencies. 

(6) Monitor and guard the integrity and quality of healthcare services provided at the Hospital. 

(7) Exercise all other powers now or hereinafter set forth in and given to it by the District Law 
and other public agency laws applicable to the District. 

(8) Seek legislative, agency and consumer support for Hospitals, enhanced public 
accountability requirements for all hospitals, and better defined and professional requirements  for hospital 
Quality Assurance Review Board panels. 

(9) Maintain the Hospital facilities and ensure that improvements occur as necessary and with 
agreement of the lessor  

Section 6. Meetings. 

(a) The Board shall conduct meetings as established in the Board’s Policy Manual. All meetings 
of the Board and its committees shall be conducted in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act, Government 
Code section 54950, et seq. (the “Brown Act”), and any other applicable law or regulation. Regular meetings 
of the Board shall be held on the last Thursday of the month at 6:00 p.m. at the District’s administrative 
office. 

(b) Meetings of the Board shall be open and public, except as allowed by law. Persons shall 
be permitted to attend any portion of a meeting, except a closed session. 

(c) A quorum of the Board shall not discuss the business of the District directly, serially or 
through an intermediary, except at a properly noticed public meeting. A quorum of the Board may  discuss 
the time, place and agenda for a meeting at any time. Less than a quorum of the Board (but not  a standing 
committee) may discuss District business at any time. 

Section 7. Compensation, Benefits and Expenses. 
(a) Compensation. 

(1) The members of the Board of Directors shall serve without compensation. 

(b) Benefits. 

Directors are entitled to the following benefits on the same terms as other officers: 
(1) Group medical, vision and dental plan coverage at the District’s cost for active 

directors, but not their dependents. 

(c) Expenses. 

(1) If previously approved by the Board, a Director shall receive actual, reasonable 
and necessary reimbursement for travel, meals, lodging, registration and similar 
expenses incurred on District business. The rate for reimbursement shall not 
exceed the rate published by the IRS for deduction from taxes. However, if the 



MCHDrevision 2020

-6-

expenses are incurred in connection with a trade conference, the reimbursement 



MCHDrevision 2020

-7-

rates shall not exceed the posted rates for the conference and if the posted rates 
are not available, the reimbursement rate shall be comparable to the IRS rates. 

(2) Directors must be authorized in advance to incur expenses for District purposes, 
and shall submit a written request with supporting documents for 
reimbursement. 

(3) During July of each year the District Manager shall prepare a list of amounts paid 
during the prior fiscal year to reimburse a director or employee for individual 
expenses of $100.00 or more. To determine the value of an item, the total charges 
for the item for the day shall be considered. For example, several transportation 
bills each less than $100.00, but totaling more than $100, requires a report. During 
August of each year, each person receiving expense reimbursement shall review 
the list. The District Manager shall consider suggested corrections and post the 
final list at the District by September. 

Section 8. Appointment of District Manager

(a) The Board shall be solely responsible for selecting a District Manager, who shall be 
responsible for managing the District’s operations, facilities, and property.  The Board shall adopt a  written 
statement setting forth the qualifications, authority, and duties of the District Manager. The Board shall set 
the District Manager compensation. 

(b) The Board shall at least annually conduct a review of the performance and compensation 
of the District Manager

(c) The District Manager may recommend and shall implement policies adopted by the  Board.  
The Board is not responsible for day-to-day management or operations of the District. 

(d) The Board and individual Directors may question the District Manager with respect to the 
development and implementation of District policy.  The Board, but not the individual Directors, may  direct 
the District Manager with respect to the development and implementation of District policy. 

(e) Individual Directors shall not direct employees in the performance of their duties. Any such 
direction shall be reported to the Board and District Manager

(f) The District Manager may discuss District business with Directors outside a public meeting, 
but the District Manager shall not communicate the views of Directors to one another, except at a Board 
meeting. The Board shall not discuss or act on the District Manager’s recommendations, except at a public 
meeting. 

Section 9. Duties of the District Manager

The District Manager shall have full charge and control of the affairs of the District consistent  with 
the policies established by the Board. The District Manager shall work with the Board, Board and  joint 
committees to provide services of high quality and reasonable cost. The District Manager also shall: 

(1) Present to, and upon Board approval, implement a District strategic plan. 

(2) Plan, administer, operate and maintain facilities and equipment adequate to meet the 
needs of the District. 

(3) Serve as liaison between the Board and District employees. 



MCHDrevision 2020

-8-

(4) If an emergency arises and there is insufficient time to notify the Board, the District 
Manager may take appropriate and reasonable action otherwise within the Board's 
jurisdiction. The District Manager shall report such action to the Board as soon as 
possible. 

(5) The District Manager shall hire, with the concurrence of the Board, other District employees 
as the District may require, each of whom shall perform such duties as the Board may 
determine from time-to-time.  Officers shall serve at-will. 

(6) The District Manager may engage professional consultants to provide specialized service 
with the approval of the Board. 

(7) The District Manager may engage an engineer to assist in the planning and design of 
District facilities with the approval of the Board. 

Section 10. Other Officers. 

(a) In addition to the District Manager, the other officer of the District is the Chief Financial 
Officer (“CFO”). 

(b) Other officers and employees shall assist the District Manager in the implementation of 
policy. 

(c) Directors may discuss District business with employees.  The employees shall, if possible, supply 
information requested by Directors in writing, and shall inform the District Manager when 
information is supplied. 

Section 11. Officer Compensation. 

(a) Employees shall be paid amounts determined by the Board by resolution or minute 
order. Employees will be exempt and salaried.. 

(b) Full-time employees receive the same benefits as full-time, regular employees. 

(c) Part-time employees, other than directors, receive compensation and benefits 
established by the Board. 

(d) Except as provided herein, officers shall be reimbursed for reasonable and necessary 
expenses incurred on District business in the same manner as employees. 

Section 12. Employees. 

The District Manager shall serve as head of Human Resources. Directors are not encouraged to 
discuss District business with employees. If a Director inquires of an employee about District business, 
the employee shall respond to the Director and inform the District Manager

Section 13. Legal Counsel. 

(a) An attorney shall be appointed by the Board to act as General Counsel. The Board may 
appoint special counsel. The Board will set the compensation of General Counsel and Special Counsel. 
General and Special Counsel serve at the pleasure of the Board. 

(b) The General Counsel is directly accountable to the Board. General Counsel shall provide 
legal advice and services as requested by the Board, and shall work with the District Manager on the 
District’s legal matters. 

(c) General Counsel represents the District. General Counsel shall not represent individual 
directors, officers or employees, unless authorized in writing by the Board. 



MCHDrevision 2020

-9-

(2) Reviewing and recommending employee compensation and benefits;
(3) Quality control and performance improvement; and
(4) Overseeing short and long term facility planning and maintenance

(d) General Counsel will recommend appointment of special counsel when conflicts arise or if 
necessary to deal with matters requiring specialized knowledge. 

Page Break 5/6

Section 1. General. 

ARTICLE III.  BOARD COMMITTEES 

(a) Committees of the Board shall be standing or ad hoc. The committee members shall be 
appointed by the President at the January regular Board meeting and as otherwise needed. The President’s 
action shall be final unless a majority of director’s object. Two directors shall be appointed to each 
committee, one of whom shall be the committee chair, and both of whom shall be voting members. Any 
director not appointed to a committee may serve as an alternate to that committee. Regular  meetings of 
committees shall be set at the same time at which committee members are appointed. 

(b) All committees shall be advisory to the Board, except as otherwise expressly specified by 
the Board. 

Section 2. Standing Committees. 
(a) The standing committees of the Board are Planning and Finance. 

(b) Each standing committee shall determine the time and place for its meetings; provided, 
each committee shall meet in January to evaluate its performance over the prior year, and whether its 
duties and responsibilities are appropriate or need to be revised. 

c   Standing committees will be chaired and vice chaired by a member of the Board of   Directors. 
Other members will be appointed as necessary or appropriate for the business of the committee. Standing 
committees will have no less than three (3) members or no more than five (5) members. 

Section 3. Planning Committee 

(a) The committee members shall be two directors and the District Manager and up to two 
additional members  The committee is responsible for:  

(1) Recommending and overseeing Human Resources policies and procedures; 

(b) A quorum on the committee consists of a majority of its members.  The two directors  and 
District Manager are entitled to vote on matters before the committee. 

Section 4. Finance. 

(a) In addition to the Board Treasurer and one other director, the members of the Finance 
Committee include the District Manager and CFO and up to two additional members. The committee is 
responsible for: 

(1) Recommending and overseeing fiscal and business policies and procedures; 
(2) Overseeing financial management and budgeting; 
(3) Recommending and overseeing fiscal controls; 
(4) Recommending and overseeing Investments; 
(5) Overseeing internal audits and ensuring an annual independent audit; and 
(6) Reviewing and presenting to the Board financial statements and reports. 



MCHDrevision 2020

-10

(b) A quorum on the committee consists of a majority of its members.  The two directors  and 
District Manager are entitled to vote on matters before the committee. 

Section 5. Ad Hoc Committees. 

Ad hoc committees, including not more than two directors, may be established by the President, 
subject to approval of the Board, for defined tasks of a limited duration (for instance, not to exceed six 
months). An ad hoc committee shall only perform those duties assigned by the President, and upon their 
completion be discharged. The President, in consultation with the Board, shall determine the members of 
the committee. 

ARTICLE IV.  MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 1. Review of Bylaws. 

At least annually the Board shall review these Bylaws and the Policy Manual to ensure they comply 
with the District Law and all other applicable federal and state laws and regulations in keeping with the 
functions of the Board. 

Section 2. Amendment of Bylaws. 

These Bylaws may be amended by a majority of the Board at a duly noticed Board meeting, 
provided a full statement of each proposed amendment has been sent to each director along with the 
meeting agenda and packet. 

Section 3. Indemnification. 

(a) Civil proceedings. The District shall, to the full extent of the law, defend and indemnify 
each of its employees against expenses, judgments, fines, settlements and other amounts actually and 
reasonably incurred in connection with any civil claim arising out of the scope of his or her employment for 
the District. For purposes of this section, the term “employee” shall have the same meaning set for in 
Government Code section 810.2, or any successor statute thereof, and includes without limitation any 
person who was or is a director, officer, employee or servant of the District. 

(b) Criminal and administrative proceedings. The District may but is not obligated to defend 
and indemnify its employees (as defined above). If an employee seeks defense and indemnification in  any 
such proceeding he or she shall submit a written request to the Board, which shall conduct a review of the 
request in accordance with Government Code sections 995.6 and 995.8, or any successor statutes. 

CERTIFICATION OF SECRETARY 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify: 

1. That I am the duly elected and acting Secretary of Mendocino Coast Healthcare District; and 

2. That the foregoing Bylaws comprised of nine (9) pages constitute the Bylaws, as amended, of 
the District as duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors thereof duly held on  , 
20.   . 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name on this day of  , 20   . 

Secretary 
Mendocino Coast Healthcare District 



MCHDrevision 2020

-10-











HEALTH 
REIMBURSEMENT 
ARRANGEMENTS

Creative employer plans for all employees.  Increase savings, 
increase employee happiness.



HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT ARRANGEMENTS

WHAT IS A HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT ARRANGEMENT (HRA)?

An HRA is an employer-funded benefit that is used to reimburse employees for medical care expenses as 
defined in IRS Code 213 (d). Employers contribute tax-deductible dollars to the account and employees receive 
reimbursements tax-free.  The out-of-pocket medical expenses that may be reimbursed are the same as those that 
a health FSA may reimburse.  This includes insurance co-pays and deductibles, vision and dental expenses, over-
the-counter medications, and prescription drug co-pays that are not covered by insurance.  HRAs are flexible in 
design and can be restricted to cover only specific expenses, or can be included to cover all expenses as defined by 
the IRS. 

BENEFITS OF AN HRA

Employer Benefits

•  Employer contributions to HRAs are not subject to payroll taxes, workers’ compensation or pension and profit 
sharing contribution

•  By combining a higher deductible insurance plan with an HRA, you can lower your company’s health insurance 
costs

• Administrative costs are tax deductible and can be paid by the employer, the employee or a combination of both
• HRAs complement FSA plans and help increase FSA participation

Employee Benefits

•  HRAs allow employees to allocate employer contributions to areas most beneficial to their individual needs
• Disbursements from HRAs are not subject to Federal, State, or Social Security taxes
• Depending on the plan design, HRAs can be carried over to retirement
• HRAs help offset employee out-of-pocket medical expenses 

COMBINING HRAs WITH A FLEXIBLE 
SPENDING ACCOUNT

Although HRA and FSA plans are designed to reimburse employees for eligible 
medical expenses, each offers its own unique features, benefits and limitations 
to both the employer and employees.  Many employer groups successfully 
incorporate both plans in their benefit offerings.  Having both plans gives 
employees the opportunity to better manage their health expenses.  The HRA 
gives the employee funds and the FSA allows the employee to add tax-free 
dollars to pay for additional out-of-pocket expenses.

Example

An employee estimates that her out-of-pocket annual medical expenses will be 
$1,500 for the upcoming year. The employer-funded HRA will pay the first $500 
of eligible expenses, but the employee is responsible for paying the remaining 
$1,000 of expenses.  The employee can establish a Health FSA to pay for the 
remaining $1,000 of anticipated expenses.  P&A provides an administrative 
system that seamlessly integrates these two programs.

 
WHAT IS A HEALTH 
FLEXIBLE SPENDING 
ACCOUNT?

A Health Flexible Spending Account 
(FSA) is an employer-sponsored 
program that allows participants to 
set aside pre-tax dollars from their 
paycheck to pay for medical, dental 
and vision expenses that are either 
partially covered by their insurance 
or not covered at all. By putting 
$1,000 of pre-tax money into an FSA, 
the employee will save about $300 
for the year!

Understanding an HRA



1

Choosing Your HRA Plan Design

From full, unrestricted plan options to designs that reimburse only specific expenses, P&A Group will help you 
create the best plan for your company.

GAP PLAN 
The “gap” plan design complements high deductible insurance products in that 
it only pays for deductible items eligible under the insurance plan, thereby filling 
the “gap” between the employee’s out-of-pocket expenses and the insurance 
coverage. 1

2 UNRESTRICTED
Pays medical expenses not paid by insurance, including but not limited to: 
insurance co-pays and deductibles, vision and dental expenses, prescription drug 
co-payments and non-traditional health care expenses, such as acupuncture.

3 RESTRICTED 
Under this design option, coverage is limited or “restricted” to specific expenses, 
such as vision, dental or prescription drug co-payments. 

4 REFILL
Benefit maximum remains constant and is replenished on an annual basis.

ROLLOVER
Unused account balances/unreimbursed expenses rollover and can be spent/
reimbursed in future years or as benefit dollars become available.5



2

HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT ARRANGEMENTS

Creating the Right Plan for You and Your Employees 

P&A’s HRA Administration ensures that your plan will be well serviced and always in compliance.  Our in-house 
ERISA attorney works with you to create the plan that’s right for you and guarantees that all rules and regulations 
are followed.   A dedicated customer service team is ready to answer any questions your employees may have, 
taking the burden away from your HR department and giving you more time to focus on other responsibilities.  
We’re here to help, to give you the customer service support that’s necessary in providing a successful benefit 
program, and to create a positive experience for your employees.

With an HRA, you provide your employees important 
savings by reducing their out-of-pocket healthcare 
expenses. You choose from a variety of unique plan 
designs, giving you control and flexibility on creating 
a benefit plan.



3

Administered Around You

P&A Group services provide you with everything needed to deliver a successful benefit plan to you and your 
employees.  A dedicated team of consultants, administrators, and customer service professionals ensure that you 
will receive the highest quality care, commitment and service.

Benefit Plans Administered Around You

PLAN CONSULTING   
Experienced benefit consultants listen to your needs and 
determine the most efficient option(s) for you and your 
employees.

PLAN IMPLEMENTATION   
Our marketing and administrative departments work 
together to process all necessary documentation to ensure 
smooth and successful plan setup. 

LEGAL COMPLIANCE
Our in-house ERISA attorney ensures that all plans are in 
compliance with the IRS and Department of Labor rules and 
regulations.

PLAN ADMINISTRATION
Your dedicated account administrator, along with our 
customer service team, are available to service your 
company’s plan, monitor account balances and adjudicate 
claim reimbursements.  Extended customer service hours 
are Monday-Friday, 8:30 AM - 10:00 PM ET.



4

HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT ARRANGEMENTS

WHO CAN SPONSOR HRAS?

• Corporations
• S Corporations
• Professional Service Corporations
• Partnerships
• Governmental Employers
• LLCs (Limited Liability Companies)
• LLPs (Limited Liability Partnerships)
• Sole Proprietors
• Non-Profit Organizations
• Churches and Church-Affiliated Organizations 

All of these types of companies can save payroll related 
taxes by instituting an HRA plan. 

Although certain regulations prohibit sole proprietors, 
partners, members of LLCs (most cases) and more than 
2% owners of an S Corporation from participating in 
the plan, owners can still enjoy the payroll tax savings 
that result from sponsoring the plan. (“Employee” 
shareholders of regular corporations are eligible to 
participate). 

Former employees and retirees can also be covered 
and continue to have access to unused funds in their 
accounts. 

•  HRAs can be restricted to cover specific benefits 
(Example: prescription drug co-pays, physician office 
visits, inpatient hospitalization deductibles).  

•  HRAs cannot be “cashed out” upon an employee’s 
termination of employment or retirement. 

•  Eligible expenses must be incurred during the 
employee’s coverage period but can be reimbursed at 
a later date, depending on how the plan is designed.

•  Plan design options are flexible to accommodate 
individual employer needs.

•  Discrimination in favor of highly compensated 
employees is not allowed.

•  The employer is required to pay eligible expenses only 
to the extent of the individual’s account balance.

•  The plan must be in writing and each plan participant 
must receive a copy of the Summary Plan Description.

•  Plans with over 100 participants must file an annual 
Form 5500.

•  These plans are subject to COBRA continuation rules 
(unless the sponsor is a church or church affiliate).

HRA Guidelines



5

USING THE HRA BENEFITS CARD

Offering the Benefits Card with your plan enhances the plan and gives your employees quicker access to their 
account.  The Benefits Card option is available for almost all HRA plan designs.

Issued under the MasterCard system, the Benefits Card allows employees to 
eliminate the hassle of paying for expenses with out-of-pocket money.  Eligible 
items and services can be paid for immediately with an HRA Benefits Card by 
swiping the card like any other debit card.  The Benefits Card recognizes Merchant 
Category Codes (MCCs) and the Inventory Information Approval System (IIAS) 
so only IRS eligible expenses are charged at pre-approved stores and service 
providers.  When the card is swiped, the amount is automatically deducted from 
the employee’s HRA account balance.  In those circumstances where the Benefits 
Card is not used, employees can still receive reimbursement for eligible expenses by submitting a claim to P&A 
Group, along with a copy of proof of service.  Reimbursement is received either via direct deposit or manual check.  

ENHANCE YOUR  HRA WITH THE P&A BENEFITS CARD
 
•  Reduce time submitting claims and paperwork and waiting for reimbursements

•  Additional cards for spouses and dependents or replacement cards are FREE of charge

•  Real-time account balance is available 24/7 by calling the number on the back of the card

TECHNOLOGY FOR EMPLOYERS & EMPLOYEES

HRA Benefits Card 

HR Connect

Enroll employees online, change 
demographic information, upload 
files and more with this secure web 
portal

Custom Reports

Generate reports like monthly 
participant balances, benefits card 
usage, claims paid to date, deposits 
paid to date, daily reimbursements

Electronic Claims
Upload claims from your 
smartphone, mobile device or 
computer

Mobile Website Visit www.padmin.com on your 
mobile device

Text Messaging
Get participant account information 
including account balance, deposit 
history and claim reimbursement

Web Chat Chat directly with a customer 
service agent



Buffalo | New York City | Los Angeles | Raleigh 

072017

BENEFITS ADMINISTERED AROUND YOU

Creating happy customers since 1975.





 

 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

 
President: 

John Allison 
 

Vice-President: 

Stephanie Simonich 
 
Treasurer: 

Susan Warner 
 
Secretary: 

Charlene McAllister 
 
Members at Large: 

Kitty Bruning 
Robert Cimmiyotti 
Jennifer Owen 
 

ADVISORS 
 

Tom Allman 
Clayt Daley, Jr. 
DawnMarie Kotsonis  
Peter Lopez 
Norm Roby 

 
STAFF 
 

Executive Director 

Michelle Roberts 
 
Development Director 

Mary Kate McKenna 
 
Marketing & Communications 
Director 

Ellen Persa 
 
Development Assistant 

Peter Scott 

 
WINESONG 

 

Pinot Noir Celebration 
Coordinator: 

Janis MacDonald 
 
Production Coordinator 

Kacy Palmieri  
 
775 River Drive 
Fort Bragg, CA  95437 
 

phone: (707) 961-4688 
fax:  (707) 961-4975 
email:
 info@mchfoundation.org 
web:  MCHFoundation.org 
   winesong.org 
 
Tax ID #:  68-0041554 

Did you know you can name Mendocino Coast Healthcare Foundation in your estate plan? 
Please contact the Healthcare Foundation for more information. 

 

 Mission: To support quality healthcare and wellness services for people in the Healthcare District. 

 
 
 
 
July 15, 2020 
 
Judy Leach, President 
Adventist Health Mendocino Coast 
700 River Drive 
Fort Bragg, CA  95437 
 
 
Dear Judy, 
 
On March 25, 2020 the Foundation made a donation of $165,600 to Mendocino Coast 
District Hospital (MCDH) for the purchase of 4 ventilators.  Later, during June 2020 
before any of the ventilators had been delivered,  MCDH re-evaluated its needs and 
requested that the Foundation approve a change in equipment to include 2 ventilators 
rather than 4, 2 Glidescope intubation scopes, and 4 Personal Air Powered Respirators 
(PAPRs).  The Foundation approved that request.  
 
We understand the approximate total cost for the changed equipment  is $96,800, 
leaving an unspent and uncommitted balance of the initial donation of approximately 
$68,800.  This letter serves as a formal request for a refund of the unspent and 
uncommitted balance in the approximate amount of $68,800. 
 
I would like to point out that the quick turnaround of receiving the original request, 
approving it, and issuing a check within 3 days was a unique event due to the urgency 
of preparing for the impact of the pandemic.  This was a departure from our usual and 
customary funding process.  Normally, the Foundation funds a grant it has approved  by 
reimbursing the cost  after equipment has been received and an invoice generated.   
 
As the source of funds used to purchase the above equipment is a donor designated 
fund restricted to equipment for the hospital, we are asking that the unspent and 
uncommitted funds be returned to the Foundation so they can be re-deposited in the 
restricted fund.  The Foundation will be happy to consider further requests for funding 
for other critical needs. 
 
Thank you for your attention to this matter. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 

 
Michelle Roberts 
Executive Director 
 
cc:   William Miller, M.D. 

 
        
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MCHF is a 501(c)(3) tax-exempt organization. 





FINANCIAL REPORT  

WILL BE AVAILABLE LATER 

























































































































































































































































Page 1 of 3 
 
 

NOTICE AND AGENDA OF REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

THURSDAY, November 12, 2020 

6:00 P.M.  Open Session 
Meeting via Zoom Conference 

 
Topic: My Meeting 

Time: Nov 12, 2020 06:00 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 
 

Join Zoom Meeting                    
https://zoom.us/j/95003454332?pwd=NXY3VklyO3ZHcWhFTStpaVhJNmV6UT09 

 
Meeting ID: 950 0345 4332 

Passcode: 099150 
One tap mobile 

+16699009128,,95003454332#,,,,,,0#,,099150# US (San Jose) 
+12532158782,,95003454332#,,,,,,0#,,099150# US (Tacoma) 

 
Dial by your location 

+1669 900 9128 US {San Jose) 
+1  253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
+1312 626 6799 US  (Chicago) 

+1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington D.C) 

Meeting ID: 950 0345 4332 
Passcode: 099150 

Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/adbOHIMg2N 
 
 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE a Regular Board of Directors meeting has been called for Thursday, November 
12, 2020 at 6:00 pm. This meeting will be held via Zoom Conference only in order to reduce the 
risk of spreading coronavirus {COVID-19) and pursuant to the Governor's Executive Orders N-25- 
20 and N-29-20. 

No physical location from which members of the public may observe the meeting and offer public 
comment will be provided. 

 

CONDUCT  OF BUSINESS: 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Ms. Jessica Grinberg, Chair 
 

2. ROLLCALL 



Page 2 of 3 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board of Directors on any 
matter which the District has jurisdiction. You may state your name and address for the record. Time 
is limited to 3 minutes per speaker. The Board of Directors can take no action on your presentation, 
but can seek clarification to points made in your presentation or comments. 

 
BROWN ACT REQUIREMENTS: Pursuant to the Brown Act, the Board of Directors cannot discuss issues 
or take action on requests during this comment period. 

 

4.. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: Ms. Jessica Grinberg, Chair 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 

 
5. INFORMATION/ACTION: Hubs & Routes Update:  Ms. Jennifer Kreger, M.D. TABl 

 

6. INFORMATION/ACTION: Recruitment of District Manager: Ms. Jessica Grinberg, Chair 
 

7. INFORMATION/ACTION: Location of District office: Ms. Jessica Grinberg, Chair 
 

8. INFORMATION/ACTION: Approval of FYE 06-30-20 Pension Liability: 
Ms. Jessica Grinberg, Chair 

TAB2 

 

9. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: Ms. Jessica Grinberg, President 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board of Directors on any 
matter which the District has jurisdiction. You may state your name and address for the record. Time 
is limited to 3 minutes per speaker. The Board of Directors can take no action on your presentation but 
can seek clarification to points made in your presentation or comments. 

 
BROWN ACT REQUIREMENTS: Pursuant to the Brown Act, the Board of Directors cannot discuss 
issues or take action on requests during this comment period. 

 

11. COMMENTS FROM BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 



Page 3 of 3 
 
 
 
 
Dated: November 09, 2020 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA} 
COUNTY OF MENDOCINO 

 
I declare under penalty of perjury that I am employed by the Mendocino Coast Health Care District Board 
of Directors; and that I posted this notice at the North and Patient Services Building Lobby entrances to 
the Adventist Health Mendocino Coast Hospital on November 09, 2020 

 

 
Karen Arnold 
Secretary of the Board of Directors 

Date 

 

All disabled persons requesting disability related modifications or accommodations, including auxiliary 
aids or service may make such request in order to participate in a public meeting to Karen Arnold, 
Secretary of the Board of Directors, 700 River Drive, Fort Bragg, CA 95437 no later than 1 working day 
prior to the meeting that such matter be included on that month's agenda. 

 
*Per District Resolution, each member of the public who wishes to speak shall be limited to three minutes 
each per agenda item. Please identify yourself prior to speaking. Thank you. 



' . .' 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T 
A 
B 

 
1 



Presentation to Board of Directors of Mendocino Coast Healthcare District 
by Jennifer Kreger MD 
on November 12, 2020 
regarding the project called: 

 
Community Resource Hubs Throughout Mendocino Coast Healthcare District 
AKA "Hubs & Routes" 

 
Goals  of presentation: 

 
(1) to report first year's progress to full Board of Directors (in lieu of Planning Committee) 

 
(2) to request Board approval of slight amendments to 2020 budget and timeline that were 

needed because of pandemic and of having inaccurately predicted web design costs 
 

(3) to request Board approval to continue operating under District's 501(c)3 umbrella as we 
fundraise for 2021 

 
 
Three sets of documents for review: 

 
(1) current versions of our website, hubsandroutes.net. 

For those who do not have time to peruse the whole site, it may be helpful to watch our 
new five-minute YouTube video, released Nov 6, which will give you a sense of how we 
present this project to the general public. This is at https://youtu.be/VK3pjD Sxrl 

 
To get a better sense of the impact on healthcare, see the Islands and Public Hub Map 
and its "Examples" page, and the Public Hubs Resource Form welcome page and its 
"More Details, Pleasel" Page. 

 
Other meetings, such as one with the new Emergency Physician Group planned for 
March, will focus more on Leaders' Pages. Meetings organized by "island" include more 
discussion of Private Hub formation. For more information, please email 
hubsroutes@mcn.org or view additional pages on the website. 

 
 

(2) Comparison of initial and revised timelines 
For the initial timeline see our grant application of one year ago. Multiple attempts to 
include that for reference in this letter have been thwarted by information technology. 

mailto:hubsroutes@mcn.org


Revised: 
 

Activity Parties Actual time performed 
Collect and disburse 
granted funds 

Judy Hoagland Collected in April, disbursed 
first set on 6/9/20, plan for 
remainder next week 

"Visit" at least 6 Hubs 
and get their Offers: 
-signed up 15 Public and 
26 Private Hubs by end 
of Oct, and active 
recruitment just 
resumed 
-cancelled 3 public in- 
person workshops and 
held 5 on Zoom, then 
switched to Island-based 
Zoom workshops 

Jennifer Kreger (most) and 
Rick Hemmings (2) 

January through present, 
excluding August (a month 
of severe phone and 
computer malfunction) 

(No organizing of lodging 
partners) 

(Allison deGrassi no longer 
works in the capacity in 
which she offered this help) 

(none) 

Developed Assisted 
Telemedicine branch of 
H&R including maps of 
Assisted Telemed 
Hotspots and training of 
volunteers, then 
cancelled due to 
inadequate (literal) 
bandwidth at Clinic+ 
insurance and liability 
issues 

Jennifer, Rick, John Allison, 
Stephan 

March, April 

Upload publicizable 
resources to maps 

Jennifer July through present 

Report to Planning 
Committee 

Jennifer until onset of 
pandemic, after which 
Committee ceased to 
meet 

Jan and Feb, then via emails, 
and today via Full Board 

Request permission to 
cross private lands 

Alison DeGrassi, Rick 
Hemmings, Alix Sabin, Carole 
Barnes, Chief Michael Rees, 
others 

Nov 2019 to Feb 2020 and 
September 2020 to present 
(and other people/times we 
did not document) 



Test and map ARR Rick Hemmings, Carole 
Barnes, Alix Sabin, ALRVFD 
Chief Michael Rees, others 

Rick Nov 2019-April 2020 
and group Sept 2020 to 
present (and other 
people/times we did not 
document) 

Select web designer to 
post online map-turned 
out not to fit in our 
budget-"that is  doable 
for about $20,000 11

--- 

so we learned to design 
website ourselves and 
used commercial 
software building blocks 
for it 

Rick Hemmings, Jennifer 
Kreger 
(two other volunteers 
attempted to integrate sign- 
ups with mapping, but later 
found out that to do so in 
the way they'd planned, they 
would need to buy about 
$20,000 of software and 
support) 

Interviewed three web 
designers in March 2020; 
Rick got first draft website 
up in April/May; Jennifer 
made a partial new version 
in June, but finally cracked 
the integration conundrum 
and got the maps to be 
"quickly searchable at the 
user end" around late July 

Meet with at least 6 first- 
responder leaders-Davy 
Beak, Coast Guard, Dan 
Maxey, Steve Orsi, Laurie 
Starr, Robin Serrahn, 
Rose Britton, Michael 
Rees 

Rick and Jennifer to Coast 
Guard 
Jennifer to others 

January to present 

"Update District's 
website to include our 
map"-this turned into 
having our own website 
and multiple maps 

(District was for most of this 
year without a web designer 
of its own, but when it 
makes its own website, can 
link to Hubs & Routes) 

April to present 

Orient ER physicians to 
maps 

Jennifer Planned for March as 911 
map should have a lot of 
data on it by then so 
teaching a "search" should 
be quite rewarding 

(Order printing of District 
maps, and take to largest 
public hubs and 
libraries-cancelled as 
online maps are easier to 
update and as libraries 
are closed) 

We are assigning to Public 
Hub leaders the task of 
printing lists (from the 
Search popups from their 
online maps) the permitted 
resource info and posting it 
for local public use 

ongoing 



3. Comparison of initial and revised budgets 
For initial budget, please see original grant application of one year ago (attempts to send 
failed.) 

 
Revised: 

 
Project element Actual expense Amount 

donated 
separately from 
Community 
Foundation of 
Mendocino 
County 
Resiliency Grant 

Amount already 
paid from CFMC 
Resiliency Grant 
Via Judy 
Hoagland 

Amount to be 
paid to complete 
disbursement of 
this grant's funds 

Mapping, data 
collection, and 
website-building 
software 

$999.41 $250 $17.04 (NC)+ 
$199.95 {ZM) + 
$42.42 (ZM) 
+ $216 
(SS}=$475.41 

$100 (CT yr 2- 
RH)+ 
+$174 {JF-JK) = 
$274 

Website- 
translation 
software 

$188.13 0 0 $188.13 (WG-JK) 

Labor for initial 
mapping 

$9,360 $4,680 (in-kind) 0 $4,680 (RH) 

Labor for map 
updates 

$5,640 $2,820 (in kind) 0 $2,820 (RH) 

Printing maps $427.08 0 $250.30 $176.78 (JK) 
Website design, 
upkeep,and 
updating 

$20,000 $19,356.86 (in 
kind) 

0 $643 (RH) 

Public Health 
Consultation 

$1,050 $1,050 (in-kind) 0 0 

Legal 
consultation 

0 0 0 0 

Supplies, Zoom 
and and publicity 
for volunteer 
trainings and 
workshops 

$244.50 29.98 (Nov/Dec 
Zoom) 

26.37 + 4.50 
+10.02 +11.87 + 
16.62+ 10.99+ 
44.21=124.58 

$89.94 (JK) 

Supplies for 
proposed 
Assisted 

$7.72 $60 $7.72 0 



... 
 
 
 
 
 

Telemedicine 
arm (cancelled) 

    

Totals $37,976.84 $28,246.84 $858.01 $8,871.99 
of which $628.85 
goes to JK and 
$8,243.14 goes 
to RH 

 

Summary: because of the pandemic, more Hubs & Routes functions need to take place 
online, so the website became a key feature. Web design costs were initially 
significantly underestimated, then defrayed via extra volunteer hours. Thus, in-kind 
matching was greater than anticipated, but the total cash requested is equal to the total 
cash initially granted. 

 
 
 

4. lmplications of remaining under Board's 501(c)3 status 
 

a) We'll need a letter of support signed-probably each time we apply for a 
grant 

b) You may wish to request legal review of our project at intervals, though we 
do build in numerous disclaimers 

c) We'll need to tell our granters how often we will be reporting to you or to a 
Board subcommittee 

d) If we manage to win enough grants to hire a Hubs & Routes Administrator 
and/or interns, we'll need training in how to do so properly under non-profit 
status 

e) If Board hires staff, we'll want to orient them to basic functions of Hubs & 
Routes and collaborate on workflows for 
-- deposit granted funds, 
--receiving donations 
--answering simple inquiries 
--forwarding more in-depth questions. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T 

A 

B 

 
2 



RUN DATE: 11/09/20 
RUN TIME: 1348 
RUN USER: JHOUGLAND 

 
Adventist Health Mendocino Coast GL LIVE 

DETAIL TRIAL BALANCE 

    
PAGE 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACCOOlft' 
J00  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NAL 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DATE IICB 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ENTRY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DEBITS 

.ruH 2020 
FINAL 

 
From Account Th:cu Account 
20.2270.0000 20.2270.0000 

 
 

OPEN 
CREDITS DESCRIPTION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TOTAL 
DEBITS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TOTAL 
CREDITS 

 
 
 
 
 
 

NET 
CHANGE 

Round Konoy:  0.01 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CLOSB 

20.2270.0000 - MCDH PENSION PAYABLE CURRENT FYE 
       

   -874,898.99 100,076.60 95,166.89 4,909. 71 -869,989.28 
GJ 06/30/20 29 1-47  79,232.00 MAY 2020 PENSION ADJUSTMENT     

BA 11/09/20 1 1-50 100,076.60  PENSION ADJ -CORRECT TO ACTUAL- JUNE 2020     

BA 11/09/20 1 1-49  15,934.89 PENSION ADJ -CORRECT TO ACTUAL- JUNE 2020     

 
100,076.60 95,166.89 

     

 
 
GRAND TOTALS 

   
 
 

-874,898.99 

 
 
 

100,076.60 

 
 
 

95,166.89 

 
 
 

4,909.71 

 
 
 

-869, 989. 28 

 



Page 1 of 3

NOTICE AND AGENDA OF SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

TUESDAY, November 17, 2020  

6:00 P.M.  Open Session 

Meeting via Zoom Conference  

Topic: My Meeting 
Time: Nov 17, 2020 06:00 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://zoom.us/j/3453214116?pwd=dEFRajBuZkpoaXFFd2E2TUVGYVVCZz09

Meeting ID: 345 321 4116 
Passcode: 2WtzGd 
One tap mobile 
+16699009128,,3453214116#,,,,,,0#,,546910# US (San Jose)  
+12532158782,,3453214116#,,,,,,0#,,546910# US (Tacoma) 

Dial by your location 
        +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 

Meeting ID: 345 321 4116 
Passcode: 546910 
Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/adXGuPoSOS

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE a Special Board of Directors meeting has been called for Tuesday, November 
17, 2020 at 6:00 pm. This meeting will be held via Zoom Conference only in order to reduce the 
risk of spreading coronavirus (COVID-19) and pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Orders N-25-
20 and N-29-20.  

No physical location from which members of the public may observe the meeting and offer public 
comment will be provided. 

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS: 

1.  CALL TO ORDER:  Ms. Jessica Grinberg, Chair 

2.  ROLL CALL 



Page 2 of 3

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board of Directors on any 
matter which the District has jurisdiction. You may state your name and address for the record. Time 
is limited to 3 minutes per speaker. The Board of Directors can take no action on your presentation, 
but can seek clarification to points made in your presentation or comments. 

BROWN ACT REQUIREMENTS:  Pursuant to the Brown Act, the Board of Directors cannot discuss issues 
or take action on requests during this comment period. 

4.. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Ms. Jessica Grinberg, Chair 

OLD BUSINESS:  

5. INFORMATION/ACTION:  Recruitment Process for Permanent/Interim District Manager:             
Jessica Grinberg, Chair 

6. INFORMATION/ACTION:  Review & Approval of Proposal for District’s Website: TAB 1
    Ms. Jessica Grinberg, Chair 

7. INFORMATION/ACTION:  Future District Involvement in Micro Grid: Ms. Jessica Grinberg, Chair        

8.  FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS:  Ms. Jessica Grinberg, Chair

9.  PUBLIC COMMENTS  
This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board of Directors on any 
matter which the District has jurisdiction. You may state your name and address for the record. Time 
is limited to 3 minutes per speaker. The Board of Directors can take no action on your presentation but 
can seek clarification to points made in your presentation or comments. 

BROWN ACT REQUIREMENTS:  Pursuant to the Brown Act, the Board of Directors cannot discuss    
issues or take action on requests during this comment period. 

10. COMMENTS FROM BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

11. ADJOURNMENT 

  12.CLOSED SESSION 

a) Information/Action:  Public Employment: Permanent/ Interim District Manager 
discussion:   Government Code §54954.5 & 54957 







Website Design 
ad hoc committee 

John Redding and Norman de Vall 
October 15, 2020 

The Committee reviewed the website reconstruction and maintenance proposal of 
Sean Fuller owner of Devine Design, a division of uberbytes LLC, of Little River 
and compared the work program and maintenance with the proposal of Liz 
Evangelatos Barney. 

The primary difference is in the funding proposal.  Rather than a fixed amount 
Fuller’s proposal is funded on an hourly basis with an estimated cost to the District 
to complete the project of $700 to $900 as shown on Page 4 Section B. 

The ad hoc committee recommends accepting the Divine Design proposal. 

/s/  Norman de Vall /s/  John Redding



Mendocino Coast Healthcare District

mcdh.org

Website Proposal

Divine Design
(a division of überbytes LLC)

Page 1 of 5



I. Objectives

Migrate website to new domain and re-brand as Mendocino Coast Healthcare 
District. Redesign website layout with improved aesthetics that welcome visitors.
Create global menu to make navigation of pages more convenient. Ensure new 
layout is mobile-friendly and intuitive on all devices. Address accessibility 
concerns as needed. Install and configure recommended suite of WordPress 
plugins to maximize security, website performance and SEO (search engine 
optimization). Update page content as required, add provided images as desired.
Finally, employ a backup strategy to ensure website assets are secure stored and 
can be easily redeployed if necessary. The following pages are to be included:

A. Agendas
B. Minutes
C. Contact: Board of Directors

1. Executive Director
2. Assistant Directors

D. Calendar
E. Objectives:

1. Mission Statement
2. History
3. Description

VII. District vs Agency/Non-Profit Corporation
VIII. Local Agency Formation Commission

F. Financials

II. Modules

Project Scope:

• Move website to new domain.
• Recommend website hosting, if necessary.
• Modernize layout to be attractive, increase user-

Page 2 of 5



friendliness and be compatible with multiple devices.
•  Standard device testing after new theme is completed.
• Layout shall be valid HTML5 according to W3C Markup 

Validation Service:
https://validator.w3.org

• Logo to be created as optimized SVG for crisp display at 
any resolution.

• Install SSL certificate and harden security to achieve A+ 
rating according to Qualys SSL Server Test:
https://www.ssllabs.com/ssltest

• Build layout with accessibility elements following 
WCAG 2.1 guidelines as recommended by WAI:
https://www.w3.org/WAI/standards-guidelines/wcag/

• Optimize WordPress with necessary plugins for security,
performance and functionality.

• Employ automated backup strategy with daily / 
weekly / monthly rotating backups of database and 
backup of website files at recommended interval based 
on content update frequency.

• Monthly maintenance plan to install  security updates as 
they become available and ensure smooth ongoing 
operation of website.

III. Terms and Conditions

A. Website Assets

1. Graphics and Media.    All media files to be provided by client unless 
requested and shall be property of client. Logo design and 
photography are available optionally and not included in the estimate.

2. Text.    All textual content to be provided by client and shall be property
of client.

Page 3 of 5



3. Credentials.   All credentials required for maintenance of online 
accounts and software shall be securely stored, updated when 
necessary and provided to client upon request.

B. Payment

1. Fees.   Labor is be billed at $50/hr. Upfront payment of 25% required to 
begin project. Monthly maintenance plan is billed at $20 per month 
and includes up to one hour of maintenance. If a task requires more 
than one hour or if new requests are made, additional labor will be 
billed at $50/hr.

2. Payment Instruction.   Payment may be made via ACH, Cash, Check or 
Wire Transfer.

Estimated cost to complete project is $700 - $900. If more requests are added during 
development that extend beyond the scope of the project as outlined above or if 
unforeseen complexity arises that requires significantly more time than estimated, 
additional work will be charged at $30/hr. until project is completed.

As a side note, I was born in Fort Bragg hospital and raised in Mendocino. I have been 
building websites since 2006; it would be a pleasure to work on this project and create a 
quality website to represent Mendocino Coast Healthcare District. I am available locally
at this time and can meet in person when necessary.

Submitted by:

Sean Fuller
Divine Design

Email: sean@divinedesign.pro
Telephone: +1 775 241-8237

1490 Stardust St #5045, Reno, NV 89503

Page 4 of 5



If the terms of this proposal are agreed upon, please sign below.

Sean Fuller:

Date: 2020/10/14

Mendocino Coast Healthcare District Representative:

Date:

Page 5 of 5





Jessica Grinberg | Adventist Health - MCDH 
Website Development 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Presented to 

Jessica Grinberg 
President, Mendocino Coast Healthcare District Board 

 
 
Prepared by 

Liz Evangelatos 
WebDesigner/Contractor 

 
Date 

September 7, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 



MCDH.org l WebSite Proposal and Contract 
 
 
 

 
Liz Evangelatos Page 3  9/23/2020 

Dear Jessica, 

 
I’m sorry we haven’t had a chance to talk about the details of the new website, but I’m hoping 
we can use this proposal as a starting point. If there’s anything in here that you’d like to modify, 
please let me know. 

What I believe you were asking for is a new website with some basic information on it. The old 
website can be redirected to the new site. In other words, when people go to mcdh.org, I can 
force the browser to go to the new site. The other option would be to use the existing domain, 
(mcdh.org), empty what’s there and replace with the new information you send me. 

The website will be using responsive design and includes the purchase of an SSL certificate. This 
means that your website will adapt and scale to whatever kind of device the user is viewing from 
while maintaining your organization’s look and feel. That’s not to say it will be identical on each 
device because of screen size of course, but it will flow nicely and everything will work (buttons, 
navigation, payment option) on all devices. 

We’ll test it on a variety of devices together - mobile and non-mobile - to ensure the experience 
is consistent and easy to use and that you end up with a site you love. 

I look forward to working with you. 

Sincerely, 

 
 
Liz Evangelatos Barney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MCDH.org l WebSite Proposal and Contract 
 
 
 

 
Liz Evangelatos Page 4  9/23/2020 

 
 
 
 
I. Site Objectives 
 
The site is going to be pretty small and should have an easy and clear navigation 
system. It should also outline the purpose of the site and the changes since the 
purchase and anything you think is important to say about the transition. 
 
The site should strive to use keywords as effectively as possible to rank higher in search 
engines and overall, be easier to find. Search Engine Optimization (SEO) just means 
using the keywords that people are using in Google to find you. Using them in the 
coding where you don’t see, using them in the text where you do see and using them to 
name photos. A small disclaimer here: This agreement covers only basic SEO. 
 
 
 
II. Site Structure 
 

The site will have the following pages/sections: 
 

 Home 
 

 Board 
 

o Board Agendas & Meeting Minutes 
o Board By-Laws 

 
 Calendar 

 
 About Us / Contact Us  

 
 
 

 Home 
o Header navigation as described below 
o The home page will incorporate at least one full-screen photo of Client’s 

choice. 
o Descriptive text should be added here to describe to the first-time viewer 

what the page is all about and possibly links to other helpful organizational 
resources 

o Footer (see below) 
 



MCDH.org l WebSite Proposal and Contract 
 
 
 

 
Liz Evangelatos Page 5  9/23/2020 

 Board  
o This page will have links to pdf versions of the Board Agendas & Meeting 

Minutes 
o Under this heading there will also be a link to go to the Board By-Laws 

 
 

 Calendar (Google Calendar) 
o Header navigation as described below 
o A Google calendar that you and those you add to your team can edit, but is 

also viewable to the public. It will also include a button for people to share to 
their own personal calendar if they choose to. 

o Footer (see below) 
 

 
 About Us / Contact Us / Rules 

o Some information on the transition and what this means to the community 
o Key members of the Board, photos and short bio or at least their names 

and positions 
o Contact form with basic fields 

 Name of person emailing 
 Their email address 
 Their message  

o Footer changes (see below) 
 
 

 Footer 
o Footer will include:  

 Address 
 Phone number 
 All navigation links that are included in the Header 

 
 

 Header Navigation 
o The navigation will be the same on all pages and will include: 

 
 Home 
 Board 
 Calendar 
 About Us/ Contact Us 

 
 

o Links and logo will be distributed across the top 



MCDH.org l WebSite Proposal and Contract 
 
 
 

 
Liz Evangelatos Page 6  9/23/2020 

o Navigation will have a semi-transparent color block behind it to make the 
text readable on all pages 
 

 

Additionally: 
 

 This proposal includes the creation of a Facebook Business Page to associate with 
this website.  

 
 
CONTRACT 
 
Description of Project: 
 

1. Creation of website 
2. Basic Search Engine Optimization (SEO) 

 
Bid Price: 
 
SSL Purchase & Installation $      75 
Graphic/Image Corrections/Modifications/Development $ 1,000 
Wordpress Theme & Widget Installation $    400 
Formatting Pages – Design, Coding & Implementation $ 1,675 
Insurance $    150 
Facebook Business Page Creation (posting not included) $    200 
 
 
BID PRICE         $ 3,500 
 
 
(Three Thousand Five Hundred Dollars and no/100) 
 
Installment Payments 
 
Initial Payment upon acceptance of contract (50%)  $ 1,750 
After Client has approved completion of site (50%)  $ 1,750 
 Total         $ 3,500 
 
Description of Materials to be Supplied by Client: 
 

1) All content to be used on each page  
2) Photos/images to be used on web site 
3) Text to be used on web site 



MCDH.org l WebSite Proposal and Contract 
 
 
 

 
Liz Evangelatos Page 7  9/23/2020 

 
 
Date Due: Project to be completed within 60 days after 1) Agreement has been signed 
by both parties; 2) All materials have been submitted by Client to Contractor as outlined 
above; and 3) Any changes will be submitted in an addendum. 
 
Rights Transferred: The web site that will be developed by Contractor is owned by Client 
for an infinite period of time and at whatever internet/intranet location(s) desired by  
Client that are owned by Client. The completed site, including all pages, graphics, and 
scripts are owned by the Client. The Wordpress theme and widgets will included in this 
contract amount for the lifetime of the website. Some widgets used may request a fee 
and Contractor cannot control nor is Contractor responsible for changes made by a third 
party. However, the completed site may not be used for any other entity whatsoever 
other than Client without written authorization by Contractor. Contractor agrees that 
Client may convey elements of the site developed under this Agreement to third parties 
without further payment to Contractor. Contractor may use the source code in Client site 
for any other Contractor purpose without any obligation whatsoever to Client, except 
that Client shall maintain all control over its tradenames and associated property. The 
transfer of rights to the site from Contractor to Client is conditional upon receipt by 
Contractor of full payment from Client. 
 
System Applications: The site will be designed around the capabilities of the following 
browsers: Google Chrome and Microsoft Internet Explorer; desktop, laptop and mobile 
phones, both android and ios. 
 
Estimate: This estimate is good for 60 (sixty) days after issuance. 
 
Changes: All changes must be made in writing, and must include: 1) description; 2) any 
additional amounts due; 3) Client’s signature. No additional payment shall be made for 
changes required to conform to the original assignment description. 
 
Time for Payment: A 50% good faith deposit is due upon signing this agreement and 
prior to commencement of project. The balance is due after site is uploaded to the 
server of Client’s choice and PRIOR to launching the site.  Client shall assume 
responsibility for all collection of legal fees necessitated by default in payment. 
 
Viewing Site in Progress: The Client will be given access to the website to view as it 
progresses and provide feedback. 
 
Copyright: Client agrees to obtain copyright permission and model releases for any 
materials given to Contractor for use in this project. 
 



MCDH.org l WebSite Proposal and Contract 
 
 
 

 
Liz Evangelatos Page 8  9/23/2020 

Internet Access: Access to Internet will be provided by a separate Internet Service 
Provider (ISP) to be contracted by the Client and who will not be a party to this 
agreement.  
 
Progress Reports: Contractor shall contact the Client on a mutually acceptable schedule 
to monitor the progress of this project, including reporting problems encountered and 
recommending changes relating to the development and testing of the web site. 
Contractor shall inform the Client promptly by telephone or email upon discovery of any 
event or problem that may delay the development of the work significantly. 
 
Testing and Acceptance Procedures: The Developer will make every good faith effort to 
beta test all deliverables thoroughly and make all necessary corrections as a result of 
such testing prior to launching the website. 
 
Designations: Contractor shall designate Liz Evangelatos and Client shall designate Mary 
Beth Williams (or a person appointed by same) as the only designated persons who will 
send and accept all deliverables and receive and make all communications between the 
Developer and the Client. Neither party shall have any obligation to consider for 
approval or respond to materials submitted other than through the designated persons 
listed above. Each party has the right to change their designated person upon 2 days 
written notice to the other. 
 
Confidential Information: Contractor acknowledges and agrees that the source 
materials and technical and marketing plans or other sensitive business information, as 
specified by the Client, including all materials containing said information, which are 
supplied by the Client to Contractor are to be considered confidential information. 
Information shall not be considered confidential if it is already publicly known through no 
act of Contractor. 
 
Return of Source Information: Upon the Client’s acceptance of the Final Version, or 
upon the cancellation of the project, Contractor shall provide the Client with all copies 
and originals of the source materials provided to Contractor by Client.  
  
Maintenance Plan:  Once site is launched, maintenance is available at $50/hour for 
routine upgrades and changes at the request of Client - there are no on-going 
monthly maintenance fees included in this contract. 
 
SSL Purchase and Installation:  The purchase and installation of an SSL certificate is 
included in this contract. The SSL certificate provides a security layer that Google is now 
demanding on sites it searches and it’s necessary for ecommerce on any site. I include 
the purchase of the certificate on your behalf in this contract and will interact with the 
website host to make sure it is installed properly. I may need to reach out to you if your 
webhost needs assurances that I am indeed working with you. 



MCDH.org l WebSite Proposal and Contract 
 
 
 

 
Liz Evangelatos Page 9  9/23/2020 

 
Delay of Project:  In the event of a delay of the project on the part of the Client for 
more than thirty (30) days Contractor reserves the right to invoice the Client, and the 
Client shall pay for all work completed and expenses incurred to date. 
 
Cancellation: In the event of cancellation of this project, Contractor shall retain 
ownership and possession of all copyrights of any original artwork/source code if such 
has been provided by Contractor; all source materials/artwork provided by Client shall 
be returned to Client, and a cancellation fee for work completed, prorated on the 
contract amount, shall be paid by the Client. 
 
Credit Lines: Client gives permission to Contractor to include Client’s name and site 
address on any future portfolios. 
 
Limitation of Liability: Client agrees that it shall not hold Contractor liable for any 
incidental or consequential damages which arise from the Developer’s failure to perform 
any aspect of the Project in a timely manner, regardless of whether such failure was 
caused by intentional or negligent acts or omissions of Contractor or a third party.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Acceptance of Terms: The signature of both parties shall evidence acceptance of these 
terms. 
 
September 7, 2020 
___________________ _______________________ 
Date       Date 

 
___________________ _______________________ 
Liz Evangelatos, Owner  Jessica Grinberg 
Contractor    President, Mendocino Coast Healthcare District Board 
 
 



MCDH.org l WebSite Proposal and Contract 
 
 
 

 
Liz Evangelatos Page 10  9/23/2020 

Next Steps 
 
If you have any questions after you’ve read the previous pages, please contact me by email or 
phone to clarify any points. I feel that laying a solid foundation and knowing each other’s 
expectations is important to any good working relationship. 
 

 Once you feel confident about everything and are ready to move forward, please sign 
above your name on the signature page on page 9. 
 

 You can return the signed document to me via email at liz@askforliz.com. 
 

 Once I’ve received notification of your acceptance, I’ll email you a PayPal invoice for the 
50% earnest money deposit. 
 

 Once I’ve received notification of the transfer of the earnest money deposit we’ll get the 
project rolling. 

 
Again, if you have any questions, please call or email me. 
 
Thank for the opportunity to bid your project. 
 
Best, 
Liz 
  


	01-02-2020-Board-Packet
	01-06-2020-Special-Board-Packet
	01-23-2020-Special-Board-Packet
	01-30-2020-Board-Packet
	02-27-2020-Board-Packet
	04-06-2020-Special-Board-Packet
	4 6 2020 Special Board x1
	4 6 2020 Special Board x2

	04-19-2020-Special-Board-Packet
	4 19 2020 Special Board Meeting
	TAB 1
	2 27 2020
	Tab 2
	4 6 2020 Special Board
	Tab 3
	Master Lease for Stone Point Entity and MCDH v21 (2)-5951896-v1
	Tab 4
	AH MCHCD Transfer of Business Operations Agreement (Public) (2)
	Tab 5
	THIS DOCUMENT WILL BE SENT WHEN AT A LATER TIME

	04-28-2020-Special-Board-Packet
	04-30-2020-Board-Packet
	4-19-2020 Special Board Agenda
	05-28-2020-Board-Packet
	06-22-20 Board Packet
	06-25-2020-Board-Packet
	07-30-2020-Board-Packet
	Board Agenda  07-30-20 (002).pdf
	TAB 1.pdf
	TAB 2.pdf
	TAB 3.pdf
	TAB 4.pdf
	TAB 5.pdf
	TAB 6.pdf
	tabs only 1-4.pdf
	tabs only 5-7.pdf

	08-27-2020-Board-Packet
	10-29-20 Board Packet
	10-29-20 Board-Meeting-Packet
	11-12-20 Special Board Packet
	3. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	10. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	11. COMMENTS FROM BOARD OF DIRECTORS

	11-17-2020 Board Packet



